
 

Meeting of:   COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 

Date /Time:  Tuesday, August 28, 2012 @ 7:00pm. 

Location:  Council Chambers at the Public Safety Building 

   321 S. Fourth St, Stoughton WI 

Members:  David Kneebone, Sonny Swangstu, Tim Swadley, Michael Engelberger, Ron  

   Christianson, Paul Lawrence, Tricia Suess, Greg Jenson, Eric Hohol, Eric  

   Olstad, Larry Peterson, Tom Majewski 

ATTN COUNCIL MEMBERS: EIGHT (8) MEMBERS NEEDED FOR A QUORUM. The council 

may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are unable to attend the meeting, please 

notify the City Clerk by calling (608)873-6677 or via email nprobst@ci.stoughton.wi.us. 

CALL TO ORDER 

1 Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations  

 Presentation:  Leadership Team presentations to council on five year department outlook. 

2 Minutes and Reports  

 Minutes (Placed on File):  Finance 07-24-2012; Housing Authority 06-06-2012; Police and Fire 

 Commission 07-23-2012; Planning Commission 08-13-2012; Tree Commission 06-21-2012; 

 Utilities 06-16-2012 

 Reports (Placed on File):  July Claims; July Treasurer’s Report; Fire Dept July PFC Report; 

 Police July PFC Report; Utilities June 2012 Financial Summary; Utilities June 2012 Statistical 

 Information; Utilities Payments Due List 

3 Public Comment 

CONSENT AGENDA 

4 R-111-2012Mayoral Appointment of John R. Archer, 1838 North Van Buren Street, Stoughton, 

 WI, to the Tree Commission. 

NEW BUSINESS 

5 O-17-2012; Ordinance to create a Stormwater Utility in the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin. 

 

OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Notice is hereby given that Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin will hold a 

regular or special meeting as indicated on the date, time and location given below. 

  

mailto:nprobst@ci.stoughton.wi.us


 (Committee of the Whole 11-0, First Reading) 

6 Discussion on R-110-2012; Resolution to adopt a Stormwater Utility Credit Policy.   

7 O-14-2012; Amending Zoning Code Table 78-610(4)(b) of the Stoughton Municipal Code.  

 (Planning Commission 5-0, First Reading) 

8 O-15-2012; Amending Zoning Code Sections 78-702(9) and Appendix E of the Stoughton 

 Municipal Code.  (Planning Commission 5-0, First Reading) 

9 O-16-2012; Amending Zoning Code Sections 78-210, 78-015 and 78-408 of the Stoughton 

 Municipal Code.  (Planning Commission 5-0, First Reading) 

10 CLOSED SESSION:  Property acquisition.  The meeting may close per Wisconsin State Statute 

 19.85(1)(e), to consider offer to purchase of 217 South Prairie Street and to consider purchase of 

 the Listol property, and then reopen for the regular course of business. 

11 Consider approval of offer by Redevelopment Authority to purchase 217 South Prairie Street. 

ADJOURNMENT 

 
IF YOU ARE DISABLED AND IN NEED OF ASSISTANCE TO ATTEND THIS MEETING, 
PLEASE CALL 873-6677 PRIOR TO THIS MEETING. 

Note: For security reasons, the front door of the City Hall Building will be locked after 4:30 p.m. If you 
need to enter City Hall after that time, please use the Fifth Street entrances. 

By: Mayor Donna Olson, Council President Eric Hohol, City Clerk Nick Probst 





 


Meeting of:   COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 


Date /Time:  Tuesday, August 28, 2012 @ 7:00pm. 


Location:  Council Chambers at the Public Safety Building 


   321 S. Fourth St, Stoughton WI 


Members:  David Kneebone, Sonny Swangstu, Tim Swadley, Michael Engelberger, Ron  


   Christianson, Paul Lawrence, Tricia Suess, Greg Jenson, Eric Hohol, Eric  


   Olstad, Larry Peterson, Tom Majewski 


ATTN COUNCIL MEMBERS: EIGHT (8) MEMBERS NEEDED FOR A QUORUM. The council 


may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are unable to attend the meeting, please 


notify the City Clerk by calling (608)873-6677 or via email nprobst@ci.stoughton.wi.us. 


CALL TO ORDER 


1 Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations  


 Presentation:  Leadership Team presentations to council on five year department outlook. 


2 Minutes and Reports  


 Minutes (Placed on File):  Finance 07-24-2012; Housing Authority 06-06-2012; Police and Fire 


 Commission 07-23-2012; Planning Commission 08-13-2012; Tree Commission 06-21-2012; 


 Utilities 06-16-2012 


 Reports (Placed on File):  July Claims; July Treasurer’s Report; Fire Dept July PFC Report; 


 Police July PFC Report; Utilities June 2012 Financial Summary; Utilities June 2012 Statistical 


 Information; Utilities Payments Due List 


3 Public Comment 


CONSENT AGENDA 


4 R-111-2012Mayoral Appointment of John R. Archer, 1838 North Van Buren Street, Stoughton, 


 WI, to the Tree Commission. 


NEW BUSINESS 


5 O-17-2012; Ordinance to create a Stormwater Utility in the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin. 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Notice is hereby given that Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin will hold a 


regular or special meeting as indicated on the date, time and location given below. 


  



mailto:nprobst@ci.stoughton.wi.us





 (Committee of the Whole 11-0, First Reading) 


6 Discussion on R-110-2012; Resolution to adopt a Stormwater Utility Credit Policy.   


7 O-14-2012; Amending Zoning Code Table 78-610(4)(b) of the Stoughton Municipal Code.  


 (Planning Commission 5-0, First Reading) 


8 O-15-2012; Amending Zoning Code Sections 78-702(9) and Appendix E of the Stoughton 


 Municipal Code.  (Planning Commission 5-0, First Reading) 


9 O-16-2012; Amending Zoning Code Sections 78-210, 78-015 and 78-408 of the Stoughton 


 Municipal Code.  (Planning Commission 5-0, First Reading) 


10 CLOSED SESSION:  Property acquisition.  The meeting may close per Wisconsin State Statute 


 19.85(1)(e), to consider offer to purchase of 217 South Prairie Street and to consider purchase of 


 the Listol property, and then reopen for the regular course of business. 


11 Consider approval of offer by Redevelopment Authority to purchase 217 South Prairie Street. 


ADJOURNMENT 


 
IF YOU ARE DISABLED AND IN NEED OF ASSISTANCE TO ATTEND THIS MEETING, 
PLEASE CALL 873-6677 PRIOR TO THIS MEETING. 


Note: For security reasons, the front door of the City Hall Building will be locked after 4:30 p.m. If you 
need to enter City Hall after that time, please use the Fifth Street entrances. 


By: Mayor Donna Olson, Council President Eric Hohol, City Clerk Nick Probst 








FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
July 24, 2012 – 6:00 p.m.
City Hall, Hall of Fame Room


Present:
Alderpersons Larry Peterson, David Kneebone, Tom Majewski and Mayor Donna Olson (ex-officio).


Others Present:
Finance Director Laurie Sullivan, Deputy Treasurer Julie Roberts, Planning Director Rodney Scheel,
Alderpersons Ron Christianson and Tim Swadley and City Clerk Nick Probst.


Absent and Excused: Paul Lawrence


Absent:


Call to order:
Finance Vice Chair Peterson called the meeting to order at 6:03p.m.


Communications:
None.


Reports (Contingency – June Claims – June Treasurer’s Report):
No action taken.


Finance Committee Minutes of July 10, 2012:
Moved by Kneebone, seconded by Majewski to recommend approval of the Finance Committee
minutes of July 10, 2012 as presented. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Olson voting.


Resolution Authorizing and Directing the Proper City Official(s) to Approve Entering into a
Contract with the Low Bidder Forest Landscaping for the 2012 Jefferson Street Storm Sewer
Project for a Base Bid Amount of $495,928.90, Alternate Bid #1 for $56,082.05 and Change
Order #1 for $192,209.59:
Staff recommends entering into a contract with low bidder, Forest Landscaping and Construction, Inc.
of Lake Mills for the base bid ($495,928.90) and alternate #1 ($56,082.05) along with change order
#1(-$154,202.05) to bring the current contract price to $397,808.90. The remaining scope of work is
planned to be completed in 2013 upon acquisition of necessary easements. An updated Resolution
R-100-2012 has been submitted to reflect these changes. Moved by Majewski, seconded by
Kneebone to recommend Council approve the Resolution authorizing and directing the proper City
official(s) to approve entering into a contract with the low bidder Forest Landscaping for the 2012
Jefferson Street Storm Sewer Project for a base bid amount of $495,928.90, alternate bid #1 for
$56,082.05 and change order #1 -$154,202.05 bringing the contract price to $397,808.90. Motion
carried unanimously with Mayor Olson voting.







Finance Committee Meeting Minutes
July 24, 2012
Page 2


Resolution Authorizing and Directing the Proper City Official(s) to Approve Entering into a
Contract with Low Bidder J.H. Findorff and Son, Inc for the 2012 Police Facility Upgrade for an
Amount of $135,800, Accepting the Base Bid and Alternates 1,2,3,4 and 8:
Planning Director Scheel stated that the low bidder was selected. The largest component of this
project is the Public Safety Building Roof. Moved by Kneebone, seconded by Majewski to approve
the Resolution authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve entering into a contract
with low bidder J.H. Findorff and Son, Inc for the 2012 Police Facility Upgrade for an amount of
$135,800, accepting the Base Bid and Alternates 1,2,3,4 and 8. Motion carried unanimously with
Mayor Olson voting.


Discussion Regarding Delinquent Personal Property Tax Collection:
Finance Director Sullivan stated that civil action is our only course of action per State Statutes. Staff
would like to involve the City Attorney with collection efforts. Sullivan stated the Cities share is
approximately 32% of these bills that are currently outstanding. The remaining 68% has been paid
out by the City to the other taxing jurisdictions. Publishing of delinquent businesses was discussed.
Staff is directed to draft a letter along with the next delinquent bills that are sent stating that if the
matter in not cleared up within one month of the date of the letter the matter will be referred to our
attorney for collection through civil action.


Business License:
City Clerk Probst does not think this a good idea. He cannot find any other Municipality is the State
that has a general business license. It was suggested that staff contact the State to see if they will
share who is registered for a business in the City limits.


Future agenda items:
Update on Personal Property collection


Moved by Kneebone, seconded by Majewski to adjourn at 6:43pm. Motion carried unanimously with
Mayor Olson voting.


Respectfully submitted,
Julie Roberts
Deputy Treasurer







City of Stoughton Housing Authority Minutes 
June 6, 2012 6:00p.m. 
Greenspire Apartments, 924 Jackson Street, Stoughton, WI 
 
Present: Michael Engelberger; Robert McGeever; David Kalland; Shirley Nygaard 
Finance Director Laurie Sullivan; Mayor Donna Olson; Bev Thompson, Broihahn 
Management & Consulting; Wendy Skoien, Building Manager 
 
The meeting was called to order at 6:06 p.m. by Mayor Olson.  
 
The following offices were filled by unanimous vote: 
Chair: Michael Engleberger 
Vice Chair: Shirley Nygaard 
Secretary/Treasurer: Laurie Sullivan 
 
Motion by McGeever, seconded by Kalland, to approve the minutes of January 25, 
2012.  Carried unanimously. 
 
The monthly reports were previously reviewed. It was reported that the development is 
now 100% occupied. There is a waiting list with about 8-10 people. Resident retention is 
increasing. The average age of residents in Greenspire 1 & 2 is 77 yrs old with an 
annual income of $12,667. The average age of residents in Greenspire 3 is 76 yrs old 
with an annual income of $17,000. 
 
A brief review of the Housing Authority took place.  
 
 
As reported last time, Bev Thompson, representing Broihahn Management, will be 
retiring at the end of 2012. Thompson provided Finance Director Sullivan with a list of 
potential management companies to send RFPs. Sullivan will inquire with other 
municipalities to obtain additional applicants. 
 
Finance Director Sullivan will develop an RFP for approval at the July 18 meeting. 
Members will also review and approve the mailing list and ad for the local Newspaper. 
 
RFP’s will be reviewed at the August meeting.  
 
Moved by McGeever, seconded by Kalland, to adjourn at 6:50p.m.  Carried 
unanimously. 
 
The next meeting will take place on July 18, 3:00pm at the Greenspire Apartments. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
Donna Olson, Mayor 
 







City of Stoughton Police and Fire Commission Minutes
Monday, July 23, 2012 – 5:30 p.m.
Conference Room of the Fire Department, 401 E. Main Street, Stoughton WI 53589


Members Present: Dan Kittleson, Peter Sveum, Karen Benson, Bob Barnett, and Pat O,Connor
Absent and Excused: None
Absent: None
Staff: Fire Chief Marty Lamers, Police Lieutenant Pat Conlin
Guests: None


1. Call to order. The meeting was called to order at 5:30 p.m. by O’Connor.


2. Approve Minutes from April 23, 2012
Review of minutes. Motion by Benson, seconded by Sveum to approve the minutes as presented.
Motion carried unanimously.


3. Chief Lamers’ Quarterly Report
See attached. Motion by Sveum, seconded by Barnett to accept Chief Lamers’ report. Motion carried
unanimously.


4. Move to Closed Session
Motion by Barnett, seconded by Sveum to move into closed session per State Statute
19.85(1)(c) considering employment, promotion, compensation, or performance
evaluation data of any public employee over which the governmental body has
jurisdiction or exercises responsibility. Motion carried unanimously.


Motion by Barnett, seconded by Sveum to reopen the meeting. Motion carried unanimously.


5. Update on Fire Fighter Probation status
Motion by Barnett, seconded by Benson to approve for full membership, Fire Fighters Updike,
Kluever, and Helm. Motion carried unanimously.


6. Fire Department Vacancies
Fire Chief Lamers’ informed the commission of the need to fill a Fire Fighter vacancy. Motion by
Barnett, seconded by Sveum to extend the previous Fire Fighter eligibility list until the end of 2012.
Motion carried unanimously.


7. Chief Leck’s Quarterly Report
See attached. Motion by Barnett, seconded by Benson to accept Chief Leck’s report. Motion carried
unanimously.


8. Police Lieutenant Conlin updated the commission on the progress of the development of a Police
Officer Liaison position as well as the a K-9 unit.


9. Adjournment
The next meeting is scheduled for Monday, October 22, 2012 at 5:30 p.m. in the Conference
Room of the Fire Department, 401 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI. Motion by Sveum, seconded
by Barnett to adjourn at 6:25 p.m. Motion carried unanimously.


Respectfully submitted,
Dan Kittleson
Secretary, City of Stoughton PFC







S:\Clerks Office\minutes\Planning Commission\Regular Meetings 2012\Planning Minutes 8-13-12.doc


Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
Monday August 13, 2012 - 6:00 p.m.
Public Safety Building, Council Chambers, Second Floor, 321 S. Fourth Street,
Stoughton, WI.


Members Present: Mayor Donna Olson, Chair; Eric Hohol, Vice-Chair; Rollie Odland;
Ron Christianson; Todd Krcma and Eric Olstad
Absent and Excused: Scott Truehl
Staff: Planning & Development Director, Rodney Scheel; Zoning Administrator, Michael
Stacey
Press: None
Guests: Michael Miller; Dan McAuliffe and Kamran Mesbah


1. Call to order. Mayor Olson called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm.


2. Council Representative Report.
Hohol stated on July 10th the Common Council approved the ordinance amendment
related to the keeping of chickens and the rezoning for 1117 Hamilton Street.


3. Status of Developments/Projects.
Scheel introduced the status of developments. Krcma questioned how the
proposed apartments are coming along for Hamilton Street. Scheel stated the
developer is submitting plans for state approval. Olstad questioned the status of
Kettle West. Scheel stated they plan to meet again on Wednesday with the
developer. Recent discussions indicate their desire to start construction in 2013
with initial tenants open for business in 2014.


Odland arrived at 6:02 pm


4. Michael Miller, Scoutmaster, Scout Troop 167 requests site plan approval to
construct a storage shed at United Methodist Church, 525 Lincoln Avenue.
Scheel explained the request. Michael Miller was available for questions.


Krcma questioned if it matters installing the shed on concrete vs on gravel. Scheel
stated that will not have any effect on zoning.


Motion by Hohol to approve the request to construct a storage shed at 525 Lincoln
Avenue as presented, 2nd by Olstad. Motion carried 6 – 0.


5. David Wendt of Colorcon, Inc., requests site plan approval to relocate a dust
collector and fan at 440 Business Park Circle, Business Park North.
Scheel explained the request noting the Business Park North Committee approved
this request contingent on the staff review letter and approval by the Planning
Commission.







Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
8/13/12
Page 2 of 3


S:\Clerks Office\minutes\Planning Commission\Regular Meetings 2012\Planning Minutes 8-13-12.doc


Motion by Christianson to approve the request to relocate the dust collector and
fan at 440 Business Park Circle contingent on the staff review letter dated June 19,
2012, 2nd by Hohol. Motion carried 6 – 0.


6. The Capital Area Regional Planning Commission (CARPC) requests the
opportunity to present information pertaining to a potential Future Urban
Development Area (FUDA) Study with participation from the City and
surrounding towns. Discussion will also address next steps required to
initiate the process.
Scheel gave a brief overview and introduced Dan McAuliffe and Kamran Mesbah of
CARPC who gave a presentation related to FUDA.


A discussion took place regarding the involvement in the FUDA process. The
Commissioners are in favor of the City moving forward with a memorandum of
understanding (MOU).


CARPC staff will provide the MOU for City staff to review and bring back to the
Commission. We will be thinking about key individuals as voting members of a
steering committee.


Olstad was excused at 7:12 pm


7. Consider proposed ordinance amendments to Table 78-610 (4)(b) of the City
of Stoughton Zoning Ordinance to make corrections to the bufferyard
requirements.
Scheel explained the proposed amendment.


Mayor Olson opened the public hearing


No one registered to speak.


Mayor Olson closed the public hearing.


Motion by Hohol to recommend Council approve the zoning ordinance amendment
as presented, 2nd by Krcma. Motion carried 5 – 0.


8. Consider proposed ordinance amendment to section 78-702 (9) of the City of
Stoughton Zoning Ordinance to make corrections to the Access Standards
and Appendix E, Bulk Regulations.
Scheel explained the proposed amendment.


Mayor Olson opened the public hearing


No one registered to speak.


Mayor Olson closed the public hearing.







Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
8/13/12
Page 3 of 3


S:\Clerks Office\minutes\Planning Commission\Regular Meetings 2012\Planning Minutes 8-13-12.doc


Motion by Hohol to recommend Council approve the zoning ordinance amendment
as presented, 2nd by Krcma.


Christianson asked if a variance is still an option. Scheel stated a variance is
always an option.


Motion carried 5 – 0.


9. Consider proposed ordinance amendments to sections 78-210, 78-015 and 78-
408 of the City of Stoughton Zoning Ordinance to meet State of Wisconsin
requirements for non-conforming use and structure regulations.
Scheel explained the proposed amendment.


Mayor Olson opened the public hearing


No one registered to speak.


Mayor Olson closed the public hearing.


Motion by Christianson to recommend Council approve the zoning ordinance
amendment as presented, 2nd by Krcma.


Hohol questioned where this section is covered in the code. Scheel stated it is in
state statutes.


Motion carried 5 – 0.


10. Future agenda items. FUDA; Kettle West; and Settler’s Point.


11. Adjournment. Motion by Christianson to adjourn at 7:21 pm, 2nd by Hohol.
Motion carried 5 – 0.


Respectfully Submitted,
Michael Stacey











 
600 South Fourth Street 


P.O. Box 383 
Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 


Date:  August 21, 2012 
 


To:  Nick Probst  


  Stoughton City Clerk and Personnel Director (Packet via E-Mail) 


 


From:  Robert P. Kardasz, P.E.  


  Stoughton Utilities Director 
 


Subject: Items For The August 28, 2012 Stoughton Common Council Meeting Packet. 


 


The items from the August 20, 2012 Regular Stoughton Utilities Committee Meeting are 


enclosed.  Please include them in the August 28, 2012 Stoughton Common Council Meeting 


Packet. 


   


Consent Agenda: 


1. Stoughton Utilities Payments Due List. 


2. Stoughton Utilities Committee Regular July 16, 2012 Meeting Minutes. 


3. Stoughton Utilities June 2012 Financial Summary. 


4. Stoughton Utilities June 2012 Statistical Worksheet. 


 


Encl. 


 


cc: Mayor Donna L. Olson, Chairperson  


 Stoughton Utilities Committee (Packet via E-Mail) 


 


 Alderperson Eric Hohol, President 


 Stoughton Common Council (Packet via E-Mail) 


 


 Sean O Grady  


 Stoughton Utilities Operations Superintendent (Memo via E-Mail) 


 


Brian R. Hoops (Packet via E-Mail) 


Stoughton Office and Information Systems Supervisor 


 


Kim M. Jennings, CPA  


Stoughton Utilities Finance and Administrative Manager (Memo via E-Mail) 


 


  


 


 







 


 







DRAFT STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING 
MINUTES 
Monday, August 20, 2012 – 5:03 p.m. 
Edmund T. Malinowski Board Room 
Stoughton Utilities Administration Office 
600 S. Fourth St. 
Stoughton, Wisconsin 
 
Stoughton Utilities Committee Consent Agenda: Stoughton Utilities Director Robert 
Kardasz presented and discussed the Stoughton Utilities Committee Meeting Consent 
Agenda Items and emphasized the invitation from WPPI Energy to participate in the 
September 13, 2012 Annual Meeting.  Discussion Followed.  Motion by Alderperson Michael 
Engelberger, the motion seconded by Citizen Member David Erdman, to approve the 
following consent agenda items as presented:  Stoughton Utilities Payments Due List, Draft 
Minutes of the July 16, 2012 Regular Stoughton Utilities Committee Meeting, Stoughton 
Utilities June 2012 Financial Summaries, Stoughton Utilities June 2012 Statistical 
Information, Stoughton Utilities Communications, Stoughton Utilities Committee Annual 
Calendar, and the Stoughton Utilities July 2012 Activities Report.  The motion carried 
unanimously. 
 







 


STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, July 16, 2012 – 5:00 p.m. 
Edmund T. Malinowski Board Room 
Stoughton Utilities Administration Office 
600 S. Fourth St. 
Stoughton, Wisconsin 
 
 
Members Present: Alderperson Michael Engelberger, Citizen Member David Erdman, 


Citizen Member Jonathan Hajny, Alderperson Eric Hohol, Mayor 
Donna Olson, Citizen Member Alan Staats, and Alderperson Elvin 
(Sonny) Swangstu. 


 
Excused: None. 
 
Absent: None. 


 
Others Present: Sidney Boersma, Dane County Board Supervisor Carl 


Chenoweth, P.E., Stoughton Utilities Office and Information 
Systems Supervisor Brian Hoops, Stoughton Utilities Finance and 
Administrative Manager Kim Jennings, CPA, Stoughton Utilities 
Director Robert Kardasz, P.E., Alderperson Paul Lawrence, 
Sharon Mason Boersma, Alderperson Thomas Majewski, Carl 
Sampson, and Charles VerVoort. 


 
Call To Order:  Mayor Donna Olson called the regular Stoughton Utilities Committee Meeting 
to order at 5:00 p.m.   
 
Stoughton Utilities Committee Consent Agenda: Stoughton Utilities Director Robert 
Kardasz presented and discussed the Stoughton Utilities Committee Meeting Consent 
Agenda Items.  Discussion Followed.  Motion by Citizen Member Jonathan Hajny, the motion 
seconded by Citizen Member David Erdman, to approve the following consent agenda items 
as presented:  Stoughton Utilities Payments Due List, Draft Minutes of the June 12, 2012 
Special and June 18, 2012 Regular Stoughton Utilities Committee Meetings, Stoughton 
Utilities May 2012 Financial Summaries, Stoughton Utilities May 2012 Statistical Information, 
Stoughton Utilities Communications, Stoughton Utilities Committee Annual Calendar, and the 
Stoughton Utilities June 2012 Activities Report.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
Status Of The Stoughton Utilities Committee Recommendation(s) To The Stoughton 
Common Council:  Alderperson Eric Hohol and Stoughton Utilities Director Robert Kardasz 
reported that on June 12, 2012, the Stoughton Common Council adopted the resolution 
recommended by the Stoughton Utilities Committee to approve the Stoughton Utilities 
Wastewater Treatment Facility Emergency Influent Pumps (Screw Pumps) Project and on 
June 26, 2012, the Stoughton Common Council adopted the resolution recommended by  


 
 







 


STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, July 16, 2012 – 5:00 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI 
Page No. 2 
 
 
the Stoughton Utilities Committee to approve the Stoughton Utilities Wastewater Treatment 
Facility and Sanitary Sewer Collection System Compliance Maintenance Annual Report. 
 
Stoughton Utilities Proposed 2012 Ten-Year (2013-2022) Capital Projects Program:  
Stoughton Utilities Director Robert Kardasz presented and discussed the proposed 2012 
Ten-Year Capital Projects Program.  Discussion followed.  Motion by Citizen Member David 
Erdman, the motion seconded by Citizen Member Jonathan Hajny, to approve the 
Stoughton Utilities 2012 Ten-Year Capital Projects Program and recommend it to the 
Stoughton Common Council.  The motion carried 6 to 1 with Alderperson Eric Hohol voting 
no. 
 
Proposed Filling Of The Vacant Stoughton Utilities Wastewater Operator I Position:  
Stoughton Utilities Director Robert Kardasz presented and discussed the proposed filling of 
the vacant Stoughton Utilities Wastewater Operator I Position.  Discussion followed.  Motion 
by Alderperson Eric Hohol, the motion seconded by Alderperson Michael Engelberger, to 
recommend to the Stoughton Personnel Committee on August 6, 2012 and the Stoughton 
Common Council on August 14, 2012 to authorize Stoughton Utilities to fill the Vacant 
Wastewater Operator I position.  The motion carried unanimously.    


 
Stoughton Utilities RoundUp Donation:  Stoughton Utilities Office and Information 
Systems Supervisor Brian Hoops and Stoughton Utilities Director Robert Kardasz presented 
and discussed the Stoughton Utilities RoundUp donation.  Discussion followed.  Motion by 
Alderperson Eric Hohol, the motion seconded by Michael Engelberger, to donate $1,100 to 
the Stoughton Area Resource Team, Inc. (START).  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
Stoughton Utilities Governance:  Stoughton Utilities Director Robert Kardasz presented 
and discussed Stoughton Utilities Governance.  Discussion followed.  It was determined that 
the item would be placed on the August 20, 2012 Regular Stoughton Utilities Committee 
Meeting Agenda and on the agenda of a Special Stoughton Utilities Committee Meeting on a 
date to be determined. 
 


Street Light Inquiry:  Mayor Donna Olson Invited Sidney Boersma and Carl Sampson to 
discuss their request for the reinstallation of the streetlight recently removed from the vicinity 
of 109 Hillside Street.  Stoughton Utilities Director Robert Kardasz presented and discussed 
the rational for the referenced streetlight removal.  Discussion followed.  It was recommended 
that the public be educated on the intent of street lighting.  Motion by Alderperson Eric Hohol, 
To reinstall the streetlight and establish a procedure that for future streetlight removals, 
affected customers be provided a notification of such removal two weeks prior to the  


 
 







 


STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, July 16, 2012 – 5:00 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI 
Page No. 3 
 
 
scheduled removal date.  The motion died for the lack of a second.  Discussion followed.  
Motion by Alderperson Eric Hohol, the motion seconded by Alderperson Elvin (Sonny)  
Swangstu, to reinstall the streetlight and establish a procedure that for future streetlight 
removals, affected customers be provided a notification of such removal four weeks prior to 
the scheduled removal date.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 


Stoughton Utilities Engineering Technician II Efforts:  Stoughton Utilities Director Robert 
Kardasz presented and discussed the Stoughton Utilities Engineering Technician II efforts.  
Discussion followed. 
 
Stoughton Utilities Studies Annual Status Report:  Stoughton Utilities Director Robert 
Kardasz presented and discussed the Stoughton Utilities Studies Annual Status Report.  
Discussion followed.  Discussion Followed. 
 
Stoughton Utilities Participation In The 2013 City Of Stoughton Budgeting For 
Outcomes (BFO) Program:  Stoughton Utilities Director Robert Kardasz presented and 
discussed the Stoughton Utilities participation in the 2013 City of Stoughton BFO Program.  
Mayor Donna Olson explained that since Stoughton Utilities was totally rate funded, its 
budget would move forward in tandem with the City of Stoughton BFO process.  Discussion 
followed.  
 
Stoughton Utilities Committee Future Agenda Items: 
 


 Stoughton Utilities Governance on August 20, 2012. 
 


 Stoughton Utilities Street Lighting on August 20, 2012. 
 


 Stoughton Utilities wastewater financial objectives report. 
 


 Stoughton Utilities Financial Forecasts. 
 
Adjournment:  Motion by Alderperson Michael Engelberger, the motion seconded by Citizen 
Member Jonathan Hajny, to adjourn the Regular Stoughton Utilities Committee Meeting at 
8:00 p.m.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Robert P. Kardasz, P.E. 
Stoughton Utilities Director 
 







 


 








CITY OF STOUGHTON Check Register - Monthly Claims Report Page: 1


Check Issue Dates: 7/1/2012 - 7/31/2012 Aug 09, 2012 08:13AM


Report Criteria:


Report type: Invoice detail


GL Check Check Vendor Invoice Invoice Invoice Check


Period Issue Date Number Number Payee Number GL Account Amount Amount


07/12 07/13/2012 12 3322 US BANK CORPORATE PAYMENT SY 062912 100-52100-340 10,118.81 10,118.81


07/12 07/27/2012 13 3322 US BANK CORPORATE PAYMENT SY 071312 100-55500-300 9,929.63 9,929.63


07/12 07/12/2012 41583 3440 BELOUNGY, KATHY 2000449.002 100-46750 45.00- 45.00- V


07/12 07/04/2012 41681 2541 3 RIVERS BILLING INC 1697 603-52300-216 2,606.50 2,606.50


07/12 07/04/2012 41681 2541 3 RIVERS BILLING INC 1743 603-52300-216 3,962.05 3,962.05


07/12 07/04/2012 41682 102 ACCURATE APPRAISAL LLC 062812 100-51530-215 4,875.00 4,875.00


07/12 07/04/2012 41683 111 AIRGAS NORTH CENTRAL 9005631009 603-52300-340 57.17 57.17


07/12 07/04/2012 41683 111 AIRGAS NORTH CENTRAL 9005936166 603-52300-340 48.98 48.98


07/12 07/04/2012 41683 111 AIRGAS NORTH CENTRAL 9005980134 603-52300-340 64.02 64.02


07/12 07/04/2012 41683 111 AIRGAS NORTH CENTRAL 9902532020 603-52300-340 18.79 18.79


07/12 07/04/2012 41684 3080 ANYTIME FITNESS 1828 100-51900-150 2,500.00 2,500.00


07/12 07/04/2012 41685 150 AUXIANT 062612 251-13011 16,464.04 16,464.04


07/12 07/04/2012 41686 3339 BADGER SPORTING GOODS INC 79245 100-55300-340 223.42 223.42


07/12 07/04/2012 41687 160 BANKSTON, KAREN 070212 234-55100-724 33.64 33.64


07/12 07/04/2012 41688 237 CINTAS CORPORATION #446 446309862 100-53300-390 66.47 66.47


07/12 07/04/2012 41689 241 CIVIC SYSTEMS LLC CVC9594 100-51510-215 2,571.00 2,571.00


07/12 07/04/2012 41690 3456 CLEVELAND, MEL 061212 100-54600-350 130.00 130.00


07/12 07/04/2012 41691 284 DANE COUNTY TREASURER 062012 100-21113 7,879.00 7,879.00


07/12 07/04/2012 41692 298 DECKER SUPPLY CO INC 873889 100-53400-340 384.60 384.60


07/12 07/04/2012 41693 2827 DERSE WHBS INC 123705 245-55190-346 240.00 240.00


07/12 07/04/2012 41694 316 D'ORAZIO CLEANING SUPPLY INC 41434 100-53200-340 384.24 384.24


07/12 07/04/2012 41694 316 D'ORAZIO CLEANING SUPPLY INC 41434-1 100-53200-340 287.62 287.62


07/12 07/04/2012 41695 1538 DUCKSOUP SIGNS & DESIGN 11969 244-55100-340 165.00 165.00


07/12 07/04/2012 41695 1538 DUCKSOUP SIGNS & DESIGN 11948 400-57620-820 65.00 65.00


07/12 07/04/2012 41696 346 EZ OFFICE PRODUCTS 121177 100-54600-340 894.69 894.69


07/12 07/04/2012 41697 1500 FAHRNER ASPHALT SEALERS LLC 20441 400-57330-820 9,330.00 9,330.00


07/12 07/04/2012 41698 3374 FITPRO SERVICES LLC 062012 232-54600-340 24.00 24.00


07/12 07/04/2012 41699 370 FOX VALLEY TECHNICAL COLLEGE TPB0000148507/FY11-1 100-52100-190 195.00 195.00


07/12 07/04/2012 41700 381 FULL COMPASS SYSTEMS LTD 4350773 100-52100-340 40.24 40.24


07/12 07/04/2012 41701 392 GENERAL COMMUNICATIONS INC. 638346 100-52100-240 396.00 396.00


07/12 07/04/2012 41702 2883 GFOA 0135003-12 100-51510-340 190.00 190.00


07/12 07/04/2012 41703 403 GOHLKE, ROGER 070412 100-55300-300 270.00 270.00


07/12 07/04/2012 41704 408 GORDON FLESCH COMPANY INC IN10029385 100-52100-340 53.58 53.58


07/12 07/04/2012 41705 413 GREAT - WEST PR0630120 100-21575 3,362.00 3,362.00


07/12 07/04/2012 41706 2964 HALQUIST STONE 334328 100-53300-300 221.09 221.09


07/12 07/04/2012 41707 2845 HAMACHER LAWN CARE SERVICE LL 3639 100-54910-240 2,375.00 2,375.00


M = Manual Check, V = Void Check







CITY OF STOUGHTON Check Register - Monthly Claims Report Page: 2


Check Issue Dates: 7/1/2012 - 7/31/2012 Aug 09, 2012 08:13AM


GL Check Check Vendor Invoice Invoice Invoice Check


Period Issue Date Number Number Payee Number GL Account Amount Amount


07/12 07/04/2012 41708 504 KAHL, TERRY 12267 100-54600-240 117.50 117.50


07/12 07/04/2012 41708 504 KAHL, TERRY 12273 212-53271-340 25.00 25.00


07/12 07/04/2012 41709 505 KALLAND, DAVID JUL12 100-54910-300 250.00 250.00


07/12 07/04/2012 41710 2057 LARK UNIFORM OUTFITTERS INC 114236 603-52300-390 139.90 139.90


07/12 07/04/2012 41710 2057 LARK UNIFORM OUTFITTERS INC 114237 603-52300-390 139.90 139.90


07/12 07/04/2012 41711 3455 METZLER ROOFING INC 1190 244-55100-340 9,700.00 9,700.00


07/12 07/04/2012 41712 2152 MINNESOTA/WISCONSIN PLAYGROU 2012154 100-55200-245 4,650.00 4,650.00


07/12 07/04/2012 41712 2152 MINNESOTA/WISCONSIN PLAYGROU 2012155 400-57620-820 2,969.00 2,969.00


07/12 07/04/2012 41713 2476 MONGREL MUSIC 110412 245-55190-344 875.00 875.00


07/12 07/04/2012 41714 3449 MOODY'S INVESTORS SERVICE INC M0033368 300-58290-630 9,500.00 9,500.00


07/12 07/04/2012 41715 1465 MTAW 12DUES 100-51510-212 80.00 80.00


07/12 07/04/2012 41716 662 NORTH SHORE BANK FSB PR0630120 100-21575 430.00 430.00


07/12 07/04/2012 41717 3343 ON THE SPOT INC 12639 100-55400-220 777.40 777.40


07/12 07/04/2012 41718 3315 ORGANIZATION DEVELOPMENT CON 10383 100-52100-215 600.00 600.00


07/12 07/04/2012 41719 693 PDQ FOOD STORES INC 062612 100-44110 100.00 100.00


07/12 07/04/2012 41720 709 PIZZA PIT 062912 100-55300-341 50.00 50.00


07/12 07/04/2012 41721 725 PROTECTION TECHNOLOGIES INC 16132 212-53271-340 834.00 834.00


07/12 07/04/2012 41722 776 ROUNDYS 3814 234-55100-724 906.27 906.27


07/12 07/04/2012 41723 3452 STEELE, PATRICIA CONKLIN 061912 100-46750 30.00 30.00


07/12 07/04/2012 41724 3453 STONE TRANSPORT 88472 100-53300-300 277.51 277.51


07/12 07/04/2012 41725 849 STOUGHTON CAB LLC JUL12 100-51510-219 16,292.33 16,292.33


07/12 07/04/2012 41726 850 STOUGHTON CHAMBER OF COMMER 062512 100-52100-395 50.00 50.00


07/12 07/04/2012 41726 850 STOUGHTON CHAMBER OF COMMER DUES-OH 245-55190-320 202.00 202.00


07/12 07/04/2012 41727 855 STOUGHTON FLORAL INC 053112 100-51420-340 2.00 2.00


07/12 07/04/2012 41727 855 STOUGHTON FLORAL INC 90408 100-51420-340 46.95 46.95


07/12 07/04/2012 41727 855 STOUGHTON FLORAL INC 91542 100-54910-300 126.95 126.95


07/12 07/04/2012 41728 858 STOUGHTON HOSPITAL 060712 603-52300-340 193.06 193.06


07/12 07/04/2012 41729 861 STOUGHTON LUMBER COMPANY 60912 100-55200-340 480.00 480.00


07/12 07/04/2012 41730 866 STOUGHTON UTILITIES 010677 100-55200-245 1,615.18 1,615.18


07/12 07/04/2012 41730 866 STOUGHTON UTILITIES 010659 603-52300-220 43.72 43.72


07/12 07/04/2012 41731 3347 TAMULEVICH ARTIST MANAGEMENT 030713 245-55190-344 833.33 833.33


07/12 07/04/2012 41732 1326 U.S. CELLULAR MAY 12 100-55400-210 1,513.98 1,513.98


07/12 07/04/2012 41733 2810 UWHC 5172 241-52400-252 7.00 7.00


07/12 07/04/2012 41733 2810 UWHC 5210 241-52400-252 40.00 40.00


07/12 07/04/2012 41734 959 VIERBICHER ASSOCIATES INC 013127873.01 400-57345-820 9,666.90 9,666.90


07/12 07/04/2012 41735 1056 VOGEL, DAVID CLAIM 100-51900-153 359.76 359.76


07/12 07/04/2012 41736 1004 WISC DEPT OF TRANSP-TV & RP UN 062712 100-52100-340 30.00 30.00


07/12 07/04/2012 41737 1020 WISC SUPPORT COLLECTIONS PR0630120 100-21590 597.22 597.22


07/12 07/04/2012 41738 3450 WISDOT BUREAU OF TRANSPORTATI 082812 100-52100-190 50.00 50.00


M = Manual Check, V = Void Check







CITY OF STOUGHTON Check Register - Monthly Claims Report Page: 3


Check Issue Dates: 7/1/2012 - 7/31/2012 Aug 09, 2012 08:13AM


GL Check Check Vendor Invoice Invoice Invoice Check


Period Issue Date Number Number Payee Number GL Account Amount Amount


07/12 07/04/2012 41739 2626 WITHERS/KC SANITARY SUPPLY 132403 100-55200-340 648.95 648.95


07/12 07/04/2012 41740 3448 WOLTER, MATTHEW 062712 100-21500 111.18 111.18


07/12 07/04/2012 41741 3454 ZHANG MING'S GARDEN, MING 062812 100-44110 200.00 200.00


07/12 07/11/2012 41742 111 AIRGAS NORTH CENTRAL 9006621229 603-52300-240 77.04 77.04


07/12 07/11/2012 41742 111 AIRGAS NORTH CENTRAL 9006621228 603-52300-340 30.00 30.00


07/12 07/11/2012 41742 111 AIRGAS NORTH CENTRAL 9006621230 603-52300-340 11.70 11.70


07/12 07/11/2012 41742 111 AIRGAS NORTH CENTRAL 9006752578 603-52300-340 69.53 69.53


07/12 07/11/2012 41743 140 ASLESON'S HARDWARE B29342 100-52200-340 5.99 5.99


07/12 07/11/2012 41743 140 ASLESON'S HARDWARE 85356 400-57620-820 555.99 555.99


07/12 07/11/2012 41744 150 AUXIANT 070312 251-13011 13,194.90 13,194.90


07/12 07/11/2012 41745 2405 AZTLAND LLC JUNE-12 100-53200-215 864.00 864.00


07/12 07/11/2012 41746 3458 BARON, KELLY 2000460.002 100-46750 42.00 42.00


07/12 07/11/2012 41747 3451 BRIKOWSKI, JENNIFER 2000452.002 100-46750 35.00 35.00


07/12 07/11/2012 41747 3451 BRIKOWSKI, JENNIFER 2000453.002 100-46750 35.00 35.00


07/12 07/11/2012 41748 196 BROOKS TRACTOR INC 523582 100-53300-340 90.67 90.67


07/12 07/11/2012 41749 1222 CARTRIDGE WORLD 2553 100-51510-310 104.99 104.99


07/12 07/11/2012 41750 3459 CHIEF'S CHOICE 532 603-52300-330 171.54 171.54


07/12 07/11/2012 41751 237 CINTAS CORPORATION #446 446312329 100-53300-390 66.47 66.47


07/12 07/11/2012 41752 2416 CLARITY CLEANERS LLC JUN-12 100-53200-223 1,079.00 1,079.00


07/12 07/11/2012 41753 1660 CRESCENT ELECTRIC SUPPLY CO 01731365300 100-55200-350 194.14 194.14


07/12 07/11/2012 41754 284 DANE COUNTY TREASURER JUN12 100-22210 1,347.00 1,347.00


07/12 07/11/2012 41755 1224 FIRST LUTHERAN CHURCH 062912 100-51440-340 100.00 100.00


07/12 07/11/2012 41756 432 HANSON PEST MANAGEMENT 070512 100-53200-222 22.00 22.00


07/12 07/11/2012 41757 472 INKWORKS INC 21575 242-52200-342 1,984.31 1,984.31


07/12 07/11/2012 41758 2414 JOHNS DISPOSAL SERVICE INC 42913 100-53620-216 56,441.00 56,441.00


07/12 07/11/2012 41759 1225 LAKEVIEW CHURCH 062912 100-51440-340 100.00 100.00


07/12 07/11/2012 41760 608 MEITNERS LAND SERVICE LLC 603 100-54910-300 1,280.00 1,280.00


07/12 07/11/2012 41761 626 MINNESOTA LIFE INSURANCE COMP PR0630120 100-21560 2,068.42 2,068.42


07/12 07/11/2012 41762 639 MUNICIPAL CODE CORPORATION 00218711 100-51420-341 2,914.00 2,914.00


07/12 07/11/2012 41763 655 NEW FRONTIER TOURING 092212 245-55190-344 1,000.00 1,000.00


07/12 07/11/2012 41764 2186 O'BRION AGENCY LLC 33746 100-51510-310 64.00 64.00


07/12 07/11/2012 41765 3460 PARAMOUNT TOURING INC 071712 245-55190-344 7,050.00 7,050.00


07/12 07/11/2012 41766 696 PEPSI COLA COMPANY 14212111 100-55300-341 124.05 124.05


07/12 07/11/2012 41766 696 PEPSI COLA COMPANY 14212214 100-55300-341 297.60 297.60


07/12 07/11/2012 41766 696 PEPSI COLA COMPANY 14212494 100-55300-341 163.00 163.00


07/12 07/11/2012 41767 709 PIZZA PIT 070912 100-55300-341 50.00 50.00


07/12 07/11/2012 41768 1215 RICOH AMERICAS CORP 415723329 100-53300-310 93.00 93.00


07/12 07/11/2012 41769 776 ROUNDYS 3844 234-55100-724 711.74 711.74


07/12 07/11/2012 41770 850 STOUGHTON CHAMBER OF COMMER 070212 100-51200-340 200.00 200.00


M = Manual Check, V = Void Check







CITY OF STOUGHTON Check Register - Monthly Claims Report Page: 4


Check Issue Dates: 7/1/2012 - 7/31/2012 Aug 09, 2012 08:13AM


GL Check Check Vendor Invoice Invoice Invoice Check


Period Issue Date Number Number Payee Number GL Account Amount Amount


07/12 07/11/2012 41771 855 STOUGHTON FLORAL INC 062912 100-51420-340 46.95 46.95


07/12 07/11/2012 41771 855 STOUGHTON FLORAL INC 070212 242-52200-341 4.61 4.61


07/12 07/11/2012 41771 855 STOUGHTON FLORAL INC 91580 242-52200-341 40.00 40.00


07/12 07/11/2012 41772 858 STOUGHTON HOSPITAL 100105 603-52300-340 193.06 193.06


07/12 07/11/2012 41773 873 STRANG INC 120625 400-57331-830 3,125.00 3,125.00


07/12 07/11/2012 41774 916 TOTAL WATER TREATMENT SYS INC 512762 100-54600-240 56.05 56.05


07/12 07/11/2012 41774 916 TOTAL WATER TREATMENT SYS INC 512754 212-53271-340 34.23 34.23


07/12 07/11/2012 41775 927 U.S. POSTAL SERVICE (HASLER) 070612 100-51510-211 1,500.00 1,500.00


07/12 07/11/2012 41776 328 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE JUN12 603-51930-523 367.68 367.68


07/12 07/11/2012 41777 1223 UNITED METHODIST CHURCH 062912 100-51440-340 100.00 100.00


07/12 07/11/2012 41778 3134 WALECKA, ANNA 070612 100-55300-127 450.00 450.00


07/12 07/11/2012 41779 977 WEGNER, SCOTT 071012 242-52200-342 500.00 500.00


07/12 07/11/2012 41780 1117 WIEDENBECK INC 749852 242-52200-348 660.29 660.29


07/12 07/11/2012 41781 995 WISC DEPT OF ADMIN-MIL JUN12 100-22210 2,611.80 2,611.80


07/12 07/11/2012 41782 1001 WISC DEPT OF REVENUE - MADISON 071712 245-55190-344 450.00 450.00


07/12 07/11/2012 41783 929 WOODWARD COMMUNITY MEDIA 100075-1206 100-51420-315 200.62 200.62


07/12 07/11/2012 41783 929 WOODWARD COMMUNITY MEDIA 164323-1206 100-51420-315 464.06 464.06


07/12 07/11/2012 41784 3457 XYLEM WATER SOLUTIONS U.S.A. IN 076 100-53440-340 796.00 796.00


07/12 07/18/2012 41785 2541 3 RIVERS BILLING INC 1784 603-52300-216 2,513.86 2,513.86


07/12 07/18/2012 41786 1218 AFFORDABLE DENTURES 006501-1 231-54600-340 3,795.00 3,795.00


07/12 07/18/2012 41787 2554 ALERE TOXICOLOGY SERVICES INC 806587 100-52100-215 57.20 57.20


07/12 07/18/2012 41788 115 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L 412532-010 JUL 12 100-53200-220 112.97 112.97


07/12 07/18/2012 41788 115 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L 693540-001 JUL 12 100-53200-220 62.99 62.99


07/12 07/18/2012 41788 115 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L 221332-010 JUL12 100-53200-222 10.92 10.92


07/12 07/18/2012 41788 115 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L 552542001 JUN 12 100-55200-245 16.75 16.75


07/12 07/18/2012 41788 115 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L 449415-011 JUL 12 100-55400-220 13.16 13.16


07/12 07/18/2012 41788 115 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L 381495-010 JUL 12 212-53271-220 188.99 188.99


07/12 07/18/2012 41789 140 ASLESON'S HARDWARE D5341 100-55200-350 175.00 175.00


07/12 07/18/2012 41789 140 ASLESON'S HARDWARE B286802 100-55300-340 29.98 29.98


07/12 07/18/2012 41790 143 AT&T JUL12 100-54600-210 61.20 61.20


07/12 07/18/2012 41791 150 AUXIANT 071012 251-13011 11,770.49 11,770.49


07/12 07/18/2012 41791 150 AUXIANT AUG12 251-51930-531 22,326.48 22,326.48


07/12 07/18/2012 41792 1058 BADGER POPCORN & CONCESSION 320760 100-55300-341 144.70 144.70


07/12 07/18/2012 41793 1126 BARNETT, MARY 060512 100-51440-120 71.25 71.25


07/12 07/18/2012 41794 1127 BARNETT, ROBERT 060512 100-51440-120 131.25 131.25


07/12 07/18/2012 41795 3440 BELOUNGY, KATHY 2000449.002 100-46750 45.00 45.00


07/12 07/18/2012 41796 1454 BOND TRUST SERVICES CORP 7996 300-58290-630 150.00 150.00


07/12 07/25/2012 41797 1586 BUCHANAN, BILL 060512 100-51440-120 .00 .00 V


07/12 07/18/2012 41798 1583 BUCHANAN, CORNELIA 060512 100-51440-120 71.25 71.25


M = Manual Check, V = Void Check







CITY OF STOUGHTON Check Register - Monthly Claims Report Page: 5


Check Issue Dates: 7/1/2012 - 7/31/2012 Aug 09, 2012 08:13AM


GL Check Check Vendor Invoice Invoice Invoice Check


Period Issue Date Number Number Payee Number GL Account Amount Amount


07/12 07/18/2012 41799 204 BURDICK, DORIS 060512 100-51440-120 52.50 52.50


07/12 07/18/2012 41800 2724 CARTER, TIM 060512 100-51440-120 63.75 63.75


07/12 07/18/2012 41801 1252 CHRISTENSEN, ARCHIE 060512 100-51440-120 52.50 52.50


07/12 07/18/2012 41802 1251 CHRISTENSEN, PAT 060512 100-51440-120 52.50 52.50


07/12 07/18/2012 41803 248 COMDATA CORPORATION M21837591 234-55100-724 1,766.70 1,766.70


07/12 07/18/2012 41804 1706 CROSS, CLYDE 060512 100-51440-120 52.50 52.50


07/12 07/18/2012 41805 1707 CROSS, MARY JO 060512 100-51440-120 52.50 52.50


07/12 07/18/2012 41806 1136 CURTISS, CYNTHIA 060512 100-51440-120 380.63 380.63


07/12 07/18/2012 41807 316 D'ORAZIO CLEANING SUPPLY INC 41601 100-53200-340 193.06 193.06


07/12 07/18/2012 41808 2770 DURANCZYK, DENISE 060512 100-51440-120 73.13 73.13


07/12 07/18/2012 41809 1140 ELLINGSON, LOU ANN 060512 100-51440-120 52.50 52.50


07/12 07/18/2012 41810 1141 ELLINGSON, RON 060512 100-51440-120 52.50 52.50


07/12 07/18/2012 41811 1501 EXCEL LAWN CARE 396 100-53300-216 50.00 50.00


07/12 07/18/2012 41811 1501 EXCEL LAWN CARE 397 100-53300-216 50.00 50.00


07/12 07/18/2012 41811 1501 EXCEL LAWN CARE 398 100-53300-216 50.00 50.00


07/12 07/18/2012 41811 1501 EXCEL LAWN CARE 399 100-53300-216 50.00 50.00


07/12 07/18/2012 41812 1500 FAHRNER ASPHALT SEALERS LLC 20753 100-55200-350 95.00 95.00


07/12 07/18/2012 41813 1145 FENDRICK, MARY LOU 060512 100-51440-120 69.38 69.38


07/12 07/18/2012 41814 363 FORTNEY, RUTH 060512 100-51440-120 69.38 69.38


07/12 07/18/2012 41815 3419 GARCIA, NANCY 060512 100-51440-120 63.75 63.75


07/12 07/18/2012 41816 392 GENERAL COMMUNICATIONS INC. 188565 100-52100-240 80.00 80.00


07/12 07/18/2012 41817 3441 GRAND APPLIANCE & TV M32524 231-54600-340 463.15 463.15


07/12 07/18/2012 41818 413 GREAT - WEST PR0714120 100-21575 3,362.00 3,362.00


07/12 07/18/2012 41819 417 GRIGGS, PAM 060512 100-51440-120 52.50 52.50


07/12 07/18/2012 41820 3420 HALVERSON, LINDA 060512 100-51440-120 52.50 52.50


07/12 07/18/2012 41821 432 HANSON PEST MANAGEMENT 070512 100-54600-240 32.00 32.00


07/12 07/18/2012 41822 3461 HARVEY, SHARONNE 060512 100-51440-120 116.25 116.25


07/12 07/18/2012 41823 1157 HORTON, RUSS 060512 100-51440-120 52.50 52.50


07/12 07/18/2012 41824 1241 JACKY, HENRY 060512 100-51440-120 116.25 116.25


07/12 07/18/2012 41825 1242 JACKY, JUDY 060512 100-51440-120 52.50 52.50


07/12 07/18/2012 41826 495 JOHNSON CONTROLS INC. 1-5450262649 100-52300-240 547.75 547.75


07/12 07/18/2012 41827 1164 JOOSTEN, DARLENE 060512 100-51440-120 52.50 52.50


07/12 07/18/2012 41828 1248 KAHL, EVELYN 060512 100-51440-120 63.75 63.75


07/12 07/18/2012 41829 504 KAHL, TERRY 12280 244-55100-340 875.00 875.00


07/12 07/18/2012 41830 505 KALLAND, DAVID 5450-42 100-55100-720 200.00 200.00


07/12 07/18/2012 41831 1244 KETTERER, TONY 060512 100-51440-120 129.38 129.38


07/12 07/18/2012 41832 1166 KITTELSON, JACQUELYN K. 060512 100-51440-120 52.50 52.50


07/12 07/18/2012 41833 1590 KLUEVER, KEN 060512 100-51440-120 67.50 67.50


07/12 07/18/2012 41834 2057 LARK UNIFORM OUTFITTERS INC 115822 100-52100-390 80.95 80.95


M = Manual Check, V = Void Check







CITY OF STOUGHTON Check Register - Monthly Claims Report Page: 6


Check Issue Dates: 7/1/2012 - 7/31/2012 Aug 09, 2012 08:13AM


GL Check Check Vendor Invoice Invoice Invoice Check


Period Issue Date Number Number Payee Number GL Account Amount Amount


07/12 07/18/2012 41834 2057 LARK UNIFORM OUTFITTERS INC 115823 100-52100-390 35.95 35.95


07/12 07/18/2012 41834 2057 LARK UNIFORM OUTFITTERS INC 115828 100-52100-390 182.90 182.90


07/12 07/18/2012 41835 549 LEAGUE OF WISC MUNICIPALITIES 082212 100-51400-212 130.00 130.00


07/12 07/18/2012 41836 3338 LEHMAN, MARIAH 060512 100-51440-120 63.75 63.75


07/12 07/18/2012 41837 3463 LITTLE VITO & THE TORPEDOES LLC DANCE 242-52200-342 2,500.00 2,500.00


07/12 07/18/2012 41838 1177 LUCHSINGER, MARIA 060512 100-51440-120 67.50 67.50


07/12 07/18/2012 41839 2226 LUNDE, MARY JANE 071112 100-54600-342 15.00 15.00


07/12 07/18/2012 41840 1258 MC GEE, ANN 060512 100-51440-120 52.50 52.50


07/12 07/18/2012 41841 1181 MC GEEVER, BOB 060512 100-51440-120 116.25 116.25


07/12 07/18/2012 41842 599 MC GLYNN PHARMACY INC.(SIN) 130339 231-54600-340 1,014.82 1,014.82


07/12 07/18/2012 41843 1182 MC NAUGHTON, GLENN 060512 100-51440-120 52.50 52.50


07/12 07/18/2012 41844 1183 MC NAUGHTON, MARY 060512 100-51440-120 52.50 52.50


07/12 07/18/2012 41845 2000 MERITER HOSPITAL INC 13812 100-52100-215 280.00 280.00


07/12 07/18/2012 41846 3087 MORRIS, KAREN 060512 100-51440-120 52.50 52.50


07/12 07/18/2012 41847 662 NORTH SHORE BANK FSB PR0714120 100-21575 430.00 430.00


07/12 07/18/2012 41848 665 O'CONNOR, PAT 060512 100-51440-120 67.50 67.50


07/12 07/18/2012 41849 1313 OLSON HEATING & SHEET METAL 1643 100-55200-350 50.00 50.00


07/12 07/18/2012 41850 684 OTT, KRISTIN L 060512 100-51440-120 52.50 52.50


07/12 07/18/2012 41851 1748 QUALE, LOIS 071312 234-55100-724 20.00 20.00


07/12 07/18/2012 41852 1215 RICOH AMERICAS CORP 415726364 100-54600-240 16.50 16.50


07/12 07/18/2012 41852 1215 RICOH AMERICAS CORP 415833180 100-54600-240 14.14 14.14


07/12 07/18/2012 41853 792 SCHLEGEL, JEFFREY 060512 100-51440-120 133.12 133.12


07/12 07/18/2012 41854 3061 SIEMENS INDUSTRY INC 5442478634 100-54600-240 857.00 857.00


07/12 07/18/2012 41855 1192 SILBAUGH, JANET 060512 100-51440-120 63.75 63.75


07/12 07/18/2012 41856 1193 SILBAUGH, RUDY 060512 100-51440-120 63.75 63.75


07/12 07/18/2012 41857 2425 SILBAUGH, SHARON 060512 100-51440-120 52.50 52.50


07/12 07/18/2012 41858 815 SIMPLEXGRINNELL LP 75341031 100-53200-215 502.00 502.00


07/12 07/18/2012 41858 815 SIMPLEXGRINNELL LP 75341025 212-53271-340 664.00 664.00


07/12 07/18/2012 41859 1705 SLAGSVOLD, PETER 060512 100-51440-120 52.50 52.50


07/12 07/18/2012 41860 1054 SMYTH, MARGARET 070912 234-55100-724 99.00 99.00


07/12 07/18/2012 41861 1588 SPANGLER, PHYLLIS 060512 100-51440-120 71.25 71.25


07/12 07/18/2012 41862 1259 STACEY, EILEEN 060512 100-51440-120 52.50 52.50


07/12 07/18/2012 41863 2139 STAFFORD ROSENBAUM LLP JUN12 400-57330-820 5,607.51 5,607.51


07/12 07/18/2012 41864 1585 STAKE, SEAN 060512 100-51440-120 116.25 116.25


07/12 07/18/2012 41865 849 STOUGHTON CAB LLC 746 100-54600-202 12.00 12.00


07/12 07/18/2012 41866 854 STOUGHTON FAIR ASSN. 070412 100-55100-728 1,425.00 1,425.00


07/12 07/18/2012 41867 855 STOUGHTON FLORAL INC 91834 100-54600-350 78.00 78.00


07/12 07/18/2012 41868 861 STOUGHTON LUMBER COMPANY 793190 100-55200-340 105.00 105.00


07/12 07/18/2012 41869 862 STOUGHTON MUNICIPAL UTILITIES JUN12 100-53440-340 24,004.10 24,004.10


M = Manual Check, V = Void Check







CITY OF STOUGHTON Check Register - Monthly Claims Report Page: 7


Check Issue Dates: 7/1/2012 - 7/31/2012 Aug 09, 2012 08:13AM


GL Check Check Vendor Invoice Invoice Invoice Check


Period Issue Date Number Number Payee Number GL Account Amount Amount


07/12 07/18/2012 41870 865 STOUGHTON TIRE & AUTO REPAIR I POL JUN12 100-52100-330 408.57 408.57


07/12 07/18/2012 41871 1255 SUNDBY, MARY 060512 100-51440-120 52.50 52.50


07/12 07/18/2012 41872 1198 SWANGSTU, LINDA 060512 100-51440-120 52.50 52.50


07/12 07/18/2012 41873 895 TECHE, AARON OR JENNIFER 060512 100-51440-120 127.50 127.50


07/12 07/18/2012 41874 1556 THRIVE INC. 070112 260-55500-340 783.00 783.00


07/12 07/18/2012 41875 1201 TRIELOFF, GERALD 060512 100-51440-120 52.50 52.50


07/12 07/18/2012 41876 1204 VEUM, BARBARA 060512 100-51440-120 52.50 52.50


07/12 07/18/2012 41877 2623 VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS INC 869098459207 100-53300-335 10,480.45 10,480.45


07/12 07/18/2012 41878 3464 VW DOCK COMPANY 15949 222-57623-820 5,600.00 5,600.00


07/12 07/18/2012 41879 1207 WEISS, MARY 060512 100-51440-120 52.50 52.50


07/12 07/18/2012 41880 1594 WHEELER, BOB 060512 100-51440-120 52.50 52.50


07/12 07/18/2012 41881 1712 WHEELER, SYLVIA 060512 100-51440-120 52.50 52.50


07/12 07/18/2012 41882 1117 WIEDENBECK INC 750016 242-52200-348 98.12 98.12


07/12 07/18/2012 41882 1117 WIEDENBECK INC 750017 242-52200-348 61.33 61.33


07/12 07/18/2012 41883 1243 WILSON, JERRY 060512 100-51440-120 52.50 52.50


07/12 07/18/2012 41884 998 WISC DEPT OF JUSTICE-CRIME INF L1305T-JUN12 100-52100-340 595.00 595.00


07/12 07/18/2012 41884 998 WISC DEPT OF JUSTICE-CRIME INF G2655-JUN12 100-54600-340 21.00 21.00


07/12 07/18/2012 41885 1014 WISC PROFESSIONAL POLICE ASSO PR0714120 100-21590 769.25 769.25


07/12 07/18/2012 41886 1020 WISC SUPPORT COLLECTIONS PR0714120 100-21590 1,393.92 1,393.92


07/12 07/25/2012 41887 111 AIRGAS NORTH CENTRAL 9903145058 100-53300-340 15.44 15.44


07/12 07/25/2012 41888 3172 ALDI 072412 234-55100-724 300.00 300.00


07/12 07/25/2012 41889 115 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L 692863-001 JUL12 100-52200-220 113.44 113.44


07/12 07/25/2012 41889 115 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L 350445-011 JUL12 100-53200-221 83.52 83.52


07/12 07/25/2012 41889 115 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L 415497-010 JUN12 100-53300-220 63.37 63.37


07/12 07/25/2012 41889 115 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L 524165-001 JUN12 100-53300-220 15.12 15.12


07/12 07/25/2012 41889 115 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L 489096-001 JUL12 215-55110-221 71.17 71.17


07/12 07/25/2012 41890 140 ASLESON'S HARDWARE B288705 100-55200-350 84.32 84.32


07/12 07/25/2012 41891 1884 AUDIOGO 454244 215-55110-328 251.90 251.90


07/12 07/25/2012 41892 150 AUXIANT 071712 251-13011 22,890.61 22,890.61


07/12 07/25/2012 41892 150 AUXIANT 072412 251-13011 37,018.34 37,018.34


07/12 07/25/2012 41893 157 BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS JUN12 215-55110-325 3,616.17 3,616.17


07/12 07/25/2012 41894 3466 BLACKSTONE AUDIO INC 612392 217-55110-500 20.00 20.00


07/12 07/25/2012 41895 3468 BRABEC, MARY 120812 245-55190-344 250.00 250.00


07/12 07/25/2012 41896 1737 BUBRICK'S 604516 215-55110-340 65.80 65.80


07/12 07/25/2012 41896 1737 BUBRICK'S 605098 215-55110-340 25.26 25.26


07/12 07/25/2012 41896 1737 BUBRICK'S 610886 215-55110-342 36.83 36.83


07/12 07/25/2012 41896 1737 BUBRICK'S 610892 215-55110-342 58.90 58.90


07/12 07/25/2012 41897 237 CINTAS CORPORATION #446 446313551 100-53300-390 153.38 153.38


07/12 07/25/2012 41897 237 CINTAS CORPORATION #446 446314758 100-53300-390 66.47 66.47


M = Manual Check, V = Void Check







CITY OF STOUGHTON Check Register - Monthly Claims Report Page: 8


Check Issue Dates: 7/1/2012 - 7/31/2012 Aug 09, 2012 08:13AM


GL Check Check Vendor Invoice Invoice Invoice Check


Period Issue Date Number Number Payee Number GL Account Amount Amount


07/12 07/25/2012 41897 237 CINTAS CORPORATION #446 446317214 100-53300-390 66.47 66.47


07/12 07/25/2012 41898 282 DANE COUNTY REGISTER OF DEEDS 072412 261-55100-340 60.00 60.00


07/12 07/25/2012 41899 286 DANE COUNTY TREASURER - LAND C STO0612 224-57345-340 760.62 760.62


07/12 07/25/2012 41900 302 DEMCO INC 4649055 215-55110-342 103.23 103.23


07/12 07/25/2012 41900 302 DEMCO INC 4657252 215-55110-342 100.12 100.12


07/12 07/25/2012 41901 2162 EMERGENCY SERVICES MARKETING 12DUES 100-52200-241 800.00 800.00


07/12 07/25/2012 41902 344 ETIcorp 062212 100-51420-340 262.00 262.00


07/12 07/25/2012 41903 1619 EUGSTER FARM MARKET INC 071912 231-54600-340 149.00 149.00


07/12 07/25/2012 41904 346 EZ OFFICE PRODUCTS 122428 100-54600-340 154.02 154.02


07/12 07/25/2012 41905 385 GALE 96388731 215-55110-325 75.96 75.96


07/12 07/25/2012 41905 385 GALE 96564949 215-55110-325 23.99 23.99


07/12 07/25/2012 41905 385 GALE 96514315 217-55110-500 99.97 99.97


07/12 07/25/2012 41905 385 GALE 96552686 217-55110-500 57.58 57.58


07/12 07/25/2012 41906 408 GORDON FLESCH COMPANY INC IN10050174 100-52100-340 7.94 7.94


07/12 07/25/2012 41906 408 GORDON FLESCH COMPANY INC IN10032337 215-55110-240 42.94 42.94


07/12 07/25/2012 41907 472 INKWORKS INC 21611 245-55190-350 598.79 598.79


07/12 07/25/2012 41908 487 JCOMP TECHNOLOGIES INC 44113 100-51510-310 208.00 208.00


07/12 07/25/2012 41908 487 JCOMP TECHNOLOGIES INC 43910 241-52400-252 370.19 370.19


07/12 07/25/2012 41909 504 KAHL, TERRY 12286 100-53200-314 196.30 196.30


07/12 07/25/2012 41909 504 KAHL, TERRY 12281 100-54910-300 198.00 198.00


07/12 07/25/2012 41910 531 KOPKE'S GREENHOUSE 4380 100-55200-340 120.00 120.00


07/12 07/25/2012 41911 534 KRUEGER, EARL 071912 231-54600-340 108.00 108.00


07/12 07/25/2012 41912 2057 LARK UNIFORM OUTFITTERS INC 115946 100-52100-390 57.99 57.99


07/12 07/25/2012 41912 2057 LARK UNIFORM OUTFITTERS INC 116333 100-52100-390 36.95 36.95


07/12 07/25/2012 41913 1176 LEARN, CHERYL 071512 245-55190-340 45.88 45.88


07/12 07/25/2012 41914 3465 LOCH NEST MONSTER INC 100712 245-55190-344 2,250.00 2,250.00


07/12 07/25/2012 41915 1345 MADISON AREA COMM. SPEC. 2255 100-51420-210 247.50 247.50


07/12 07/25/2012 41916 2588 MAERTENS, GREG 984461 229-54600-340 106.75 106.75


07/12 07/25/2012 41917 617 MIDWEST TAPE JUN12 215-55110-328 862.22 862.22


07/12 07/25/2012 41918 2479 MSA PROFESSIONAL SERVICES INC 2-12 100-53300-215 228.38 228.38


07/12 07/25/2012 41919 3467 PRINTERY INC., THE 53914 245-55190-350 5,467.84 5,467.84


07/12 07/25/2012 41920 3199 QUALITY INN & SUITES 050612 245-55190-345 170.00 170.00


07/12 07/25/2012 41920 3199 QUALITY INN & SUITES 051612 245-55190-345 170.00 170.00


07/12 07/25/2012 41920 3199 QUALITY INN & SUITES 052512 245-55190-345 340.00 340.00


07/12 07/25/2012 41921 737 RANDOM HOUSE INC 1084325130 215-55110-328 71.25 71.25


07/12 07/25/2012 41921 737 RANDOM HOUSE INC 1084360825 217-55110-500 10.00 10.00


07/12 07/25/2012 41922 741 RECORDED BOOKS INC 74553280 217-55110-500 6.95 6.95


07/12 07/25/2012 41923 773 ROSENBAUM CRUSHING & EXCAVATI 2494-JUN12 100-55300-240 715.37 715.37


07/12 07/25/2012 41924 1630 SKAALEN NURSING AND 062112 603-52300-212 44.76 44.76


M = Manual Check, V = Void Check







CITY OF STOUGHTON Check Register - Monthly Claims Report Page: 9


Check Issue Dates: 7/1/2012 - 7/31/2012 Aug 09, 2012 08:13AM


GL Check Check Vendor Invoice Invoice Invoice Check


Period Issue Date Number Number Payee Number GL Account Amount Amount


07/12 07/25/2012 41925 827 SOUTH CENTRAL LIBRARY SYSTEM 11-1166 215-55110-810 145.00 145.00


07/12 07/25/2012 41925 827 SOUTH CENTRAL LIBRARY SYSTEM 11-1168 215-55110-810 228.96 228.96


07/12 07/25/2012 41926 2648 STATE BAR OF WISCONSIN DUES-12 100-51420-340 460.00 460.00


07/12 07/25/2012 41927 861 STOUGHTON LUMBER COMPANY 793701 100-55200-350 4.79 4.79


07/12 07/25/2012 41927 861 STOUGHTON LUMBER COMPANY 793778 100-55200-350 2.99 2.99


07/12 07/25/2012 41927 861 STOUGHTON LUMBER COMPANY 794238 223-57220-300 107.26 107.26


07/12 07/25/2012 41928 869 STRAND ASSOCIATES INC 0092851 260-55100-340 2,984.94 2,984.94


07/12 07/25/2012 41928 869 STRAND ASSOCIATES INC 0092475 400-57330-820 6,259.99 6,259.99


07/12 07/25/2012 41929 916 TOTAL WATER TREATMENT SYS INC 514053 215-55110-250 .50 .50


07/12 07/25/2012 41930 1326 U.S. CELLULAR JUN12 100-55400-210 1,563.11 1,563.11


07/12 07/25/2012 41931 931 UNIQUE MANAGEMENT SERVICES IN 224495 215-55110-216 35.80 35.80


07/12 07/25/2012 41932 942 UPS STORE 051712 242-52200-342 70.00 70.00


07/12 07/25/2012 41932 942 UPS STORE 7608 242-52200-342 99.00 99.00


07/12 07/25/2012 41933 968 WALL STREET JOURNAL 071912 217-55110-500 726.80 726.80


07/12 07/25/2012 41934 989 WINGFOOT COMMERCIAL TIRE 133-1054281 100-52200-240 624.72 624.72


07/12 07/25/2012 41935 1015 WISC RETIREMENT SYSTEM JUL12 100-21515 50,976.53 50,976.53


07/12 07/25/2012 41936 1304 WISCONSIN TAXPAYERS ALLIANCE 071912 215-55110-325 38.39 38.39


Grand Totals: 506,629.66


Summary by General Ledger Account Number


GL Account Debit Credit Proof


100-21100 116.25 250,667.32- 250,551.07-


100-21113 7,879.00 .00 7,879.00


100-21500 111.18 .00 111.18


100-21515 50,976.53 .00 50,976.53


100-21560 2,068.42 .00 2,068.42


100-21575 7,584.00 .00 7,584.00


100-21590 2,760.39 .00 2,760.39


100-22210 3,958.80 .00 3,958.80


100-44110 300.00 .00 300.00


100-46750 187.00 45.00- 142.00


100-51200-340 258.60 .00 258.60


100-51300-215 4,611.01 .00 4,611.01


100-51400-212 130.00 .00 130.00


M = Manual Check, V = Void Check







CITY OF STOUGHTON Check Register - Monthly Claims Report Page: 10


Check Issue Dates: 7/1/2012 - 7/31/2012 Aug 09, 2012 08:13AM


GL Account Debit Credit Proof


100-51420-210 821.63 .00 821.63


100-51420-212 691.80 .00 691.80


100-51420-315 664.68 .00 664.68


100-51420-340 820.51 .00 820.51


100-51420-341 2,914.00 .00 2,914.00


100-51440-120 3,971.27 71.25- 3,900.02


100-51440-340 300.00 .00 300.00


100-51510-211 1,500.00 .00 1,500.00


100-51510-212 220.00 .00 220.00


100-51510-215 2,571.00 .00 2,571.00


100-51510-219 16,292.33 .00 16,292.33


100-51510-310 563.23 .00 563.23


100-51510-340 190.00 .00 190.00


100-51530-215 4,875.00 .00 4,875.00


100-51900-150 2,500.00 .00 2,500.00


100-51900-153 359.76 .00 359.76


100-51930-523 182.16 .00 182.16


100-52100-190 970.42 .00 970.42


100-52100-210 1,530.05 .00 1,530.05


100-52100-215 1,314.12 .00 1,314.12


100-52100-240 476.00 .00 476.00


100-52100-330 408.57 .00 408.57


100-52100-335 3,332.92 .00 3,332.92


100-52100-340 1,474.91 .00 1,474.91


100-52100-390 1,426.98 .00 1,426.98


100-52100-395 429.56 .00 429.56


100-52200-210 263.99 .00 263.99


100-52200-217 270.00 .00 270.00


100-52200-220 1,450.05 .00 1,450.05


100-52200-240 624.72 .00 624.72


100-52200-241 800.00 .00 800.00


100-52200-335 1,166.24 .00 1,166.24


100-52200-340 1,136.52 .00 1,136.52


100-52300-240 547.75 .00 547.75


100-53200-200 9.94 .00 9.94


100-53200-215 1,096.00 .00 1,096.00


100-53200-220 1,704.18 .00 1,704.18


100-53200-221 45.46 .00 45.46


100-53200-222 193.84 .00 193.84


100-53200-223 246.88 .00 246.88


M = Manual Check, V = Void Check







CITY OF STOUGHTON Check Register - Monthly Claims Report Page: 11


Check Issue Dates: 7/1/2012 - 7/31/2012 Aug 09, 2012 08:13AM


GL Account Debit Credit Proof


100-53200-314 1,220.07 .00 1,220.07


100-53200-340 864.92 .00 864.92


100-53300-210 310.17 .00 310.17


100-53300-212 130.00 .00 130.00


100-53300-215 728.27 .00 728.27


100-53300-216 200.00 .00 200.00


100-53300-220 741.07 .00 741.07


100-53300-300 498.60 .00 498.60


100-53300-310 101.99 .00 101.99


100-53300-335 4,368.99 .00 4,368.99


100-53300-340 3,129.85 .00 3,129.85


100-53300-390 419.26 .00 419.26


100-53400-340 384.60 .00 384.60


100-53420-340 9,008.35 .00 9,008.35


100-53440-340 861.34 .00 861.34


100-53620-215 41,296.50 .00 41,296.50


100-53620-216 15,144.50 .00 15,144.50


100-54600-200 245.85 .00 245.85


100-54600-202 12.00 .00 12.00


100-54600-210 193.67 .00 193.67


100-54600-220 1,601.53 .00 1,601.53


100-54600-240 1,509.19 .00 1,509.19


100-54600-340 1,615.45 .00 1,615.45


100-54600-342 15.00 .00 15.00


100-54600-350 209.27 .00 209.27


100-54910-240 2,375.00 .00 2,375.00


100-54910-300 1,975.48 .00 1,975.48


100-55100-720 200.00 .00 200.00


100-55100-728 1,425.00 .00 1,425.00


100-55200-245 8,515.91 .00 8,515.91


100-55200-335 693.88 .00 693.88


100-55200-340 1,521.60 .00 1,521.60


100-55200-350 712.23 .00 712.23


100-55300-127 450.00 .00 450.00


100-55300-210 570.25 .00 570.25


100-55300-240 1,246.37 .00 1,246.37


100-55300-300 297.94 .00 297.94


100-55300-340 334.39 .00 334.39


100-55300-341 1,625.84 .00 1,625.84


100-55400-210 7.52 .00 7.52


M = Manual Check, V = Void Check







CITY OF STOUGHTON Check Register - Monthly Claims Report Page: 12


Check Issue Dates: 7/1/2012 - 7/31/2012 Aug 09, 2012 08:13AM


GL Account Debit Credit Proof


100-55400-220 1,207.66 .00 1,207.66


100-55500-210 165.07 .00 165.07


100-55500-216 298.99 .00 298.99


100-55500-240 35.88 .00 35.88


100-55500-300 501.91 .00 501.91


100-56300-330 282.14 .00 282.14


100-56300-340 232.42 .00 232.42


212-21100 .00 5,823.75- 5,823.75-


212-53271-220 3,674.23 .00 3,674.23


212-53271-314 588.00 .00 588.00


212-53271-340 1,561.52 .00 1,561.52


215-21100 .00 7,237.30- 7,237.30-


215-55110-210 7.52 .00 7.52


215-55110-216 35.80 .00 35.80


215-55110-220 2,273.97 .00 2,273.97


215-55110-221 71.17 .00 71.17


215-55110-240 42.94 .00 42.94


215-55110-250 .50 .00 .50


215-55110-325 3,078.33 .00 3,078.33


215-55110-328 962.97 .00 962.97


215-55110-340 107.17 .00 107.17


215-55110-342 282.97 .00 282.97


215-55110-810 373.96 .00 373.96


217-21100 111.41 3,028.43- 2,917.02-


217-55110-500 3,028.43 111.41- 2,917.02


222-21100 .00 5,600.00- 5,600.00-


222-57623-820 5,600.00 .00 5,600.00


223-21100 .00 107.26- 107.26-


223-57220-300 107.26 .00 107.26


224-21100 .00 760.62- 760.62-


224-57345-340 760.62 .00 760.62


229-21100 .00 106.75- 106.75-


229-54600-340 106.75 .00 106.75


230-21100 .00 9.80- 9.80-


230-54600-210 9.80 .00 9.80


231-21100 .00 5,529.97- 5,529.97-


231-54600-340 5,529.97 .00 5,529.97


232-21100 .00 774.00- 774.00-


232-54600-340 774.00 .00 774.00


234-21100 .00 3,870.07- 3,870.07-


M = Manual Check, V = Void Check







CITY OF STOUGHTON Check Register - Monthly Claims Report Page: 13


Check Issue Dates: 7/1/2012 - 7/31/2012 Aug 09, 2012 08:13AM


GL Account Debit Credit Proof


234-55100-724 3,870.07 .00 3,870.07


241-21100 .00 417.19- 417.19-


241-52400-252 417.19 .00 417.19


242-21100 .00 6,698.71- 6,698.71-


242-52200-341 42.00 .00 42.00


242-52200-342 5,318.31 .00 5,318.31


242-52200-346 115.34 .00 115.34


242-52200-348 1,223.06 .00 1,223.06


244-21100 .00 10,740.00- 10,740.00-


244-55100-340 10,740.00 .00 10,740.00


245-21100 .00 20,039.41- 20,039.41-


245-55190-210 80.63 .00 80.63


245-55190-320 202.00 .00 202.00


245-55190-340 61.82 .00 61.82


245-55190-344 12,708.33 .00 12,708.33


245-55190-345 680.00 .00 680.00


245-55190-346 240.00 .00 240.00


245-55190-350 6,066.63 .00 6,066.63


251-13011 48,309.70 .00 48,309.70


251-21100 .00 123,664.86- 123,664.86-


251-51930-530 53,028.68 .00 53,028.68


251-51930-531 22,326.48 .00 22,326.48


260-21100 .00 3,767.94- 3,767.94-


260-55100-340 2,984.94 .00 2,984.94


260-55500-340 783.00 .00 783.00


261-21100 .00 550.00- 550.00-


261-55100-340 550.00 .00 550.00


300-21100 .00 9,768.56- 9,768.56-


300-48220 118.56 .00 118.56


300-58290-630 9,650.00 .00 9,650.00


400-21100 .00 33,265.16- 33,265.16-


400-57330-820 16,263.07 .00 16,263.07


400-57331-830 3,679.77 .00 3,679.77


400-57344-820 22.60 .00 22.60


400-57345-820 9,666.90 .00 9,666.90


400-57620-820 3,632.82 .00 3,632.82


410-21100 .00 45.42- 45.42-


410-57210-820 36.45 .00 36.45


410-57331-820 8.97 .00 8.97


603-21100 .00 14,384.80- 14,384.80-


M = Manual Check, V = Void Check







CITY OF STOUGHTON Check Register - Monthly Claims Report Page: 14


Check Issue Dates: 7/1/2012 - 7/31/2012 Aug 09, 2012 08:13AM


GL Account Debit Credit Proof


603-51930-523 185.52 .00 185.52


603-52300-210 319.64 .00 319.64


603-52300-212 44.76 .00 44.76


603-52300-216 9,082.41 .00 9,082.41


603-52300-220 1,397.27 .00 1,397.27


603-52300-240 77.04 .00 77.04


603-52300-330 445.54 .00 445.54


603-52300-335 636.28 .00 636.28


603-52300-340 1,916.54 .00 1,916.54


603-52300-390 279.80 .00 279.80


Grand Totals: 507,084.98 507,084.98- .00


Report Criteria:


Report type: Invoice detail


M = Manual Check, V = Void Check







CITY OF STOUGHTON Bank Reconciliation Report Page: 1


Aug 09, 2012 07:43AM


Report Criteria:


Print Outstanding Checks and Deposits and Bank and Book Adjustments


US BANK CONSOLIDATED (PRIMARY CHECKING) (3)


July 31, 2012


Account: 00111100


Bank Account Number: 182380188041


Bank Statement Balance: 1,024,476.64 Book Balance Previous Month: 1,110,422.92


Outstanding Deposits: 95,820.16 Total Receipts: 839,670.91


Outstanding Checks: 33,621.64 Total Disbursements: 863,418.47


Bank Adjustments: .20 Book Adjustments: .00


Bank Balance: 1,086,675.36 Book Balance: 1,086,675.36


Outstanding Deposits


Deposit Deposit


Number Amount


Deposit Deposit


Number Amount


Deposit Deposit


Number Amount


Deposit Deposit


Number Amount


24 76,880.61


26 1,588.30


27 57.30


28 101.40


29 4,030.20


30 13,162.35 Total: 95,820.16


Deposits cleared: 35 items Deposits Outstanding: 6 items


Outstanding Checks


Check Check


Number Amount


Check Check


Number Amount


Check Check


Number Amount


Check Check


Number Amount


40862 50.00


40948 2,408.84


40989 2,578.11


41065 125.00


41397 1,000.00


41415 54.37


41420 54.37


41442 10.00


41472 303.00


41540 450.00


41572 24.00


41645 200.00


41655 3,586.54


41658 80.55


41681 6,568.55


41731 833.33


41733 47.00


41738 50.00


41741 200.00


41770 200.00


41778 450.00


41785 2,513.86


41799 52.50


41806 380.63


41815 63.75


41820 52.50


41823 52.50


41830 200.00


41835 130.00


41839 15.00


41866 1,425.00


41880 52.50


41881 52.50


41884 616.00


41895 250.00


41898 60.00


41899 760.62


41901 800.00


41902 262.00


41903 149.00


41905 257.50


41910 120.00


41913 45.88


41914 2,250.00


41916 106.75


41917 862.22


41920 680.00


41921 81.25


41924 44.76


41925 373.96


41930 1,563.11


41931 35.80


41936 38.39


Total: 33,621.64


Checks cleared: 307 items Checks Outstanding: 53 items


Bank Adjustments


Description Amount Description Amount


Bank took deposit as 5464.22 s/h/b 5464 .20


Total: .20







CITY OF STOUGHTON Bank Reconciliation Report Page: 2


Aug 09, 2012 07:43AM


Description Amount Description Amount


Book Adjustments


No book adjustments found!


Report Criteria:


Print Outstanding Checks and Deposits and Bank and Book Adjustments







CITY OF STOUGHTON
COMBINED CASH INVESTMENT


JULY 31, 2012


FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 58 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 08/09/2012 07:45AM PAGE: 1


COMBINED CASH ACCOUNTS


001-11100 PRIMARY CHECKING 1,086,675.36


001-13010 A/R CASH CLEARING ( 4.76)


TOTAL COMBINED CASH 1,086,670.60


001-19999 CASH ALLOCATED TO OTHER FUNDS ( 1,086,670.60)


TOTAL UNALLOCATED CASH .00


CASH ALLOCATION RECONCILIATION


100 ALLOCATION TO GENERAL FUND 123,282.60


203 ALLOCATION TO TID #3 FUND ( 594,486.53)


204 ALLOCATION TO TID #4 FUND 833,557.89


205 ALLOCATION TO TID #5 FUND ( 4,513.30)


212 ALLOCATION TO SAFETY BUILDING FUND 20,240.64


215 ALLOCATION TO LIBRARY FUND 9,685.46


217 ALLOCATION TO LIBRARY SPECIAL GIFT FUND 27,061.63


221 ALLOCATION TO FIRE EQUIPMENT FUND 33,058.37


222 ALLOCATION TO RIVER TRAIL FUND 5,289.25


223 ALLOCATION TO PARK DEVELOPMENT FUND 12,547.27


224 ALLOCATION TO STORM SEWER FUND ( 428.81)


229 ALLOCATION TO SENIOR CENTER WOOD SHOP 2,897.96


230 ALLOCATION TO TOWNSHIP OUTREACH FUND 8,078.60


231 ALLOCATION TO SENIORS IN NEED 19,981.95


232 ALLOCATION TO SENIOR CENTER SPECIAL FUND 632.25


233 ALLOCATION TO HOLIDAY FUND 12,635.66


234 ALLOCATION TO FOOD PANTRY 20,496.79


235 ALLOCATION TO LANDMARKS 252.91


239 ALLOCATION TO STOUGHTON ARTS COUNCIL 210.00


241 ALLOCATION TO EMS TRUST FUND 65,538.26


242 ALLOCATION TO FIRE DEPT SPECIAL FUND 21,902.17


243 ALLOCATION TO FIRE PENSION FUND 28,039.28


244 ALLOCATION TO CDBG FUND ( 10,739.80)


245 ALLOCATION TO OPERA HOUSE FUND ( 151,727.07)


247 ALLOCATION TO TOURISM FUND 12,923.96


250 ALLOCATION TO SICK LEAVE FUND 69,422.44


251 ALLOCATION TO HEALTH INSURANCE FUND 20,058.71


252 ALLOCATION TO K9 FUND 25,372.35


260 ALLOCATION TO ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND 58,301.36


261 ALLOCATION TO REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 57,993.67


270 ALLOCATION TO SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS 47,306.46


300 ALLOCATION TO DEBT SERVICE FUND 106,246.39


400 ALLOCATION TO CONSTRUCTION FUND 28,668.68


410 ALLOCATION TO CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND 43,157.42


412 ALLOCATION TO EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND 100,000.00


603 ALLOCATION TO EMS 33,725.73







CITY OF STOUGHTON
COMBINED CASH INVESTMENT


JULY 31, 2012


FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 58 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 08/09/2012 07:45AM PAGE: 2


TOTAL ALLOCATIONS TO OTHER FUNDS 1,086,670.60


ALLOCATION FROM COMBINED CASH FUND - 001-19999 ( 1,086,670.60)


ZERO PROOF IF ALLOCATIONS BALANCE .00







CITY OF STOUGHTON Trial Balance - CASH & INVESTMENTS Page: 1
GL Period: 07/12 Aug 09, 2012 07:45AM
GENERAL FUND


Account Debit Credit
Number Title Amount Amount


100-11100 PRIMARY CHECKING-GENERAL FUND 123,282.60
100-11104 PETTY CASH 200.91
100-11302 WISC INVESTMENT FUND 2.91
100-11305 LOCAL GOVT INVESTMENT POOL 84,091.92
100-11310 WISC CD INVESTMENTS 747,966.76
100-11311 WISC SAVINGS-ASSOC 1,688,296.22


Total GENERAL FUND: 2,643,841.32 .00


203-11100 PRIMARY CHECKING- TIF #3 594,486.53-
203-11302 WISC INVESTMENT FUND 21,223.14
203-11310 WISC CD INVESTMENTS 1,000,000.00
203-11311 WISC SAVINGS-ASSOC 106,708.01


Total TID #3 FUND: 1,127,931.15 594,486.53-


204-11100 PRIMARY CHECKING- TIF #4 833,557.89
204-11302 WISC INVESTMENT FUND 148,761.66


Total TID #4 FUND: 982,319.55 .00


205-11100 PRIMARY CHEKING - TIF 5 4,513.30-
205-11302 WISC INVESTMENT FUND 3.52


Total TID #5 FUND: 3.52 4,513.30-


212-11100 PRIMARY CHECKING- SAFETY BLDG 20,240.64


Total SAFETY BUILDING FUND: 20,240.64 .00


215-11100 PRIMARY CHECKING- LIBRARY FUND 9,685.46
215-11302 WISC INVESTMENT FUND 300,004.27


Total LIBRARY FUND: 309,689.73 .00


217-11100 PRIMARY CHECKING- LIBRARY SPEC 27,061.63
217-11302 WISC INVESTMENT FUND 173,880.26


Total LIBRARY SPECIAL GIFT FUND: 200,941.89 .00


221-11100 PRIMARY CHECKING- FIRE TRUCK 33,058.37
221-11302 WISC INVESTMENT FUND 1.66


Total FIRE EQUIPMENT FUND: 33,060.03 .00


222-11100 PRIMARY CHECKING- RIVER TRAIL 5,289.25
222-11302 WISC INVESTMENT FUND 140.70







CITY OF STOUGHTON Trial Balance - CASH & INVESTMENTS Page: 2
GL Period: 07/12 Aug 09, 2012 07:45AM


PARK DEVELOPMENT FUND


Account Debit Credit
Number Title Amount Amount


Total RIVER TRAIL FUND: 5,429.95 .00


223-11100 PRIMARY CHECKING- PARK DEV 12,547.27
223-11302 WISC INVESTMENT FUND 52,256.34
223-11311 WISC SAVINGS-ASSOC 54,219.32


Total PARK DEVELOPMENT FUND: 119,022.93 .00


224-11100 PRIMARY CHECKING- STORM SEWER 428.81-
224-11302 WISC INVESTMENT FUND 13,104.97


Total STORM SEWER FUND: 13,104.97 428.81-


227-11302 WISC INVESTMENT FUND 141,864.44


Total EMS TRUCK FUND: 141,864.44 .00


228-11302 WISC INVESTMENT FUND 40,015.54


Total EMS EQUIPMENT FUND: 40,015.54 .00


229-11100 PRIMARY CHECKING- WOOD SHOP 2,897.96


Total SENIOR CENTER WOOD SHOP: 2,897.96 .00


230-11100 PRIMARY CHECKING- TWSP OUTREA 8,078.60


Total TOWNSHIP OUTREACH FUND: 8,078.60 .00


231-11100 PRIMARY CHECKING- SENIORS 19,981.95
231-11302 WISC INVESTMENT FUND 21,295.84


Total SENIORS IN NEED: 41,277.79 .00


232-11100 PRIMARY CHECKING- SENIORS SPEC 632.25
232-11302 WISC INVESTMENT FUND 25,016.67
232-11310 WISC CD INVESTMENTS 400,000.00


Total SENIOR CENTER SPECIAL FUND: 425,648.92 .00


233-11100 PRIMARY CHECKING- HOLIDAY FUND 12,635.66
233-11302 WISC INVESTMENT FUND 9,546.70


Total HOLIDAY FUND: 22,182.36 .00


234-11100 PRIMARY CHECKING- FOOD PANTRY 20,496.79
234-11302 WISC INVESTMENT FUND 39,993.15







CITY OF STOUGHTON Trial Balance - CASH & INVESTMENTS Page: 3
GL Period: 07/12 Aug 09, 2012 07:45AM


LANDMARKS


Account Debit Credit
Number Title Amount Amount


Total FOOD PANTRY: 60,489.94 .00


235-11100 PRIMARY CHECKING- LANDMARKS 252.91
235-11302 WISC INVESTMENT FUND 3,980.78


Total LANDMARKS: 4,233.69 .00


239-11100 PRIMARY CHECKING- ARTS COUNCIL 210.00


Total STOUGHTON ARTS COUNCIL: 210.00 .00


241-11100 PRIMARY CHECKING- EMS TRUST 65,538.26
241-11302 WISC INVESTMENT FUND 14,918.63


Total EMS TRUST FUND: 80,456.89 .00


242-11100 PRIMARY CHECKING-FIRE SPECIAL 21,902.17
242-11302 WISC INVESTMENT FUND 11,715.13


Total FIRE DEPT SPECIAL FUND: 33,617.30 .00


243-11100 PRIMARY CHECKING- FIRE PENSION 28,039.28
243-11200 FIREMENS PENSION INVESTMENTS 427,237.25
243-11302 WISC INVESTMENT FUND 131,586.64


Total FIRE PENSION FUND: 586,863.17 .00


244-11100 PRIMARY CHECKING- CDBG 10,739.80-


Total CDBG FUND: .00 10,739.80-


245-11100 PRIMARY CHECKING- OPERA HOUSE 151,727.07-
245-11102 US BANK CHECKING ACCOUNT- CC 9,416.74


Total OPERA HOUSE FUND: 9,416.74 151,727.07-


246-11302 WISC INVESTMENT FUND 11,592.98


Total OPERA HOUSE REPAIR FUND: 11,592.98 .00


247-11100 PRIMARY CHECKING- TOURISM 12,923.96
247-11302 WISC INVESTMENT FUND 18,688.65


Total TOURISM FUND: 31,612.61 .00


250-11100 PRIMARY CHECKING- SICK LEAVE 69,422.44
250-11302 WISC INVESTMENT FUND 5,050.98







CITY OF STOUGHTON Trial Balance - CASH & INVESTMENTS Page: 4
GL Period: 07/12 Aug 09, 2012 07:45AM


HEALTH INSURANCE FUND


Account Debit Credit
Number Title Amount Amount


Total SICK LEAVE FUND: 74,473.42 .00


251-11100 PRIMARY CHECKING- HEALTH INS 20,058.71
251-11302 WISC INVESTMENT FUND .84


Total HEALTH INSURANCE FUND: 20,059.55 .00


252-11100 PRIMARY CHECKING - K9 UNIT 25,372.35


Total K9 FUND: 25,372.35 .00


260-11100 PRIMARY CHECKING- EC DEV 58,301.36
260-11302 WISC INVESTMENT FUND 100,038.58


Total ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND: 158,339.94 .00


261-11100 PRIMARY CHECKING- RDA 57,993.67
261-11302 WISC INVESTMENT FUND 50,019.27


Total REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY: 108,012.94 .00


270-11100 PRIMARY CHECKING- C&G SPECIAL 47,306.46
270-11302 WISC INVESTMENT FUND 200,075.12


Total SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS: 247,381.58 .00


300-11100 PRIMARY CHECKING- DEBT SERVICE 106,246.39
300-11302 WISC INVESTMENT FUND 300,007.53


Total DEBT SERVICE FUND: 406,253.92 .00


400-11100 PRIMARY CHECKING- CONSTRUCTIO 28,668.68
400-11302 WISC INVESTMENT FUND 250,003.39
400-11305 LOCAL GOVT INVESTMENT POOL 202,564.52
400-11310 WISC CD INVESTMENTS 1,745,377.18
400-11311 WISC SAVINGS-ASSOC 346,158.61


Total CONSTRUCTION FUND: 2,572,772.38 .00


410-11100 PRIMARY CHECKING- CAP OUTLAY 43,157.42
410-11302 WISC INVESTMENT FUND 258,547.56


Total CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND: 301,704.98 .00


412-11100 PRIMARY CHECKING - EQUIP REPLA 100,000.00







CITY OF STOUGHTON Trial Balance - CASH & INVESTMENTS Page: 5
GL Period: 07/12 Aug 09, 2012 07:45AM


EMS


Account Debit Credit
Number Title Amount Amount


Total EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND: 100,000.00 .00


603-11100 PRIMARY CHECKING-GENERAL FUND 33,725.73
603-11302 WISC INVESTMENT FUND 14.55


Total EMS: 33,740.28 .00


Grand Totals: 11,004,155.95 761,895.51-







CITY OF STOUGHTON Receipt Register - For Treasurer's Report Page: 18


Receipt Dates: 7/1/2012 - 7/31/2012 Aug 09, 2012 07:48AM


Summary By Distribution


Category Distribution Amount


ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 93,753.16


ANIMAL LICENSE 2012 DOG LICENSE # 124.00


CLERKS OFFICE CIGARETTE 100.00


CLERKS OFFICE LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE 35.00


CLERKS OFFICE MISC LICENSES 300.00


CLERKS OFFICE OPERATORS/PROVISIONAL 690.00


CLERKS OFFICE SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REQUEST 1,105.00


DONATIONS DONATIONS-MEMORY WALK 525.00


DONATIONS FOOD PANTRY 6,280.00


DONATIONS SENIORS IN NEED 4,050.00


FIRE DEPT SPECIAL DANCE DONATIONS 18,867.50


FIRE DEPT SPECIAL MISCELLANEOUS INCOME 20.00


LIBRARY 217-DESIGNATED DONATION 23,834.39


LIBRARY 217-UNDESIGNATED DONATIONS 25.00


LIBRARY COPIES 123.00


LIBRARY FINES 2,180.26


OPERA HOUSE DONATIONS 105.00


OPERA HOUSE MEMBERSHIPS 19,400.00


OPERA HOUSE TAX EXEMPT SALES 1,644.00


OPERA HOUSE TICKET SALES 440.00


OTHER REVENUES 380,439.04


OTHER REVENUES CONNECTING HIGHWAY AIDS 12,638.22


OTHER REVENUES DELINQUENT SPECIAL ASSESSMENT 728.21


OTHER REVENUES MUNICIPAL GENERAL TRANSP AIDS 119,191.24


OTHER REVENUES ROOM TAX 12,917.79


OTHER REVENUES SENIOR CENTER ANNEX RENT 3,212.00


OTHER REVENUES SPECIAL ASSESSMENT INTEREST 141.88


PARKS PARK RESERVATION 122.55


PLANNING DEPT BUILDING PERMITS 4,953.46


PLANNING DEPT ELECTRICAL PERMIT 2,130.65


PLANNING DEPT HEATING PERMIT (HVAC) 703.40


PLANNING DEPT PLUMBING PERMIT 771.65


RECREATION CONCESSIONS 2,070.51


RECREATION INSTRUCTION FEES 1,889.94


RECREATION PROGRAM FEES 15,273.38


SENIOR CENTER CRAFT SALES 222.00


SENIOR CENTER DONATIONS 714.00


SENIOR CENTER KITCHEN FUND 340.00


SENIOR CENTER MEAL SITE REVENUES 4,545.15


SENIOR CENTER NEWSLETTER 32.00


SENIOR CENTER SPECIAL GIFT FUND 891.00


SENIOR CENTER WOOD SHOP 40.00


SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS 3,592.85


STOUGHTON POLICE DEPARTMENT BAILS/FINES 11,339.50


STOUGHTON POLICE DEPARTMENT DMV FEES 11,472.57


STOUGHTON POLICE DEPARTMENT FINGER PRINTING 30.00


STOUGHTON POLICE DEPARTMENT K-9 DONATIONS 22,956.10


STOUGHTON POLICE DEPARTMENT MISC REVENUES 14.52


STOUGHTON POLICE DEPARTMENT PARKING FINES 685.00


STREET DEPT CEMETERY FEES 1,100.00


STREET DEPT STREET OPENING 175.00


STREET DEPT YARD WASTE FEES 360.00


TAXES DELINQUENT PERSONAL PROPERTY 871.88


TAXES INTEREST DELINQUENT PERS PROP 83.23


A = Alert Message R = Receipt Printed D = Distribution Updated G = GL Updated V = Void Receipt T Column *= Receipt Total







CITY OF STOUGHTON Receipt Register - For Treasurer's Report Page: 19


Receipt Dates: 7/1/2012 - 7/31/2012 Aug 09, 2012 07:48AM


Summary By Distribution


Category Distribution Amount


Grand Totals: 790,250.03


A = Alert Message R = Receipt Printed D = Distribution Updated G = GL Updated V = Void Receipt T Column *= Receipt Total







CITY OF STOUGHTON Journals Page: 1


OTHER CASH IN - PRIMARY CHECKING (CRJE) Aug 09, 2012 07:52AM


Period: 7/31/2012 (07/12)


Report Criteria:


Total By Reference Number and Date


Journal Code.Journal Code = crje


Ref Account Debit Credit


Date Num Payee or Description Number Amount Amount


CRJE


07/31/2012 1 TO RECORD OPERA HOUSE CHECKING TRANSFER 001-11100 3,000.00


TO RECORD OPERA HOUSE CHECKING TRANSFER 245-11102 3,000.00-


.00*


07/31/2012 2 TO RECORD EMS DEPOSITS TO BANK 001-11100 43,798.94


TO RECORD EMS DEPOSITS TO BANK 603-13015 43,798.94-


.00*


07/31/2012 3 TO RECORD UNITED WAY PAYMENT 001-11100 838.62


TO RECORD UNITED WAY PAYMENT 100-48524 838.62-


.00*


07/31/2012 4 TO RECORD MCCI LOAN PAYMENT 001-11100 4,574.00


TO RECORD MCCI LOAN PAYMENT 300-48250 4,574.00-


.00*


07/31/2012 5 TO RECORD COURT TRIP PAYMENT 001-11100 480.00


TO RECORD COURT TRIP PAYMENT 100-22210 480.00-


.00*


07/31/2012 6 TO RECORD INTEREST EARNED 001-11100 4.32


TO RECORD INTEREST EARNED 100-48110 4.32-


Documents: 6 Transactions: 12


Total CRJE: 52,695.88 52,695.88-


Grand Totals: 52,695.88 52,695.88-







CITY OF STOUGHTON Check Register - For Treasurer's Report Page: 1
Check Issue Dates: 7/1/2012 - 7/31/2012 Aug 09, 2012 07:53AM


GL Period Check Date Check # Payee GL Account Amount


07/12 07/13/2012 12 US BANK CORPORATE PAYMENT SY 100-21100 10,118.81
07/12 07/27/2012 13 US BANK CORPORATE PAYMENT SY 100-21100 9,929.63
07/12 07/12/2012 41583 BELOUNGY, KATHY 100-21100 45.00- V
07/12 07/04/2012 41681 3 RIVERS BILLING INC 603-21100 6,568.55
07/12 07/04/2012 41682 ACCURATE APPRAISAL LLC 100-21100 4,875.00
07/12 07/04/2012 41683 AIRGAS NORTH CENTRAL 603-21100 188.96
07/12 07/04/2012 41684 ANYTIME FITNESS 100-21100 2,500.00
07/12 07/04/2012 41685 AUXIANT 251-21100 16,464.04
07/12 07/04/2012 41686 BADGER SPORTING GOODS INC 100-21100 223.42
07/12 07/04/2012 41687 BANKSTON, KAREN 234-21100 33.64
07/12 07/04/2012 41688 CINTAS CORPORATION #446 100-21100 66.47
07/12 07/04/2012 41689 CIVIC SYSTEMS LLC 100-21100 2,571.00
07/12 07/04/2012 41690 CLEVELAND, MEL 100-21100 130.00
07/12 07/04/2012 41691 DANE COUNTY TREASURER 100-21100 7,879.00
07/12 07/04/2012 41692 DECKER SUPPLY CO INC 100-21100 384.60
07/12 07/04/2012 41693 DERSE WHBS INC 245-21100 240.00
07/12 07/04/2012 41694 D'ORAZIO CLEANING SUPPLY INC 100-21100 671.86
07/12 07/04/2012 41695 DUCKSOUP SIGNS & DESIGN 244-21100 230.00
07/12 07/04/2012 41696 EZ OFFICE PRODUCTS 100-21100 894.69
07/12 07/04/2012 41697 FAHRNER ASPHALT SEALERS LLC 400-21100 9,330.00
07/12 07/04/2012 41698 FITPRO SERVICES LLC 232-21100 24.00
07/12 07/04/2012 41699 FOX VALLEY TECHNICAL COLLEGE 100-21100 195.00
07/12 07/04/2012 41700 FULL COMPASS SYSTEMS LTD 100-21100 40.24
07/12 07/04/2012 41701 GENERAL COMMUNICATIONS INC. 100-21100 396.00
07/12 07/04/2012 41702 GFOA 100-21100 190.00
07/12 07/04/2012 41703 GOHLKE, ROGER 100-21100 270.00
07/12 07/04/2012 41704 GORDON FLESCH COMPANY INC 100-21100 53.58
07/12 07/04/2012 41705 GREAT - WEST 100-21100 3,362.00
07/12 07/04/2012 41706 HALQUIST STONE 100-21100 221.09
07/12 07/04/2012 41707 HAMACHER LAWN CARE SERVICE LL 100-21100 2,375.00
07/12 07/04/2012 41708 KAHL, TERRY 212-21100 142.50
07/12 07/04/2012 41709 KALLAND, DAVID 100-21100 250.00
07/12 07/04/2012 41710 LARK UNIFORM OUTFITTERS INC 603-21100 279.80
07/12 07/04/2012 41711 METZLER ROOFING INC 244-21100 9,700.00
07/12 07/04/2012 41712 MINNESOTA/WISCONSIN PLAYGROU 400-21100 7,619.00
07/12 07/04/2012 41713 MONGREL MUSIC 245-21100 875.00
07/12 07/04/2012 41714 MOODY'S INVESTORS SERVICE INC 300-21100 9,500.00
07/12 07/04/2012 41715 MTAW 100-21100 80.00
07/12 07/04/2012 41716 NORTH SHORE BANK FSB 100-21100 430.00
07/12 07/04/2012 41717 ON THE SPOT INC 100-21100 777.40
07/12 07/04/2012 41718 ORGANIZATION DEVELOPMENT CON 100-21100 600.00
07/12 07/04/2012 41719 PDQ FOOD STORES INC 100-21100 100.00
07/12 07/04/2012 41720 PIZZA PIT 100-21100 50.00
07/12 07/04/2012 41721 PROTECTION TECHNOLOGIES INC 212-21100 834.00
07/12 07/04/2012 41722 ROUNDYS 234-21100 906.27
07/12 07/04/2012 41723 STEELE, PATRICIA CONKLIN 100-21100 30.00
07/12 07/04/2012 41724 STONE TRANSPORT 100-21100 277.51
07/12 07/04/2012 41725 STOUGHTON CAB LLC 100-21100 16,292.33
07/12 07/04/2012 41726 STOUGHTON CHAMBER OF COMMER 245-21100 252.00


M = Manual Check, V = Void Check







CITY OF STOUGHTON Check Register - For Treasurer's Report Page: 2
Check Issue Dates: 7/1/2012 - 7/31/2012 Aug 09, 2012 07:53AM


GL Period Check Date Check # Payee GL Account Amount


07/12 07/04/2012 41727 STOUGHTON FLORAL INC 100-21100 175.90
07/12 07/04/2012 41728 STOUGHTON HOSPITAL 603-21100 193.06
07/12 07/04/2012 41729 STOUGHTON LUMBER COMPANY 100-21100 480.00
07/12 07/04/2012 41730 STOUGHTON UTILITIES 100-21100 1,658.90
07/12 07/04/2012 41731 TAMULEVICH ARTIST MANAGEMENT 245-21100 833.33
07/12 07/04/2012 41732 U.S. CELLULAR 100-21100 1,513.98
07/12 07/04/2012 41733 UWHC 241-21100 47.00
07/12 07/04/2012 41734 VIERBICHER ASSOCIATES INC 400-21100 9,666.90
07/12 07/04/2012 41735 VOGEL, DAVID 100-21100 359.76
07/12 07/04/2012 41736 WISC DEPT OF TRANSP-TV & RP UN 100-21100 30.00
07/12 07/04/2012 41737 WISC SUPPORT COLLECTIONS 100-21100 597.22
07/12 07/04/2012 41738 WISDOT BUREAU OF TRANSPORTATI 100-21100 50.00
07/12 07/04/2012 41739 WITHERS/KC SANITARY SUPPLY 100-21100 648.95
07/12 07/04/2012 41740 WOLTER, MATTHEW 100-21100 111.18
07/12 07/04/2012 41741 ZHANG MING'S GARDEN, MING 100-21100 200.00
07/12 07/11/2012 41742 AIRGAS NORTH CENTRAL 603-21100 188.27
07/12 07/11/2012 41743 ASLESON'S HARDWARE 100-21100 561.98
07/12 07/11/2012 41744 AUXIANT 251-21100 13,194.90
07/12 07/11/2012 41745 AZTLAND LLC 100-21100 864.00
07/12 07/11/2012 41746 BARON, KELLY 100-21100 42.00
07/12 07/11/2012 41747 BRIKOWSKI, JENNIFER 100-21100 70.00
07/12 07/11/2012 41748 BROOKS TRACTOR INC 100-21100 90.67
07/12 07/11/2012 41749 CARTRIDGE WORLD 100-21100 104.99
07/12 07/11/2012 41750 CHIEF'S CHOICE 603-21100 171.54
07/12 07/11/2012 41751 CINTAS CORPORATION #446 100-21100 66.47
07/12 07/11/2012 41752 CLARITY CLEANERS LLC 100-21100 1,079.00
07/12 07/11/2012 41753 CRESCENT ELECTRIC SUPPLY CO 100-21100 194.14
07/12 07/11/2012 41754 DANE COUNTY TREASURER 100-21100 1,347.00
07/12 07/11/2012 41755 FIRST LUTHERAN CHURCH 100-21100 100.00
07/12 07/11/2012 41756 HANSON PEST MANAGEMENT 100-21100 22.00
07/12 07/11/2012 41757 INKWORKS INC 242-21100 1,984.31
07/12 07/11/2012 41758 JOHNS DISPOSAL SERVICE INC 100-21100 56,441.00
07/12 07/11/2012 41759 LAKEVIEW CHURCH 100-21100 100.00
07/12 07/11/2012 41760 MEITNERS LAND SERVICE LLC 100-21100 1,280.00
07/12 07/11/2012 41761 MINNESOTA LIFE INSURANCE COMP 100-21100 2,068.42
07/12 07/11/2012 41762 MUNICIPAL CODE CORPORATION 100-21100 2,914.00
07/12 07/11/2012 41763 NEW FRONTIER TOURING 245-21100 1,000.00
07/12 07/11/2012 41764 O'BRION AGENCY LLC 100-21100 64.00
07/12 07/11/2012 41765 PARAMOUNT TOURING INC 245-21100 7,050.00
07/12 07/11/2012 41766 PEPSI COLA COMPANY 100-21100 584.65
07/12 07/11/2012 41767 PIZZA PIT 100-21100 50.00
07/12 07/11/2012 41768 RICOH AMERICAS CORP 100-21100 93.00
07/12 07/11/2012 41769 ROUNDYS 234-21100 711.74
07/12 07/11/2012 41770 STOUGHTON CHAMBER OF COMMER 100-21100 200.00
07/12 07/11/2012 41771 STOUGHTON FLORAL INC 242-21100 91.56
07/12 07/11/2012 41772 STOUGHTON HOSPITAL 603-21100 193.06
07/12 07/11/2012 41773 STRANG INC 400-21100 3,125.00
07/12 07/11/2012 41774 TOTAL WATER TREATMENT SYS INC 100-21100 90.28
07/12 07/11/2012 41775 U.S. POSTAL SERVICE (HASLER) 100-21100 1,500.00


M = Manual Check, V = Void Check







CITY OF STOUGHTON Check Register - For Treasurer's Report Page: 3
Check Issue Dates: 7/1/2012 - 7/31/2012 Aug 09, 2012 07:53AM


GL Period Check Date Check # Payee GL Account Amount


07/12 07/11/2012 41776 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE 603-21100 367.68
07/12 07/11/2012 41777 UNITED METHODIST CHURCH 100-21100 100.00
07/12 07/11/2012 41778 WALECKA, ANNA 100-21100 450.00
07/12 07/11/2012 41779 WEGNER, SCOTT 242-21100 500.00
07/12 07/11/2012 41780 WIEDENBECK INC 242-21100 660.29
07/12 07/11/2012 41781 WISC DEPT OF ADMIN-MIL 100-21100 2,611.80
07/12 07/11/2012 41782 WISC DEPT OF REVENUE - MADISON 245-21100 450.00
07/12 07/11/2012 41783 WOODWARD COMMUNITY MEDIA 100-21100 664.68
07/12 07/11/2012 41784 XYLEM WATER SOLUTIONS U.S.A. IN 100-21100 796.00
07/12 07/18/2012 41785 3 RIVERS BILLING INC 603-21100 2,513.86
07/12 07/18/2012 41786 AFFORDABLE DENTURES 231-21100 3,795.00
07/12 07/18/2012 41787 ALERE TOXICOLOGY SERVICES INC 100-21100 57.20
07/12 07/18/2012 41788 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L 100-21100 405.78
07/12 07/18/2012 41789 ASLESON'S HARDWARE 100-21100 204.98
07/12 07/18/2012 41790 AT&T 100-21100 61.20
07/12 07/18/2012 41791 AUXIANT 251-21100 34,096.97
07/12 07/18/2012 41792 BADGER POPCORN & CONCESSION 100-21100 144.70
07/12 07/18/2012 41793 BARNETT, MARY 100-21100 71.25
07/12 07/18/2012 41794 BARNETT, ROBERT 100-21100 131.25
07/12 07/18/2012 41795 BELOUNGY, KATHY 100-21100 45.00
07/12 07/18/2012 41796 BOND TRUST SERVICES CORP 300-21100 150.00
07/12 07/25/2012 41797 BUCHANAN, BILL 100-21100 .00 V
07/12 07/18/2012 41798 BUCHANAN, CORNELIA 100-21100 71.25
07/12 07/18/2012 41799 BURDICK, DORIS 100-21100 52.50
07/12 07/18/2012 41800 CARTER, TIM 100-21100 63.75
07/12 07/18/2012 41801 CHRISTENSEN, ARCHIE 100-21100 52.50
07/12 07/18/2012 41802 CHRISTENSEN, PAT 100-21100 52.50
07/12 07/18/2012 41803 COMDATA CORPORATION 234-21100 1,766.70
07/12 07/18/2012 41804 CROSS, CLYDE 100-21100 52.50
07/12 07/18/2012 41805 CROSS, MARY JO 100-21100 52.50
07/12 07/18/2012 41806 CURTISS, CYNTHIA 100-21100 380.63
07/12 07/18/2012 41807 D'ORAZIO CLEANING SUPPLY INC 100-21100 193.06
07/12 07/18/2012 41808 DURANCZYK, DENISE 100-21100 73.13
07/12 07/18/2012 41809 ELLINGSON, LOU ANN 100-21100 52.50
07/12 07/18/2012 41810 ELLINGSON, RON 100-21100 52.50
07/12 07/18/2012 41811 EXCEL LAWN CARE 100-21100 200.00
07/12 07/18/2012 41812 FAHRNER ASPHALT SEALERS LLC 100-21100 95.00
07/12 07/18/2012 41813 FENDRICK, MARY LOU 100-21100 69.38
07/12 07/18/2012 41814 FORTNEY, RUTH 100-21100 69.38
07/12 07/18/2012 41815 GARCIA, NANCY 100-21100 63.75
07/12 07/18/2012 41816 GENERAL COMMUNICATIONS INC. 100-21100 80.00
07/12 07/18/2012 41817 GRAND APPLIANCE & TV 231-21100 463.15
07/12 07/18/2012 41818 GREAT - WEST 100-21100 3,362.00
07/12 07/18/2012 41819 GRIGGS, PAM 100-21100 52.50
07/12 07/18/2012 41820 HALVERSON, LINDA 100-21100 52.50
07/12 07/18/2012 41821 HANSON PEST MANAGEMENT 100-21100 32.00
07/12 07/18/2012 41822 HARVEY, SHARONNE 100-21100 116.25
07/12 07/18/2012 41823 HORTON, RUSS 100-21100 52.50
07/12 07/18/2012 41824 JACKY, HENRY 100-21100 116.25


M = Manual Check, V = Void Check







CITY OF STOUGHTON Check Register - For Treasurer's Report Page: 4
Check Issue Dates: 7/1/2012 - 7/31/2012 Aug 09, 2012 07:53AM


GL Period Check Date Check # Payee GL Account Amount


07/12 07/18/2012 41825 JACKY, JUDY 100-21100 52.50
07/12 07/18/2012 41826 JOHNSON CONTROLS INC. 100-21100 547.75
07/12 07/18/2012 41827 JOOSTEN, DARLENE 100-21100 52.50
07/12 07/18/2012 41828 KAHL, EVELYN 100-21100 63.75
07/12 07/18/2012 41829 KAHL, TERRY 244-21100 875.00
07/12 07/18/2012 41830 KALLAND, DAVID 100-21100 200.00
07/12 07/18/2012 41831 KETTERER, TONY 100-21100 129.38
07/12 07/18/2012 41832 KITTELSON, JACQUELYN K. 100-21100 52.50
07/12 07/18/2012 41833 KLUEVER, KEN 100-21100 67.50
07/12 07/18/2012 41834 LARK UNIFORM OUTFITTERS INC 100-21100 299.80
07/12 07/18/2012 41835 LEAGUE OF WISC MUNICIPALITIES 100-21100 130.00
07/12 07/18/2012 41836 LEHMAN, MARIAH 100-21100 63.75
07/12 07/18/2012 41837 LITTLE VITO & THE TORPEDOES LLC 242-21100 2,500.00
07/12 07/18/2012 41838 LUCHSINGER, MARIA 100-21100 67.50
07/12 07/18/2012 41839 LUNDE, MARY JANE 100-21100 15.00
07/12 07/18/2012 41840 MC GEE, ANN 100-21100 52.50
07/12 07/18/2012 41841 MC GEEVER, BOB 100-21100 116.25
07/12 07/18/2012 41842 MC GLYNN PHARMACY INC.(SIN) 231-21100 1,014.82
07/12 07/18/2012 41843 MC NAUGHTON, GLENN 100-21100 52.50
07/12 07/18/2012 41844 MC NAUGHTON, MARY 100-21100 52.50
07/12 07/18/2012 41845 MERITER HOSPITAL INC 100-21100 280.00
07/12 07/18/2012 41846 MORRIS, KAREN 100-21100 52.50
07/12 07/18/2012 41847 NORTH SHORE BANK FSB 100-21100 430.00
07/12 07/18/2012 41848 O'CONNOR, PAT 100-21100 67.50
07/12 07/18/2012 41849 OLSON HEATING & SHEET METAL 100-21100 50.00
07/12 07/18/2012 41850 OTT, KRISTIN L 100-21100 52.50
07/12 07/18/2012 41851 QUALE, LOIS 234-21100 20.00
07/12 07/18/2012 41852 RICOH AMERICAS CORP 100-21100 30.64
07/12 07/18/2012 41853 SCHLEGEL, JEFFREY 100-21100 133.12
07/12 07/18/2012 41854 SIEMENS INDUSTRY INC 100-21100 857.00
07/12 07/18/2012 41855 SILBAUGH, JANET 100-21100 63.75
07/12 07/18/2012 41856 SILBAUGH, RUDY 100-21100 63.75
07/12 07/18/2012 41857 SILBAUGH, SHARON 100-21100 52.50
07/12 07/18/2012 41858 SIMPLEXGRINNELL LP 100-21100 1,166.00
07/12 07/18/2012 41859 SLAGSVOLD, PETER 100-21100 52.50
07/12 07/18/2012 41860 SMYTH, MARGARET 234-21100 99.00
07/12 07/18/2012 41861 SPANGLER, PHYLLIS 100-21100 71.25
07/12 07/18/2012 41862 STACEY, EILEEN 100-21100 52.50
07/12 07/18/2012 41863 STAFFORD ROSENBAUM LLP 400-21100 5,607.51
07/12 07/18/2012 41864 STAKE, SEAN 100-21100 116.25
07/12 07/18/2012 41865 STOUGHTON CAB LLC 100-21100 12.00
07/12 07/18/2012 41866 STOUGHTON FAIR ASSN. 100-21100 1,425.00
07/12 07/18/2012 41867 STOUGHTON FLORAL INC 100-21100 78.00
07/12 07/18/2012 41868 STOUGHTON LUMBER COMPANY 100-21100 105.00
07/12 07/18/2012 41869 STOUGHTON MUNICIPAL UTILITIES 100-21100 24,004.10
07/12 07/18/2012 41870 STOUGHTON TIRE & AUTO REPAIR I 100-21100 408.57
07/12 07/18/2012 41871 SUNDBY, MARY 100-21100 52.50
07/12 07/18/2012 41872 SWANGSTU, LINDA 100-21100 52.50
07/12 07/18/2012 41873 TECHE, AARON OR JENNIFER 100-21100 127.50


M = Manual Check, V = Void Check







CITY OF STOUGHTON Check Register - For Treasurer's Report Page: 5
Check Issue Dates: 7/1/2012 - 7/31/2012 Aug 09, 2012 07:53AM


GL Period Check Date Check # Payee GL Account Amount


07/12 07/18/2012 41874 THRIVE INC. 260-21100 783.00
07/12 07/18/2012 41875 TRIELOFF, GERALD 100-21100 52.50
07/12 07/18/2012 41876 VEUM, BARBARA 100-21100 52.50
07/12 07/18/2012 41877 VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS INC 100-21100 10,480.45
07/12 07/18/2012 41878 VW DOCK COMPANY 222-21100 5,600.00
07/12 07/18/2012 41879 WEISS, MARY 100-21100 52.50
07/12 07/18/2012 41880 WHEELER, BOB 100-21100 52.50
07/12 07/18/2012 41881 WHEELER, SYLVIA 100-21100 52.50
07/12 07/18/2012 41882 WIEDENBECK INC 242-21100 159.45
07/12 07/18/2012 41883 WILSON, JERRY 100-21100 52.50
07/12 07/18/2012 41884 WISC DEPT OF JUSTICE-CRIME INF 100-21100 616.00
07/12 07/18/2012 41885 WISC PROFESSIONAL POLICE ASSO 100-21100 769.25
07/12 07/18/2012 41886 WISC SUPPORT COLLECTIONS 100-21100 1,393.92
07/12 07/25/2012 41887 AIRGAS NORTH CENTRAL 100-21100 15.44
07/12 07/25/2012 41888 ALDI 234-21100 300.00
07/12 07/25/2012 41889 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L 100-21100 346.62
07/12 07/25/2012 41890 ASLESON'S HARDWARE 100-21100 84.32
07/12 07/25/2012 41891 AUDIOGO 215-21100 251.90
07/12 07/25/2012 41892 AUXIANT 251-21100 59,908.95
07/12 07/25/2012 41893 BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS 215-21100 3,616.17
07/12 07/25/2012 41894 BLACKSTONE AUDIO INC 217-21100 20.00
07/12 07/25/2012 41895 BRABEC, MARY 245-21100 250.00
07/12 07/25/2012 41896 BUBRICK'S 215-21100 186.79
07/12 07/25/2012 41897 CINTAS CORPORATION #446 100-21100 286.32
07/12 07/25/2012 41898 DANE COUNTY REGISTER OF DEEDS 261-21100 60.00
07/12 07/25/2012 41899 DANE COUNTY TREASURER - LAND C 224-21100 760.62
07/12 07/25/2012 41900 DEMCO INC 215-21100 203.35
07/12 07/25/2012 41901 EMERGENCY SERVICES MARKETING 100-21100 800.00
07/12 07/25/2012 41902 ETIcorp 100-21100 262.00
07/12 07/25/2012 41903 EUGSTER FARM MARKET INC 231-21100 149.00
07/12 07/25/2012 41904 EZ OFFICE PRODUCTS 100-21100 154.02
07/12 07/25/2012 41905 GALE 215-21100 257.50
07/12 07/25/2012 41906 GORDON FLESCH COMPANY INC 100-21100 50.88
07/12 07/25/2012 41907 INKWORKS INC 245-21100 598.79
07/12 07/25/2012 41908 JCOMP TECHNOLOGIES INC 100-21100 578.19
07/12 07/25/2012 41909 KAHL, TERRY 100-21100 394.30
07/12 07/25/2012 41910 KOPKE'S GREENHOUSE 100-21100 120.00
07/12 07/25/2012 41911 KRUEGER, EARL 231-21100 108.00
07/12 07/25/2012 41912 LARK UNIFORM OUTFITTERS INC 100-21100 94.94
07/12 07/25/2012 41913 LEARN, CHERYL 245-21100 45.88
07/12 07/25/2012 41914 LOCH NEST MONSTER INC 245-21100 2,250.00
07/12 07/25/2012 41915 MADISON AREA COMM. SPEC. 100-21100 247.50
07/12 07/25/2012 41916 MAERTENS, GREG 229-21100 106.75
07/12 07/25/2012 41917 MIDWEST TAPE 215-21100 862.22
07/12 07/25/2012 41918 MSA PROFESSIONAL SERVICES INC 100-21100 228.38
07/12 07/25/2012 41919 PRINTERY INC., THE 245-21100 5,467.84
07/12 07/25/2012 41920 QUALITY INN & SUITES 245-21100 680.00
07/12 07/25/2012 41921 RANDOM HOUSE INC 217-21100 81.25
07/12 07/25/2012 41922 RECORDED BOOKS INC 217-21100 6.95


M = Manual Check, V = Void Check







CITY OF STOUGHTON Check Register - For Treasurer's Report Page: 6
Check Issue Dates: 7/1/2012 - 7/31/2012 Aug 09, 2012 07:53AM


GL Period Check Date Check # Payee GL Account Amount


07/12 07/25/2012 41923 ROSENBAUM CRUSHING & EXCAVATI 100-21100 715.37
07/12 07/25/2012 41924 SKAALEN NURSING AND 603-21100 44.76
07/12 07/25/2012 41925 SOUTH CENTRAL LIBRARY SYSTEM 215-21100 373.96
07/12 07/25/2012 41926 STATE BAR OF WISCONSIN 100-21100 460.00
07/12 07/25/2012 41927 STOUGHTON LUMBER COMPANY 223-21100 115.04
07/12 07/25/2012 41928 STRAND ASSOCIATES INC 260-21100 9,244.93
07/12 07/25/2012 41929 TOTAL WATER TREATMENT SYS INC 215-21100 .50
07/12 07/25/2012 41930 U.S. CELLULAR 100-21100 1,563.11
07/12 07/25/2012 41931 UNIQUE MANAGEMENT SERVICES IN 215-21100 35.80
07/12 07/25/2012 41932 UPS STORE 242-21100 169.00
07/12 07/25/2012 41933 WALL STREET JOURNAL 217-21100 726.80
07/12 07/25/2012 41934 WINGFOOT COMMERCIAL TIRE 100-21100 624.72
07/12 07/25/2012 41935 WISC RETIREMENT SYSTEM 100-21100 50,976.53
07/12 07/25/2012 41936 WISCONSIN TAXPAYERS ALLIANCE 215-21100 38.39


Grand Totals: 506,629.66


Summary by General Ledger Account Number


GL Account Debit Credit Proof


100-21100 116.25 250,667.32- 250,551.07-
100-21113 7,879.00 .00 7,879.00
100-21500 111.18 .00 111.18
100-21515 50,976.53 .00 50,976.53
100-21560 2,068.42 .00 2,068.42
100-21575 7,584.00 .00 7,584.00
100-21590 2,760.39 .00 2,760.39
100-22210 3,958.80 .00 3,958.80
100-44110 300.00 .00 300.00
100-46750 187.00 45.00- 142.00


100-51200-340 258.60 .00 258.60
100-51300-215 4,611.01 .00 4,611.01
100-51400-212 130.00 .00 130.00
100-51420-210 821.63 .00 821.63
100-51420-212 691.80 .00 691.80
100-51420-315 664.68 .00 664.68
100-51420-340 820.51 .00 820.51
100-51420-341 2,914.00 .00 2,914.00
100-51440-120 3,971.27 71.25- 3,900.02
100-51440-340 300.00 .00 300.00
100-51510-211 1,500.00 .00 1,500.00
100-51510-212 220.00 .00 220.00
100-51510-215 2,571.00 .00 2,571.00
100-51510-219 16,292.33 .00 16,292.33
100-51510-310 563.23 .00 563.23
100-51510-340 190.00 .00 190.00


M = Manual Check, V = Void Check







CITY OF STOUGHTON Check Register - For Treasurer's Report Page: 7
Check Issue Dates: 7/1/2012 - 7/31/2012 Aug 09, 2012 07:53AM


GL Account Debit Credit Proof


100-51530-215 4,875.00 .00 4,875.00
100-51900-150 2,500.00 .00 2,500.00
100-51900-153 359.76 .00 359.76
100-51930-523 182.16 .00 182.16
100-52100-190 970.42 .00 970.42
100-52100-210 1,530.05 .00 1,530.05
100-52100-215 1,314.12 .00 1,314.12
100-52100-240 476.00 .00 476.00
100-52100-330 408.57 .00 408.57
100-52100-335 3,332.92 .00 3,332.92
100-52100-340 1,474.91 .00 1,474.91
100-52100-390 1,426.98 .00 1,426.98
100-52100-395 429.56 .00 429.56
100-52200-210 263.99 .00 263.99
100-52200-217 270.00 .00 270.00
100-52200-220 1,450.05 .00 1,450.05
100-52200-240 624.72 .00 624.72
100-52200-241 800.00 .00 800.00
100-52200-335 1,166.24 .00 1,166.24
100-52200-340 1,136.52 .00 1,136.52
100-52300-240 547.75 .00 547.75
100-53200-200 9.94 .00 9.94
100-53200-215 1,096.00 .00 1,096.00
100-53200-220 1,704.18 .00 1,704.18
100-53200-221 45.46 .00 45.46
100-53200-222 193.84 .00 193.84
100-53200-223 246.88 .00 246.88
100-53200-314 1,220.07 .00 1,220.07
100-53200-340 864.92 .00 864.92
100-53300-210 310.17 .00 310.17
100-53300-212 130.00 .00 130.00
100-53300-215 728.27 .00 728.27
100-53300-216 200.00 .00 200.00
100-53300-220 741.07 .00 741.07
100-53300-300 498.60 .00 498.60
100-53300-310 101.99 .00 101.99
100-53300-335 4,368.99 .00 4,368.99
100-53300-340 3,129.85 .00 3,129.85
100-53300-390 419.26 .00 419.26
100-53400-340 384.60 .00 384.60
100-53420-340 9,008.35 .00 9,008.35
100-53440-340 861.34 .00 861.34
100-53620-215 41,296.50 .00 41,296.50
100-53620-216 15,144.50 .00 15,144.50
100-54600-200 245.85 .00 245.85
100-54600-202 12.00 .00 12.00
100-54600-210 193.67 .00 193.67
100-54600-220 1,601.53 .00 1,601.53
100-54600-240 1,509.19 .00 1,509.19


M = Manual Check, V = Void Check







CITY OF STOUGHTON Check Register - For Treasurer's Report Page: 8
Check Issue Dates: 7/1/2012 - 7/31/2012 Aug 09, 2012 07:53AM


GL Account Debit Credit Proof


100-54600-340 1,615.45 .00 1,615.45
100-54600-342 15.00 .00 15.00
100-54600-350 209.27 .00 209.27
100-54910-240 2,375.00 .00 2,375.00
100-54910-300 1,975.48 .00 1,975.48
100-55100-720 200.00 .00 200.00
100-55100-728 1,425.00 .00 1,425.00
100-55200-245 8,515.91 .00 8,515.91
100-55200-335 693.88 .00 693.88
100-55200-340 1,521.60 .00 1,521.60
100-55200-350 712.23 .00 712.23
100-55300-127 450.00 .00 450.00
100-55300-210 570.25 .00 570.25
100-55300-240 1,246.37 .00 1,246.37
100-55300-300 297.94 .00 297.94
100-55300-340 334.39 .00 334.39
100-55300-341 1,625.84 .00 1,625.84
100-55400-210 7.52 .00 7.52
100-55400-220 1,207.66 .00 1,207.66
100-55500-210 165.07 .00 165.07
100-55500-216 298.99 .00 298.99
100-55500-240 35.88 .00 35.88
100-55500-300 501.91 .00 501.91
100-56300-330 282.14 .00 282.14
100-56300-340 232.42 .00 232.42


212-21100 .00 5,823.75- 5,823.75-
212-53271-220 3,674.23 .00 3,674.23
212-53271-314 588.00 .00 588.00
212-53271-340 1,561.52 .00 1,561.52


215-21100 .00 7,237.30- 7,237.30-
215-55110-210 7.52 .00 7.52
215-55110-216 35.80 .00 35.80
215-55110-220 2,273.97 .00 2,273.97
215-55110-221 71.17 .00 71.17
215-55110-240 42.94 .00 42.94
215-55110-250 .50 .00 .50
215-55110-325 3,078.33 .00 3,078.33
215-55110-328 962.97 .00 962.97
215-55110-340 107.17 .00 107.17
215-55110-342 282.97 .00 282.97
215-55110-810 373.96 .00 373.96


217-21100 111.41 3,028.43- 2,917.02-
217-55110-500 3,028.43 111.41- 2,917.02


222-21100 .00 5,600.00- 5,600.00-
222-57623-820 5,600.00 .00 5,600.00


223-21100 .00 107.26- 107.26-
223-57220-300 107.26 .00 107.26


224-21100 .00 760.62- 760.62-
224-57345-340 760.62 .00 760.62


M = Manual Check, V = Void Check







CITY OF STOUGHTON Check Register - For Treasurer's Report Page: 9
Check Issue Dates: 7/1/2012 - 7/31/2012 Aug 09, 2012 07:53AM


GL Account Debit Credit Proof


229-21100 .00 106.75- 106.75-
229-54600-340 106.75 .00 106.75


230-21100 .00 9.80- 9.80-
230-54600-210 9.80 .00 9.80


231-21100 .00 5,529.97- 5,529.97-
231-54600-340 5,529.97 .00 5,529.97


232-21100 .00 774.00- 774.00-
232-54600-340 774.00 .00 774.00


234-21100 .00 3,870.07- 3,870.07-
234-55100-724 3,870.07 .00 3,870.07


241-21100 .00 417.19- 417.19-
241-52400-252 417.19 .00 417.19


242-21100 .00 6,698.71- 6,698.71-
242-52200-341 42.00 .00 42.00
242-52200-342 5,318.31 .00 5,318.31
242-52200-346 115.34 .00 115.34
242-52200-348 1,223.06 .00 1,223.06


244-21100 .00 10,740.00- 10,740.00-
244-55100-340 10,740.00 .00 10,740.00


245-21100 .00 20,039.41- 20,039.41-
245-55190-210 80.63 .00 80.63
245-55190-320 202.00 .00 202.00
245-55190-340 61.82 .00 61.82
245-55190-344 12,708.33 .00 12,708.33
245-55190-345 680.00 .00 680.00
245-55190-346 240.00 .00 240.00
245-55190-350 6,066.63 .00 6,066.63


251-13011 48,309.70 .00 48,309.70
251-21100 .00 123,664.86- 123,664.86-


251-51930-530 53,028.68 .00 53,028.68
251-51930-531 22,326.48 .00 22,326.48


260-21100 .00 3,767.94- 3,767.94-
260-55100-340 2,984.94 .00 2,984.94
260-55500-340 783.00 .00 783.00


261-21100 .00 550.00- 550.00-
261-55100-340 550.00 .00 550.00


300-21100 .00 9,768.56- 9,768.56-
300-48220 118.56 .00 118.56


300-58290-630 9,650.00 .00 9,650.00
400-21100 .00 33,265.16- 33,265.16-


400-57330-820 16,263.07 .00 16,263.07
400-57331-830 3,679.77 .00 3,679.77
400-57344-820 22.60 .00 22.60
400-57345-820 9,666.90 .00 9,666.90
400-57620-820 3,632.82 .00 3,632.82


410-21100 .00 45.42- 45.42-
410-57210-820 36.45 .00 36.45
410-57331-820 8.97 .00 8.97


603-21100 .00 14,384.80- 14,384.80-


M = Manual Check, V = Void Check







CITY OF STOUGHTON Check Register - For Treasurer's Report Page: 10
Check Issue Dates: 7/1/2012 - 7/31/2012 Aug 09, 2012 07:53AM


GL Account Debit Credit Proof


603-51930-523 185.52 .00 185.52
603-52300-210 319.64 .00 319.64
603-52300-212 44.76 .00 44.76
603-52300-216 9,082.41 .00 9,082.41
603-52300-220 1,397.27 .00 1,397.27
603-52300-240 77.04 .00 77.04
603-52300-330 445.54 .00 445.54
603-52300-335 636.28 .00 636.28
603-52300-340 1,916.54 .00 1,916.54
603-52300-390 279.80 .00 279.80


Grand Totals: 507,084.98 507,084.98- .00


M = Manual Check, V = Void Check







CITY OF STOUGHTON Journals Page: 1


OTHER CASH DISBURSEMENTS - PRIMARY CHECKING (CDJE) Aug 09, 2012 08:14AM


Period: 7/31/2012 (07/12)


Report Criteria:


Total By Reference Number and Date


Journal Code.Journal Code = cdje


Ref Account Debit Credit


Date Num Payee or Description Number Amount Amount


CDJE


07/31/2012 1 TO RECORD DEBT SERVICE INTEREST PAYMENT 300-58200-620 5,317.50


TO RECORD DEBT SERVICE INTEREST PAYMENT 001-11100 5,317.50-


.00*


07/31/2012 2 TO RECORD NSF CHECK MAIN ST POUR HOUSE 100-44110 630.00


TO RECORD NSF CHECK MAIN ST POUR HOUSE 100-44150 100.00


TO RECORD NSF CHECK MAIN ST POUR HOUSE 100-51510-216 10.00-


TO RECORD NSF CHECK MAIN ST POUR HOUSE 001-11100 720.00-


.00*


07/31/2012 3 TO RECORD NSF CHECK HANLON, COREY 100-46757 38.00


TO RECORD NSF CHECK HANLON, COREY 100-51510-216 10.00-


TO RECORD NSF CHECK HANLON, COREY 001-11100 28.00-


.00*


07/31/2012 4 TO RECORD NSF CHECK BROWN, PEGGY JO 100-22210 114.00


TO RECORD NSF CHECK BROWN, PEGGY JO 100-45100 10.00


TO RECORD NSF CHECK BROWN, PEGGY JO 100-51510-216 10.00-


TO RECORD NSF CHECK BROWN, PEGGY JO 001-11100 114.00-


.00*


07/31/2012 5 TO RECORD OOPS PAYMENTS 100-54600-212 65.00


TO RECORD OOPS PAYMENTS 001-11100 65.00-


.00*


07/31/2012 6 EFTPS PAYROLL WIRE 100-21510 15,776.75


EFTPS PAYROLL WIRE 100-21512 17,612.93


EFTPS PAYROLL WIRE 100-21513 4,911.34


EFTPS PAYROLL WIRE 001-11100 38,301.02-


.00*


07/31/2012 7 TO RECORD OOPS PAYMENTS 100-55300-300 33.33


TO RECORD OOPS PAYMENTS 100-51420-340 68.41


TO RECORD OOPS PAYMENTS 100-51510-310 74.22


TO RECORD OOPS PAYMENTS 001-11100 175.96-


.00*


07/31/2012 8 TO RECORD OOPS PAYMENTS 100-55300-300 32.08


TO RECORD OOPS PAYMENTS 100-55300-341 89.76


TO RECORD OOPS PAYMENTS 001-11100 121.84-


.00*


07/31/2012 9 TO RECORD OOPS PAYMENTS 603-52300-343 79.15


TO RECORD OOPS PAYMENTS 603-52300-212 12.00


TO RECORD OOPS PAYMENTS 001-11100 91.15-


.00*


07/31/2012 10 TO RECORD OOPS PAYMENTS 100-55300-341 108.63


TO RECORD OOPS PAYMENTS 215-55110-212 10.71


TO RECORD OOPS PAYMENTS 215-55110-212 40.88


TO RECORD OOPS PAYMENTS 001-11100 160.22-


.00*


07/31/2012 11 TO REALLOCATE MVD FEES 100-46290 11,869.17


TO REALLOCATE MVD FEES 001-11100 11,869.17-


.00*


07/31/2012 12 TO RECORD DELTA DENTAL WIRES 251-51930-216 3,350.62


TO RECORD DELTA DENTAL WIRES 001-11100 3,350.62-


.00*


07/31/2012 13 TO RECORD EBC PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS 100-21520 1,361.50


TO RECORD EBC PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS 001-11100 1,361.50-







CITY OF STOUGHTON Journals Page: 2


OTHER CASH DISBURSEMENTS - PRIMARY CHECKING (CDJE) Aug 09, 2012 08:14AM


Period: 7/31/2012 (07/12)


Ref Account Debit Credit


Date Num Payee or Description Number Amount Amount


.00*


07/31/2012 14 TO RECORD EBC PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS 100-51510-216 174.36


TO RECORD EBC PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS 001-11100 174.36-


.00*


07/31/2012 15 WI EFT PAYROLL WIRE 100-21511 8,244.06


WI EFT PAYROLL WIRE 001-11100 8,244.06-


.00*


07/31/2012 16 WI EFT PAYROLL WIRE 100-21511 8,203.09


WI EFT PAYROLL WIRE 001-11100 8,203.09-


.00*


07/31/2012 17 WISCONSIN SALES TAX PAYMENT 100-21104 1,781.46


WISCONSIN SALES TAX PAYMENT 001-11100 1,781.46-


.00*


07/31/2012 18 TO RECORD RANDY NELSON GARNISHMENT 100-21590 25.00


TO RECORD RANDY NELSON GARNISHMENT 001-11100 25.00-


.00*


07/31/2012 19 TO RECORD EFTPS PAYROLL 100-21510 15,882.95


TO RECORD EFTPS PAYROLL 100-21512 16,664.56


TO RECORD EFTPS PAYROLL 100-21513 4,646.86


TO RECORD EFTPS PAYROLL 001-11100 37,194.37-


Documents: 19 Transactions: 53


Total CDJE: 117,328.32 117,328.32-


Grand Totals: 117,328.32 117,328.32-


Report Criteria:


Total By Reference Number and Date


Journal Code.Journal Code = cdje







CITY OF STOUGHTON
SUMMARY REVENUES / EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET


FOR THE 7 MONTHS ENDING JULY 31, 2012


FUND 100 - GENERAL FUND


PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PCNT


FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 58 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 08/09/2012 08:16AM PAGE: 1


REVENUE


TAXES .00 5,146,672.39 7,792,381.00 2,645,708.61 66.05


INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES 484,355.21 878,473.68 1,528,854.00 650,380.32 57.46


LICENSES & PERMITS 8,654.16 89,223.37 100,665.00 11,441.63 88.63


FINES, FORFEITS & PENALTIES 8,058.00 65,300.78 127,750.00 62,449.22 51.12


PUBLIC CHARGES FOR SERVICE 91,828.12 983,333.76 1,187,017.00 203,683.24 82.84


INTERGOVERNMENTAL CHARGES FO 1,500.00 74,500.00 82,000.00 7,500.00 90.85


MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 7,487.51 142,345.85 180,042.00 37,696.15 79.06


601,883.00 7,379,849.83 10,998,709.00 3,618,859.17 67.10


EXPENDITURES


LEGISLATIVE 3,875.40 22,768.01 47,505.00 24,736.99 47.93


JUDICIAL 6,183.96 48,893.30 84,936.00 36,042.70 57.56


LEGAL 4,422.01 39,830.85 113,500.00 73,669.15 35.09


MAYOR 6,171.89 50,797.62 89,397.00 38,599.38 56.82


CLERK 19,403.79 108,207.76 207,286.00 99,078.24 52.20


ELECTION 4,217.92 24,212.18 32,600.00 8,387.82 74.27


FINANCE DIRECTOR 41,969.14 348,576.51 578,646.00 230,069.49 60.24


ASSESSOR 4,875.00 39,059.44 43,700.00 4,640.56 89.38


CITY WEBSITE .00 41.94 5,000.00 4,958.06 .84


OTHER GENERAL GOVERNMENT 2,859.76 49,149.76 25,000.00 ( 24,149.76) 196.60


INSURANCE 182.16 187,845.49 179,918.00 ( 7,927.49) 104.41


LAW ENFORCEMENT 177,957.58 1,257,404.73 2,409,221.00 1,151,816.27 52.19


FIRE PROTECTION 24,606.20 190,464.86 450,649.00 260,184.14 42.26


AMBULANCE 5.05 5.05 .00 ( 5.05) .00


INSPECTION 6,204.15 46,554.52 82,938.00 36,383.48 56.13


CITY BUILDINGS 9,859.53 66,780.58 135,924.00 69,143.42 49.13


HIGHWAY & STREET MAINT/CONST 73,712.40 527,804.37 961,916.00 434,111.63 54.87


SNOW REMOVAL .00 50,490.42 65,000.00 14,509.58 77.68


ROAD RELATED FACILITIES 384.60 4,728.86 20,000.00 15,271.14 23.64


STREET LIGHTING 9,008.35 63,273.54 135,000.00 71,726.46 46.87


SWEEPING/STORM SEWERS 861.34 5,555.40 16,000.00 10,444.60 34.72


SANITATION 56,441.00 341,277.27 663,151.00 321,873.73 51.46


SENIOR CENTER 31,246.58 211,460.50 466,561.00 255,100.50 45.32


CEMETERY 4,350.48 16,619.82 31,000.00 14,380.18 53.61


CULTURE 1,625.00 1,736.11 2,500.00 763.89 69.44


PARKS 25,045.70 102,316.66 168,348.00 66,031.34 60.78


RECREATION PROGRAMS & EVENTS 28,464.13 152,131.42 258,047.00 105,915.58 58.95


YOUTH CENTER 1,318.52 28,737.84 44,052.00 15,314.16 65.24


CABLE 12,211.86 91,647.60 176,296.00 84,648.40 51.99


PLANNING 14,762.75 108,698.62 194,016.00 85,317.38 56.03


CONTINGENCY .00 .00 80,000.00 80,000.00 .00


TRANSFER TO DEBT SERVICE .00 2,040,871.00 2,040,871.00 .00 100.00


TRANSFER TO CAPITAL .00 470,732.00 470,732.00 .00 100.00


TRANSFER TO OTHER FUNDS .00 657,518.00 682,518.00 25,000.00 96.34


DEPARTMENT 510 .00 30,000.00 30,000.00 .00 100.00







CITY OF STOUGHTON
SUMMARY REVENUES / EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET


FOR THE 7 MONTHS ENDING JULY 31, 2012


FUND 100 - GENERAL FUND


PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PCNT


FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 58 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 08/09/2012 08:16AM PAGE: 2


572,226.25 7,386,192.03 10,992,228.00 3,606,035.97 67.19


29,656.75 ( 6,342.20) 6,481.00 12,823.20







CITY OF STOUGHTON
SUMMARY REVENUES / EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET


FOR THE 7 MONTHS ENDING JULY 31, 2012


FUND 215 - LIBRARY FUND


PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PCNT


FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 58 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 08/09/2012 08:16AM PAGE: 3


REVENUE


INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES .00 230,462.43 230,346.00 ( 116.43) 100.05


PUBLIC CHARGES FOR SERVICE 2,303.26 14,608.18 29,000.00 14,391.82 50.37


MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 1.29 1.41 .00 ( 1.41) .00


OTHER FINANCING SOURCES .00 478,193.00 478,193.00 .00 100.00


2,304.55 723,265.02 737,539.00 14,273.98 98.06


EXPENDITURES


DEPARTMENT 110 47,603.99 417,990.13 737,539.00 319,548.87 56.67


47,603.99 417,990.13 737,539.00 319,548.87 56.67


( 45,299.44) 305,274.89 .00 ( 305,274.89)







CITY OF STOUGHTON
SUMMARY REVENUES / EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET


FOR THE 7 MONTHS ENDING JULY 31, 2012


FUND 245 - OPERA HOUSE FUND


PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PCNT


FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 58 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 08/09/2012 08:16AM PAGE: 4


REVENUE


PUBLIC CHARGES FOR SERVICE 21,484.00 239,897.60 444,100.00 204,202.40 54.02


MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 105.00 3,338.11 4,000.00 661.89 83.45


OTHER FINANCING SOURCES .00 20,000.00 .00 ( 20,000.00) .00


21,589.00 263,235.71 448,100.00 184,864.29 58.74


EXPENDITURES


GENERAL OPERATING EXPENSES 25,725.33 296,223.86 439,330.00 143,106.14 67.43


25,725.33 296,223.86 439,330.00 143,106.14 67.43


( 4,136.33) ( 32,988.15) 8,770.00 41,758.15







CITY OF STOUGHTON
SUMMARY REVENUES / EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET


FOR THE 7 MONTHS ENDING JULY 31, 2012


FUND 300 - DEBT SERVICE FUND


PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PCNT


FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 58 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 08/09/2012 08:16AM PAGE: 5


REVENUE


MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 18,412.00 1,254,726.55 151,199.00 ( 1,103,527.55) 829.85


OTHER FINANCING SOURCES .00 2,472,075.00 2,472,071.00 ( 4.00) 100.00


18,412.00 3,726,801.55 2,623,270.00 ( 1,103,531.55) 142.07


EXPENDITURES


PRINCIPAL .00 3,050,000.00 2,050,000.00 ( 1,000,000.00) 148.78


INTEREST & FISCAL CHARGES 5,317.50 320,573.72 1,293,499.00 972,925.28 24.78


DEPARTMENT 290 9,650.00 34,894.42 1,000.00 ( 33,894.42) 3489.44


14,967.50 3,405,468.14 3,344,499.00 ( 60,969.14) 101.82


3,444.50 321,333.41 ( 721,229.00) ( 1,042,562.41)







CITY OF STOUGHTON
SUMMARY REVENUES / EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET


FOR THE 7 MONTHS ENDING JULY 31, 2012


FUND 400 - CONSTRUCTION FUND


PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PCNT


FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 58 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 08/09/2012 08:16AM PAGE: 6


REVENUE


SOURCE 47 .00 .00 75,217.00 75,217.00 .00


SOURCE 48 104.38 23,168.82 .00 ( 23,168.82) .00


OTHER FINANCING SOURCES .00 2,668,928.00 1,792,212.00 ( 876,716.00) 148.92


104.38 2,692,096.82 1,867,429.00 ( 824,667.82) 144.16


EXPENDITURES


DEPARTMENT 100 .00 .00 309,000.00 309,000.00 .00


DEPARTMENT 220 .00 153,121.00 153,000.00 ( 121.00) 100.08


STREET CONSTRUCTION 16,263.07 64,268.44 645,000.00 580,731.56 9.96


DEPARTMENT 331 3,679.77 29,862.32 246,000.00 216,137.68 12.14


CURB & GUTTER .00 .00 116,500.00 116,500.00 .00


SIDEWALKS 22.60 257.60 35,000.00 34,742.40 .74


STORM SEWER 9,666.90 13,383.87 317,000.00 303,616.13 4.22


DEPARTMENT 620 3,632.82 59,816.61 46,000.00 ( 13,816.61) 130.04


33,265.16 320,709.84 1,867,500.00 1,546,790.16 17.17


( 33,160.78) 2,371,386.98 ( 71.00) ( 2,371,457.98)







CITY OF STOUGHTON
SUMMARY REVENUES / EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET


FOR THE 7 MONTHS ENDING JULY 31, 2012


FUND 410 - CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND


PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PCNT


FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 58 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 08/09/2012 08:16AM PAGE: 7


REVENUE


SOURCE 43 .00 16,687.93 .00 ( 16,687.93) .00


INTERGOVERNMENTAL CHARGES FO 59,794.50 119,589.00 7,003.00 ( 112,586.00) 1707.68


SOURCE 48 7.96 11,182.79 .00 ( 11,182.79) .00


OTHER FINANCING SOURCES .00 245,732.00 238,377.00 ( 7,355.00) 103.09


59,802.46 393,191.72 245,380.00 ( 147,811.72) 160.24


EXPENDITURES


DEPARTMENT 190 .00 856.00 1,800.00 944.00 47.56


DEPARTMENT 191 .00 .00 35,000.00 35,000.00 .00


DEPARTMENT 193 .00 405,093.85 .00 ( 405,093.85) .00


DEPARTMENT 210 36.45 67,547.69 94,750.00 27,202.31 71.29


DEPARTMENT 220 .00 285.00 18,380.00 18,095.00 1.55


DEPARTMENT 331 8.97 47,378.56 85,950.00 38,571.44 55.12


DEPARTMENT 510 .00 2,408.00 3,600.00 1,192.00 66.89


DEPARTMENT 620 .00 4,929.00 .00 ( 4,929.00) .00


DEPARTMENT 630 .00 .00 900.00 900.00 .00


DEPARTMENT 300 .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .00


45.42 528,498.10 245,380.00 ( 283,118.10) 215.38


59,757.04 ( 135,306.38) .00 135,306.38







Memorandum


Date: 7-23-2012


To: Police and Fire Commission


From: Chief Martin W. Lamers


Re: Fire Department Report


Cc: Mayor Donna Olson


Department News:


The department has responded to


Training and work nights in May and June, testing of all hose was completed, watercraft
review and training was also performed. July 16
Madison Fire Department.


On April 28th at about 1:20 am Stoughton Fire responded to a structure fire call in the 100
block of East Randolph St. Upon our arrival There was heavy fire was in fire in the house
and garage, two neighbor structures were also threatened. The residents escaped the
resident with their two dogs. Stoughton Fire was assisted by McFarland Fire, Stoughton
EMS and Stoughton PD. No injuries were reported, the cause of the fire
nature. The house and garage were heavily damaged the two neighbor structures also
received damage.


On May 7th a fire on North Page St.
was assisted by McFarland, Edgerton, Deerfield fire departments, Stoughton EMS and
PD as well as Stoughton and Alliant Energy utilities. The State Fire Mar
in to assist with the investigation. The fire was contained to the south end of the building
allowing the Food mart and gas station to be back in operation later that day.
of the fire was not able to be determined, it remains as u


As part of a Dane County MABAS Division 115 Strike Team (5 Engine Companies) we
were responding to Lake Delton for a large industrial building fire but were called off
prior to leaving the mobilization point.


Also as part of a Dane County
Grove IL. To assist with a large mulch fire in a rural area of Boone County, this fire
burned for over 5 days. Many of the departments from southern WI and northern IL that


olice and Fire Commission


From: Chief Martin W. Lamers


The department has responded to 180 alarms to date in 2012.


Training and work nights in May and June, testing of all hose was completed, watercraft
review and training was also performed. July 16th training was Hazardous materials with
Madison Fire Department.


at about 1:20 am Stoughton Fire responded to a structure fire call in the 100
block of East Randolph St. Upon our arrival There was heavy fire was in fire in the house
and garage, two neighbor structures were also threatened. The residents escaped the


ident with their two dogs. Stoughton Fire was assisted by McFarland Fire, Stoughton
EMS and Stoughton PD. No injuries were reported, the cause of the fire


. The house and garage were heavily damaged the two neighbor structures also


North Page St. caused extensive damaged the strip mall
was assisted by McFarland, Edgerton, Deerfield fire departments, Stoughton EMS and
PD as well as Stoughton and Alliant Energy utilities. The State Fire Mar
in to assist with the investigation. The fire was contained to the south end of the building
allowing the Food mart and gas station to be back in operation later that day.
of the fire was not able to be determined, it remains as undetermined.


As part of a Dane County MABAS Division 115 Strike Team (5 Engine Companies) we
were responding to Lake Delton for a large industrial building fire but were called off
prior to leaving the mobilization point.


Also as part of a Dane County MABAS Div 115 Strike Team we responded to Poplar
Grove IL. To assist with a large mulch fire in a rural area of Boone County, this fire
burned for over 5 days. Many of the departments from southern WI and northern IL that


Training and work nights in May and June, testing of all hose was completed, watercraft
training was Hazardous materials with


at about 1:20 am Stoughton Fire responded to a structure fire call in the 100
block of East Randolph St. Upon our arrival There was heavy fire was in fire in the house
and garage, two neighbor structures were also threatened. The residents escaped the


ident with their two dogs. Stoughton Fire was assisted by McFarland Fire, Stoughton
EMS and Stoughton PD. No injuries were reported, the cause of the fire electrical in


. The house and garage were heavily damaged the two neighbor structures also


caused extensive damaged the strip mall. Stoughton
was assisted by McFarland, Edgerton, Deerfield fire departments, Stoughton EMS and
PD as well as Stoughton and Alliant Energy utilities. The State Fire Marshal was called
in to assist with the investigation. The fire was contained to the south end of the building
allowing the Food mart and gas station to be back in operation later that day. The cause


As part of a Dane County MABAS Division 115 Strike Team (5 Engine Companies) we
were responding to Lake Delton for a large industrial building fire but were called off


Strike Team we responded to Poplar
Grove IL. To assist with a large mulch fire in a rural area of Boone County, this fire
burned for over 5 days. Many of the departments from southern WI and northern IL that







responded to this fire were departments that responded to the Stoughton Area Tornado in
2005.


Stoughton Fire participated in the Syttende Mai weekend with the First Aid tent for the
Run/walk as well as participation in the two parades. We also participated in the
Memorial Day Parade.


On Memorial Day we responded to 8 storm related calls including a response to Edgerton
to assist with the elderly housing fire and a house fire in the town of Albion. While we
were in Edgerton, Brooklyn Fire responded into our area for a storm related call.
On June 4th we responded to Edgerton to assist with a warehouse fire.


Stoughton Fire responded to a structure fire on 5th Street, only a block north of the fire
station. Upon arrival we found a structure with heavy flames on the outside as well as the
interior. An interior attach on the fire was made to push to fire to the outside. Extension
of the fire was also found in the attic. The initial report was that there may be occupants
from the north unit in the structure, initial and secondary search and rescue sweeps were
made with no occupants found. There was a minor injury to a firefighter. McFarland Fire,
Stoughton EMS, Police, Utility as well as Alliant Energy assisted.


Stoughton fire was called to assist with the search for the Lake Kegonsa drowning’, our
task was to walk the shallow water, however prior to our deployment the second victim
was located.


A burning ban in the City of Stoughton has been activated and will remain in place until
the dry conditions improve.


Stoughton Fire responded to the retention pond incident. Members performed an initial
walking grid search of the pond as well as a second walking search with nothing found. It
was determined that the pond needed to be drawn down to complete the search.
Stoughton Public Works as well as a private contractor were called in to assist. A search
of the area neighborhoods was also started. Additional Police, EMS and Fire units from
McFarland and Edgerton were called in to assist. Emergency services were assisted by
City staff, family members as well as citizens in support of the operation, over 100
personnel were on hand during the height of the incident. Upon recovery of the victim
the incident was demobilized.


Stoughton Fire assisted during the Fair for two fireworks displays, the tractor pull as well
as the Demo Derby.


Stoughton Fire assisted Three Gaits with watering the riding arena for their July 4th show.


Stoughton Fire was called to Oregon to assist with the yard waste site fire and at the same
time to a condo fire in Oregon.







On June 27th Stoughton Fire was presented a plaque by Stoughton Rotary Club as a
“Friend of Rotary” in appreciation of friendship and service to Rotary and the
Community.


July 21st is the 128th annual Stoughton Fire dance was held, it was a huge success.


On Monday August 13th we will be doing a Rural Water Movement drill that will be
monitored by ISO. The drill will affirm our ability to supply water to a rural area fire.
Several area mutual aid departments will assist in the drill. A representative from ISO
will be at the drill to document the results.


We have started the 2013 budget process by submitting our BFO offers for 2013,
hopefully the process will be more streamlined the second year.


The planning for the 2012 Holiday Light Park is underway, additions to the display are
being built, more information will be forthcoming







STOUGHTON POLICE & FIRE COMMISSION
July 2012 Report


Last quarter highlights:


The department held the bi-annual full staff meeting in the fire department training room.
As part of this meeting, a full department and individual staff photos were taken. It was
rare to have the entire department present for a photo. We also covered several training
topics including a presentation on the 211 information referral system.


The City continues to work with DaneCom on the radio frequency swap proposal. Dane
County had originally requested to swap 2 of Stoughton’s radio frequencies channels (1
Police, 1 Public Works) to be used for Dane Com. The county now only needs the Public
Works radio frequency. The County has agreed to pay all costs for the swap and ensure
that the new Stoughton frequency functions the same as the old one. Inter Agency
Agreement (MOU) is going through the City approval process.


We have removed all the conditions on the original offer of employment for Carson
Hoeper. The background is now complete. Carson is scheduled to begin employment on
July 30th. Carson will then enter Field Training after orientation. We are looking
forward to adding Carson to our staff.


Tragically, the department and the community needed to respond to a missing 5 year old
autistic boy on July 3rd. The child was later discovered deceased in the detention pond
located just east of the fire department building. The response by emergency services
personnel, Public Works, Utilities, City Employees, area Police & Fire departments, and
countless citizens was extraordinary. Everyone involved worked very well together with
the common goal of finding the child. We extend our deep appreciation to all those that
assisted in any way with this unfortunate incident.


PROJECT UP DATES


The New World RMS project is moving along with lots of behind the scenes work. We
are still tentatively scheduled to go live in December. The project will hopefully help us
to better understand our data in real time. We will also likely be switching over to the
Incident Based Reporting (IBR) system when we go live instead of using the UCR
(Uniformed Crime Reports). This system allows us to gather more information from our
reports and forward to the State & Federal governments regarding activities and their
breakdowns. It will provide us with a much more detailed statistical report that will help
us use more incident based strategies in the future for using our resources.


The radio project has slowed to a crawl. We are still waiting for final dispatch updates
and mobile radio installations. We have received our new portable radios. Hopefully we
will get things moving along in July.







The proposed Police/School Liaison position has be pushed back to the 2013-14 school
year as discussion on funding and need continue. The School District has run into some
funding issues that would delay any possibility of implementation for the 2012-13 school
year. Cost sharing continues to be a delicate topic. As a result, we are requesting an
increase in police department funding in order to cover 12.5 % of a fulltime officer
position. Since the School District operates on a fiscal calendar and the City on a
calendar year some funding would be needed in the city budget for 2013. This funding
would be by no means a commitment but would provide some funding if we can come to
an agreement for 2013-14 school year. The department feels that this is a long overdue
position and critical in freeing day and PM shift patrol personnel from regularly
responding to school issues.


Building remodeling project bids are in and a selection of the contractor will be going to
council at the first City Council meeting in July. Two alternate projects will not be
funded this year and we will be asking for funds in 2013 to complete them. The new
internal stairway came in considerable more expensive than anticipated so we will be
reevaluating the need prior to requesting funding for that portion of the project.
Construction is scheduled to begin in August. We plan to move the administrative
offices upstairs during the week of July 30th, prior to the start of construction.


The K-9 Fundraising is going extremely well. To date we have raised almost $27,000.00
toward the program. We just received a donation of $20,000.00 from a donor that wishes
to remain anonymous which gave us a tremendous boost. We have commitments from
Stoughton Veterinary Services to provide all veterinary care free of charge and Claws 2
Paws will be donating all the dog food needed. With this much success in such a short
period of time, we are moving our program goals up considerably. We now intend to
begin selection of the K-9 Handler and begin our search for a dog and training facility
within the next few months. Our timetable now is to have the dog in place and on active
duty prior to the end of 2012. We are very appreciative of the community response to
this project. Let’s take a bite out of crime!


April Statistics and Case Highlights


The department logged 2,201 incidents in April, 913 of which were cases. Cases of
interest for the month were: eight intoxicated driver arrests, fourteen drug arrests, two
sexual assaults, fourteen domestic disturbances, forty-three disturbances, twenty-six
disorderly conducts, three intoxicated persons, four burglaries, zero batteries, thirty
thefts, seven frauds, sixteen vandalisms, twenty-two traffic accidents, thirty-four EMS
assists, twelve alarms, twenty-five 911 calls, and officers responded to fifty-eight
suspicious activity calls. Officers also logged 80 criminal arrests, 20 ordinance
violations, 173 traffic stops, and issued 75 traffic citations during this month.


4-09-12, Officers arrested a 20 year old male for Burglary, Resisting Arrest, Retail Theft,
and Defrauding an Inn Keeper following a string of crimes over a two day period. On 4-
8-12 the suspect defrauded a local restaurant by leaving without paying for food. On 4-9-
12 the suspected committed a retail theft at a local convenience store and then fled the







area. The suspect then burglarized a residence and fled when confronted by the home
owner, who was in the shower. Officers then discovered the suspect hiding in a nearby
garage and the suspect fought with the officer during the arrest. Suspect was located
when an observant neighbor saw the suspect enter the garage and called the department.


May Statistics and Case Highlights


The department logged 2,286 incidents in May, 961 of which were cases. Cases of
interest for the month were: nine intoxicated driver arrests, eleven drug arrests, five
sexual assaults, one domestic disturbances, forty-one disturbances, twenty-eight
disorderly conducts, six intoxicated persons, three burglaries, one aggravated assault, six
batteries, twenty-nine thefts, four frauds, one forgery/counterfeiting, thirteen vandalisms,
thirty traffic accidents, thirty-four EMS assists, seventeen alarms, thirty-nine 911 calls,
and officers responded to seventy-one suspicious activity calls. Officers also logged 109
criminal arrests, 57 ordinance violations, 184 traffic stops, and issued 121 traffic citations
during this month.


5-21-12, Officers took two juvenile males, 16 & 17 years old, into custody and referred
them to Dane County Juvenile Court on charges of Battery & Disorderly Conduct
following a fight at the High School. One teacher received minor injuries while trying to
break up the altercation.


5-25-12, Officers arrested a 36 year old male for a Felony 5th Offense of Operating while
Under the Influence following a traffic stop. The subject was also cited for Operating
After Revocation and Possession of THC.


June Statistic and Case Highlights


The department logged 2,009 incidents in June, 806 of which were cases. Cases of
interest for the month were: ten intoxicated driver arrests, five drug arrests, zero sexual
assaults, one domestic disturbance, twenty-six disturbances, twenty-five disorderly
conducts, two intoxicated persons, four burglaries, one aggravated assault, three batteries,
twenty-two thefts, twelve frauds, zero forgery/counterfeiting, eleven vandalisms, twenty-
one traffic accidents, twenty-six EMS assists, eleven alarms, thirty-five 911 calls, and
officers responded to sixty suspicious activity calls. Officers also logged 46 criminal
arrests, 15 ordinance violations, 176 traffic stops, and issued 97 traffic citations during
this month.


6-20-12, Officers arrested a 21 year old male for Attempting to Flee an Officer, Bail
Jumping, Forgery, Credit Card Fraud, Probation Violation, and numerous traffic
violations. The incident started when an alert officer observed the suspect stumble as he
was getting into a vehicle at a gas station. The officer then attempted to stop the vehicle
and the suspect fled at high speeds. The pursuit was terminated and the officer returned
to the gas station to obtain video evidence and the forgery and credit card fraud was
discovered. Meanwhile, Sheriff’s Deputies responded to a vehicle crash just outside the







city and it was determined to be the same vehicle that fled from our officer. Suspect
escaped and was identified and later arrested.


Training Highlights


April


Sergeants Helstad & Frisch and Officer Sargent attended 16 hours of ARIDE Training at
Edgerton PD.


Sgt. Jenks attended an 8 hours class on TraCs Support and Maintenance.


Officer Vogel attended 8 hours of training on Landlord Tenant Relations at Adams PD.


Detective Veum attended 8 hours of training on Background Investigations at West Allis
PD.


May


Officers are attending consortium in-service training at the Madison International
Speedway on Emergency Vehicle Operation (EVOC). Officers are required to attend
EVOC training every two years. Sessions will continue into June.


Officer Kellogg attended 16 hours training for NHTSA (National Highway Safety)
certified advanced roadside impaired driving enforcement (ARIDE) course Madison.


Sgt. Frisch attended 40 hours of Emergency Vehicle Operation Instructor training at
Madison Police Academy.


Administrative Assistant Barb Veum attended the New World RMS conference in
Chicago.


Officer Vogel attended 8 hours of training at Waukesha Technical College on the
Bulletproof Mind by Lt. Col. Dave Grossman.


June


Administrative Assistant Barb Veum attended the 16 hour LEAP (Law Enforcement
Administrative Professionals) Conference in Green Bay.


Detective Adams attended 24 hours of School Resource Officer Training in Appleton.


Officers completed 8 hours EVOC In-service Training in June at the Madison
International Speedway.







 
600 South Fourth Street 


P.O. Box 383 
Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 


Date:  August 21, 2012 
 


To:  Nick Probst  


  Stoughton City Clerk and Personnel Director (Packet via E-Mail) 


 


From:  Robert P. Kardasz, P.E.  


  Stoughton Utilities Director 
 


Subject: Items For The August 28, 2012 Stoughton Common Council Meeting Packet. 


 


The items from the August 20, 2012 Regular Stoughton Utilities Committee Meeting are 


enclosed.  Please include them in the August 28, 2012 Stoughton Common Council Meeting 


Packet. 


   


Consent Agenda: 


1. Stoughton Utilities Payments Due List. 


2. Stoughton Utilities Committee Regular July 16, 2012 Meeting Minutes. 


3. Stoughton Utilities June 2012 Financial Summary. 


4. Stoughton Utilities June 2012 Statistical Worksheet. 


 


Encl. 


 


cc: Mayor Donna L. Olson, Chairperson  


 Stoughton Utilities Committee (Packet via E-Mail) 


 


 Alderperson Eric Hohol, President 


 Stoughton Common Council (Packet via E-Mail) 


 


 Sean O Grady  


 Stoughton Utilities Operations Superintendent (Memo via E-Mail) 


 


Brian R. Hoops (Packet via E-Mail) 


Stoughton Office and Information Systems Supervisor 


 


Kim M. Jennings, CPA  


Stoughton Utilities Finance and Administrative Manager (Memo via E-Mail) 


 


  


 


 







 


 







Highlights-Comparison to prior month


I have no concerns with the utility's financial status.  The following items are


meant to illustrate significant changes in the financial summary from prior periods.


Financial results are as expected through June 2012.


Water rate of return rose higher than anticipated because of increased


sales during the month of June.  I expect the same to happen in July.


Designated cash balance is declining due to the partial completion and payment for


capital improvement projects including the 8th street river crossing.


Submitted by: 


 Kim M. Jennings, CPA


Stoughton Utilities
Financial Summary


June 2012-YTD







Stoughton Utilities
Income Statement


June 2012-YTD


Electric Water Wastewater Total


Operating Revenue:


Sales 8,815,802$         1,029,732$       1,209,444$          11,054,978$      


Other 123,077              29,580              18,751                 171,408             


Total Operating Revenue: 8,938,879$         1,059,313$       1,228,195$          11,226,387$      


Operating Expense:


Purchased Power 7,014,608$         -$                  -$                    7,014,608$        


Expenses 787,601              387,092            441,606               1,616,299          


Taxes (Including PILOT) 283,562              208,664            -                      492,226             


Depreciation 626,664              240,000            433,336               1,300,000          


Total Operating Expense: 8,712,435$         835,756$          874,942$             10,423,133$      


Operating Income 226,444$            223,557$          353,253$             803,253$           


Non-Operating Income 87,417                40,063              32,030                 159,510             


Non-Operating Expense (209,048)             (69,271)             (69,960)               (348,279)            


Net Income 104,813$            194,349$          315,322$             614,484$           







Stoughton Utilities
Rate of Return


June 2012-YTD


Electric Water


Operating Income (Regulatory) 226,444$            223,557$          


Average Utility Plant in Service 22,344,666         10,777,999       


Average Accumulated Depreciation (9,573,300)          (3,425,501)        


Average Materials and Supplies 147,492              25,651              


Average Regulatory Liability (277,004)             (427,854)           


Average Net Rate Base 12,641,854$       6,950,296$       


Actual Rate of Return 1.79% 3.22%


Authorized Rate of Return 6.50% 6.50%







Stoughton Utilities
Cash & Investments


Electric Jun-12


Unrestricted (3.06 months O&M) 3,796,549   


Bond Reserve 704,728      


Redemption Fund (P&I) 288,882      


Designated 2,081,371   


Total 6,871,530   


Water Jun-12


Unrestricted (1.88 month O&M) 218,033      


Bond Reserve 274,005      


Redemption Fund (P&I) 100,641      


Designated 560,886      


Total 1,153,565   


Wastewater Jun-12


Unrestricted (2.85 months O&M) 380,193      


DNR Replacement 1,280,240   


Redemption Fund (P&I) 253,374      


Designated 529,360      


Total 2,443,167   


Total Combined Cash 10,468,263 


3,796,549 , 55%


704,728 , 10%


288,882 , 4%


2,081,371 , 31%


Electric Cash - June 2012


Unrestricted (3.06 months O&M) Bond Reserve Redemption Fund (P&I) Designated


218,033 , 19%


274,005 , 24%


100,641 , 9%


560,886 , 48%


Water Cash - June 2012


Unrestricted (1.88 month O&M) Bond Reserve Redemption Fund (P&I) Designated


380,193 , 16%


1,280,240 , 52%
253,374 , 10%


529,360 , 22%


Wastewater Cash - June 2012


Unrestricted (2.85 months O&M) DNR Replacement
Redemption Fund (P&I) Designated







Stoughton Utilities
Balance Sheet


June 2012-YTD


Assets Electric Water WW Total


Cash & Investments 6,871,530$         1,153,565$       2,443,167$         10,468,263$     


Customer A/R 240,033              35,070              46,143                321,246            


Other A/R 546,863              4,487                1,548                  552,897            


Other Current Assets 260,422              86,872              12,047                359,342            


Plant in Service 23,015,595         10,903,882       22,320,847         56,240,324       


Accumulated Depreciation (10,143,068)        (3,621,970)        (8,262,652)          (22,027,690)      


Plant in Service - CIAC 2,598,680           6,106,456         -                      8,705,136         


Accumulated Depreciation-CIAC (684,386)             (1,465,276)        -                      (2,149,662)        


Construction Work in Progress 286,250              657,935            881,429              1,825,615         


Total Assets 22,991,920$       13,861,021$     17,442,530$       54,295,471$     


Liabilities + Net Assets


A/P 1,369,986$         (4,848)$             (379)$                  1,364,759$       


Taxes Accrued 234,664              208,664            -                      443,328            


Interest Accrued 114,353              29,582              30,703                174,639            


Other Current Liabilities 346,274              125,290            118,415              589,979            


Long-Term Debt 6,075,916           2,350,755         3,553,192           11,979,863       


Net Assets 14,850,727         11,151,577       13,740,599         39,742,902       


Total Liabilities + Net Assets 22,991,920$       13,861,021$     17,442,530$       54,295,471$     







Total Sales Total KwH Total Sales Total KwH Demand Demand
2011 KwH Purchased 2011 2012 KwH Purchased 2012 Peak 2011 Peak 2012


January 12,142,244 12,980,864 11,868,378 12,433,320 22,711 22,832


February 11,071,774 11,329,334 11,038,451 11,343,024 22,957 21,427


March 11,549,390 11,753,295 10,781,022 11,051,000 21,040 20,035


April 10,440,710 10,408,181 9,801,894 10,146,958 19,667 18,344


May 10,444,336 10,873,333 10,992,903 11,341,846 23,293 24,382


June 12,180,851 12,457,887 13,399,947 13,426,960 33,178 34,390


July


August


September


October


November


December


TOTAL 67,829,305 69,802,894 67,882,595 69,743,108


Total Sales Total Gallons Total Sales Total Gallons Max Daily High Max Daily Highs
2011 Gallons Pumped 2011 2012 Gallons Pumped 2012 2011 2012


January 36,810,000 40,710,000 39,638,000 47,363,000 1,611,000 1,875,000


February 36,303,000 42,108,000 37,722,000 44,248,000 2,139,000 1,810,000


March 40,841,000 46,582,000 39,713,000 46,316,000 1,659,000 1,784,000


April 37,922,000 39,856,000 38,594,000 43,557,000 1,540,000 1,758,000


May 41,271,000 46,171,000 43,980,000 47,288,000 1,754,000 1,915,000


June 44,400,000 49,574,000 50,968,000 52,914,000 2,208,000 2,185,000


July


August


September


October


November


December


TOTAL 237,547,000 265,001,000 250,615,000 281,686,000


Total Sales Total Treated Total Sales Total Treated Precipitation Precipitation
2011 Gallons Gallons 2011 2012 Gallons Gallons 2012 2011 2012


January 25,817,000 32,619,000 26,040,000 34,934,000 0.90 1.48


February 23,941,000 30,597,000 24,529,000 33,123,000 1.79 1.10


March 26,266,000 38,223,000 26,282,000 36,976,000 3.05 2.20


April 26,089,000 35,708,000 24,934,000 28,915,000 3.52 1.48


May 26,880,000 34,908,000 28,563,000 38,855,000 2.26 3.10


June 28,340,000 32,297,000 33,975,000 36,914,000 3.15 0.29


July


August


September


October


November


December


TOTAL 157,333,000 204,352,000 164,323,000 209,717,000 14.67 9.65


2012 Statistical Worksheet


STOUGHTON  UTILITIES


Electic


Water


Wastewater







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


08:39AM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


1 of 4


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Period: - As of: 8/6/2012


Monday, August 06, 2012


Description


7430Company:


WPPI-Renewabl energy/WPPI-Buy back solar 


credit/WPPI-Shared savings/WPPI-Large power


HC000598 009 WPPI7/30/2012  1,120,255.42


DWD-July Ach/DWD-July Ach/DWD-July AchHC000599 027 State of WI-DWD Ach7/30/2012  1,089.00


Dept of Rev-July Ach/Dept of Rev-July AchHC000600 010 WI Dept. of Revenue Taxpayment-Ach7/30/2012  51,364.93


Us Cellular - July AchHC000601 004 Us Cellular - Ach7/30/2012  72.54


EBC-July Ach/EBC-July Ach/EBC-July 


Ach/EBC-July Ach


HC000602 002 Employee Benefits Corp - Ach7/30/2012  647.30


A T C Co - July AchHC000603 014 A T C Company - Ach7/30/2012  5,380.00


Vining Sparks-July Ach/Vining Sparks-July AchHC000604 019 Vining Sparks Investments-Ach7/30/2012  493,141.96


Assoc Bank - July Ach/Assoc Bank - July AchHC000605 012 Associated Bank Interest - Ach7/30/2012  500,000.00


State Taxes-July Ach/State Taxes-July AchHC000606 008 Payroll  State Taxes - Ach7/30/2012  5,901.49


Client Analysis-July Ach/Client Analysis-July 


Ach/Client Analysis-July Ach


HC000607 020 Wells Fargo Client Ana-Ach7/30/2012  5,812.30


Federal Taxes-July Ach/Federal Taxes-July 


Ach/Federal Taxes-July Ach/Federal Taxes-July Ach


HC000608 025 Payroll Federal Taxes- Ach7/30/2012  26,559.99


Delta Dental - July Ach/Delta Dental - July Ach/Delta 


Dental - July Ach


HC000609 001 Delta Dental - Ach7/30/2012  2,008.06


Alliant Energy - July Ach/Alliant Energy - July 


Ach/Alliant Energy - July Ach/Alliant Energy - July 


Ach/Alliant Energy - July Ach/Alliant Energy - July 


Ach/Alliant Energy - July Ach


HC000610 003 Alliant Energy - Ach7/30/2012  223.54


J Thompson-Customer RefundCK021859 077 JEFF THOMPSON7/19/2012  384.56


Us Cellular-Cell phone/Us Cellular-Cell phone/US 


Cellular-Cell Phone


CK021860 123 US CELLULAR7/19/2012  177.75


City Stoton-July Retirement/City Stoton-July 


Retirement/City Stoton-July Retirement


CK021861 131 CITY OF STOUGHTON7/19/2012  12,520.37


WI SCTF- July B SupportCK021862 133 WISCONSIN SCTF7/19/2012  138.46







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


08:39AM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


2 of 4


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Period: - As of: 8/6/2012


Monday, August 06, 2012


Description


Inkworks-Office items/Inkworks-Office 


items/Inkworks-Office items


CK021863 166 INKWORKS, INC.7/19/2012  1,507.75


United Way-July ContributionCK021864 293 UNITED WAY OF DANE COUNTY7/19/2012  60.00


Start-DonationCK021865 368 STOUGHTON AREA RESOURCE TEAM7/19/2012  1,100.00


GENERAL COMMUNICATIONS, INC/GENERAL 


COMMUNICATIONS, INC/GENERAL 


COMMUNICATIONS, INC


CK021866 377 GENERAL COMMUNICATIONS, INC7/19/2012  10,950.00


Resco-EyeletCK021867 400 RESCO7/19/2012  113.60


Frontier-Fuel/Frontier-Fuel/Frontier-FuelCK021868 451 FRONTIER FS COOPERATIVE7/19/2012  2,267.06


Mcfarland-Customer RefundCK021869 536 MC FARLAND STATE BANK7/19/2012  8.14


IBEW-July Union DuesCK021870 549 IBEW LOCAL 9657/19/2012  522.65


Kelly- Temp fee/Kelly- Temp fee/Kelly- Temp feeCK021871 560 KELLY SERVICES, INC.7/19/2012  308.48


Vining Sparks-SafekeepingCK021872 584 VINING SPARKS IBG, L.P.7/19/2012  51.00


Seera-Focus on EnergyCK021873 603 SEERA7/19/2012  5,065.24


Asplundh-Tree TrimmingCK021874 691 ASPLUNDH TREE EXPERTS CO., INC.7/19/2012  514.42


WWOA-ClassCK021875 693 WWOA7/19/2012  60.00


T Ebert-Customer RefundCK021876 697 TRICIA EBERT7/19/2012  166.84


GLS-June LocatesCK021877 727 GLS UTILITY LLC7/19/2012  1,888.40


W Petersen-Customer RefundCK021878 848 WYATT & AMANDA PETERSEN7/19/2012  65.83


M King-Customer RefundCK021879 907 MAXINE KING7/19/2012  166.41


R Stenjem-Customer RefundCK021880 969 RYAN STENJEM7/19/2012  266.01


B Holsinger-Pub Ben #10CK021881 088 BOB & LINDA HOLSINGER7/25/2012  50.00


M Horn-Customer RefundCK021882 092 MARGARET HORN7/25/2012  49.38







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


08:39AM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


3 of 4


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Period: - As of: 8/6/2012


Monday, August 06, 2012


Description


P Vick-Pub Ben #10CK021883 113 PETER VICK7/25/2012  50.00


V Strutzel-Pub Ben #10CK021884 365 VERN STRUTZEL7/25/2012  50.00


T Vieth-Pub Ben #10CK021885 382 TAMI VIETH7/25/2012  50.00


C Connolly-Customer RefundCK021886 509 CAROLYN CONNOLLY7/25/2012  27.01


M Sabroff-Pub Ben #10CK021887 520 MICHAEL SABROFF7/25/2012  50.00


D Danks-Customer RefundCK021888 532 DAN DANKS7/25/2012  9.61


Kelly -temp fees/Kelly -temp fees/Kelly -temp feesCK021889 560 KELLY SERVICES, INC.7/25/2012  385.60


D Humberg-Pub Ben #10CK021890 739 DENNY HUMBERG7/25/2012  50.00


T Halverson-Pub Ben #10CK021891 948 THOMAS HALVERSON7/25/2012  50.00


Speedway-Pay Req 2/Speedway-Pay Req 2CK021892 062 SPEEDWAY SAND & GRAVEL, INC.8/1/2012  275,806.50


J O'connor-Pub Ben #10CK021893 073 JON O'CONNOR8/1/2012  50.00


M Meinholz-Pub Ben #10CK021894 081 MICHAEL MEINHOLZ8/1/2012  50.00


PPS-Collection FeesCK021895 101 PROFESSIONAL PLACEMENT SERVICES, LLC8/1/2012  25.27


City Stoton-Pool FeesCK021896 131 CITY OF STOUGHTON8/1/2012  963.00


WI SCTF-Aug A supportCK021897 133 WISCONSIN SCTF8/1/2012  138.46


G Snorek-Pub Ben #10CK021898 391 GAYLORD SNOREK8/1/2012  50.00


G Hill-Pub Ben #10CK021899 394 GRANT HILL8/1/2012  50.00


Resco-Inventory/Resco-Inventory/Resco-Inventory/


Resco-Supplies/Resco-Supplies


CK021900 400 RESCO8/1/2012  1,853.90


Rosenbaum-Dump Fee/Rosenbaum-Dump FeeCK021901 405 ROSENBAUM CRUSHING & EXCAV.8/1/2012  110.00


Treated Material-InventoryCK021902 444 TREATED MATERIALS COMPANY, INC8/1/2012  10,930.00


Dun Rite-Well 5 exhaustCK021903 447 DUN RITE WELDING & REPAIR8/1/2012  197.00







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


08:39AM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


4 of 4


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Period: - As of: 8/6/2012


Monday, August 06, 2012


Description


Strand-8th street wa main/Strand-General 


Eng/Strand-Dunkirk sewer imp/Strand-Discharge 


Review/Strand-Water System model/Strand-Long 


range planning/Strand-Influent screw repl


CK021904 448 STRAND ASSOCIATES INC.8/1/2012  45,954.99


T Cole-Pub Ben #10CK021905 531 TIM COLE8/1/2012  50.00


Kelly-Temp Fees/Kelly-Temp Fees/Kelly-Temp FeesCK021906 560 KELLY SERVICES, INC.8/1/2012  385.60


Auxiant-Medical Admin/Auxiant-Medical 


Admin/Auxiant-Medical Admin


CK021907 590 AUXIANT8/1/2012  6,543.20


H Massey-Pub Ben #10CK021908 761 HEATH MASSEY8/1/2012  50.00


J Asleson-Pub Ben #10CK021909 882 JOHN ASELSON8/1/2012  50.00


Stoton Hub-Subscription/Stoton 


Hub-Subscription/Stoton Hub-Subscription


CK021910 961 STOUGHTON COURIER HUB8/1/2012  37.00


Great West-July B Def CompCK100613 463 GREAT-WEST7/19/2012  1,750.00


CGC-Utility projectsCK100614 718 CGC, INC.7/19/2012  750.52


N Shore Bank-July B Def CompCK100615 731 NORTH SHORE BANK FSB7/19/2012  200.00


Infosend-Billis/Infosend-Billis/Infosend-BillisCK100616 852 INFOSEND, INC7/19/2012  4,866.36


Itron-meter supplyCK100617 259 ITRON, INC.7/25/2012  1,623.60


Hanson-Pest MaintCK100618 310 HANSON PEST MANAGEMENT7/25/2012  43.00


Sun Dance-July Cleaning Svc/Sun Dance-July 


Cleaning Svc/Sun Dance-July Cleaning Svc


CK100619 322 SUN DANCE CLEANING SVCS LLC7/25/2012  250.00


WPPI-large power billingCK100620 009 WPPI8/1/2012  740.00


Great-West-Aug A def compCK100621 463 GREAT-WEST8/1/2012  1,750.00


N Shore Bank-Aug A def compCK100622 731 NORTH SHORE BANK FSB8/1/2012  200.00


Company Total  2,607,049.50







Stoughton Utilities - Credit Card Purchases


Jul-12


Acct # Name Date Debit Credit Vendor Description


7430 143 00-0000 KIM JENNINGS 18-Jul-12 31.52 KAESER AND BLAIR INC LED Lanterns Tax Exempt - Value of Public Power Event


7460 833 00-0000 PHILLIP LINNERUD 2-Jul-12 29.80 BADGER WATER Lab Water


7460 833 00-0000 PHILLIP LINNERUD 6-Jul-12 16.43 SPEE-DEE DELIVERY Sample Delivery charge


7460 833 00-0000 PHILLIP LINNERUD 16-Jul-12 248.00 NORTHERN LAKES SERVICE IN Mercury sampling


7460 833 00-0000 PHILLIP LINNERUD 20-Jul-12 247.99 NCL OF WISCONSIN INC Lab chemicals and supplies


7460 833 00-0000 PHILLIP LINNERUD 20-Jul-12 120.80 US PLASTICS/USP HOME Sampler hose line


7460 833 00-0000 PHILLIP LINNERUD 20-Jul-12 29.80 BADGER WATER Lab water


7430 586 00-0000 ERIN BOTHUM 2-Jul-12 308.00 AMERICINN Lodging for Bryce for meter apprenticeship training


7430 921 00-0000 ERIN BOTHUM 2-Jul-12 39.41 TLF GEORGES FLOWERS INC Hospital gift - RKardasz


7450 921 00-0000 ERIN BOTHUM 2-Jul-12 14.32 TLF GEORGES FLOWERS INC Hospital gift - RKardasz


7460 851 00-0000 ERIN BOTHUM 2-Jul-12 17.91 TLF GEORGES FLOWERS INC Hospital gift - RKardasz


7430 921 00-0000 ERIN BOTHUM 16-Jul-12 144.44 PITNEY BOWES TELEMRKTG Postage machine supplies -- Red ink


7450 921 00-0000 ERIN BOTHUM 16-Jul-12 52.52 PITNEY BOWES TELEMRKTG Postage machine supplies -- Red ink


7460 851 00-0000 ERIN BOTHUM 16-Jul-12 65.66 PITNEY BOWES TELEMRKTG Postage machine supplies -- Red ink


7450 921 00-0000 ERIN BOTHUM 18-Jul-12 18.95 USPS 56797007232510315 Express Mail - Water tower maintenance contracts


7430 921 00-0000 ERIN BOTHUM 18-Jul-12 4.29 FOSDAL BAKERY Utilities Committee meeting supplies


7450 921 00-0000 ERIN BOTHUM 18-Jul-12 1.56 FOSDAL BAKERY Utilities Committee meeting supplies


7460 851 00-0000 ERIN BOTHUM 18-Jul-12 1.95 FOSDAL BAKERY Utilities Committee meeting supplies


7430 143 00-0000 ERIN BOTHUM 27-Jul-12 64.80 WAL-MART#1176 Public Power Week event supplies


7430 143 00-0000 ERIN BOTHUM 27-Jul-12 49.84 PIC N SAVE    00063909 Public Power Week event supplies


7430 903 00-0000 ENECIA SABROFF 9-Jul-12 198.00 USPS 56797007232510315 Postage for July 10-day notices


7450 903 00-0000 ENECIA SABROFF 9-Jul-12 72.00 USPS 56797007232510315 Postage for July 10-day notices


7460 840 00-0000 ENECIA SABROFF 9-Jul-12 90.00 USPS 56797007232510315 Postage for July 10-day notices


7430 926 00-0000 SEAN GRADY 2-Jul-12 75.58 CINTAS #446 Uniforms


7460 854 00-0000 SEAN GRADY 2-Jul-12 8.80 CINTAS #446 Uniforms


7450 926 00-0000 SEAN GRADY 2-Jul-12 8.80 CINTAS #446 Uniforms


7430 583 00-0000 SEAN GRADY 3-Jul-12 127.23 BORDER STATES ELECTRIC Fuse links.


7430 232 00-1099 SEAN GRADY 5-Jul-12 330.00 WESCO - # 7862 2-inch u-guard.


7430 926 00-0000 SEAN GRADY 9-Jul-12 75.58 CINTAS #446 Uniforms


7460 854 00-0000 SEAN GRADY 9-Jul-12 8.80 CINTAS #446 Uniforms


7450 926 00-0000 SEAN GRADY 9-Jul-12 8.80 CINTAS #446 Uniforms


7430 232 00-1099 SEAN GRADY 12-Jul-12 211.20 STUART C IRBY Street light bulbs


7430 232 00-1099 SEAN GRADY 12-Jul-12 502.50 STUART C IRBY 3/8 guy wire


7430 232 00-1099 SEAN GRADY 12-Jul-12 340.00 STUART C IRBY 3/8 guy wire


7430 583 00-0000 SEAN GRADY 12-Jul-12 184.95 STUART C IRBY Copper stables used on pole grounds, staples


7430 594 00-0000 SEAN GRADY 12-Jul-12 466.93 STUART C IRBY Cable tags


7430 143 00-0000 SEAN GRADY 12-Jul-12 34.62 STUART C IRBY Credit card charge that was not approved.


7430 143 00-0000 SEAN GRADY 12-Jul-12 25.68 STUART C IRBY Sales tax to be refunded.


7430 926 00-0000 SEAN GRADY 16-Jul-12 78.95 CINTAS #446 Uniforms


7460 854 00-0000 SEAN GRADY 16-Jul-12 9.24 CINTAS #446 Uniforms


7450 926 00-0000 SEAN GRADY 16-Jul-12 9.24 CINTAS #446 Uniforms


Page 1







7430 926 00-0000 SEAN GRADY 23-Jul-12 78.95 CINTAS #446 Uniforms


7460 854 00-0000 SEAN GRADY 23-Jul-12 9.24 CINTAS #446 Uniforms


7450 926 00-0000 SEAN GRADY 23-Jul-12 9.24 CINTAS #446 Uniforms


7430 232 00-1099 SEAN GRADY 23-Jul-12 675.05 WESCO - # 7862 XF box pads


7430 143 00-0000 SEAN GRADY 23-Jul-12 4.95 U.S. CELLULAR Cell phone - B Hoops


7430 903 00-0000 SEAN GRADY 23-Jul-12 195.01 U.S. CELLULAR Cell phone


7450 903 00-0000 SEAN GRADY 23-Jul-12 70.91 U.S. CELLULAR Cell phone


7460 840 00-0000 SEAN GRADY 23-Jul-12 88.64 U.S. CELLULAR Cell phone


7430 232 00-1099 SEAN GRADY 23-Jul-12 226.20 CRESCENT ELECTRIC 130 10-ft X-arms


7430 593 00-0000 SEAN GRADY 24-Jul-12 127.71 STUART C IRBY 3 DRILL BITS USED WHEN FRAMING POLES


7430 932 00-0000 SEAN GRADY 27-Jul-12 79.85 CRESCENT ELECTRIC 130 Ballast replacement for can light located in lobby


7430 926 00-0000 SEAN GRADY 30-Jul-12 78.95 CINTAS #446 Uniforms


7460 854 00-0000 SEAN GRADY 30-Jul-12 9.24 CINTAS #446 Uniforms


7450 926 00-0000 SEAN GRADY 30-Jul-12 9.24 CINTAS #446 Uniforms


7430 593 00-0000 SEAN GRADY 31-Jul-12 1742.00 STUART C IRBY Phasing sticks used to detect voltage on OH & URD wires & cables.


7430 143 00-0000 KIM JENNINGS 11-Jul-12 604.52 KAESER AND BLAIR INC LED Lanterns - Value of Public Power Event


7430 586 00-0000 KIM JENNINGS 11-Jul-12 543.00 MID STATE TECH CLLGE 1 Bryce - Meter School


7460 852 00-0000 KIM JENNINGS 13-Jul-12 892.50 STAFFORD ROSENBAUM LLP Legal Services - Public bidding documents


7430 143 00-0000 KIM JENNINGS 16-Jul-12 40.44 WAL-MART#1176 Value of Public Power Event Supplies


7430 143 00-0000 KIM JENNINGS 23-Jul-12 44.99 FACTORY CARD OUTLET #184 Value of Public Power Event - Wristbands


7430 253 00-1120 KIM JENNINGS 23-Jul-12 2695.00 ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW Public Power Event - Smart Strips Energy Conservation


7430 143 00-0000 KIM JENNINGS 26-Jul-12 112.05 SCHWANS HOME SERVICE Value of Public Power Event Supplies


7430 143 00-0000 KIM JENNINGS 27-Jul-12 259.60 NEESVIG'S INC Value of Public Power Event Supplies


7430 921 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 2-Jul-12 5.50 STAPLES CONTRA00710004 Computer wire


7450 921 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 2-Jul-12 2.00 STAPLES CONTRA00710004 Computer wire


7460 851 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 2-Jul-12 2.50 STAPLES CONTRA00710004 Computer wire


7430 921 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 2-Jul-12 39.14 STAPLES CONTRA00710004 Expandable folders


7450 921 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 2-Jul-12 14.23 STAPLES CONTRA00710004 Expandable folders


7460 851 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 2-Jul-12 17.81 STAPLES CONTRA00710004 Expandable folders


7430 921 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 2-Jul-12 249.11 STAPLES CONTRA00710004 Copy paper


7450 921 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 2-Jul-12 90.58 STAPLES CONTRA00710004 Copy paper


7460 851 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 2-Jul-12 113.25 STAPLES CONTRA00710004 Copy paper


7430 921 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 9-Jul-12 257.40 APPLE STORE  #R229 I Pad - Alan Staats


7450 921 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 9-Jul-12 93.60 APPLE STORE  #R229 I Pad - Alan Staats


7460 851 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 9-Jul-12 117.00 APPLE STORE  #R229 I Pad - Alan Staats


7430 921 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 9-Jul-12 5.79 APL APPLE ITUNES STORE I Pad software


7450 921 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 9-Jul-12 2.10 APL APPLE ITUNES STORE I Pad software


7460 851 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 9-Jul-12 2.65 APL APPLE ITUNES STORE I Pad software


7430 921 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 10-Jul-12 123.33 CDW GOVERNMENT Microsoft Forefront endpoint protection annual renewal


7450 921 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 10-Jul-12 44.85 CDW GOVERNMENT Microsoft Forefront endpoint protection annual renewal


7460 851 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 10-Jul-12 56.07 CDW GOVERNMENT Microsoft Forefront endpoint protection annual renewal


7430 921 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 10-Jul-12 249.15 TDS METROCOM Office PRI phone circuit


7450 921 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 10-Jul-12 90.60 TDS METROCOM Office PRI phone circuit


7460 851 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 10-Jul-12 113.25 TDS METROCOM Office PRI phone circuit


7430 921 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 11-Jul-12 28.53 GORDON FLESCH COMPANY Copy machine maintenance contract.


Page 2







7450 921 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 11-Jul-12 10.37 GORDON FLESCH COMPANY Copy machine maintenance contract.


7460 851 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 11-Jul-12 12.99 GORDON FLESCH COMPANY Copy machine maintenance contract.


7430 923 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 12-Jul-12 32.97 PAY FLOW PRO Online CC processing -- Rec CCs, desktop proc, Epay by phone


7450 923 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 12-Jul-12 11.99 PAY FLOW PRO Online CC proc -- Rec CCs, desktop processing, Epay by phone


7460 852 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 12-Jul-12 14.99 PAY FLOW PRO Online CC proc -- Rec CCs, desktop processing, Epay by phone


7430 923 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 12-Jul-12 27.52 PAY FLOW PRO Online CC processing -- Epay by web


7450 923 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 12-Jul-12 10.01 PAY FLOW PRO Online CC processing -- Epay by web


7460 852 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 12-Jul-12 12.52 PAY FLOW PRO Online CC processing -- Epay by web


7430 586 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 16-Jul-12 64.76 ATT CONS PHONE PMT Field analog phone lines -- large power metering


7450 921 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 16-Jul-12 3.76 ATT CONS PHONE PMT Field analog phone lines -- SCADA dialers


7460 851 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 16-Jul-12 6.79 ATT CONS PHONE PMT Field analog phone lines -- generator and SCADA dialers


7430 921 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 16-Jul-12 112.74 CHARTER COMM Office internet service


7450 921 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 16-Jul-12 40.99 CHARTER COMM Office internet service


7460 851 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 16-Jul-12 51.26 CHARTER COMM Office internet service


7430 921 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 27-Jul-12 99.25 CDW GOVERNMENT Toner -- North hallway printer


7450 921 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 27-Jul-12 36.09 CDW GOVERNMENT Toner -- North hallway printer


7460 851 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 27-Jul-12 45.12 CDW GOVERNMENT Toner -- North hallway printer


7430 143 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 27-Jul-12 109.14 PIC N SAVE    00063909 Public Power Week event supplies


7430 921 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 30-Jul-12 14.00 GORDON FLESCH COMPANY Copy machine maintenance contract.


7450 921 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 30-Jul-12 5.09 GORDON FLESCH COMPANY Copy machine maintenance contract.


7460 851 00-0000 BRIAN HOOPS 30-Jul-12 6.38 GORDON FLESCH COMPANY Copy machine maintenance contract.


7460 107 00-0000 BRIAN ERICKSON 4-Jul-12 127.32 FIRST SUPPLY LLC #2010 fright charges for post hydrant


7460 834 00-0000 BRIAN ERICKSON 16-Jul-12 4.97 FASTENAL COMPANY01 Belt for exhaust fan


7460 831 00-0000 BRIAN ERICKSON 25-Jul-12 210.00 HONEY WAGON SVC Suck out river crossing sewer lines for televising


7460 828 00-0000 BRIAN ERICKSON 25-Jul-12 447.70 LAKESIDE INTERNATIONAL JET-VAC repair coolant leak and air breaks


7460 828 00-0000 BRIAN ERICKSON 26-Jul-12 30.00 LAKESIDE INTERNATIONAL JET - VAC repair to coolant and air breaks.  


7460 107 00-0000 BRIAN ERICKSON 26-Jul-12 584.00 FIRST SUPPLY LLC #2010 Water line and parts for yard hydrant located at dump pit


7460 834 00-0000 BRIAN ERICKSON 27-Jul-12 269.00 LA FORCE - MADISON New grit door clousre


7460 828 00-0000 BRIAN ERICKSON 30-Jul-12 5556.87 LAKESIDE INTERNATIONAL JET-VAC repair to front PTO shaft that broke apart and damaged 


7460 834 00-0000 BRIAN ERICKSON 31-Jul-12 1037.34 PRECISION DRIVE & CONTROL Replace disinfection bulding exhaust fan motor and starter.


7450 107 00-0000 ROGER THORSON 5-Jul-12 240.00 NORTHERN LAKES SERVICE IN lab fees for testing for VOCs


7450 633 00-0000 ROGER THORSON 10-Jul-12 49.98 ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW materials for keeping motor controls cool


7450 663 00-0000 ROGER THORSON 12-Jul-12 46.57 ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW materials for metering


7450 641 00-0000 ROGER THORSON 12-Jul-12 2361.66 HAWKINS INC flouride and chlorine


7450 933 00-0000 ROGER THORSON 24-Jul-12 76.99 663 STOUGHTON BUMPER TO B battery replacement for truck # 6


7450 673 00-0000 ROGER THORSON 26-Jul-12 530.09 WOLF PAVING CO., INC cold mix black top for water main trench repairs


7450 933 00-0000 ROGER THORSON 27-Jul-12 675.84 CONANT AUTOMOTIVE,INC truck # 6 maintenance / replace alternator


7450 346 00-0000 ROGER THORSON 27-Jul-12 1391.10 DAKOTA SUPPLY GROUP IN 30 new water meters


7430 932 00-0000 SCOTT GRADY 11-Jul-12 194.89 MIDWEST SAFETY SUPPLY Cleaning Supplies


7430 392 00-0000 SCOTT GRADY 31-Jul-12 111.95 WISCONSIN LIFT TRU Fork Truck Repairs


7430 107 00-0000 CRAIG WOOD 20-Jul-12 4.63 STOUGHTON LUMBER Wood stakes.


7430 107 00-0000 DONALD HANSON 11-Jul-12 130.41 FASTENAL COMPANY01 2-inch galv. pipe used for sidewalk guys.


7460 834 00-0000 DONALD HANSON 12-Jul-12 19.99 ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW Street light splice.


7430 594 00-0000 JOHN LEIGH 30-Jul-12 9.49 ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW File used for URD splices.


7430 592 00-0000 LARRY DONALDSON 31-Jul-12 5.49 MCDONALD'S F25239 Substation School


Page 3







7430 592 00-0000 LARRY DONALDSON 31-Jul-12 85.50 NWTC BOOKSTORE GB Substation School


7430 586 00-0000 BRYCE SIME 2-Jul-12 7.05 SUBWAY        00052571 Meal expense-meter school


7430 583 00-0000 BRYCE SIME 16-Jul-12 33.29 STOUGHTON LUMBER Nails for high voltage signs.


7430 933 00-0000 BRYCE SIME 19-Jul-12 131.97 AUTO PARTS OF STOUGHTON Filters for chipper.


7430 932 00-0000 BRYCE SIME 19-Jul-12 1.79 ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW Hand soap for shop.


7430 594 00-0000 BRIAN SCHEEL 9-Jul-12 150.00 THE SHOE BOX, LTD Safety Shoes


7450 663 00-0000 CHARLES VIKE 11-Jul-12 206.25 USA BLUE BOOK water meter parts     acct #  663


7430 932 00-0000 CHARLES VIKE 12-Jul-12 35.46 STOUGHTON LUMBER materials for installation of eye wash in truck room


7460 107 00-0000 CHARLES VIKE 13-Jul-12 364.32 USA BLUE BOOK materials for the installation of hydrant at WWTP


7430 932 00-0000 MARTIN SEFFENS 3-Jul-12 15.47 WAL-MART#1176 weed killer for around utility building


7450 678 00-0000 MARTIN SEFFENS 23-Jul-12 13.98 ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW battery replacements for water locators


7450 933 00-0000 MARTIN SEFFENS 27-Jul-12 32.00 D   M SERVICE 07010168 L P gas for forklift


7430 933 00-0000 MARTIN SEFFENS 27-Jul-12 10.00 D   M SERVICE 07010168 tire repair on utility trailer


7430 143 00-0000 MARTIN SEFFENS 27-Jul-12 53.92 PIC N SAVE    00063909 public power supplies


7430 143 00-0000 MARTIN SEFFENS 27-Jul-12 8.00 WAL-MART#1176 public power supplies


7460 828 00-0000 SCOTT GUNSOLUS 2-Jul-12 6.49 ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW Strap filter wrench


7460 834 00-0000 SCOTT GUNSOLUS 18-Jul-12 33.45 ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW Miscellaneous hardware


7460 831 00-0000 SCOTT GUNSOLUS 23-Jul-12 18.06 ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW Bungee cords


7460 828 00-0000 SCOTT GUNSOLUS 26-Jul-12 48.12 663 STOUGHTON BUMPER TO B Oil and filter


7460 834 00-0000 SCOTT GUNSOLUS 26-Jul-12 13.57 ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW Hose fittings


7460 834 00-0000 SCOTT GUNSOLUS 27-Jul-12 5.97 ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW Insecticide


Page 4


Total Items  152 $30,778.76 $31.52


$30,747.24





		July Treasurers Report.pdf

		bank rec.pdf

		combined cash.pdf

		cash and investments.pdf

		receipt register.pdf

		crje.pdf

		check register.pdf

		cdje.pdf

		100-410.pdf








 


City of Stoughton, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE STOUGHTON COMMON COUNCIL 


Confirmation of the Mayoral Appointment of John R. Archer, 1838 North Van Buren Street, 
Stoughton, WI, to the Tree Commission 


 


 


 
File Number: 


 
R- 111-2012 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
August 28, 2012 


 
WHEREAS, the Common Council of the City of Stoughton has determined it is in the best interests of 


the City to confirm the Mayoral Appointment of John R. Archer, 1838 North Van Buren Street, Stoughton, 


WI, to the Tree Commission; now therefore  


 


BE IT RESOLVED, by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the Mayoral Appointment 


of John R. Archer, 1838 North Van Buren Street, Stoughton, WI, to the Tree Commission is confirmed. 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                             


Donna Olson, Mayor    Date 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     








CITY OF STOUGHTON
DEPARTMENT OF
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619


Date: August 22, 2012


To: Common Council


From: Rodney Scheel
Director of Planning & Development


Subject: Stormwater Utility


The Committee of the Whole met last week to consider moving forward with the implementation
of a Stormwater Utility. The Committee voted 11
We are providing the ordinance and associated Credit Policy f
to have both documents introduced at
reading with the public hearing on
both documents.


The City continues to evaluate operational efficiencies, debt management, equip
replacement strategies and revenue options to provide
In the last several years, the issue of a Stormwater Utility has been studied and discussed.
Leadership Team members strongly urge the Common Council t
of a Stormwater Utility at this time as an equitable user fee similar to water, wastewater, electric
and natural gas fees. We believe the time is overdue and find it is necessary to implement the
Stormwater Utility.


Please let me know if you have any questions.


Donna Olson, Mayor
Robert Kardasz, Utilities Director
Laurie Sullivan, Finance Director
Karl Manthe, Street Superintendent
Nick Probst, City Clerk


CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL


DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


Common Council


Director of Planning & Development


Stormwater Utility – Draft Ordinance & Credit Policy


of the Whole met last week to consider moving forward with the implementation
of a Stormwater Utility. The Committee voted 11-0 to move forward with the implementation.
We are providing the ordinance and associated Credit Policy for your consideration. We intend
to have both documents introduced at the Common Council meeting on August 28


public hearing on the ordinance being held on September 11th and


evaluate operational efficiencies, debt management, equip
revenue options to provide the City a cost effective menu


In the last several years, the issue of a Stormwater Utility has been studied and discussed.
Leadership Team members strongly urge the Common Council to seriously consider the creation
of a Stormwater Utility at this time as an equitable user fee similar to water, wastewater, electric


We believe the time is overdue and find it is necessary to implement the


know if you have any questions.


Donna Olson, Mayor
obert Kardasz, Utilities Director


Sullivan, Finance Director
Karl Manthe, Street Superintendent
Nick Probst, City Clerk


RODNEY J. SCHEEL


DIRECTOR


of the Whole met last week to consider moving forward with the implementation
0 to move forward with the implementation.


or your consideration. We intend
Common Council meeting on August 28th for a first


and action on


evaluate operational efficiencies, debt management, equipment
the City a cost effective menu of services.


In the last several years, the issue of a Stormwater Utility has been studied and discussed.
o seriously consider the creation


of a Stormwater Utility at this time as an equitable user fee similar to water, wastewater, electric
We believe the time is overdue and find it is necessary to implement the







ORDINANCE NO. O-17-2012
CITY OF STOUGHTON


AN ORDINANCE TO CREATE CHAPTER 10, ARTICLE V OF THE
MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON, RELATING TO THE


CREATION AND OPERATION OF A STORMWATER UTILITY


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin, ordains as
follows:


1. Chapter 10, Article V is created as set forth on Attachment A.


2. This ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication.


The foregoing ordinance was adopted by the Common Council of the City of
Stoughton at a meeting held on _______________, 2012.


APPROVED:


Donna Olson, Mayor


ATTEST:


Nick Probst, City Clerk
Posted


Published







Page 1 of 7


S:\rjs\Stormwater\Utility\Stormwater Utility Implementation Data\Ordinance\Stormwater Utility Ordinance-Draft 8-22-2012.docx


City of Stoughton
Chapter 10 Article V
Stormwater Utility


Sections:


Sec. 10-161 Purpose and necessity; Authorization.
Sec. 10-162 Creation.
Sec. 10-163 Authority.
Sec. 10-164 Definitions.
Sec. 10-165 Income and Revenue.
Sec. 10-166 Transfer of assets and outstanding debt.
Sec. 10-167 Rates and charges.
Sec. 10-168 Classifications of customers.
Sec. 10-169 Billing.
Sec. 10-170 Payment of charge; lien; penalty.
Sec. 10-171 Customer classifications.
Sec. 10-172 New construction.
Sec. 10-173 Appeal.
Sec. 10-174 Alternative method to collect stormwater charges.
Sec. 10-175 Conflict with other ordinances, laws.
Sec. 10-176 Penalty.
Sec. 10-177 Severability.


Sec. 10-161 Purpose and necessity; Authorization


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton hereby find that the management of stormwater and other surface
water discharges within and beyond the Yahara River, and other bodies of water within the City is a matter that
affects the health, safety and welfare of the City, its citizens and businesses and others in the surrounding area. All
real property in the City, including property owned by public and tax-exempt entities contributes runoff and either
uses or benefits from the stormwater system.


Failure to effectively manage stormwater affects the sanitary sewer utility operations of the City by, among other
things, increasing the likelihood of infiltration and inflow into the sanitary sewer system. Surface water runoff may
cause nonpoint source pollution, erosion of lands, threaten residences and businesses with water damage, and create
environmental damage to the rivers, streams and other bodies of water within and adjacent to the City. A system for
the collection and disposal of stormwater provides services to all properties within the City of Stoughton and
surrounding areas, including those properties not currently served by the system. The cost of operating and
maintaining the City stormwater management system and financing necessary repairs, replacements, improvements
and extensions thereof should, to the extent practicable, be allocated in relationship to the services received from the
system. In order to protect the health, safety and welfare of the public, the Common Council hereby exercises its
authority to establish a Stormwater Utility and establish the rates for stormwater management services.


In promulgating the regulations contained in this chapter, the City is acting pursuant to authority granted by
Chapters 62 and 66 of the Wisconsin Statutes.


Sec. 10-162 Creation.


There is hereby created and established a Stormwater Utility within the City of Stoughton, effective Month __, Year.
The entire operation, charge and management of the Stormwater Utility is vested in the Mayor, subject, however, to
the general control and supervision of the Common Council, pursuant to applicable State law.


Sec. 10-163 Authority.


The City, acting through the Stormwater Utility, may, without limitation due to enumeration, acquire by gift,
purchase, eminent domain, condemnation or otherwise, construct, lease, own, operate, maintain, improve, update,


 
    ATTACHMENT A TO ORDINANCE NO. O-17-2012 


  


 







Page 2 of 7


S:\rjs\Stormwater\Utility\Stormwater Utility Implementation Data\Ordinance\Stormwater Utility Ordinance-Draft 8-22-2012.docx


modify, extend, expand, replace, clean, dredge, repair, conduct, manage, finance, borrow monies, assess and/or levy
fees for such facilities, operations, maintenance and activities as are deemed, from time to time, by the City to be
proper and reasonably necessary for a system of storm and surface water management. These facilities may include,
without limitation due to enumeration, surface and underground drainage facilities, inlets, manholes, sewers,
channels, ditches, retention and detention basins, infiltration facilities, retaining walls, streets, roads, curb and gutter
natural drainageways, and such other facilities as will support a stormwater management system.


Sec. 10-164 Definitions.


For purposes of this chapter, the following definitions shall apply. Words used in the singular shall include the
plural, and the plural, the singular; words used in the present tense shall include the future tense; the word “shall” is
mandatory and not discretionary; the word “may” is permissive.


A. “Charge” means the periodic or other fee imposed under this chapter for the rendering of stormwater utility
services by the City.


B. “Director” means the Director of Department of Planning and Development or his/her designee.
C. “Equivalent runoff unit” or “ERU” is the basic unit by which a storm sewer charge is calculated under this


chapter and is based upon the impervious area reasonably determined by the City. The term “ERU” means
the statistical average horizontal impervious area of single family homes and duplexes within the City of
Stoughton on the date of adoption of this Ordinance.


D. “Impervious area” means a surface which has been compacted or covered with a layer of material so that it
is highly resistant to infiltration by rain water. The term includes, without limitation due to enumeration, all
areas covered by structures, roof extensions, patios, porches, driveways, loading docks and sidewalks, and
semi-impervious surfaces such as compacted gravel, all as measured on a horizontal plane.


E “Duplex” means any residential property having two dwelling units.
F. “Dwelling unit” means a room or group of rooms including cooking accommodations, occupied by one


family, and in which not more than two persons, other than members of the family, are lodged or boarded
for compensation at any one time.


G. “Multifamily unit” means any residential property comprised of three or more dwelling units, including
condominiums and manufactured homes


H. “Nonresidential property” means a lot or parcel of land, with improvements such as a building, structure,
grading or substantial landscaping, which is not residential property, excluding publicly-owned rights of
way, recreational trails, and publicly-owned or privately-owned rail beds utilized for railroad
transportation.


I. “Person” means each and every property owner and includes, but is not limited to, natural persons,
partnerships, corporations, limited liability companies, limited liability partnerships, joint ventures, and all
other legal entities of whatever kind or nature.


J. “Residential property” means a lot or parcel of land developed exclusively for residential purposes,
including single-family units, duplexes, and multifamily units. The term includes condominiums and
manufactured homes.


K. “Single family unit” means any residential property consisting of one dwelling unit.
L. “Stormwater Utility” means the City owned and operated utility established under this chapter for the


purpose of managing stormwater and imposing charges for the recovery of costs connected with such
stormwater management.


M. “Undeveloped property” means real property that is not developed by the addition of an improvement such
as a building, structure, grading or substantial landscaping. A property shall be considered to be developed
if:
1. A certificate of occupancy has been issued for a building or structure on the property or, if no


certificate of occupancy has been issued, upon substantial completion of construction or final
inspection; or


2. Construction of an improvement on the property is at least fifty per cent (50%) completed and
such construction has ceased for a period of at least three (3) months, whether consecutive or not.







Page 3 of 7


S:\rjs\Stormwater\Utility\Stormwater Utility Implementation Data\Ordinance\Stormwater Utility Ordinance-Draft 8-22-2012.docx


Sec. 10-165 Income and Revenue.


The Stormwater Utility finances shall be accounted for in a separate Stormwater Utility Special Revenue Fund by
the City. All income and revenues shall be retained by the Stormwater Utility Special Revenue Fund. The
Stormwater Utility shall prepare an annual budget, which includes operation and maintenance costs, debt service and
other costs related to the operation of the Stormwater Utility. The annual budget is subject to approval by the
Common Council.


Sec. 10-167 Rates and charges.


A. Every person shall pay the applicable Stoughton stormwater service charge when due for each property
owned by that person.


B. The basis for computation of the charge for stormwater services to lots and parcels of land within the City
is established under this section. The amount of charge to be imposed, the establishment of formulas for the
calculation of charges, the creation of customer classifications for the imposition of charges, and changes in
such charges, formulas and customer classifications shall be consistent with this Ordinance. Each year the
Director shall determine the value of one ERU based upon the applicable year’s adopted City Budget and
this Ordinance, and shall certify such value to the Finance Director/Treasurer and Common Council. All
charges established pursuant to this Ordinance shall be fair and reasonable. A schedule of current charges
shall be maintained and on file in the office of the Finance Director/Treasurer.


C. Charges shall be imposed to recover all or a portion of the costs of the Stormwater Utility. Such charges
may include, but are not limited to, the following components:


1. Base Component


The Base Component shall include the Stormwater Utility’s estimated annual administrative and
management costs, water quality costs, and other costs not in the components described below.
The Base Rate shall be calculated by taking the sum of all Base Component costs and dividing that
by the estimated number of billable ERUs.


2. Operation and Maintenance Component


The Operation and Maintenance Component shall include the Stormwater Utility’s estimated
annual operation and maintenance costs for the City’s stormwater management system. The
Operation and Maintenance Rate shall be determined by: (1) taking the sum of the Operation and
Maintenance Component costs, (2) dividing that amount by the ERUs remaining after the ERUs
that the City, upon user application, has determined need not pay Operation and Maintenance
Component costs, and (3) making appropriate adjustments to the Rate to account for factors such
as changes in stormwater reserves.


3. Capital and Debt Service Component


The Capital and Debt Service Component cost shall include the capital costs and debt service
payments for the City’s stormwater conveyance system, including retention and detention
facilities. The Capital and Debt Service Rate shall be determined by: (1) taking the sum of the
Capital and Debt Service Component costs, (2) dividing that amount by the ERUs remaining after
the ERUs which the City, upon user application, has determined need not pay Capital and Debt
Service Component costs, and (3) making appropriate adjustments to the Rate to account for
factors such as changes in stormwater reserves.


D. Credits or adjustments may be available to individual property owners in the nonresidential and
multifamily customer classes. It shall be the burden of the property owner to request such a credit and to
demonstrate to a reasonable degree of certainty with evidence that a fee adjustment is warranted. The







Page 4 of 7


S:\rjs\Stormwater\Utility\Stormwater Utility Implementation Data\Ordinance\Stormwater Utility Ordinance-Draft 8-22-2012.docx


credits or adjustments shall be applied to the Operation and Maintenance Component Costs and the Capital
and Debt Service Component Costs. The Base Component shall be charged to all properties regardless of
credits unless the property is regulated by a separate municipal Stormwater Discharge Permit (WPDES). A
Stormwater Utility Credit PolicyCredit Policy has been approved by the City Council for applicants to
refer to. All applications for credit or adjustments shall be reviewed by the Director and the Director may
reduce the measured impervious area after taking into consideration the demonstrated reduction in
stormwater volume. Credits or adjustments may be applied to applicable properties based upon two criteria:


1. An adjustment may be applicable if some or all of a customer’s property provided, (1) stormwater
runoff from the property does not discharge directly or indirectly to or through any form of
conveyance system owned or operated by the Stormwater Utility, and (2) the drainage from the
property is not in violation of any environmental code or Federal, State or local surface water
drainage requirements.


2. Credits may be granted to owners of properties who have significantly reduced the impacts of
stormwater discharge on the stormwater utility system. Owners of property which discharge all or
a portion of their stormwater into privately owned and maintained retention and detention ponds
shall receive a prorated credit to the number of ERUs assigned to their property as determined by
the Director. No owner may be given a credit in excess of fifty percent (50%) of their total number
of ERUs.


3. Prior to receiving a credit or adjustment, the Director or designee shall be allowed access to the
property to determine the amount of credit or exemption to be granted.


Sec. 10-168 Classifications of customers.


The Common Council, from time to time, by budget adoption may establish classifications other than the customer
classifications set forth in this Ordinance, as may be likely to provide a reasonable and fair distribution of the costs
of the stormwater utility to all users.


Sec. 10-169 Billing.


The Stormwater Utility billing schedule shall be set by the Director and approved by the Common Council.


Sec. 10-170 Payment of charge; lien; penalty.


A. Stormwater Utility charges shall be payable upon receipt, subject to the provisions of this section.
B. Stormwater Utility charges shall not be payable in installments.
C. Charges remaining unpaid after the due date shall be assessed a late payment penalty charge. All delinquent


utility charges shall be subject to a penalty consistent with the PSC approved Electric Rate Tariff and will
be added thereto, in addition to all other charges, penalties or interest, when the delinquent charge is
extended upon the tax roll.


D. If a charge and/or late penalty remains unpaid for a period of thirty (30) days after the date of the utility
bill, such charge and penalty shall become a lien upon the real property to which it applies, as provided in
Sections 66.0821 and 66.0809, and other applicable provisions of the Wisconsin Statutes, as from time to
time amended or renumbered.


E. Delinquent charges and penalties shall be automatically extended upon the next available tax roll as a
delinquent tax against the real property, and all proceedings relating to the collection, return and sale of
property for delinquent real estate taxes shall apply to such charges.


Sec. 10-171 Customer classifications.


A. For the purposes of imposing the stormwater utility charge, all lots and parcels within the City are
classified into the following customer classes:







Page 5 of 7


S:\rjs\Stormwater\Utility\Stormwater Utility Implementation Data\Ordinance\Stormwater Utility Ordinance-Draft 8-22-2012.docx


1. Residential -- single family unit
2. Residential -- duplex
3. Residential–multifamily: (including apartments greater than or equal to 3 Units, Condominiums,


and Mobile Homes)
4. Nonresidential
5. Undeveloped and Agricultural


B. The Director shall prepare and maintain an updated current list of all lots and parcels of real property (land)
within the City of Stoughton and assign the appropriate customer classification to each customer account.
This list shall include the number of ERUs assigned to each customer account.


C. The average square footage of impervious area of the ERU as of the date of adoption of this ordinance is
hereby established to be equivalent to 3,105 square feet.


D. The ERU charges for the foregoing customer classifications shall be established as follows:


1. Residential–single family unit–1.0 ERU
2. Residential–duplex: 0.5 ERU multiplied by each dwelling unit.
3. Residential–multifamily: (including apartments greater than or equal to 3 Units, Condominiums,


and Mobile Homes). The charge per unit shall be calculated by dividing the number of ERUs
calculated for the entire property by the number of units existing on the property.


4. Nonresidential–one ERU times a factor obtained by dividing the total impervious area of the
property by the square footage equivalent for one ERU. Such impervious area shall be determined
based upon the best information reasonably available. The result shall be rounded to the nearest
one-tenth (0.1).


5. Undeveloped and Agricultural–no stormwater charge shall be assigned to undeveloped or
agricultural land.


E. The Director shall be responsible for determining the impervious area based on the best available
information, including, but not limited to, data supplied by the City Assessor, aerial photography, the
property owner, tenant, or developer. The billing amount shall be updated by the Director based on any
additions to the impervious area as approved through the building permit process. Individual property
owners may submit site and building surveys to the Director that help more accurately determine the total
area and impervious area.


F. The minimum charges for any parcel shall be equal to one (1.0) ERU, unless it contains no impervious
surface.


G. All unoccupied developed lots and parcels with impervious surfaces shall be subject to a stormwater utility
charge.


Sec. 10-172 New construction.


A property owner shall be responsible for timely submitting a fully completed and accurate stormwater utility
service application at the time a building permit is issued or a site plan review is conducted. The application shall be
made on a form prescribed by the City and provided with each application for a building permit or application for
site plan review. Failure to submit such stormwater utility service application or providing false information on such
form shall constitute a violation of this Chapter. The implementation of stormwater charges shall commence as set
forth in this Chapter.


Sec. 10-173 Appeal.


A. The amount of a particular stormwater utility charge may be appealed to the Director by filing a written
appeal with the Director prior to the due date of the charge or within thirty (30) days of payment. The
written appeal shall specify all grounds for challenge to the amount of the charge and shall state the amount







Page 6 of 7


S:\rjs\Stormwater\Utility\Stormwater Utility Implementation Data\Ordinance\Stormwater Utility Ordinance-Draft 8-22-2012.docx


of charge that the appellant considers to be inappropriate. Failure to timely appeal waives all rights to later
challenge the charge.


B. In considering an appeal, the Director shall determine whether the stormwater utility charge is fair and
reasonable under the particular facts and circumstances pertaining to that specific property and, in the event
the appeal is granted, whether or not a refund is due the appellant and the amount of the refund. The
Director shall notify the appellant in writing of his determination.


C. The customer has thirty (30) days from the date of the written decision of the Director to file a written
appeal with the Finance Committee. The Finance Committee may seek consultation of the Public Works
Committee and will make a recommendation to the Common Council who will make the final
determination.


D. If the Common Council determines that a refund is due the customer, the refund will be applied as a credit
towards the customer’s next stormwater billing charge, if the refund will not exceed the customer’s next
stormwater billing charge, or it may be refunded at the discretion of the Director.


Sec. 10-174 Alternative method to collect stormwater charges.


A. The Common Council hereby find and determine that the stormwater utility charges established under this
Chapter reasonably reflect the services rendered to real property and may be, and are hereby authorized to
be, assessed, charged, levied, imposed and a collected upon property as a special charge in accord with all
applicable Wisconsin Statutes.


B. The mailing of the bill for stormwater utility charges to a property owner shall serve as notice to the
property owner that failure to pay the charges when due may result in the charges being levied upon the
owner’s applicable real property.


C. In addition, the City may provide notice each October of any unpaid charges to the Stormwater Utility and
such charges, if not paid by November 15, may be placed upon the tax roll and collected in the manner
provided by this Chapter and/or the applicable provisions of the Wisconsin Statutes. The collection method
provided in this section is in addition to the collection method provided for in this Chapter.


Sec. 10-175 Conflict with other ordinances, laws.


A. In the event of any conflict between any provision set forth in this Chapter and any other City ordinance,
the competing provisions shall be harmonized to the fullest extent possible so as to facilitate the intent and
proper effect of the separate areas of regulation.


Sec. 10-176 Penalty.


A. Any person who violates or causes to be violated any provisions set forth in this Chapter shall, upon
conviction thereof, pay a forfeiture to the City in the amount of not less than Fifty Dollars ($50.00) nor
more than One Thousand Dollars ($1,000.00), together with the costs of prosecution thereof. Upon default
in payment of the imposed forfeiture, the violator shall be committed to the Dane County Jail for a term of
not more than ninety (90) days.


B. The payment of such imposed forfeiture shall be in addition to the payment of any and all stormwater
service charges, fees and penalties imposed by the Chapter.


C. Each day’s continuance of a violation shall constitute a separate offense to which a separate forfeiture may
be imposed.


D. It shall be the responsibility of the violator to cease and abate the violation immediately.







Page 7 of 7


S:\rjs\Stormwater\Utility\Stormwater Utility Implementation Data\Ordinance\Stormwater Utility Ordinance-Draft 8-22-2012.docx


E. In addition to the forfeitures set forth above and payment of the charges, the City may seek, obtain and
enforce injunctive relief.


Sec. 10-177 Severability.


If any provision of this chapter is found to be illegal, the remaining provisions shall remain in effect.


The foregoing ordinance was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Stoughton at
a meeting held on _____________________, ________.


Dates


Council Adopted:


Mayor Approved:
Donna Olson, Mayor


Published:


Attest:
Nicholas J. Probst, City Clerk







COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE


Wednesday, August 08, 2012, 7:00PM


EMS Training Room


Council President Eric Hohol called the meeting to order at 7:00PM. Eleven alders were present


(Kneebone absent)


Mayor Donna Olson provided an outline of the information to be presented and stated the reasoning for


her support of implementing a stormwater utility at this time.


Overview of Stormwater Management process and information presented by Planning Director Rodney


Scheel. Scheel recommended approval to the committee.


Streets Superintendent Karl Manthe and Sun Prairie Public Works Director Larry Herman presented the


history and successes of the Sun Prairie Stormwater Utility. Herman and his staff answered questions by


the committee.


Finance Director Laurie Sullivan presented the fiscal impact of Stormwater Utility implementation for


the City of Stoughton and recommended approval to the committee. Sullivan answered questions by


the committee.


Scheel provided examples of stormwater utility fees for businesses and non-profits for the committee.


Scheel opined that the fee estimates were manageable and that the utility has been discussed for 5-7


years in the community. Scheel responded with information on public hearings and education. Olson


commented on the public education process beginning in 2005 and escalating with the technical


advisory committee that was comprised of many relevant community members.


Scheel stated that the substantive provisions of the ordinance and information have been prepared.


Scheel also informed that the utility would fall under his supervision under the council. Scheel stated he


did not see a need for an additional staff person to be added for utility administration.


Alder Lawrence moved to recommend implementation of the stormwater utility to council. Second by


Swadley.


Alder Christianson discussed his concerns with the stormwater utility.


Alder Engelberger moved to amend the main motion to remove the credits provision of the ordinance.


Engelberger stated his observation that higher cost utilities have credit systems, whereas lower cost


utilities are without credit systems. The motion to amend did not receive a second.


Suess questioned the public education process. Scheel informed that a public hearing would take place


at the second reading of the ordinance.


Motion carried 11-0.


Lawrence moved to adjourn. Jenson seconded. Meeting adjourned at 8:46PM.







 
 


 


Report 


 


Stormwater Utility 
Feasibility Study 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
City of 
Stoughton, WI 
 
June 2010 











 


 
i 


TABLE OF CONTENTS
 
 


Page No. 
or Following 


 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
SECTION 1–INTRODUCTION 
 
 1.01 Introduction ................................................................................................  1-1 
 1.02 Stormwater Utility Technical Advisory Committee .....................................  1-2 
 1.03 Mandated Stormwater Permit Requirements .............................................  1-3 
 1.04 Stormwater Management Activities ...........................................................  1-4 
 1.05 Current and Future Stormwater Management Expenditures .....................  1-6 
 
SECTION 2–BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
 2.01 Stormwater Utilities–Background Information ............................................  2-1 
 2.02 Other Funding Options ...............................................................................  2-3 
 
SECTION 3–ESTIMATION OF ERUS AND RATES 
 
 3.01 Impervious Area and Equivalent Runoff Unit Analyses .............................  3-1 
 3.02 Potential Rate Structure .............................................................................  3-4 
 3.03 Estimated Stormwater User Fees ..............................................................  3-7 
 3.04 Service Area, Responsibilities, and Credits ...............................................  3-11 
 
SECTION 4–EVALUATION OF STORMWATER UTILITY IMPACTS 
 
 4.01 Possible Cost Reallocation Under A Stormwater Utility .............................  4-1 
 4.02 Comparison of Stormwater Utility Impacts on Individual Properties ..........  4-2 
 
 







TABLE OF CONTENTS  Continued 
 


Page No. 
or following 


 


 
ii 


TABLES 
 
ES-1 APWA Chart ...............................................................................................  ES-3 
ES-2 Projected Annual Stormwater Utility Fees .................................................  ES-5 
 
1.05-1 Estimated 2009 Stormwater Administration and O&M Costs ....................  1-6 
1.05-2 Past and Future Annual Stormwater Capital Project Costs .......................  1-7 
1.05-3 Stormwater Capital Project Budget–Annual Debt Service Payments ........  1-8 
1.05-4 Stormwater Program Budget–Estimated Annual Costs .............................  1-9 
1.04-5 Stormwater Funding Contributions Under Current Tax-Based System .....  1-10 
  
3.01-1 Nonresidential and Multifamily Residential Impervious  
 Area Breakdown ........................................................................................  3-3 
3.02-1 Estimated ERUs .........................................................................................  3-6 
3.03-1 Potential Revenue Based on Monthly and Annual ERU Charge ...............  3-7 
3.03-2 Projected Annual Stormwater Utility Fees–Total Stormwater Budget ........  3-8 
3.03-3 Projected Annual Stormwater Utility Fees with Only New  
 Capital Improvements Financed ................................................................  3-11 
3.04-1 Potential Credit Policy ................................................................................  3-15 
 
4.01-1 Reallocation of Funding–Fee Based Versus Tax-Based Funding .............  4-1 
4.02-1 Comparison of Possible Property Costs–Tax-Based Versus Fee-Based ..  4-4 


 
 


FIGURES 
 
ES-1 Reallocation of Funding Contribution by Class Under a Stormwater Utility  ES-6 
 
3.01-1 Stormwater Utility Analysis Residential Parcel Breakdown .......................  3-2 
3.01-2 Percent Land and Impervious Area by Land Class (Excluding Right-of-Way) 3-3 
3.03-1 Average Cost Per ERU for Wisconsin Communities .................................  3-9 
3.03-2 Comparison of Estimated Annual Cost Per ERU–Financing Versus No 
 Financing of Capital Improvements ...........................................................  3-10 
 
4.01-1 Reallocation of Funding Contribution by Class  
 Under a Stormwater Utility .........................................................................  4-2 
 
 


APPENDICES 
 


APPENDIX A–APWA SURVEY RESULTS 
APPENDIX B–TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES AND COMMENTS 


 
 
 







 
 


EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
Stormwater Utility Feasibility Study Executive Summary 
 


 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.®  ES-1 
R:\MAD\Documents\Reports\Archive\2010\Stoughton, WI\SW UFS.1040.051.mks.jun\Report\ES.doc\062510 


EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
This report summarizes results of a Stormwater Utility Feasibility Study completed between 
January and June 2010 for the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin. The study was completed under the 
guidance of the Stoughton Stormwater Utility Technical Advisory Committee (TAC). The primary 
goal of the TAC was to provide input into utility features such as the rate structure, budget, and 
credit policy.  
 
The TAC included the following members: 
 


Member Affiliation 
Donna Olson City of Stoughton Mayor 
Tim Carter City Council 
Carl Chenoweth City Council 
Rodney Scheel Director of Planning and Development 
Laurie Sullivan Finance Director/Treasurer 
Karl Manthe Street Superintendent 
Robert Kardasz Stoughton Utilities Director 
Peter Sveum President, Coldwell Banker Success Realty 
Robert Barnett Citizen 
Dennis Barkenhagen Stoughton School District 
Ken Wahlin Stoughton Trailers 
Bob Wahlin Stoughton Trailers 


 
Other parties present at some or all meetings included Mark Shubak (Strand Associates, Inc.®), 
Steve Sletten (Resident), Jim Griffin (former Mayor), Pastor Bill Lehman, and Scott Sedlacek 
(Stoughton Trailers). 
 
The TAC held six meetings between early March and early June 2010. Primary meeting topics 
included: 
 


1. Overview of city stormwater management responsibilities and facilities. 
2. Discussion of city stormwater management plan. 
3. Possible stormwater utility organization and functions. 
4. Discussion of existing and future city stormwater management costs. 
5. Discussion on potential stormwater utility budget. 
6. Discussion on other Wisconsin stormwater utilities. 
7. Discussion of existing and future city stormwater management costs. 
8. Discussion of alternative stormwater utility rate structures. 
9. Discussion on policy for corrections, adjustments, credits, and exemptions. 
10. Review of public education materials and programs. 
11. Discussion of possible recommendations to city council. 
12. Review of draft feasibility study report. 







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
Stormwater Utility Feasibility Study Executive Summary 
 


 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.®  ES-2 
R:\MAD\Documents\Reports\Archive\2010\Stoughton, WI\SW UFS.1040.051.mks.jun\Report\ES.doc\062510 


Results of TAC discussions and comments have been incorporated into this report. Copies of the 
TAC meeting minutes are provided in Appendix B. 
 
This study provides the City with a general overview of current stormwater management practices 
and funding in Stoughton, background information on stormwater utilities and other funding 
alternatives, estimates of impervious areas by land class in the City, identification of a potential 
stormwater utility rate structure, and an evaluation of potential impacts of stormwater utility 
formation on select properties. 
 
The City of Stoughton currently owns and maintains an extensive network of streets, storm sewer, 
and drainage structures. Increasing emphasis by the United States Environmental Protection 
Agency (USEPA) and Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (WDNR) on impacts of 
stormwater runoff-borne pollutants on Waters of the State has increased and will likely continue to 
increase local administrative and construction costs. 
 
Currently, the costs of expansion, operation, and maintenance of the City’s stormwater 
management system are paid for by property taxes through the General Fund. Increasing 
pressures on the General Fund caused by rising municipal costs and reduced revenues from the 
State of Wisconsin have made the General Fund a less reliable source for stormwater 
management funding. One possible means of addressing stormwater management funding needs 
without placing an additional burden on property taxes is the formation of a stormwater utility. A 
stormwater utility is a utility formed for the purpose of managing stormwater and imposing user 
charges for cost recovery. Unlike property tax funding, user charges under a stormwater utility are 
established in proportion to the relative amount of stormwater runoff “generated” by an individual 
property. A common method of estimating the relative amount of stormwater runoff from a property 
is by the amount of “impervious area.” Impervious area includes surfaces such as rooftops, 
parking lots, driveways, and sidewalks that generally resist infiltration of stormwater. Typically, 
there is a greater amount of stormwater runoff from impervious areas than vegetated areas.  
 
Stormwater utilities have become an increasingly popular means of funding stormwater management 
improvements throughout Wisconsin and the United States. A stormwater utility could provide a means 
of funding implementation of measures to protect and improve nearby water resources and comply with 
State-mandated requirements. Table ES-1 provides a summary of information from some stormwater 
utilities in Wisconsin. 
 







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
Stormwater Utility Feasibility Study Executive Summary 
 


 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.®  ES-3 
R:\MAD\Documents\Reports\Archive\2010\Stoughton, WI\SW UFS.1040.051.mks.jun\Report\ES.doc\062510 


TABLE ES-1 APWA CHART 
 


 







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
Stormwater Utility Feasibility Study Executive Summary 
 


 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.®  ES-4 
R:\MAD\Documents\Reports\Archive\2010\Stoughton, WI\SW UFS.1040.051.mks.jun\Report\ES.doc\062510 


The following are the anticipated responsibilities of the stormwater utility: 
 
1. Develop and administer programs and practices to reduce sediment, heavy metals, 


pesticides, nutrients, bacteria, and oxygen-demanding organic waste from pollutant 
“source areas” that have been recognized as a cause of water quality degradation in the 
City’s rivers, lakes, ponds, and other water resources. These programs and practices 
are necessary for compliance with mandated USEPA and WDNR nonpoint source 
pollution control rules and local stormwater management and erosion control 
ordinances. 


 
2. Fund and administer stormwater management operation and maintenance activities. 


Activities include cleaning and routine repair of ditches, detention basins, greenways, 
storm sewers, catch basins, manholes, streambanks and associated facilities, street 
sweeping, leaf collection, and construction of stormwater treatment, detention, and 
conveyance facilities serving a public purpose.  


 
3. Respond to customer billing and service inquiries. 


 
The proposed stormwater utility rate structure is based on a parameter known as an equivalent runoff 
unit (ERU). One ERU is defined as the average square footage of impervious area for a typical 
residential parcel. The impervious area analysis estimated that in Stoughton, one ERU is equivalent to 
approximately 3,105 square feet (rounded) of impervious area, which is the basis for the stormwater 
utility rate structure. Therefore, single-family residential parcels are assigned one ERU. The fee for 
nonresidential (including multifamily parcels) is based on the measured number of ERUs on each 
nonresidential parcel. The number of ERUs is estimated by dividing the total estimated impervious area 
on that parcel by the typical single-family residential impervious area. 
 
The rate for each ERU is determined by dividing the total revenue that must be generated for the 
stormwater system by the total number of ERUs within the utility district. User fees have been 
estimated based on the current 2011 stormwater management budget for comparison to current 
property tax rates as well as for future estimated stormwater management costs. Based on 
7,377 ERUs, the user fee necessary to support the 2011 stormwater management budget of $960,737 
would be approximately $130.23. This means the annual stormwater management fee for a typical 
residential user (one ERU) would be $130.23/year or $10.85 per month. Based on comparisons to 
average costs per ERU for Wisconsin communities, the TAC recommended consideration of a more 
phased-in approach to help lessen the burden on those properties most impacted by a new user fee.  
 
One budget model that was discussed would only include debt service for new capital improvement 
projects in the stormwater utility budget. The debt service for projects prior to 2011 would remain on the 
City’s tax roll and be paid for with general funds. Under this fee structure, the estimated operating 
budget for 2011 would be $467,513 and would equate to a much lower initial annual fee per ERU of 
$63.37. The operating budget and associated annual fees per ERU would gradually increase over the 
following several years, until the entire stormwater program budget would be phased in by 2020. Under 
this scenario, a property assigned 10 ERUs (31,050 square feet of impervious area) would pay 
$633.70/year or $52.80 per month. The stormwater utility fee would range from approximately $63 to 
approximately $105 per ERU per year to address future stormwater management requirements from 
2011 through 2020 (refer to Table ES-2).  







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
Stormwater Utility Feasibility Study Executive Summary 
 


 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.®  ES-5 
R:\MAD\Documents\Reports\Archive\2010\Stoughton, WI\SW UFS.1040.051.mks.jun\Report\ES.doc\063010 


 
 
Based on additional discussions, the TAC members came to a consensus that further phasing should 
be considered to make the stormwater fee more palatable in the first few years. The TAC members 
recommended phasing the budget shown in Table ES-2 in the first three years based on percentages 
as follows: 33.3 percent in 2011, 66.7 percent in 2012, and up to 100 percent in 2013. This equates to 
annual fees per ERU of $21.12, $45.79, and $70.24, respectively, for 2011, 2012, and 2013. 
 
A stormwater utility would shift the burden of stormwater management funding largely from the 
residential sector to the nonresidential sector (refer to Figure ES-1). Greatest impacts would be felt by 
the business sector (such as Stoughton Trailers) and also tax-exempt properties (such as churches, 
schools, and governmental entities), which do not currently contribute to stormwater management 
funding through property taxes. Residential parcels would generally contribute proportionately less to 
stormwater funding than currently based on the lower relative impervious area present on typical 
residential properties. 
 


Year Estimated Budget ERUs Annual Fee/ERU Monthly Fee/ERU 
2011 $467,513 7,377 $63.37 $5.28 
2012 $506,649 7,377 $68.68 $5.72 
2013 $518,133 7,377 $70.24 $5.85 
2014 $537,889 7,377 $72.91 $6.08 
2015 $549,233 7,377 $74.45 $6.20 
2016 $618,100 7,377 $83.79 $6.98 
2017 $657,552 7,377 $89.14 $7.43 
2018 $697,177 7,377 $94.51 $7.88 
2019 $736,979 7,377 $99.90 $8.33 
2020 $776,961 7,377 $105.32 $8.78 
2021 $742,157 7,377 $100.60 $8.38 
2022 $751,225 7,377 $101.83 $8.49 
2023 $788,294 7,377 $106.86 $8.90 
2024 $817,447 7,377 $110.81 $9.23 
2025 $855,374 7,377 $115.95 $9.66 


Note: Costs are in given year dollars. 
 
Table ES-2 Projected Annual Stormwater Utility Fees  







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
Stormwater Utility Feasibility Study Executive Summary 
 


 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.®  ES-6 
R:\MAD\Documents\Reports\Archive\2010\Stoughton, WI\SW UFS.1040.051.mks.jun\Report\ES.doc\062510 


 
 


 
 
Figure ES-1 Reallocation of Funding Contribution by Class Under a Stormwater Utility 







 
SECTION 1 


INTRODUCTION 







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
Stormwater Utility Feasibility Study Section 1–Introduction 
 


 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.® 1-1 
R:\MAD\Documents\Reports\Archive\2010\Stoughton, WI\SW UFS.1040.051.mks.jun\Report\S1.doc\062910 


1.01 INTRODUCTION 
 
This study provides an overview of current stormwater management practices and funding in the 
City of Stoughton and provides a plan to develop an alternate funding source for future stormwater 
management planning and improvements projects. This project has been prompted by the need for 
the City of Stoughton to develop an alternate funding source for stormwater management and to 
update and expound upon previous stormwater planning efforts, namely the 2005 Feasibility of 
Developing a Storm Water Utility Management Utility In the City of Stoughton prepared by 
Vierbicher Associates, Inc.  
 
The City of Stoughton currently owns and maintains an extensive network of streets, storm sewer, 
and drainage structures. Increasing emphasis by the United States Environmental Protection 
Agency (USEPA) and Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (WDNR) on impacts of 
stormwater runoff-borne pollutants on Waters of the State has increased and will likely continue to 
increase local administrative and construction costs. 
 
Currently, the costs of expansion, operation, and maintenance of the City’s stormwater 
management system are paid for by property taxes through the General Fund. Increasing 
pressures on the General Fund caused by rising municipal costs and reduced revenues from the 
State of Wisconsin have made the General Fund a less reliable source for stormwater 
management funding. One possible means of addressing stormwater management funding needs 
without placing an additional burden on property taxes is the formation of a stormwater utility. A 
stormwater utility is a utility formed for the purpose of managing stormwater and imposing user 
charges for cost recovery. Unlike property tax funding, user charges under a stormwater utility are 
established in proportion to the relative amount of stormwater runoff “generated” by an individual 
property. 
 
The purpose of this report is to provide the following information toward evaluation of stormwater 
utility formation in Stoughton: 
 


1. A general overview of current stormwater management practices and funding in 
Stoughton. 


 
2. Background information on stormwater utilities and other funding alternatives. 
 
3. Results of an impervious area analysis of Stoughton and estimation of equivalent 


runoff units (ERUs). 
 
4. Identification of possible stormwater utility responsibilities. 
 
5. Identification of a possible user fee rate structure based on the current city budget. 
 
6. Evaluation of potential impacts on select properties. 







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
Stormwater Utility Feasibility Study Section 1–Introduction 
 


 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.® 1-2 
R:\MAD\Documents\Reports\Archive\2010\Stoughton, WI\SW UFS.1040.051.mks.jun\Report\S1.doc\062910 


1.02 STORMWATER UTILITY TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
 
This report summarizes results of a Stormwater Utility Feasibility Study completed between 
January and June 2010 for the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin. The study has been completed under 
the guidance of the Stoughton Stormwater Utility Technical Advisory Committee (TAC). The 
primary goal of the TAC was to provide input into utility features such as the rate structure, budget, 
and credit policy.  
 
The TAC included the following members: 
 


Member Affiliation 
Donna Olson City of Stoughton Mayor 
Tim Carter City Council 
Carl Chenoweth City Council 
Rodney Scheel Director of Planning and Development 
Laurie Sullivan Finance Director/Treasurer 
Karl Manthe Street Superintendent 
Robert Kardasz Stoughton Utilities Director 
Peter Sveum President, Coldwell Banker Success Realty 
Robert Barnett Citizen 
Dennis Barkenhagen Stoughton School District 
Ken Wahlin Stoughton Trailer 
Bob Wahlin Stoughton Trailer 


 
Other parties present at some or all meetings included Mark Shubak (Strand Associates, Inc.®), 
Steve Sletten (Resident), Jim Griffin (former Mayor), Pastor Bill Lehman, and Scott Sedlacek 
(Stoughton Trailers). 
 
The TAC held six meetings between early March and early June 2010. Primary meeting topics 
included: 
 


1. Overview of city stormwater management responsibilities and facilities. 
2. Discussion of city stormwater management plan. 
3. Possible stormwater utility organization and functions. 
4. Discussion of existing and future city stormwater management costs. 
5. Discussion on potential stormwater utility budget. 
6. Discussion on other Wisconsin stormwater utilities. 
7. Discussion of existing and future city stormwater management costs. 
8. Discussion of alternative stormwater utility rate structures. 
9. Discussion on policy for corrections, adjustments, credits, and exemptions. 
10. Review of public education materials and programs. 
11. Discussion of possible recommendations to city council. 
12. Review of draft feasibility study report. 


 
Results of TAC discussions and comments have been incorporated into this report. Copies of the 
TAC meeting minutes are provided in Appendix B. 







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
Stormwater Utility Feasibility Study Section 1–Introduction 
 


 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.® 1-3 
R:\MAD\Documents\Reports\Archive\2010\Stoughton, WI\SW UFS.1040.051.mks.jun\Report\S1.doc\062910 


1.03 MANDATED STORMWATER PERMIT REQUIREMENTS 
 
Sediment, heavy metals, pesticides, nutrients, bacteria, and oxygen-demanding organic waste from 
pollutant “source areas” have been recognized as a cause of water quality degradation in our streams, 
lakes, ponds, and other water resources. In recognition of the potential harmful impacts of 
stormwater runoff, many cities must apply for coverage under the Municipal General Permit 
[Wisconsin Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (WPDES)] coverage by the WDNR authorizing 
discharge of stormwater runoff to Waters of the State. Communities that require permit coverage 
include large municipalities with populations greater than 100,000 (Phase I communities such as 
Madison and Milwaukee) and Phase II communities that include municipalities with a minimum 
population of 10,000 and also municipalities that are identified as “urbanized areas” with specified 
minimum population densities. The City of Stoughton is considered a Phase II community and 
therefore is required to meet the requirements outlined in the Phase II permit. 
 
The mandated Phase II permit, with coverage that started on November 15, 2006, requires the 
permitted municipalities to establish and maintain a number of stormwater management programs 
and practices over the initial 5-year permit cycle. Some of these programs and practices include 
the following: 
 


1. Implementation of a public education and outreach program to inform the community 
about the impacts of stormwater discharges on water bodies. 


 
2. Public involvement and participation in efforts to reduce nonpoint source pollutant 


discharges. 
 
3. Development of an illicit discharge detection and elimination program with the 


primary goal of eliminating nonstormwater discharges to the storm sewer system. A 
primary component of this program is development of mapping to identify storm 
sewer outfalls to adjacent water bodies. 


 
4. Development of a program to reduce pollutants in any stormwater runoff from 


construction activities that result in a land disturbance of greater than or equal to 
1 acre. 


 
5. Development of a program to address stormwater runoff from new development and 


redevelopment projects that disturb an area greater than or equal to 1 acre. 
 
6. Development and implementation of an operation and maintenance program to 


prevent pollution and facilitate good housekeeping practices for municipal 
operations. 


 
The WDNR administers this program through Wisconsin Administrative Code NR 216, which 
requires affected municipalities to implement the six minimum control measures listed above to the 
“maximum extent practical.” To better define maximum extent practical, the WDNR has adopted 
specific stormwater management performance standards as defined in the NR 151 administrative 
rules.  







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
Stormwater Utility Feasibility Study Section 1–Introduction 
 


 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.® 1-4 
R:\MAD\Documents\Reports\Archive\2010\Stoughton, WI\SW UFS.1040.051.mks.jun\Report\S1.doc\062910 


NR 151 developed urban area performance standards are described below. 
 


1. Stage 1 requirements to be implemented by March 10, 2008: 
 


a. Public information and education program using WDNR materials that 
promote on-site reuse of leaves and grass clippings, proper use of lawn and 
garden chemicals, proper management of pet waste, and proper disposal of 
oil and other chemicals. 


 
b. Municipal programs for leaf and grass clipping collection. 


 
c. Evaluation of lawn and garden fertilizer application policies for municipally 


controlled properties with over 5 acres of pervious surface. 
 
d. Detection and elimination of illicit discharges to storm sewers. 


 
e. To the maximum extent practicable, a 20 percent reduction in total 


suspended solids in runoff that enters Waters of the State as compared to no 
controls conditions. 


 
2. Stage 2 requirements to be implemented by March 10, 2013: 


 
To the maximum extent practicable, a 40 percent reduction in total suspended solids 
in runoff that enters Waters of the State as compared to no controls conditions. 


 
Many of the programs specified above are relatively new to the City of Stoughton and will continue to 
require an increase in the level of funding allocated to the stormwater management budget, whether 
through the general fund or through creation of an alternative funding mechanism such as a stormwater 
utility. The City created a Stormwater Management Plan and Total Suspended Solids Reduction Plan in 
May 2006 to identify specific activities to be implemented to comply with permit conditions. As part of 
the Stormwater Utility Feasibility Study, a specific stormwater utility budget was created for the period 
from 2011 to 2025 that expands on the information included in the Stormwater Management Plan. 
 
1.04 STORMWATER MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES 
 
The City currently undertakes a number of stormwater management activities. Responsibilities for 
these activities are divided between various departments, including Planning and Development, 
Streets, Utilities, and Parks and Recreation. Stormwater management costs are generally paid by 
property taxes through the City’s general fund. Future City stormwater management 
responsibilities and expenditures are expected to increase over the next several years as a result 
of mandated regulatory requirements. 
 
This section presents current and probable future stormwater management activities and costs. 
 
A. Construction and Postconstruction Erosion Control 
 
Chapter 10, Article IV (Erosion Control and Stormwater Management) of the Stoughton Municipal 
Code regulates stormwater runoff from new development, redevelopment, and construction sites. 







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
Stormwater Utility Feasibility Study Section 1–Introduction 
 


 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.® 1-5 
R:\MAD\Documents\Reports\Archive\2010\Stoughton, WI\SW UFS.1040.051.mks.jun\Report\S1.doc\062910 


Staff from the Dane County Land Conservation Division under contract with the City of Stoughton 
conduct erosion control and stormwater plan reviews and inspections. 
 
B. Operations and Maintenance Costs 
 
The City owns and maintains a drainage system consisting of inlets, catch basins, manholes, storm 
sewers, ditches, greenways, detention basins, and associated appurtenances. Stormwater 
management-related activities routinely performed by the City include inlet and storm sewer cleaning, 
storm sewer televising, culvert and ditch cleaning, greenway mowing, and reactive operations such as 
storm sewer catch basin and manhole repair. Each year additional culverts, ditches, storm sewers, 
catch basins, inlets, and manholes are constructed with a number of these requiring additional and 
continued inspections to ensure effective operation. 
 
Street sweeping and other routine street maintenance activities are also performed by the City. While 
historically performed for aesthetic reasons, street sweeping also serves an important function in 
collecting sediment and other pollutants before reaching local waterways. The City’s current street 
sweeping program is from May through November each year and includes sweeping all downtown City 
streets each Friday and once per month for all other City streets. 
 
The City also conducts yard waste management activities that include streetside leaf, grass, and yard 
waste collection. This occurs for three weeks in the spring and each fall between mid-October and 
December 1. There is also a City site at which residents can drop off their own yard waste.  
 
C. Capital Improvements  
 
Since 2005, the City has spent more than $2,900,000 on stormwater management capital 
improvements. These past projects have primarily focused on stormwater system capacity 
improvements and flood control. However, it is anticipated that future projects will shift the focus to 
meeting the City’s water quality improvement mandates, including construction of water quality best 
management practices (BMPs) such as wet detention basins and infiltration basins. A list of eligible 
stormwater capital costs follows: 
 


1. Conveyance Facilities 
 
a. Storm sewers (including manholes, inlets, catch basins, end walls, riprap aprons) 
b. Culverts/bridges 
c. Ditches/greenways 
d. Curb and gutter 
e. Stormwater pumping stations 
f. Streambank restoration/stabilization 


 
2. Storage/Treatment/BMPs 


 
a. Wet detention basins (typically for water quality purposes) 
b. Dry detention basins (typically for water quantity or flood control purposes)  
c. Infiltration basins/swales 
d. Bioretention basins/swales 
e. Rain gardens/barrels 
f. Porous pavement 







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
Stormwater Utility Feasibility Study Section 1–Introduction 
 


 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.® 1-6 
R:\MAD\Documents\Reports\Archive\2010\Stoughton, WI\SW UFS.1040.051.mks.jun\Report\S1.doc\062910 


g. Mechanical stormwater treatment devices (Stormceptors, Vortechnics, Baysaver) 
h. Construction erosion control measures (silt fence, erosion mat, sediment basins, 


inlet protection, stone tracking pad) 
3. Other 
 


a. Stormwater management master planning  
b. Engineering costs (design/inspection) 
c. Equipment purchase fund (street sweeper, mower, vactor) 


 
1.05 CURRENT AND FUTURE STORMWATER MANAGEMENT EXPENDITURES 
 
In an effort to determine the revenue that a stormwater utility would need to generate, the TAC worked 
to develop a projected stormwater program budget. The goal in developing the budget was to break up 
stormwater costs into three distinct program components, as follows: 
 


1. Administration 
2. Operation and Maintenance (O&M) 
3. Capital Improvements/Debt Service 


 
To best develop anticipated future Administration and O&M costs, City staff reviewed expenditures from 
2009 as a baseline. These costs are summarized in Table 1.05-1. 
 


 
 


Budget Item Cost Notes 
Administration 
WPDES Permit Elements 
     a. Public education and outreach  $      3,900 MAMSWap 
     b. Public involvement and participation  $      2,900 WPDES permit 
     c. Illicit discharge and detection  $      1,000 Inspections/investigations 
     d. Construction site pollutant control  $      9,000 Review and inspection, offset by permit fees 
     e. Postconstruction pollutant control  $             –  Included in construction site item 
     f. Pollution prevention  $             –  Included in O&M budget 
     g. Water quality management  $    20,000 Modeling and master plan updates 
     h. Stormwater system map  $      1,500 – 


Administration  $    70,000 
Accounting/collecting/planning salaries, 
benefits, and training, software, supplies, 
communications, and permit fees 


Total Administration Costs $  108,300
 
O&M 
Pollution Prevention 
     a. Street sweeping  $  103,000 – 
     b. Leaf collection  $    91,000 – 
Greenway Mowing  $    25,000 – 
Storm Sewer and Miscellaneous Repair  $    50,000 – 
Total O&M Costs  $  269,000 


 
Table 1.05-1 Estimated 2009 Stormwater Administration and O&M Costs 







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
Stormwater Utility Feasibility Study Section 1–Introduction 
 


 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.® 1-7 
R:\MAD\Documents\Reports\Archive\2010\Stoughton, WI\SW UFS.1040.051.mks.jun\Report\S1.doc\062910 


To approximate future administration and O&M costs, a 2 percent rate of inflation was applied to the 
2009 costs presented in Table 1.05-1.  
 
To develop future stormwater capital improvement and debt service costs, the TAC reviewed both 
historical cost data of past projects and anticipated costs for future projects. Table 1.05-2 lists past and 
anticipated future annual stormwater capital improvement project costs. 


 


 
 
In the past, the City has financed capital improvement projects over a 10-year period, and it is assumed 
that future capital projects will also be similarly financed. Consequently, the capital improvement and 
debt service component of the utility budget would initially be made up of debt service payments from 
past and future projects. For instance, the 2011 budget would include debt service payments for past 
projects for the previous nine years (2002 through 2010) and the first debt service payment for any 
2011 projects. This concept is illustrated in Table 1.05-3, with debt service payments from past projects 
shown in orange and debt service payments for future projects shown in green. The total annual debt 
service costs are shown in blue in the bottom row of Table 1.05-3. 
 
Table 1.05-4 shows the estimated annual costs for the City of Stoughton’s stormwater program from 
2011 through 2025. 


Year Cost 
2001 $830,500
2002 $700,000
2003 $400,000
2004 $0
2005 $1,125,400
2006 $0
2007 $170,000
2008 $243,000
2009 $555,000
2010 $819,000
2011 $647,000
2012 $270,000
2013 $30,000
2014 $100,000
2015 $26,000
2016  $521,000


 
Table 1.05-2 Past and Future Annual  


Stormwater Capital Project Costs 







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
Stormwater Utility Feasibility Study Section 1–Introduction 
 


 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.® 1-8 
R:\MAD\Documents\Reports\Archive\2010\Stoughton, WI\SW UFS.1040.051.mks.jun\Report\S1.doc\062910 


TABLE 1.05-3 
 
STORMWATER CAPITAL PROJECT BUDGET–ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE PAYMENTS 


 


Year Total 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025


2001 830,500$               


2002 700,000$               $86,048


2003 400,000$               $49,170 $49,170


2004 -$                       $0 $0 $0


2005 1,125,400$            $138,340 $138,340 $138,340 $138,340


2006 -$                       $0 $0 $0 $0 $0


2007 170,000$               $20,897 $20,897 $20,897 $20,897 $20,897 $20,897


2008 243,000$               $29,871 $29,871 $29,871 $29,871 $29,871 $29,871 $29,871


2009 555,000$               $68,223 $68,223 $68,223 $68,223 $68,223 $68,223 $68,223 $68,223


2010 819,000$               $100,676 $100,676 $100,676 $100,676 $100,676 $100,676 $100,676 $100,676 $100,676


2011 647,000$               $74,970 $74,970 $74,970 $74,970 $74,970 $74,970 $74,970 $74,970 $74,970 $74,970


2012 270,000$               $31,286 $31,286 $31,286 $31,286 $31,286 $31,286 $31,286 $31,286 $31,286 $31,286


2013 30,000$                 $3,476 $3,476 $3,476 $3,476 $3,476 $3,476 $3,476 $3,476 $3,476 $3,476


2014 100,000$               $11,587 $11,587 $11,587 $11,587 $11,587 $11,587 $11,587 $11,587 $11,587 $11,587


2015 26,000$                 $3,013 $3,013 $3,013 $3,013 $3,013 $3,013 $3,013 $3,013 $3,013 $3,013


2016 521,000$               $60,370 $60,370 $60,370 $60,370 $60,370 $60,370 $60,370 $60,370 $60,370 $60,370


2017* 265,667$               $30,784 $30,784 $30,784 $30,784 $30,784 $30,784 $30,784 $30,784 $30,784


2018* 265,667$               $30,784 $30,784 $30,784 $30,784 $30,784 $30,784 $30,784 $30,784


2019* 265,667$               $30,784 $30,784 $30,784 $30,784 $30,784 $30,784 $30,784


2020* 265,667$               $30,784 $30,784 $30,784 $30,784 $30,784 $30,784


2021* 265,667$               $30,784 $30,784 $30,784 $30,784 $30,784


2022* 265,667$               $30,784 $30,784 $30,784 $30,784


2023* 265,667$               $30,784 $30,784 $30,784


2024* 265,667$               $30,784 $30,784


2025* 265,667$               $30,784


* ‐ Avergage Annual CIP (2011 ‐ 2025) Costs  Were Applied 


$309,651 $337,422$377,728 $307,836 $263,649 $263,147 $290,455$479,326 $343,999 $404,368 $414,255 $415,168


$0


$74,970 $106,255 $109,732 $121,319 $124,332 $184,701 $215,485 $246,269 $277,052 $307,836 $263,649 $263,147 $290,455 $309,651 $337,422SW CIP Debt Service 
(Projects 2011 & beyond)


$493,224


Total CIP Debt Service


$407,177 $358,007


$568,194 $513,432 $467,739


Annual Payments Based on 10-year Loans


CIP Debt Service (Projects 
Before 2011) $358,007 $219,667 $219,667 $198,770 $168,899 $100,676 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0


 
 







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
Stormwater Utility Feasibility Study Section 1–Introduction 
 


 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.® 1-9 
R:\MAD\Documents\Reports\Archive\2010\Stoughton, WI\SW UFS.1040.051.mks.jun\Report\S1.doc\062910 


TABLE 1.05-4 
 
STORMWATER PROGRAM BUDGET–ESTIMATED ANNUAL COSTS 


 


Stormwater Program Component 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Administration 112,675$         114,929$  117,227$  119,572$  121,963$  124,403$  126,891$  129,429$  132,017$  134,657$   137,351$   140,098$   142,900$   145,758$   148,673$   


Operation and Maintenance 279,868$         285,465$  291,174$  296,998$  302,938$  308,996$  315,176$  321,480$  327,909$  334,468$   341,157$   347,980$   354,940$   362,039$   369,279$   


Capital Improvements Debt Service 568,194$         513,432$  467,739$  479,326$  343,999$  404,368$  414,255$  415,168$  377,728$  307,836$   $263,649 $263,147 $290,455 $309,651 $337,422


Total 960,737$         913,826$  876,140$  895,895$  768,900$  837,768$  856,322$  866,076$  837,654$  776,961$   742,157$   751,225$   788,294$   817,447$   855,374$    
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
Stormwater Utility Feasibility Study Section 1–Introduction 
 


 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.® 1-10 
R:\MAD\Documents\Reports\Archive\2010\Stoughton, WI\SW UFS.1040.051.mks.jun\Report\S1.doc\062910 


Presently, the City funds stormwater management administration, system O&M and capital 
improvements through property taxes. Under the current system, taxable property value is the sole 
factor determining a property owner’s contribution to the City’s stormwater management program costs. 
In the 2011 budget, approximately $960,737 of the total $7,015,800 property tax levy, or 13.7 percent, 
is planned to be used for funding the City’s stormwater management program. Based on this 
percentage, approximately $1 of the $7.28 per $1,000 property tax assessment is planned for 
stormwater management system funding. Therefore, a property having an assessed value of $100,000 
currently contributes approximately $100 annually to funding of the stormwater management system. 
 
The current contribution of the commercial, manufacturing, single-family residential, and multifamily 
residential sectors to stormwater management system funding, based on assessed values, is 
summarized in Table 1.04-5. Under the current property tax-based funding system, tax-exempt 
properties do not contribute to stormwater management system funding. 
 


 


Real Estate Class Total Assessed Value Percent of Total Stormwater Contribution 
Single-Family Residential  $      624,952,289 64.9%  $      623,236 
Duplex  $        51,173,683 5.3%  $        51,033 
Multifamily Residential  $        56,180,878 5.8%  $        56,027 
Commercial  $      179,611,700 18.6%  $      179,119 
Manufacturing  $        35,696,000 3.7%  $        35,598 
Tax-Exempt (Church-Owned) $                        0 0.00 $                 0 
Tax-Exempt (City-Owned) $                        0 0.00 $                 0 
Tax-Exempt (County-Owned) $                        0 0.00 $                 0 
Tax-Exempt (Federal-Owned) $                        0 0.00 $                 0
Tax-Exempt (Other) $                        0 0.00 $                 0
Tax-Exempt (School-Owned) $                        0 0.00 $                 0
Tax-Exempt (State-Owned) $                        0 0.00 $                 0
Agricultural  $             114,700 0.0%  $             114 
Undeveloped  $                    100 0.0%  $                 0 
Personal Property  $        15,652,700 1.6%  $        15,610 
Subtotal $       963,382,050 100.00  $      960,737 


Note: Tax Levy Data is from 2009. Report will be updated when 2010 data is available 
 
Table 1.05-4 Stormwater Funding Contributions Under Current Tax-Based System 







 
SECTION 2 


BACKGROUND INFORMATION 







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
Stormwater Utility Feasibility Study Section 2–Background Information 
 


 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.® 2-1 
R:\MAD\Documents\Reports\Archive\2010\Stoughton, WI\SW UFS.1040.051.mks.jun\Report\S2.doc\062510 


2.01 STORMWATER UTILITIES–BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
A stormwater utility is a method of collecting revenue for stormwater management system 
improvements under which property owners are charged a user fee based on the amount of stormwater 
runoff “produced” on their property. Stormwater utilities have become increasingly popular throughout 
the country in recent years. Major cities such as Seattle, San Diego, Cincinnati, Dallas, Sacramento, 
Miami, St. Paul, and many others currently fund their stormwater management programs through 
stormwater utilities. 
 
A recent survey by the Wisconsin Chapter of the American Public Works Association (APWA) dated 
January 6, 2010, documented 71 stormwater utilities in Wisconsin including municipalities such as 
Milwaukee, Madison, Oshkosh, Sun Prairie, and West Allis. We estimated the actual number in 
Wisconsin to be somewhat higher, most likely as high as 100 municipalities. Seven communities in 
Dane County currently have stormwater utilities in place: De Forest, Fitchburg, Madison, McFarland, 
Monona, Shorewood Hills, and Sun Prairie. The City of Verona is in the process of implementing a 
stormwater utility and will begin billing in 2011. 
 
Annual residential rates in Wisconsin range from a low of $15 a year in the Village of Pleasant Prairie to 
a high of $109 in the City of Appleton. The average yearly cost to an ERU for the 71 utilities is 
approximately $51. It is expected that most utilities rates will increase in the coming years to address 
additional expenditures necessary to meet stormwater permit requirements. Results of the APWA 
Survey are provided in Appendix A. 
 
The fee structure for a stormwater utility is typically based on the amount of impervious area on a 
parcel of land. A large commercial parcel, which may be 80 to 90 percent impervious, produces a larger 
amount of stormwater runoff than a residential parcel of equal area, which may be only 30 to 40 percent 
impervious. With a stormwater utility, the commercial property owner pays a proportionally higher fee 
than a residential property owner because the impact of his land use on the stormwater system is 
greater than that of the residential property owner. Therefore, a commercial establishment having eight 
times the amount of impervious area of a typical residential property would pay a user fee eight times 
higher than that of a residential property owner.  
 
Benefits of a stormwater utility include the following: 
 


1. A stormwater utility more equitably allocates stormwater system costs to property 
owners than does the present property tax-based system. Under a property tax-based 
system, an individual property owner’s contribution is based on property value alone. A 
stormwater utility will allocate costs based on estimated amounts of runoff and, 
therefore, impacts to the City drainage system. Another benefit of creating a stormwater 
utility is that it would reduce the need for increasing property taxes or annual general 
fund borrowing to finance future stormwater management system improvements. 


 
2. A stormwater utility increases the number of properties contributing to funding of the 


stormwater management system. Under a property tax-based system, a large 
tax-exempt stormwater runoff “producer” such as a hospital may not contribute to the 
cost of constructing or maintaining a stormwater management system. Under a 
stormwater utility system, costs from such sites could be recovered through the user fee. 







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
Stormwater Utility Feasibility Study Section 2–Background Information 
 


 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.® 2-2 
R:\MAD\Documents\Reports\Archive\2010\Stoughton, WI\SW UFS.1040.051.mks.jun\Report\S2.doc\062510 


3. A stormwater utility provides a dedicated source for funding stormwater management 
improvements. 


 
Development and implementation of a stormwater utility typically involves the following steps: 
 


1. Educate administration, elected officials, and the public. This may involve formation of a 
steering committee consisting of various sectors of the public, mailings to homeowners 
and businesses, and public meetings.  


 
2. Develop a stormwater management plan to estimate costs and revenue needs to be 


recovered through the stormwater utility. The stormwater plan should identify short-term 
and long-term priorities and establish a preliminary short-term budget (one to two years). 
The City completed this plan in May 2006. 
 


3. Develop a conceptual stormwater utility rate structure. This will require the following 
information: 
 
a. Land use identification, estimation of acreage under each land use, and 


determination of the number of parcels under each land use. This information 
has been provided by the City as described Section 3.01. 


 
b. Determination of appropriate factors to apply to different land use categories. 


This is based on hydrologic characteristics of each land use category. 
 
c. Revenue needs as determined in the stormwater management plan. 
 
d. The relationship between estimated amounts of runoff per parcel to parcel 


charges. There are a number of alternative methods to assess these charges. 
The most common method is based on ERU. ERUs represent runoff from a 
parcel. These units calculate and levy stormwater charges by multiplying a rate 
factor by a parcel area. A common application is to establish a typical 
single-family residential lot as having one ERU. The ERUs assigned to a land 
use of a different type are based on the amount of stormwater runoff produced in 
comparison with a typical single-family residential site.  


 
4. Prepare a stormwater utility and user charge ordinance. This ordinance establishes the 


legal authority for the utility and establishes criteria in determining the user charge. 
 
5. Determine billing procedures. Most municipalities include the stormwater user charge on 


monthly utility bills. Other options include developing a separate billing statement or 
including on property tax bills. 







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
Stormwater Utility Feasibility Study Section 2–Background Information 
 


 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.® 2-3 
R:\MAD\Documents\Reports\Archive\2010\Stoughton, WI\SW UFS.1040.051.mks.jun\Report\S2.doc\062510 


2.02 OTHER FUNDING OPTIONS 
 
A. Property Tax 
 
Stormwater management system costs in Stoughton have historically been funded by property taxes. 
Property taxes are paid into the City’s general fund that is also used for other public works 
improvements, public safety, and other related programs. There is often a great deal of competition with 
other programs for funding. As a result, stormwater management improvements are typically given a 
low priority, unless the City is reacting to a recent storm event or regulatory requirements.  
 
Property taxes are based exclusively on assessed property value. The City’s cost of stormwater service 
to individual properties is typically more related to physical characteristics of the property served than to 
the assessed value of the property. Therefore, in many cases, property taxes may not be an equitable 
means of recovering stormwater management system costs. 
 
B. Fees 
 
Fees are another common means of funding stormwater management improvements. Fees are 
charges for services rendered. Many municipalities recover costs of constructing, designing, reviewing, 
and/or inspecting new developments through fees assessed to developers. Impact fees and special 
assessments transfer the cost of infrastructure improvements needed for private development directly 
to developers or property owners. User fees recover costs over the life of a project. An increasingly 
common type of user fee related to stormwater management is a stormwater utility.  
 
C. Tax Incremental Financing 
 
Tax Incremental Financing (TIF) captures the projected increase in property tax revenue created by 
developing an area and uses that increase to assist in paying for development and redevelopment 
projects. This funding makes it possible to go forward with projects that otherwise would not be built. 
Upon creation of a development or redevelopment project area or district, the assessor will establish 
the base-assessed value of that area or district. Each subsequent year, the assessor will certify the 
current assessed value of the property in the development or redevelopment project area or district. 
The difference between the amount of regular levy property taxes on the current assessed value and 
the amount of regular levy property taxes on the base-assessed value is the tax increment. Regular 
levy property taxes on the base-assessed value of the property will continue to be allocated to the 
appropriate local taxing bodies. The tax increment will be deposited in a TIF fund for use on projects 
approved for the project area or district. Typically, stormwater management projects inside or outside of 
the TIF that will improve the value of the property are eligible for funding under a TIF. Section 66.1105 
of the Wisconsin State Statutes identifies costs potentially eligible for TIF funding. 
 
D. Bonds  
 
Large capital improvement projects such as major storm sewers or detention facilities may be funded 
through bonds or grants. Bonds are a mechanism to borrow capital for a project and distribute 
repayment over the life span of the project. A popular local bonding program is the Clean Water Fund 
Program (CWFP). This is one of the subsidized loan programs included in the WDNR Environmental 







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
Stormwater Utility Feasibility Study Section 2–Background Information 
 


 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.® 2-4 
R:\MAD\Documents\Reports\Archive\2010\Stoughton, WI\SW UFS.1040.051.mks.jun\Report\S2.doc\062510 


Improvement Fund (EIF). The CWFP provides loans to municipalities for wastewater treatment and 
urban stormwater projects. This program has historically been used extensively for wastewater 
treatment plant construction. Recent program modifications allow funds to be used for stormwater 
management improvements. 
 
Most CWFP projects receive a subsidized interest rate of 55 percent, 65 percent, or 70 percent of the 
EIF market interest rate. CWFP wastewater projects that meet certain criteria may be eligible to receive 
Hardship Financial Assistance, which may be in the form of a lower interest rate loan or include a grant. 
 
E. Grants 
 


1. TRM/Urban Nonpoint 
 


(Note: Information in this section is taken from the WDNR Web Site). 
 
“Financial assistance for local pollution-control efforts is available through various WDNR 
loan and grant programs, including the Targeted Runoff Management (TRM) and Urban 
Nonpoint Source & Storm Water Management (UNPS&SW) programs. 
 
TRM grants are provided to control polluted runoff from both urban and rural sites. The 
grants are targeted at high-priority resource problems. Projects funded by TRM grants are 
site-specific and serve areas generally smaller in size than a subwatershed. The grant 
period is 2 years, with a possible 1-year extension. The maximum cost-share rate available 
to TRM grant recipients is 70 percent of eligible costs, with the total of state funding not to 
exceed $150,000. UNPS&SW grant funds are used to control polluted runoff in urban 
project areas. Funds are awarded for either planning or construction projects. The grant 
period is 2 years with a possible 1-year extension. Projects funded by these grants are 
site-specific, serve areas generally smaller in size than a subwatershed, and targeted to 
address high-priority problems. Governmental units are not eligible for a TRM grant if the 
governmental unit is covered by a stormwater permit under ch. NR 216, Wis. Adm. Code.   
 
UNPS&SW planning grants can be used to pay for a variety of technical assistance 
activities. Eligible activities such as stormwater management planning, related information 
and education activities, ordinance and utility development, and enforcement are cost 
shared at 70 percent. This year, the cap on the total state share for UNPS&SW planning 
projects is $85,000. For a technical assistance activity to be eligible for funding under this 
program the project must currently be in an urban area or an area projected to be urban 
within 20 years.  
 
Eligible UNPS&SW construction grant costs may include such projects as stormwater 
detention ponds, filtration and infiltration practices, streambank stabilization, and shoreline 
stabilization. Eligible costs are cost-shared at 50 percent up to a maximum of $150,000. 
Design costs are also eligible as part of the total project costs and can be reimbursed at 
50 percent. Design costs can be retroactively reimbursed provided the design is approved 
by the WDNR regional staff and the construction project is selected for funding.  
 







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
Stormwater Utility Feasibility Study Section 2–Background Information 
 


 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.® 2-5 
R:\MAD\Documents\Reports\Archive\2010\Stoughton, WI\SW UFS.1040.051.mks.jun\Report\S2.doc\062510 


2. Transportation Equity Act 
 
The Transportation Equity Act for the 21st Century (TEA-21) funds numerous transportation 
programs, such as the Surface Transportation Program (STP) and the National Highway 
System, to improve the nation's transportation infrastructure, enhance economic growth, 
and protect the environment. States may spend up to 20 percent of their STP dollars for 
environmental restoration and pollution abatement projects including the construction of 
stormwater treatment systems. Additionally, each state sets aside 10 percent of STP funds 
for transportation enhancement projects, which can include acquisition of conservation and 
scenic easements, wetland mitigation, and pollution abatement as well as scenic 
beautification, pedestrian and bicycle trails, archaeological planning, and historic 
preservation. These varied project types can be used to protect source water areas during 
construction of transportation corridors.” 


 
 







 
SECTION 3 


ESTIMATION OF ERUS AND RATES 







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
Stormwater Utility Feasibility Study Section 3–Estimation of ERUs and Rates 
 


 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.® 3-1 
R:\MAD\Documents\Reports\Archive\2010\Stoughton, WI\SW UFS.1040.051.mks.jun\Report\S3.doc\062510 


3.01 IMPERVIOUS AREA AND EQUIVALENT RUNOFF UNIT ANALYSES 
 
As discussed in Section 2, one of the primary steps in evaluating formation of a stormwater utility is a 
land use analysis to calculate factors impacting stormwater runoff such as impervious area. This 
section summarizes results of an impervious area analysis in the City to provide a basis for establishing 
potential user fee rates. 
 
A. Method of Measurement and Source of Data 
 
For the purpose of this study, the following data from the 2005 Feasibility of Developing a Storm 
Water Utility Management Utility In the City of Stoughton prepared by Vierbicher Associates, Inc. 
was provided by the City of Stoughton to be used in the land use and impervious area analysis: 
 


1. Preliminary ERU calculations database including single-family residential impervious 
area calculations dated April 20, 2005. This database contains the parcel numbers, 
owner, improvement values, parcel areas, address, and land use class. 


 
2. ERU breakdown by land use from the previous study. 
 
3. Impervious area shapefiles. 


 
The preliminary ERU database was the primary source of baseline property information. The database 
was sorted by Land Class and Land Use Description into five categories (residential, commercial, 
manufacturing, tax-exempt, and other). Work within each category referenced the parcel number as the 
primary key. Subcategories were also included under tax-exempt and other classes. Tax-exempt 
subcategories included church-owned, city-owned, federal-owned, school-owned, and other. Other 
subcategories included agricultural and undeveloped property.  
 
Individual parcels were located by superimposing the parcel map and impervious area shapefiles onto 
orthophotos using ArcGIS software. The impervious area (including parking lots, driveways, rooftops, 
other paved areas, and compacted gravel areas) on individual parcels was digitized based on visual 
inspection of the orthophotos. The calculated impervious area was entered into the ERU calculations 
spreadsheet using the parcel number as the primary key.  
 
It should be noted that as part of the previous study, several of the nonresidential land use classes 
were sampled to determine the average percent impervious area for that land use class. The average 
percent impervious area was then applied to all the parcels within its respective land use class to 
develop an approximate impervious area per parcel. Should the City move forward with implementation 
of the stormwater utility, the parcels that were estimated for impervious area would need to be 
delineated to properly distribute the cost of the City’s stormwater management costs. Based on the 
data provided, it appears approximately 300 parcels that were estimated for impervious area as part of 
the previous study would need to be delineated. Also, any additional development constructed after the 
completion of the 2005 study would also need to be delineated prior to implementation. 







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
Stormwater Utility Feasibility Study Section 3–Estimation of ERUs and Rates 
 


 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.® 3-2 
R:\MAD\Documents\Reports\Archive\2010\Stoughton, WI\SW UFS.1040.051.mks.jun\Report\S3.doc\062510 


B. Residential Parcel Analysis 
 
Based on review of information provided by the City, approximately 3,005 developed residential parcels 
were identified out of 3,358 total residential parcels. The remaining 353 parcels were assumed to be 
undeveloped since the database showed no improvement value. Of the 3,005 developed residential 
parcels, approximately 95 percent ranged in size from one-eighth acre to one-half acre. Approximately 
2 percent of these were greater than one-half acre and 3 percent were less than one-eighth acre (refer 
to Figure 3.01-1). The impervious area was measured on 206 of these 3,005 developed residential 
parcels. The average measured impervious area was approximately 3,105 square feet.  
 


 
 
C. Nonresidential and Multifamily Residential Parcel Analysis 
 
Nonresidential parcels in the database were analyzed to determine the impervious area for each parcel. 
For this analysis, a total of 689 nonresidential and 146 multifamily residential parcels were analyzed. 
The nonresidential analysis included all land use categories except those listed as single-family 
residential shown in Figure 3.01-1, duplex, and agricultural. 
 
Results of this analysis are summarized in Table 3.01-1, which indicates there are approximately 
14,319,373 square feet (328.7 acres) of nonresidential and multifamily residential impervious area in 
the City. Of this, approximately 82 percent is on taxable property such as multifamily residential, 
commercial, and manufacturing. The remaining 18 percent of the impervious area in the City is located 
on tax-exempt or other nonresidential properties.  


 
Note: Total improved residential parcels = 3,005 of 3,358 
 
Figure 3.01-1 Stormwater Utility Analysis Residential Parcel Breakdown 







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
Stormwater Utility Feasibility Study Section 3–Estimation of ERUs and Rates 
 


 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.® 3-3 
R:\MAD\Documents\Reports\Archive\2010\Stoughton, WI\SW UFS.1040.051.mks.jun\Report\S3.doc\062510 


Table 3.01-1 is a breakdown of estimated ERUs for various land classes in Stoughton. 
 


 
 
Overall results of the impervious analysis for the City are summarized in Figure 3.01-2. This chart 
indicates that approximately 47 percent of the impervious area in the City (excluding City right-of-way) 
is located on residential property and approximately 53 percent is on nonresidential property. 
 


Real Estate Class 
Impervious Area 


Percent of Total Sq. Ft. Acres 
Multifamily Residential 1,440,256 33.1 10.1 


Commercial 3,667,997 84.2 25.6 


Manufacturing 6,700,915 153.8 46.8 
Tax-Exempt  2,510,205 57.6 17.5 


Total 14,319,373 328.7 100.0 
 
Table 3.01-1 Nonresidential and Multifamily Residential Impervious Area 


Breakdown 


 
 
Figure 3.01-2 Percent Land and Impervious Area by Land Class (Excluding Right-of-Way) 







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
Stormwater Utility Feasibility Study Section 3–Estimation of ERUs and Rates 
 


 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.® 3-4 
R:\MAD\Documents\Reports\Archive\2010\Stoughton, WI\SW UFS.1040.051.mks.jun\Report\S3.doc\062510 


3.02 POTENTIAL RATE STRUCTURE 
 
A. General 
 
One of the primary considerations in creation of a stormwater utility is identification of parameters used 
to establish stormwater utility rates. To be legally viable, parameters included in the rate structure must 
have a direct relationship to the amount of stormwater runoff draining from a parcel. Parameters most 
impacting stormwater runoff from a parcel include the following: 
 


1. Parcel size.  
2. Impervious area (rooftops, parking lots). 
3. Percent developed. 
4. Land use. 
5. Impervious area “connectedness.” 
6. Slope. 
7. Soil type. 
8. Type of drainage system. 


 
Most stormwater utilities in Wisconsin and throughout the country use parcel size and/or impervious 
area to determine utility fees. This is because the relationship between these parameters and 
stormwater runoff volumes is typically the most apparent and understandable to the general public. 
Some utilities, such as the City of Madison, also charge a small fee based on pervious area. 
 
B. Impervious Area-Based Rate Structures 
 
Rate structures based exclusively on the amount of impervious area on a parcel are the most common 
types in Wisconsin and throughout the country. These generally fall into either a flat residential rate 
approach or a tiered residential rate approach. A “flat rate” approach typically consists of assignment of 
one ERU to each single-family residential parcel. An ERU is considered to be the average impervious 
area present on a single-family residential parcel based on measurement of a random sampling of 
residential parcels within the service area. ERUs are assigned to nonresidential parcels based on 
dividing the actual measured impervious area by the average impervious area for a typical single-family 
residential parcel. For example, if one ERU is based on an average residential impervious area of 
4,500 square feet, then a nonresidential parcel with 45,000 square feet of measured impervious area 
would be assigned 10 ERUs (45,000 square feet divided by 4,500 square feet = 10 ERUs). In this way, 
a nonresidential parcel having ten times the amount of impervious area of a typical single-family 
residential parcel will pay ten times the average residential charge for stormwater management. 
 
The primary benefit of this approach is that it is easy to calculate and generally understandable to the 
public. The primary disadvantage is that all residential properties are treated equally. In other words, a 
single-family residential parcel having a 3,000-square-foot house would pay the same as a parcel 
having a 1,500-square-foot house. This may not be perceived as equitable by the public. 
 
A “tiered” approach is a variation on the flat rate approach. In a tiered approach, additional 
classifications are added to address differences in single-family residential parcel impacts. For 
example, Janesville added a secondary single-family residential tier for parcels less than 7,700 square 







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
Stormwater Utility Feasibility Study Section 3–Estimation of ERUs and Rates 
 


 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.® 3-5 
R:\MAD\Documents\Reports\Archive\2010\Stoughton, WI\SW UFS.1040.051.mks.jun\Report\S3.doc\062510 


feet. Parcels in this tier are assigned 0.7 ERUs, based on the estimated ratio of impervious area in this 
class to the overall single-family residential average impervious area. This approach has the benefit of 
improving the perceived equity among single-family residential customers, based on relative single-
family residential impervious area. 
 
Another variation in the tiered approach would be charging all parcels, whether residential or 
nonresidential, based on the actual measured impervious area. While this approach maximizes equity 
from parcel to parcel, it can be more difficult and expensive to administer. Note that any change in 
impervious area on a property (for instance, addition of a concrete patio) would change that customer’s 
stormwater utility fee. This, in turn, would increase the utilities record keeping and database 
maintenance costs. 
 
C. Rate Structure Analysis for City of Stoughton Stormwater Utility 
 
Several factors have been considered in developing the City of Stoughton stormwater utility rate 
structure. The rate structure must: 


 
1. Generate adequate revenue to fund the City’s stormwater management program. 
 
2. Equitably charge a customer based on the impact the property owned by the customer 


has on the actual cost of the City’s stormwater management program costs. 
 
3. Be understandable to the public. 
 
4. Be relatively easy and inexpensive to administer. 
 
5. Be legally defensible. 


 
Based on discussions with the TAC members, it was generally agreed that the rate structure should be 
based on impervious area with a flat rate assigned to the single-family residential class. Based on the 
data illustrated in Figure 3.01-1, the majority of single-family residential parcels (95 percent) are 
between 1/8 acre and 1/2 acre. This data seems to support that there is not a need to establish a tiered 
rate structure. Therefore, this analysis is based on the flat rate approach as discussed in Section 3.02B. 
 
Under a flat single-family residential approach, stormwater service charges are based on ERUs. One 
ERU equals the average impervious area on a typical single-family residential property (3,105 square 
feet). Single-family residential parcels are assigned one ERU. The fee for nonresidential (including 
multifamily parcels) is based on the measured or estimated number of ERUs on each nonresidential 
parcel. The number of ERUs is calculated by dividing the total estimated impervious area on that parcel 
by the typical single-family residential impervious area.  


 
Table 3.02-1 summarizes the ERU estimate for the City, based on this approach. As indicated in Table 
3.02-1, this approach estimates approximately 7,838 ERUs for the City, prior to distribution of credits. 
With consideration of a 10 percent reduction in the ERU count to nonresidential properties for future 
credits, the total ERU count is approximately 7,377. Approximately 49 percent of the total ERUs are 
residential (including multifamily) and 51 percent nonresidential. The annual stormwater user fee for 







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
Stormwater Utility Feasibility Study Section 3–Estimation of ERUs and Rates 
 


 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.® 3-6 
R:\MAD\Documents\Reports\Archive\2010\Stoughton, WI\SW UFS.1040.051.mks.jun\Report\S3.doc\062510 


each ERU is based on the total annual stormwater utility costs divided by the total number of ERUs 
assigned to all properties in the Stormwater Utility Service Area. 


 


 
 
The following Stormwater Utility rate structure was generally endorsed by the TAC members and would 
include the following customer rate classes: 
 


1. Residential–single-family unit: 1.0 ERU 
 
2. Residential–duplex: 0.5 ERU multiplied by each dwelling unit.  
 
3. Residential–multifamily: (including apartments greater than or equal to three Units, 


Condominiums, and Mobile Homes). The charge per unit shall be calculated by dividing 
the number of ERUs calculated for the entire property by the number of units existing on 
the property 


 
4. Nonresidential: One ERU times a factor obtained by dividing the total impervious area of 


the property by the square footage equivalent for one ERU. Such impervious area shall 
be determined based upon the best information reasonably available. The result shall be 
rounded down to the nearest one-tenth (0.1). The minimum charges for any 
nonresidential parcel shall be equal to the rate for one (1) ERU, unless it contains no 
impervious surface. 


 
5. Undeveloped: No stormwater charge shall be assigned to undeveloped land. 


 


 


Land Use 
Class 


Number 
of 


Parcels 


Parcel 
Area 


(acres)


Nonsingle-Family 
Residential 


Impervious Area  
(sq ft) 


Estimated 
ERUs Before 


Credits* 


Estimated 
ERUs After 


Credits 


Percent 
of Total 
ERUs 


Single-Family 
Residential 3,005 776 -- 3,005 3,005 40.7
Duplex 267 83 -- 220 220 3.0
Multifamily 
Residential 146 111 1,440,256 464 418 5.7
Commercial 426 157 3,667,997 1,181 1,063 14.4
Manufacturing 121 296 6,700,915 2,159 1,943 26.3
Tax Exempt 142 467 2,510,205 809 728 9.9
Other 353 107 0 0 0 0


Total 4,460 1,997 14,319,373 7,838 7,377 100
*1 ERU = 3,105 square feet of average residential impervious area. 
 
Table 3.02-1  Estimated ERUs 







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
Stormwater Utility Feasibility Study Section 3–Estimation of ERUs and Rates 
 


 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.® 3-7 
R:\MAD\Documents\Reports\Archive\2010\Stoughton, WI\SW UFS.1040.051.mks.jun\Report\S3.doc\062510 


3.03 ESTIMATED STORMWATER USER FEES 
 
A. User Fee Estimate Based on 2011 Budget 
 
The estimated stormwater user fee was calculated based on the assumption that a flat user fee 
approach would be implemented, as described in Section 3.02. User fees have been estimated based 
on the current 2011 stormwater management budget that was presented in Table 1.04-5.  
 
The rate per ERU is calculated by dividing the total revenue that must be generated for the stormwater 
system by the total number of ERUs within the utility district. The total number of ERUs based on the 
land use analysis is 7,377 ERUs (assuming a 10 percent reduction in calculated ERUs to account for 
future credits and exemptions). Based on 7,377 ERUs, the user fee necessary to support the 2011 
stormwater management budget of $960,737 would be $130.23. This means the annual stormwater 
management fee for a typical single-family residential user (1 ERU) would be $130.23/year or 
$10.85 per month. 
 
Table 3.03-1 summarizes the estimated revenue based on a range of ERU costs from $4 to $10.85 a 
month ($48.00 to $130.23 a year). 


 


 
 


B. User Fee Estimate Based on Future Stormwater Management Budget 
 
Section 1 presented the preliminary stormwater management budget estimate for 2011 through 2025 
(Table 1.04-5), including compliance with new regulatory requirements. Table 3.03-1 estimates 
potential stormwater utility fees to generate revenue to cover these anticipated costs. Table 3.03-2 
indicates potential stormwater utility fees ranging from approximately $8.38 per ERU per month to 
approximately $10.85 per ERU per month over the planning period. Estimated rates vary based on the 
anticipated program budget for each year. Note that the budget values reported include debt service 
from projects completed prior to 2011.  


Monthly ERU Charge Annual ERU Charge ERUs Potential Revenue Generated 
$4.00 $48.00 7,377 $354,090 
$5.00 $60.00 7,377 $442,613 
$5.28 $63.36 7,377 $467,513 
$6.00 $72.00 7,377 $531,135 
$7.00 $84.00 7,377 $619,658 
$8.00 $96.00 7,377 $708,180 
$9.00 $108.00 7,377 $796,716 


$10.00 $120.00 7,377 $885,240 
$10.85 $130.23 7,377 $960,737 


 
Table 3.03-1 Potential Revenue Based on Monthly and Annual ERU Charge 







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
Stormwater Utility Feasibility Study Section 3–Estimation of ERUs and Rates 
 


 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.® 3-8 
R:\MAD\Documents\Reports\Archive\2010\Stoughton, WI\SW UFS.1040.051.mks.jun\Report\S3.doc\062510 


 
 
To gauge how these projected stormwater utility fees compared with other active stormwater utilities in 
Wisconsin, available data from APWA’s Stormwater User Charge System Information Database was 
reviewed. Based on this data, the average annual cost per ERU for the 71 active utilities in Wisconsin is 
approximately $49 an ERU, which is significantly less than the projected annual rates for the City of 
Stoughton. This discrepancy can likely be explained because many communities have chosen to 
gradually phase in their stormwater utility fees. Based on discussions with the TAC members, they 
were in favor of evaluating methods to better phase in stormwater utility fees. This budget approach 
has the advantage of easing the transition to user fees for those property owners that would pay more 
under a user fee funding method, especially large businesses such as Stoughton Trailers and 
tax-exempt organizations. 
 


Year Estimated Budget ERUs Annual Fee/ERU Monthly Fee/ERU 
2011 $960,737 7,377 $130.23 $10.85 
2012 $913,826 7,377 $123.88 $10.32 
2013 $876,140 7,377 $118.77 $9.90 


2014 $895,895 7,377 $121.44 $10.12 


2015 $768,900 7,377 $104.23 $8.69 


2016 $837,768 7,377 $113.56 $9.46 


2017 $856,322 7,377 $116.08 $9.67 


2018 $866,076 7,377 $117.40 $9.78 


2019 $837,654 7,377 $113.55 $9.46 


2020 $776,961 7,377 $105.32 $8.78 


2021 $742,157 7,377 $100.60 $8.38 


2022 $751,225 7,377 $101.83 $8.49 


2023 $788,294 7,377 $106.86 $8.90 


2024 $817,447 7,377 $110.81 $9.23 


2025 $855,374 7,377 $115.95 $9.66 
Note: Costs are in given year dollars. 
 
Table 3.03-2  Projected Annual Stormwater Utility Fees–Total Stormwater Budget   







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
Stormwater Utility Feasibility Study Section 3–Estimation of ERUs and Rates 
 


 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.® 3-9 
R:\MAD\Documents\Reports\Archive\2010\Stoughton, WI\SW UFS.1040.051.mks.jun\Report\S3.doc\062510 


 
 
One budget model that was discussed would only include debt service for new capital improvement 
projects in the stormwater utility budget. The debt service for projects prior to 2011 would remain on the 
City’s tax roll and be paid for with general funds. Table 3.03-3 presents the average annual and 
monthly fee per ERU required to meet the estimated annual stormwater program budget if debt service 
payments are included for only new capital improvement expenditures. Under this fee structure, the 
estimated operating budget for 2011 would be $467,513 and would equate to a much lower initial 
annual fee per ERU of $63.37. The operating budget and associated annual fees per ERU would 
gradually increase over the following several years until the entire stormwater program budget would be 
phased in by 2020. This budget model is illustrated in Figure 3.03-2. The TAC members were generally 
more in favor of this phased-in stormwater fee approach.   


 
Note:  Based on APWWA January 6, 2010, WI Stormwater User Charge System Information Database. 


Total Utilities = 71, Ave. $/ERU = $49 
 
Figure 3.03-1  Average Cost Per ERU for Wisconsin Communities 







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
Stormwater Utility Feasibility Study Section 3–Estimation of ERUs and Rates 
 


 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.® 3-10 
R:\MAD\Documents\Reports\Archive\2010\Stoughton, WI\SW UFS.1040.051.mks.jun\Report\S3.doc\062510 


FIGURE 3.03-2 
 
COMPARISON OF ESTIMATED ANNUAL COST PER ERU-FINANCING VERSUS NO FINANCING OF CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 


 


 







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
Stormwater Utility Feasibility Study Section 3–Estimation of ERUs and Rates 
 


 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.® 3-11 
R:\MAD\Documents\Reports\Archive\2010\Stoughton, WI\SW UFS.1040.051.mks.jun\Report\S3.doc\063010 


 
 
Based on additional discussions, the TAC members came to a consensus that further phasing should 
be considered to make the stormwater fee more palatable in the first few years. The TAC members 
recommended phasing the budget shown in Table 3.03-3 in the first three years based on percentages 
as follows: 33.3 percent in 2011, 66.7 percent in 2012, and up to 100 percent in 2013. This equates to 
annual fees per ERU of $21.12, $45.79, and $70.24, respectively, for 2011, 2012, and 2013. 


Year Estimated Budget ERUs Annual Fee/ERU Monthly Fee/ERU 
2011 $467,513 7,377 $63.37 $5.28 
2012 $506,649 7,377 $68.68 $5.72 
2013 $518,133 7,377 $70.24 $5.85 
2014 $537,889 7,377 $72.91 $6.08 
2015 $549,233 7,377 $74.45 $6.20 
2016 $618,100 7,377 $83.79 $6.98 
2017 $657,552 7,377 $89.14 $7.43 
2018 $697,177 7,377 $94.51 $7.88 
2019 $736,979 7,377 $99.90 $8.33 
2020 $776,961 7,377 $105.32 $8.78 
2021 $742,157 7,377 $100.60 $8.38 
2022 $751,225 7,377 $101.83 $8.49 
2023 $788,294 7,377 $106.86 $8.90 
2024 $817,447 7,377 $110.81 $9.23 
2025 $855,374 7,377 $115.95 $9.66 


Note: Costs are in given year dollars. 
 
Table 3.03-3 Projected Annual Stormwater Utility Fees with Only New Capital Improvements 


Financed 







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
Stormwater Utility Feasibility Study Section 3–Estimation of ERUs and Rates 
 


 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.® 3-12 
R:\MAD\Documents\Reports\Archive\2010\Stoughton, WI\SW UFS.1040.051.mks.jun\Report\S3.doc\062510 


3.04 SERVICE AREA, RESPONSIBILITIES, AND CREDITS 
 
A. Stormwater Utility Service Area and Responsibilities 
 
The projected stormwater utility service area is primarily the area within the Stoughton city limits. In 
addition, subdivisions abutting the city limits that drain into the city involving city maintenance activities 
could be added with development of an intermunicipal agreement.  
 
The utility has the following primary goals: 


 
1. Provide a more equitable means of funding the City’s stormwater management program. 
 
2. Provide nonproperty tax-based revenues for the operation and maintenance of the City’s 


stormwater management program. 
 
3. Provide a mechanism to fund the City’s future stormwater needs, including new WDNR 


requirements and remedial storm sewer improvements. 
 


The following are the anticipated responsibilities of the stormwater utility: 
 
1. Develop and administer programs and practices to reduce sediment, heavy metals, 


pesticides, nutrients, bacteria, and oxygen-demanding organic waste from pollutant 
“source areas” that have been recognized as a cause of water quality degradation in the 
City’s rivers, lakes, ponds, and other water resources. These programs and practices 
are necessary for compliance with mandated USEPA and WDNR nonpoint source 
pollution control rules and local stormwater management and erosion control 
ordinances. 


 
2. Fund and administer stormwater management operation and maintenance activities. 


Activities include cleaning and routine repair of ditches, detention basins, greenways, 
storm sewers, catch basins, manholes, streambanks and associated facilities, street 
sweeping, leaf collection, and construction of stormwater treatment, detention, and 
conveyance facilities serving a public purpose.  


 
3. Respond to customer billing and service inquiries. 
 


Prior to implementation of the stormwater utility, it is recommended the City develop an organizational 
structure identifying how the utility will be staffed and governed. It is anticipated the Stoughton Common 
Council would be the governing authority over the stormwater utility. In addition, it is currently 
anticipated the stormwater utility would be primarily an organizational entity utilizing existing City staff, 
equipment, and facilities. 
  
B. Credits and Exemptions 
 
If the City moves forward with stormwater utility implementation, we recommend developing a credit 
policy to address nonstandard properties or properties that have implemented measures to reduce 







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
Stormwater Utility Feasibility Study Section 3–Estimation of ERUs and Rates 
 


 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.® 3-13 
R:\MAD\Documents\Reports\Archive\2010\Stoughton, WI\SW UFS.1040.051.mks.jun\Report\S3.doc\062510 


impacts of stormwater runoff on City costs. As a component of this policy, we recommend establishing 
the fee structure after the rate structure agreement reached between the City of Eau Claire and the 
Public Service Commission (PSC) in resolving a complaint by the Plainwell Tissue Corporation. The 
fact the rate structure agreement has been approved by the PSC lends credibility to its fairness. 
 
Proposed features of the agreement are further described. The stormwater user fee should include 
three distinct components: 
 


1. Base Component 
 


The base component includes the stormwater utility’s estimated annual administrative and 
management costs, water quality costs, and other miscellaneous costs. Costs associated with 
mandated WDNR permit requirements are included in the base component. 


 
2. O&M Component 


 
The O&M component includes the utility’s estimated annual O&M costs for the City’s stormwater 
management system, including storm sewer and detention basin maintenance, street sweeping, 
and so on. 
 
3. Capital and Debt Service Component 


 
This includes capital costs and debt service payments for the City’s stormwater management 
system. 
 


Such a structure would enable the City to recover “citywide” costs such as USEPA compliance and 
utility administrative costs from all customers. Fees directly attributable to maintenance of the existing 
stormwater management system could be reduced if all or a portion of a customer’s property does not 
utilize the City’s stormwater management system. 
 
The PSC ruling on the City of Eau Claire versus Plainwell Tissue Corporation complaint concludes that 
consideration must be given to “private investment that aids in controlling storm and surface water 
quality and quantity” when establishing user fee rates. The ruling states that “...where a nonresidential 
resident has significant surface area that is not being directly served by City-owned infrastructure, the 
City must have in place a user charge system that makes reasonable provision to address this 
circumstance.” 
 
With consideration of this ruling, we recommend considering a rate structure that allows for reduction of 
a portion of the stormwater utility fee to nonresidential customers having property that does not use a 
City-owned facility. 
 
Based on this ruling, the rate structure should allow waiver, upon customer request, of a portion of the 
O&M and/or the Debt Service component costs provided: 
 


1. The discharge is direct and not through any form of conveyance system owned or 
operated by the stormwater utility. 


 







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
Stormwater Utility Feasibility Study Section 3–Estimation of ERUs and Rates 
 


 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.® 3-14 
R:\MAD\Documents\Reports\Archive\2010\Stoughton, WI\SW UFS.1040.051.mks.jun\Report\S3.doc\062510 


2. The drainage is not in violation of any environmental code or federal, state, or local 
surface water drainage requirements. 


 
It is assumed that direct discharge to a facility or drainageway that does not ultimately discharge to a 
facility owned or maintained by the City is the only activity that would enable consideration of this 
reduction. Determination of the portion that could be allowed for this fee adjustment was discussed by 
the TAC members. It was stated that although stormwater runoff from a nonresidential property may not 
enter a City-owned or -operated conveyance system, the total suspended solids (TSS) loading still 
contributes to the Citywide TSS loading that must be reduced and managed. Furthermore, although a 
nonresidential parcel may directly discharge into township lands, in certain cases, this runoff will still 
ultimately be directed to the Yarara River, portions of which are maintained by the City. Should 
implementation of the utility proceed, further evaluation and refinement of a system of adjustments is 
suggested. 
 
The City may wish to consider implementing a system of credits for other activities. Some criteria for 
credits used in other stormwater utilities around the country include property location with respect to 
outfall, extraordinary practices or activities that benefit the system, practices that reduce the impact of a 
new development on the drainage system, credits for certain classes of rate payers, and credits for 
certain classes of property. 
 
We recommend that any credit system established by the City relate directly to development impacts 
on City stormwater management costs. A practice such as providing stormwater detention to address a 
downstream flooding issue would be valid criteria for granting a credit because it could reduce future 
City infrastructure costs associated with downstream drainage improvements. 
 
We do not recommend allowing credits for land characteristics or practices not associated with 
stormwater runoff. Examples of this would be credits based on classes of property or classes of rate 
payers (for example churches or low-income residents). Exempting classes of rate payers or properties 
on any basis other than impacts on the system may violate the fundamental basis of the user fee 
system. 
 
Before implementation of the stormwater utility, the City should develop a written policy documenting 
the following: 
 


1. Activities, if any, that qualify a customer for a user fee credit. 
2. Amount of credit to be given for selected activities. 
3. Process of how credits should be calculated and implemented. 
 


The TAC members discussed various potential credit policies for consideration and generally came to 
the following conclusions: 
 


1. Single-family residential rate payers should be eligible for a one-time rebate for 
implementing measures such as a rain garden or a rain barrel. Continuous annual 
credits to residential rate payers were not recommended because of difficulties with 
administration and enforcement. 







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
Stormwater Utility Feasibility Study Section 3–Estimation of ERUs and Rates 
 


 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.® 3-15 
R:\MAD\Documents\Reports\Archive\2010\Stoughton, WI\SW UFS.1040.051.mks.jun\Report\S3.doc\062510 


2. The TAC members were generally in favor of implementing an education credit that 
could be available to public and private schools that educate and inform their students 
about the importance of our surface and groundwater resources. 


 
3. Partial credits should be available to nonresidential rate payers for implementing water 


quantity (peak flow reduction) and water quality measures, thereby lessening the burden 
on the City’s stormwater system. The TAC members were in agreement that no hard cap 
should be set on how much of a credit a nonresidential rate payer should be eligible for. 
In cases where a property owner is capable of providing measures that would exceed a 
hard cap, a proper incentive would instead be in place to benefit both the property owner 
and the City. 


 
4. The TAC members generally endorsed the credit policy outlined in Table 3.04-1. 
 


 
 


Peak Flow Reduction Credit  
Device Allowable Credit 


Detention, Infiltration or Other Peak Flow 
Reduction Method Based on 2- and 10-Year 
Peak Flow (Percent Reduction) 


None 


Subtotal 50% 
  
Stormwater Quality Credit  


Device Allowable Credit 
Wet Pond Up to 50% 
Infiltration Basin, Infiltration Strips, Rain Gardens, 
Bioretention Up to 40% 


In-Line Proprietary Stormwater Treatment Device Up to 30% 
Oil/Water separators, replaceable inlet inserts Up to 20% 


Subtotal 50% 
  
Stormwater Education Credit Allowable Credit 
Available to private and public schools where 
water resources and land stewardship curriculum 
is being taught. 


Up to 25% 


  
  


TOTAL No maximum on O&M and Capital & Debt Service 
 
Table 3.04-1 Potential Credit Policy 







 
SECTION 4 


EVALUATION OF STORMWATER UTILITY IMPACTS 







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
Stormwater Utility Feasibility Study Section 4–Evaluation of Stormwater Utility Impacts 
 


 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.® 4-1 
R:\MAD\Documents\Reports\Archive\2010\Stoughton, WI\SW UFS.1040.051.mks.jun\Report\S4.doc\062510 


4.01 POSSIBLE COST REALLOCATION UNDER A STORMWATER UTILITY 
 


Table 4.01-1 compares the relative contribution of each land use sector to stormwater system funding 
under a property tax-based system versus a user fee-based system. This comparison is based on the 
“phased-in” 2011 stormwater program budget of $467,513 (i.e., debt service from past capital projects 
stays on the tax roll). Table 4.01-1 indicates that conversion from a tax-based to a user fee-based 
system would shift the primary burden for funding the stormwater management system from the 
residential to the nonresidential sector. This is also shown in Figure 4.01-1. For the 2011 budget, a user 
fee-based system would reduce the total residential contribution to stormwater management system 
funding from approximately $355,000 to $231,000. This would reduce the overall percentage of the 
budget funded by the residential sector from approximately 76 percent to approximately 49 percent. 
This is consistent with the relative proportion of impervious surface area in the residential sector 
compared to the nonresidential sector. Also, data in Table 4.01-1 shows that conversion to a user 
fee-based system would provide approximately $46,000 from tax-exempt parcels. 
 


 
 


Real Estate 
Class 


Estimated 2011 Contribution to Stormwater System Funding 


Reallocation 
Dollars Percentage 


Tax Based Fee Based Reallocation Tax Based Fee Based 
Residential    
    Single-Family  $303,279   $190,443 ($112,836) 64.9% 40.7% (24.2%) 
    Duplex $24,834 $13,943 ($10,891) 5.3% 3.0% (2.3%) 
    Multifamily  $27,263   $26,465 ($798) 5.8% 5.7% (0.1%) 
Subtotal  $355,376   $230,851 76.0% 49.4%  
       


Commercial  $87,162   $67,402 ($19,760) 18.6% 14.4% (4.3%) 
Manufacturing  $17,323   $123,133 105,810 3.7% 26.3% 22.6% 
Subtotal $104,485 $190,535 22.3% 40.8%  
       


Tax-Exempt 
(Church) $0  $6,377 $6,377 0.0% 1.4% 1.4% 
Tax-Exempt 
(City) $0  $8,943 $8,943 0.0% 1.9% 1.9% 
Tax-Exempt 
(Federal) $0  $297 $297 0.0% 0.1% 0.1% 
Tax-Exempt 
(School) $0  $30,510 $30,510 0.0% 6.5% 6.5% 
Subtotal $0 $46,127 0.0% 9.9%  
       


Agricultural  $56  $0 ($56) 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 
Undeveloped  $0  $0 $0 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 
Subtotal $56 $0 0.0% 0.0%  
       


Personal 
Property  $7,596  $0 ($7,956) 1.6% 0.0% (1.6%) 


Total $467,513 $467,513  100.0% 100.0%   
 
Table 4.01-1 Reallocation of Fee-Based Funding Versus Tax-Based Funding 







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
Stormwater Utility Feasibility Study Section 4–Evaluation of Stormwater Utility Impacts 
 


 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.® 4-2 
R:\MAD\Documents\Reports\Archive\2010\Stoughton, WI\SW UFS.1040.051.mks.jun\Report\S4.doc\062510 


 
 
4.02 COMPARISON OF STORMWATER UTILITY IMPACTS ON INDIVIDUAL PROPERTIES 
 
Impacts of conversion to a user fee-based method of stormwater system funding were evaluated for 
various residential, commercial, industrial, and tax-exempt properties. To provide a comparison, the 
following analysis is based on the 2011 stormwater budget of $467,513, the 2009 mill rate of $7.28 per 
$1,000 of assessed value, and an estimated 7,377 ERUs. Results of this evaluation based on the 2011 
stormwater management budget are summarized in Table 4.02-1. 
 
Individual properties analyzed included small, average, and large single-family residential parcels. For 
each single-family residential category, the approximate average assessed value, based on the 2009 
assessor’s database, was used. Results indicate the stormwater contribution from each typical 
residential parcel would be lower under a stormwater utility than under the present property-tax based 
system. The annual reduction under a fee-based system would be about $30 per residential parcel.  
 
Relative impacts of tax funding versus stormwater utility funding were compared at the Castleberg 
Apartment complex and WPA LLC Apartments (multifamily residential) at 729 Lincoln Avenue and 
915 S. Page Street, respectively. Results indicate a reduction of approximately $51 and an increase of 
$7, respectively, under a stormwater utility in comparison with the current property tax-based system at 
this property. 
 


64.9%


5.3% 5.8%


22.3%


0.0% 0.0%
1.6%


40.7%


3.0%
5.7%


40.8%


9.9%


0.0% 0.0%
0%


10%


20%


30%


40%


50%


60%


70%


Single Family 
Residential


Duplex Multifamily 
Residential


Non Residential Tax Exempt Other Personal Property


Pe
rc


en
t o


f B
ud


ge
t


Real Estate Class


Tax-Based


Fee-Based


 
 
Figure 4.01-1 Reallocation of Funding Contribution by Class Under a Stormwater Utility 







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
Stormwater Utility Feasibility Study Section 4–Evaluation of Stormwater Utility Impacts 
 


 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.® 4-3 
R:\MAD\Documents\Reports\Archive\2010\Stoughton, WI\SW UFS.1040.051.mks.jun\Report\S4.doc\062510 


A variety of commercial and manufacturing properties were also evaluated including Walmart 
Department Store, Associated Bank, Fosdal Bakery, Ortega, Diversitech, Inc., and Stoughton Trailer. 
With the exception of Fosdal Bakery, the comparative analysis indicates that the stormwater 
contribution would increase for each of the nonresidential properties analyzed. Fosdal Bakery is 
representative of a relatively small downtown business and would realize a decrease of approximately 
$11 per year.   
 
The most significant impact of conversion to a stormwater fee-based system will be to Stoughton 
Trailers, which has approximately 1,081 ERUs over ten parcels. This number of ERUs equates to 
approximately 15 percent of the total impervious area within the City of Stoughton. The resultant annual 
increase that Stoughton Trailers would encounter in 2011 is approximately $63,000. 
 
Tax-exempt parcels such as the City of Stoughton, Stoughton School District, and area churches would 
also experience significant increases under a fee-based system. Analysis of these parcels indicates 
potential increases ranging from approximately $786 a year for First Lutheran Church to $33,900 for 
Stoughton School District. 
 
It should be noted this analysis does not consider potential reductions in fees that specific properties 
listed above may be eligible for from credits for measures such as detention basins.  
 







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
Stormwater Utility Feasibility Study Section 4–Evaluation of Stormwater Utility Impacts 
 


 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.® 4-4 
R:\MAD\Documents\Reports\Archive\2010\Stoughton, WI\SW UFS.1040.051.mks.jun\Report\S4.doc\062510 


TABLE 4.02-1 
 
COMPARISON OF POSSIBLE PROPERTY COSTS–TAX-BASED VERSUS FEE BASED 
 


Owner Class 


Tax-Based1 Fee-Based2 


Change3 
Assessed 


Value Rate 
Annual 


Contribution ERUs 
Rate/ 
ERU 


Annual 
Contribution 


Typical Residential Property Single-Family Residential $191,500 $0.000485 $93 1 $63.38 $63 ($30) 


Castleberg Apartments Multifamily Residential $862,400 $0.000485 $419 5.8 $63.38 $368 ($51) 
WPA LLC – Page Street 
Apartments Multifamily Residential $900,000 $0.000485 $437 7.0 $63.38 $444 $7 


Walmart Commercial $2,137,000 $0.000485 $1,037 63.2 $63.38 $4,005 $2,968 


Associated Bank Commercial $1,190,600 $0.000485 $578 11.2 $63.38 $710 $132 


Fosdal Bakery Commercial $152,700 $0.000485 $74 1.0 $63.38 $63 ($11) 


Stoughton Trailers (10 Parcels) Manufacturing $11,906,000 $0.000485 $5,778 1,081.4 $63.38 $68,534 $62,756 


Ortega (3 Parcels) Industrial $1,540,500 $0.000485 $748 62.0 $63.38 $3,929 $3,182 


Diversitech, Inc. (3 Parcels) Industrial $1,484,000 $0.000485 $720 13.9 $63.38 $881 $161 


Venevoll (15 Parcels) Tax-Exempt/Commercial $5,331,500 $0.000485 $2,587 112.3 $63.38 $7,117 $4,530 


First Lutheran Church Tax-Exempt $0 $0.000485 $0 12.4 $63.38 $786 $786 


Stoughton Hospital (15 Parcels) Tax-Exempt $0 $0.000485 $0 32.5 $63.38 $2,060 $2,060 
Stoughton School District 
(9 Parcels) Tax-Exempt $0 $0.000485 $0 534.9 $63.38 $33,900 $33,900 


City of Stoughton (120 Parcels) Tax-Exempt $0 $0.000485 $0 156.8 $63.38 $9,937 $9,937 
1 Based on the 2009 City Budget of $7,015,800 (mill rate = $7.28 per $1,000 value) and a 2011 Stormwater Management Budget of $467,513. 
2 Based on an estimated 2011 Stormwater Management Budget of $467,513 and 1 ERU = 3,105 square feet of impervious area. 
3 Does not consider possible reductions from credits or other adjustments. 







 


 


 
APPENDIX A 


APWA SURVEY RESULTS 
 







WI Stormwater User Charge System Information
Representative Wisconsin Communities


January 6, 2010


Y/ N


Max 


Amount


Allouez (Village)        15,443 2006          3,663 www.villageofallouez.com


Appleton (City)        70,293 1995          2,368  $     108.88 Y 77% www.appleton.org


Baraboo (City)        10,771 2005          2,379  $       46.87 www.cityofbaraboo.com


Barron (City)          3,250 2005       10,850  $       24.00 Y 75% www.barronwi.us


Bellevue (Village)        14,386 2002          3,221  $       48.00 Y 100% www.bellevue-wi.com


Beloit (City)        35,803 2006          3,347  $       24.00 beloit.govoffice3.com/


Brown Deer (Village)        11,895 2004          3,257  $       91.80 N www.browndeerwi.org


Butler (Village)          1,885 1999          3,032  $       66.00 www.butlerwi.gov/


Chetek (City)          2,180 2005  $       27.00 Y www.chetek.net


Chippewa Falls (City)        13,374 2005  $       36.00 www.ci.chippewa-falls.wi.us


Cudahy (City)        18,430 2001          2,700  $       48.00  Y  $2/ ERU www.ci.cudahy.wi.us


De Forest (Village)          7,400 2005          2,900  $       60.00 www.vi.deforest.wi.us/


Delafield (City)          7,820 2004  $       29.00 www.cityofdelafield.com/


De Pere (City)        20,560 2003  $       47.00 www.de-pere.org/


Eau Claire (City)        62,576 1997          3,000  $       62.00  Y 100% www.ci.eau-claire.wi.us


Elm Grove (Village)          6,250 2004          6,235  $       65.50 www.elmgrovewi.org


Fitchburg (City) - Urban        19,000 2002          3,700  $       52.20  Y www.city.fitchburg.wi.us


Fitchburg (City) - Rural          4,000 2002          3,700 www.city.fitchburg.wi.us


Garner's Creek (watershed) 1998          3,623  $       96.00 Y 85% Combined Locks, Buchanan, Harrison


Glendale (City)        13,400 1996          2,609  $       42.00 N ‡ www.glendale-wi.org


Grand Chute (Town)        20,200 1997          3,283  $       48.00 Y 85% www.grandchute.net


Grantsburg (Village)          1,397 2004  $       18.00 Y 75% www.grantsburgwi.com


Green Bay (City)      102,350 2004          3,000  $       55.20 Y 67% www.ci.green-bay.wi.us


Greendale (Village)        14,410 2004          3,941  $       78.00 Y 50% www.greendale.org


Greenville  (Town)          8,008 1999          4,510  $       60.00 Y 85% www.townofgreenville.com


Harrison (Town of)          5,800 1998  $       96.00 www.townofharrison.org


Hobart (Village of)          5,834 2007          4,000  $       72.00 Y 50% www.hobart-wi.org/


Holmen (Village of)          7,176 2007          3,550  $       44.00 Y 50% www.homenwi.com


Howard (Village)        15,774 2005          3,301  $       44.00 www.villageofhoward.com


Janesville (City)        61,604 2003          3,200  $       27.36 Y 65% www.ci.janesville.wi.us


Kenosha (City)        96,845 2007          2,477  $       60.00 Y www.kenosha.org


Lake Delton (Village)          2,975 1993          1,685  $       18.00 Y 100% www.lakedelton.org


Lancaster (City)          4,033 2008          3,400  $       24.00 Y www.lancasterwisconsin.com


Lisbon (Town) 2007          6,642  $       40.00 Y 50% www.townoflisbonwi.com


Little Chute (Village)        10,830 1998          2,752  $       96.00 N www.littlechutewi.org


Madison (City)      220,332 2001  Ind'l Msmt  $       55.00 Y 50% www.cityofmadison.com


McFarland (Village)          6,416 2007               3,456  $       46.85 www.mcfarland.wi.us


Menominee (City of)        15,318 2008               3,000  $       32.00 Y 20% www.menomonie-wi.gov/


Milton (City of)          5,667 2009  $       55.13 http://www.ci.milton.wi.us/


Milwaukee (City)      597,000 2006          1,610  $       82.20 Y 60% www.mpw.net


Monona (City)          8,000 2004  NA *  $       60.00 Y 65% www.monona.wi.us


Monroe (City)        10,600 2006          2,728  $       60.00 www.cityofmonroe.org


Neenah (City)        24,600 2003          3,138  $       56.00 www.ci.neenah.wi.us


New Berlin (City)        38,719 2001          4,000  $       60.00 N www.newberlin.org


New Richmond (City)          7,726 2004       12,632  $       28.68 Y 75% www.ci.new-richmond.wi.us


N. Fond du Lac (Village)          4,557 2007          3,123  $       56.00 Y www.nfdl.org


Onalaska (City)        16,690 2009          3,888  $       50.95 Y 40% www.cityofonalaska.com


Onalaska (Town)          5,600 2005          3,709  $       24.00 www.co.la-crosse.wi.us/townofonalaska


Oshkosh (City)        65,000 2003          2,817  $       48.88 Y 40% www.ci.oshkosh.wi.us


Pleasant Prairie (Village)        18,000 2006  $       15.00 www.pleasantprairieonline.com/


Poynette (Village)          2,563 2006          3,550  $       50.00 www.poynette-wi.gov/


Racine (City)        81,855 2004          2,844  $       72.00 Y 40% www.cityofracine.org


Raymond (Town)          3,516 2008  See note - N $0.0036/ sf impervious area


Reedsburg (City of)          8,594 2008          3,024  $       46.00 Y 50% www.reedsburgwi.gov


River Falls (City)        13,019 1998  NA *  $       37.68  Y 100% www.rfcity.org


Salem (Town)          9,871 2009               6,352  $       60.00  Y 50% www.townofsalem.net


Sheboygan (City)        50,800 2001          2,215  $       36.00  Y www.ci.sheboygan.wi.us


Shorewood Hills (Village)          1,732 2007          2,941 www.shorewood-hills.org


Slinger (Village)          3,901 2007          4,300  $       40.00  Y www.slinger-wi-usa.org/


St. Francis (City)          9,373 2001          2,500  $       48.00 www.ci.stfrancis.wi.gov/


Sun Prairie (City)        24,464 2003          3,468  $       60.00 Y 65% www.cityofsunprairie.com/


Superior (City)        27,370 2007          1,907  $       70.80 Y TBD www.ci.superior.wi.us/


Sussex (Village)          9,687 2005  $       60.00 www.village.sussex.wi.us/


Vernon (Town)          7,455 2008          6,904  $       32.00 Y 50% www.rownofvernon.org/


Washburn (City)          2,300 2005  $       48.00 www.cityofwashburn.org/


Watertown (City)        23,163 2005          2,900  $       76.00 www.cityofwatertown.org/


Waupun (City)        10,720 2005          3,204  $       36.00 www.cityofwaupun.org/


Wauwatosa (City)        45,602 1999          2,174  $       55.44 Y 100% www.wauwatosa.net/


West Allis (City)        61,250 1997          1,827  $       63.12 Y 56% www.ci.west-allis.wi.us/


West Milwaukee (Village)          4,142 2003          1,956  $       24.00 Y 75% www.westmilwaukee.org/


Weston (Village)        12,736 2004          3,338  $       47.78 Y 68% www.westonwisconsin.org/


Send updates to jeff.mazanec@rasmithnational.com; matrix developed with supporting information from stormwater professionals state-wide.


Recent 


Population


Name of Community or 


Stormwater District


Wisconsin stormwater user charge information is subject to change! Contact individual communities 


to confirm accuracy - please forward corrections and updates!


Comments/ Web site addresses
Credit Policy?Annual 


$/ERU or 1 


fam homeERU Size (sf)


Created/  


Started in:



http://www.butlerwi.gov/

http://www.vi.deforest.wi.us/

http://www.cityofdelafield.com/

http://www.de-pere.org/

http://www.greendale.org/

http://www.hobart-wi.org/

http://www.homenwi.com/

http://www.lancasterwisconsin.com/

http://www.townoflisbonwi.com/

http://www.cityofmadison.com/

http://www.menomonie-wi.gov/

http://www.cityofonalaska.com/

http://www.co.la-crosse.wi.us/townofonalaska

http://www.pleasantprairieonline.com/

http://www.poynette-wi.gov/

http://www.reedsburgwi.gov/

http://www.townofsalem.net/

http://www.ci.sheboygan.wi.us/

http://www.slinger-wi-usa.org/

http://www.ci.stfrancis.wi.gov/

http://www.cityofsunprairie.com/

http://www.ci.superior.wi.us/

http://www.village.sussex.wi.us/

http://www.rownofvernon.org/

http://www.cityofwashburn.org/

http://www.cityofwatertown.org/

http://www.cityofwaupun.org/

http://www.wauwatosa.net/

http://www.ci.west-allis.wi.us/

http://www.westmilwaukee.org/

http://www.westonwisconsin.org/

http://wisconsin.apwa.net/

http://www.fwwa.org/





��


��


��


�


�
�


��


��


��


�	


��


��


�
��
��
�
��
��
��
	




��� � ��������	�� �
��������
���
	�������� � ����������  ������ ! ��	���
	���"��#	���
�	� � ����� ������������
	$


%������������	
�&�'�


��


��


��


�


�






�


�


�


	


�


��


��


��


�	


��


��


������ ������ ����� ������� ����� ������� ����� ������� ������ ��������


�
��
��
�
��
��
��
	




��(������


��� � ��������	�� �
��������
���
	�������� � ����������  ������ ! ��	���
	���"��#	���
�	� � ����� ������������
	$


%������������	
�&�'�







�


��


�


��


��


��


�


��


��


��


��


��


�
��
��
�
��
��
��
	




������	�� �
���������
��
	�������� � ���������� �������  �	���
	��!"�#	��$
�	� ������� ��������
	%


&�����������	
�'�(�)��*	+�,�����'�,-.


�


��


�


��


��


�


��


�


�


�


�


�


��


��


��


��


��


	
��� ���
� �� ��
� ��� ���
� ��� ���
� ��� ���
� ��� �
���


�
��
��
�
��
��
��
	




!�
���	�����


������	�� �
���������
��
	�������� � ���������� �������  �	���
	��!"�#	��$
�	� ������� ��������
	%


&�����������	
�'�(�)��*	+�,�����'�,-.







$23.52 


$32.00 
$36.00 $36.00 


$44.00 
$46.87 $47.78 $48.00 $48.00 


$60.00


$72.00 


$91.80 
$96.00 


$40.00 


$60.00 


$80.00 


$100.00 


$120.00 


C
o


st
 P


e
r 


E
R


U


ERU Rate
For Communities with Population 10,000 to 20,000


$-


$15.00 


$23.52 


$32.00 
$36.00 $36.00 


$44.00 
$46.87 $47.78 $48.00 $48.00 


$60.00


$72.00 


$91.80 
$96.00 


$-


$20.00 


$40.00 


$60.00 


$80.00 


$100.00 


$120.00 


C
o


st
 P


e
r 


E
R


U


Community


ERU Rate
For Communities with Population 10,000 to 20,000







6


11


15


10


8


10


12


14


16


#
 o


f 
U


ti
li


ti
e


s


Square Feet Per ERU Distribution
(Based on APWWA 1/6/10 WI Stormwater User Charge System Information Database)


Total Utilities = 53 of 71 Utilities Reported SqFt/ERU


Stoughton ERU = 3,105 s.f.


4


6


11


15


10


2


5


0


2


4


6


8


10


12


14


16


< 2,000 2,001 - 2,500 2,501 - 3,000 3,001 - 3,500 3,501 - 4,000 4,001 - 4,500 > 4,500


#
 o


f 
U


ti
li


ti
e


s


Cost Per ERU


Square Feet Per ERU Distribution
(Based on APWWA 1/6/10 WI Stormwater User Charge System Information Database)


Total Utilities = 53 of 71 Utilities Reported SqFt/ERU


Stoughton ERU = 3,105 s.f.







 


 


APPENDIX B 
TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE  


MEETING MINUTES AND COMMENTS 
 







S:\Clerks Office\minutes\STORM UTILITY\Storm Water Technical Advisory Committee Minutes 031010.docx


Ad Hoc Stormwater Utility Technical Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes
Wednesday, March 10, 2010 - 3:00 p.m.
Hall of Fame Room, City Hall, 381 E. Main St., Stoughton, WI.


Members Present: Mayor Jim Griffin, Carl Chenoweth, Director of Planning &
Development Rodney Scheel, Utilities Director Robert Kardasz, Street Superintendent
Karl Manthe, Finance Director Laurie Sullivan, Peter Sveum, Dennis Barkenhagen,
Robert Barnett
Absent and Excused: Scott Sedlacek
Absent: None
Staff:
Press:
None
Guests:
Mark Shubak, Strand Associates, Inc., Steve Sletten, Donna Olson, Pastor Bill Lehman


1. Call to Order The meeting was called to order at 3:00 p.m.


2. Welcome and Introductions Scheel thanked and welcomed everyone for their
participation. Introductions were made.


3. Charge to Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) Members/Expectations Mark
Shubak, Strand Associates, Inc. referred to handout that summarizes the roles and
expectations for each of the TAC members. Six TAC meetings will be held over the
next three months in an effort to evaluate the Feasibility of a Stormwater Feasibility
Study. The TAC will assist in developing a Feasibility Study report that will be
presented to the City Council. The Feasibility Study will include evaluating the
following issues:
a. Potential Stormwater Utility Rate Structures
b. Potential Stormwater User Fees
c. Potential Stormwater Utility Service Area and Responsibilities
d. Potential Credit Policies and exemptions to Reduce Stormwater Utility Fee
e. Potential Stormwater Utility Budget (What will the utility pay for?)
f. Potential Billing System Options


4. Review Past Stormwater Utility Study Efforts and Results (2005) Rodney Scheel
discussed work that had been performed in 2005 to evaluate the feasibility of
implementing a stormwater utility. This work included formation of a TAC,
development of a Feasibility Study Report under the guidance of the TAC, and
development of a Stormwater Utility Ordinance. However, late in 2005, it was
decided by the City Council to not proceed with adoption of the Stormwater Utility
due to potential issues related to stormwater maintenance fees that were being
applied as part of the plat review process. The ordinance governing these fees has
since been amended in the fall of 2009 to remove the stormwater maintenance fee,
thereby allowing the City to re-evaluate implementation of a stormwater utility.


5. Discuss Anticipated Stormwater Utility Implementation Process/Schedule
Mark Shubak, Strand Associates, Inc. referred to a handout that indicated the
anticipated tasks and schedule for implementation of the Stormwater Utility. This







S:\Clerks Office\minutes\STORM UTILITY\Storm Water Technical Advisory Committee Minutes 031010.docx


process will include conducting six TAC meetings over the next three months,
finalizing the feasibility study report and presenting it to the City Council by the end
of May 2010, and concluding implementation tasks by the end of August 2010. This
would allow initial stormwater utility fees to commence in January 2011.


6. Overview of Current Stoughton Stormwater Facilities/Responsibilities Mark
Shubak, Strand Associates, Inc. referred to a handout summarizing the City’s
existing stormwater facilities and stormwater program responsibilities. The
discussion included focusing on the City’s mandated stormwater permit activities,
including Public Education and Outreach, Public Involvement and Participation, Illicit
Discharge Detection Program, Construction Site Erosion Control, Post Construction
Stormwater Management, the City’s Pollution Prevention Program, and Stormwater
Quality Management. Rodney Scheel indicated as part of the City’s stormwater
management planning efforts, the City currently has reduced their City-wide Total
Suspended Solids (TSS) by 31 percent. A Citywide TSS reduction of 40 percent
must be achieved by March 2013. In order to do this, several costly stormwater best
management practices projects will need to be implemented in the next few years to
meet this requirement, placing a significant burden on the City’s budget. Mayor
Griffin stated that the City has reached their tax levy limits and that in order to fund
the required stormwater projects likely would require cutting other City services.


7. Overview/Discussion on Stormwater Utility Organization and Functions Mark
Shubak, Strand Associates, Inc. presented a PowerPoint presentation to the TAC
that included an overview of the City’s current Stormwater Management Program
and how it is funded. The presentation highlighted how a stormwater utility user
charge for a single family residential rate payers would be based on an Equivalent
Runoff Unit (ERU) that represents the average fee for services necessary to manage
stormwater for the average single family residential customer. It was noted that in
the City of Stoughton, it has been estimated that 1 ERU is equal to 3,104 square feet
based on measurement of 206 selected parcels. An example (Associated Bank
property) was given on how non-residential user fees would be computed, based on
measured impervious areas. Comparisons were presented on how much the
Associated Bank property currently pays on an annual basis under the current tax
based system versus how much they would pay under a user fee based system.
Similar comparisons were made for various real estate classes.


8. Next Meeting/Tentative Meeting Dates and Schedule/Agenda Items The group
agreed that Wednesdays at 3:00 p.m. is good time for future meetings. The next
TAC meeting will be on Wednesday, March 24th at 3:00 p.m.


9. Adjournment The meeting adjourned at 5:00 p.m.







S:\Clerks Office\minutes\STORM UTILITY\Storm Water Technical Advisory Committee Minutes 032410.docx


Ad Hoc Stormwater Utility Technical Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes
Wednesday, March 24, 2010 - 3:00 p.m.
Hall of Fame Room, City Hall, 381 E. Main St., Stoughton, WI.


Members Present:
Mayor Jim Griffin, Director of Planning & Development Rodney Scheel, Street
Superintendent Karl Manthe, Utilities Director Robert Kardasz, Peter Sveum, Dennis
Barkenhagen, Scott Sedlacek
Absent and Excused:
Finance Director/Treasurer Laurie Sullivan
Robert Barnett
Absent: Carl Chenoweth
Staff: None
Press:
None
Guests:
Mark Shubak, Strand Associates, Inc., Steve Sletten, Donna Olson


1. Call to Order The meeting was called to order at 3:00 p.m.


2. Meeting Minutes of March 10, 2010 Motion by Kardasz, seconded by Manthe to
approve the minutes. Motion carried unanimously.


3. Overview of Wisconsin Stormwater Utilities Mark Shubak, Strand Associates,
Inc. referred to a handout developed by APWA that summarizes stormwater utility
information for 71 communities in Wisconsin. Shubak noted that this list is not all
inclusive, but provides some useful data including population, date created, ERU
size (square feet), cost per ERU, and credit policy information. Shubak distributed
several bar charts that provided a graphical breakdown of the data from the APWA
handout, including community size distribution and ERU rate distribution for
permitted and non-permitted communities.


4. Review of Eligible Stormwater Utility Administration and O & M Costs


Mark Shubak referred to a handout that summarizes specific administration and
operation and maintenance line items that are typically eligible for inclusion in a
stormwater utility budget. Shubak discussed how stormwater utility budgets are
typically broken down into three primary categories: administration, O&M, and
Capital and Debt Service.


5. Review of 2009 Stormwater Administration and O & M Costs Rodney Scheel
referred to a handout that summarizes estimated City stormwater administration and
operation and maintenance for 2009. Scheel noted that the $70,000 administration
line item is an estimate at this time and that more detailed tracking should be done.
Kardasz stated that tracking of stormwater costs will be very important, such as
having work order numbers for stormwater related tasks.


6. Review of Eligible Stormwater Capital Costs and City’s Stormwater CIP Budget
Shubak referred to a handout that listed specific stormwater capital improvement
costs that are typically eligible for inclusion in a stormwater utility budget. Peter
Sveum noted that many of the items that are listed are items that the City has been







S:\Clerks Office\minutes\STORM UTILITY\Storm Water Technical Advisory Committee Minutes 032410.docx


doing for a long time and that going to a utility would simply be a shift from the tax
roll to a user fee. He felt that only the increase in these costs due to the City’s
mandated permit requirements should be included. Shubak referred to a handout
that listed the City’s projected stormwater CIP through 2016. Scheel noted that the
majority of the projects in the first few years are being driven by the City’s
stormwater permit requirements. It was noted that the average annual stormwater
CIP cost is approximately $345,000. Shubak noted the estimated annual stormwater
utility budget, including administration, O&M, and capital/debt service is
approximately $734,000. This equates to approximately $100 per ERU, which is
significantly higher than average. Shubak then referred to a handout that showed
projected annual debt service payments for future stormwater capital projects. It was
noted that by including only debt service payments of new projects in the budget
would allow for the initial annual cost per ERU to be reduced to about $65 per ERU
for the first year.


7. Discussion of Items to Include in the Stormwater Utility Budget


A round table discussion was held to consider which items should and shouldn’t be
included in the stormwater utility budget. Dennis Barkenhagen noted that yard waste
should be homeowner’s responsibility and that leaf collection should be taken out.
He also noted that the administration cost seems to be too high and should be
reduced. Barkenhagen also noted that when presenting the utility concept, it
shouldn’t just be called a “stormwater” utility, but must include water quality in order
to help sell it to the public. Jim Griffin agreed that yard waste should be taken out of
the budget, but that an attempt to keep all other eligible items in the budget to
remain as transparent as possible. Manthe and Kardasz felt that leaf collection
should definitely be left in the budget. Scheel noted that the estimated administration
cost is appropriate and should not be adjusted down and that leaf collection should
be left in the budget because leaf collection and management is currently part of
their stormwater permit requirements. Scheel agreed that yard waste should be
removed from the budget because there is already an existing user fee that covers
this. Barkenhagen noted that it didn’t appear there is enough budgeted for public
education. Scheel noted the City’s participation in MAMSWap which utilizes a
cooperative approach with other Madison area communities to fulfill their public
education requirements.


8. Next Meeting/Tentative Meeting Dates and Schedule/Agenda Items The next
TAC meeting will be on Wednesday, April 7th at 3:00 p.m. It was requested that a
breakdown of topics be provided for future meetings.


9. Adjournment The meeting was adjourned at 4:55 p.m.







S:\Clerks Office\minutes\STORM UTILITY\Storm Water Technical Advisory Committee Minutes 040710.docx


Ad Hoc Stormwater Utility Technical Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes
Wednesday, April 7, 2010 - 3:00 p.m.
Hall of Fame Room, City Hall, 381 E. Main St., Stoughton, WI.


Members Present: Director of Planning & Development Rodney Scheel, Carl
Chenoweth, Finance Director/Treasurer Laurie Sullivan, Robert Barnett, Utilities
Director Robert Kardasz, Peter Sveum, Dennis Barkenhagen
Absent and Excused: Mayor Jim Griffin, Street Superintendent Karl Manthe
Absent: Scott Sedlacek
Staff:
Press:
None
Guests:
Mark Shubak, Strand Associates, Inc.
Mayor-Elect Donna Olson


1. Call to Order The meeting was called to order at 3:00 p.m.


2. Meeting Minutes of March 24, 2010 The meeting minutes were not included in the
committee packets, so the March 24, 2010 minutes will be approved at the next
meeting.


3. Rescheduling of Future Meetings Rodney Scheel noted that Item No. 6 indicates
the revised schedule for the remaining three TAC meetings. The meetings will each
be pushed back two weeks, with the next meeting now being scheduled for May 5,
2010.


4. Review of Updated Projected Stormwater Utility Budget Mark Shubak referred to
the updated estimated 2009 Stormwater Administration and Operation and
Maintenance Budget. This updated budget reflects removal of the yard waste site
line item, which is already covered by an existing fee. Rodney Scheel stressed that
these budget numbers are based on rough estimates and will need to be refined
upon further development of a final budget. Bob Kardasz noted that he has
estimated that if Stoughton Utilities were to handle the SWU billing on a monthly
basis, it would need to charge the SWU back approximately $30,000 annually.
Robert Barnett inquired what the Administration line item consists of. Rodney Scheel
noted that this line item consists primarily of staff time. Mark Shubak reviewed the
updated Stormwater CIP budget between 2011 and 2016. Rodney Scheel noted that
the CIP has only been approved by the Council for 2010 (not shown) and 2011.
Subsequent years may include additional projects and what it shown is likely subject
to change. Mark Shubak reviewed the project annual payments for future stormwater
CIP projects between 2011 and 2020 and also reviewed the total projected
stormwater utility budget (2011 through 2020). Shubak noted that for the first year of
the utility (2011) there would be an annual cost per ERU of $63.38 and that cost
would gradually increase over subsequent years to include additional debt service
for future stormwater CIP projects. Shubak noted that debt service for past
stormwater CIP projects (2001 through 2010) is not included in this worksheet, but
would likely continue to be paid for under the General Fund. The committee agreed
that it would be good to show these costs under a separate General Fund category.
In order to do this, we will need to estimate the total stormwater debt service







S:\Clerks Office\minutes\STORM UTILITY\Storm Water Technical Advisory Committee Minutes 040710.docx


payments for projects from 2001 through 2010. Lori Sullivan indicated that she will
be able to pull this information together prior to the next meeting.


5. Review of ERU Size (square feet) Graph for Wisconsin Communities Shubak
reviewed a bar graph showing a distribution of the average square feet per ERU for
the 53 Wisconsin communities that reported this information. It was noted that
Stoughton’s 3,105 square feet per ERU is in the “bell curve” or median of other
Wisconsin communities.


6. Discussion of Stormwater Utility Rate Structure Shubak referred to a potential
rate structure handout for the committee to consider. Shubak noted that this rate
structure is based on using the Equivalent Runoff Unit (ERU) methodology, which
bases the fee purely on the amount of impervious surface on a particular parcel.
Shubak noted that other rate structure methodologies exist which also charge for
pervious areas (City of Madison uses this), but this is fairly uncommon and more
difficult and costly to administrate. The potential rate structure presented is based on
a flat rate of 1.0 ERU for single family residential parcels. An alternative to this would
be a tiered rate for single family residential parcels, which would reduce or increase
the annual fee for smaller and larger lot sizes, respectively. This is typically done
when there is wide distribution of lot sizes within a community, which is generally not
the case in Stoughton. Shubak presented a chart that indicates that 85% of the
parcels in the City fall between 1/8-acre and ½-acre. This data supports that
implementing a tiered rate structure likely is not warranted.


7. Review Possible Stormwater Utility Impacts on Selected Properties Shubak
referred to a series of tables and charts that indicated potential stormwater utility
impacts (2011 budget projections) on land use classes and also specific properties.
Peter Sveum voiced his concern what impact the additional stormwater utility fees
would have on the business district, that it may create an “anti business sentiment”.
Carl Chenoweth agreed that impacts to the business district in this economy will be
a big challenge to overcome. Shubak noted that one possibility to lessen the initial
burden on stormwater utility rate payers, including the business district would be
start the fees out at a lower, more palatable amount, thereby giving businesses and
tax exempt properties more time deal with this additional costs, basically a phased
approach. Carl indicated that he will be speaking with his fellow Council-members
about this issue, but feels that this phased approach will need to be considered to
get acceptance. This issue will be discussed further at our next meeting.


8. Next Meeting/Tentative Meeting Dates and Schedule/Agenda Items The next
TAC meeting will be on Wednesday, May 5th at 3:00 p.m.


9. Adjournment The meeting was adjourned at 5:10 p.m.







S:\Clerks Office\minutes\STORM UTILITY\Storm Water Technical Advisory Committee Minutes 050510.docx


Ad Hoc Stormwater Utility Technical Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes
Wednesday, May 5, 2010 - 3:00 p.m.
Hall of Fame Room, City Hall, 381 E. Main St., Stoughton, WI.


Members Present: Director of Planning & Development Rodney Scheel, Finance
Director/Treasurer Laurie Sullivan, Street Superintendent Karl Manthe, Mayor Donna
Olson, Alderman Tim Carter, Ken Wahlin, Utilities Director Robert Kardasz, Peter
Sveum, Dennis Barkenhagen
Absent and Excused: Alderman Carl Chenoweth, Robert Barnett
Absent:
None
Staff:
Press:
None
Guests: Mark Shubak, Strand Associates, Inc., Steve Sletten


1. Call to Order The meeting was called to order at 3:00 p.m.


2. Meeting Minutes of March 24, 2010 and April 7, 2010 Motion by Kardasz,
seconded by Manthe to approve the minutes as presented. Motion carried
unanimously.


3. Review of Updated Projected Stormwater Utility Budget Mark Shubak, Strand
Associates, Inc. referred to updated exhibits which provided the projected
stormwater utility budget, including debt service payments for past capital
improvement projects. The proposed stormwater utility budget being proposed would
not include debt service payments for past capital improvement projects, however
does show the additional cost to the taxpayers to carry the existing debt on the tax
roll. This portion of the budget would be paid for under the general fund. Peter
Sveum noted that if this is done, it will not necessarily solve the City’s budget
shortfall issues.


4. Review Updated Possible Stormwater Utility Impacts on Selected Properties
Several additional properties were analyzed based on requests made at the last
TAC meeting. The additional parcels included Vennevoll Condominiums (consists of
a combination of tax exempt and non-tax exempt parcels), Fosdal’s Bakery
(representative downtown business parcel), Ortega (Industrial Park), and
Diversitech, Inc. (Business Park). It was noted that for Fosdal’s Bakery, if the
currently presented annual $63 per ERU fee were used, they would realize an $11
reduction from the current tax based system. Rodney Scheel noted that the four
additional property owners analyzed are in additional to previously analyzed
properties that include Stoughton Trailers and the Stoughton School District. Both of
which will be significantly impacted by a stormwater utility fee. Ken Wahlin wanted
clarification on how a stormwater utility fee can be directly tied to services provided.
Shubak noted that the fundamental basis of a stormwater utility fee is typically based
on impervious area. The assumption being that the amount of impervious area is
directly proportionate to the amount of stormwater runoff that is generated and must
be managed by the City.


5. Potential Stormwater Utility Credit Policy Shubak presented handouts outlining
the three main components of a credit policy (Corrections, Adjustments, and







S:\Clerks Office\minutes\STORM UTILITY\Storm Water Technical Advisory Committee Minutes 050510.docx


Credits). Shubak noted that credit policies typically are applied to the Operation and
Maintenance and Capital and Debt Service components of the stormwater utility fee.
The base administration component remains unchanged. Peter Sveum noted that he
would be concerned with offering long term credits to single family residential
property owners due to administration challenges and would rather see a one time
rebate offered for things like rain barrels and rain gardens. Rodney Scheel noted
that rain barrels and rain gardens would serve as conservation incentives. Shubak
reviewed a potential credit policy for the group to consider. It consisted of a peak
flow reduction (flood control) credit, stormwater quality credit, and a stormwater
education credit. The cumulative maximum credit is 50% on O&M and Capital &
Debt Service. No adjustment would be available for properties that directly discharge
to townships lands and to the Yahara River. Dennis Barkenhagen is very much in
favor of the education credit for schools. He mentioned that there is existing
curriculum that focuses on conservation that could be expanded to include water
resources. Rodney mentioned that he feels any property that has or will put in
stormwater measures to meet minimum regulatory or ordinance requirements should
not be eligible for credits. It should be clarified that these properties only be eligible
for measures that go above and beyond what is required. Mark Shubak will bring a
draft credit policy document for the group to review at the next TAC meeting.


6. Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) Shubak referred to a handout containing
several frequently asked questions that could be placed on the City’s web-site or
distributed via flyers or brochures. The group should review these FAQs and provide
recommendations for changes and additions.


7. Next Meeting/Tentative Meeting Dates and Schedule/Agenda Items The next
TAC meeting will be on Wednesday, May 26th at 3:00 p.m. Rodney Scheel noted
that a progress report of the TAC’s findings will be presented at the next Committee
of the Whole meeting on Wednesday, May 19th at 6:00 p.m. Each of the TAC
members were encouraged to attend to provide their input.


8. Adjournment The meeting was adjourned at 5:00 p.m.







S:\Clerks Office\minutes\STORM UTILITY\Storm Water Technical Advisory Committee Minutes 052610.docx


Ad Hoc Stormwater Utility Technical Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes
Wednesday, May 26, 2010 - 2:30 p.m.
Hall of Fame Room, City Hall, 381 E. Main St., Stoughton, WI.


Members Present: Mayor Donna Olson, Director of Planning & Development Rodney
Scheel, Street Superintendent Karl Manthe, Alderman Tim Carter, Robert Barnett, Bob
Wahlin, Utilities Director Robert Kardasz, Peter Sveum, Dennis Barkenhagen
Absent and Excused:
Finance Director/Treasurer Laurie Sullivan, Alderman Carl Chenoweth
Absent: None
Staff:
Press: None
Guests: Mark Shubak, Strand Associates, Inc., Steve Sletten


1. Call to Order The meeting was called to order at 2:30 p.m.


2. Meeting Minutes of May 5, 2010 Motion by Manthe, seconded by Kardasz to
approve the minutes. Motion carried unanimously.


3. Discuss Comments Raised at May 19, 2010 Committee of the Whole Meeting
The was a round-table discussion regarding the comments raised and the general
outcome of the presentation made to the Committee of the Whole on May 19, 2010.
Peter Sveum noted that it appeared the majority of the concerns centered around
potential impacts to the business community. Bob Barnett stated that after the
meeting, several alders indicated to him that a phased in approach would make
implementation of the utility more palatable. Tim Carter felt the presentation was a
success, stating that the Council needed to be apprised of what the TAC has been
doing. Both Tim and Donna Olson also stated they are much in favor of the phased
in approach. Karl Manthe felt that it is important to keep moving forward with the
process.


4. Review Draft Stormwater Utility Credit Policy Manual Bob Wahlin stated that he
feels the credit policy should be revised to not include the hard cap currently being
proposed (50%). Bob felt that if a property owner is capable of providing measures
that exceed the 50% cap, proper incentives should be in place to that would benefit
both the property owner and the City. Generally speaking, the remainder of the
members agreed with this change. The draft credit policy will be revised,
accordingly. Shubak reviewed an example of how the credit policy would be applied
assuming implementation of both a dry and wet detention basin. The group
collectively agreed that because the education credit will be most difficult to quantify,
a 25% credit cap for this portion of the credit policy is appropriate. The group
generally agreed that credits for residential rate payers should be limited to a one
time rebate rather than credits over time, primarily because the administration of
annual credits would be cumbersome.


5. Review Frequently Asked Questions to Add to City Website Shubak reviewed
the FAQs handouts with the group and stated that these FAQs could be posted on
the City’s website. It was also stated that if the City chooses to develop an
informational brochure, many of these same FAQs could be incorporated. Bob
Wahlin stated that the public education program for the utility should include specific







S:\Clerks Office\minutes\STORM UTILITY\Storm Water Technical Advisory Committee Minutes 052610.docx


meetings with those business owners who will be most affected by the stormwater
utility fees. Donna Olson was also very much in favor of this approach.


6. Review Examples of Public Education Materials to Distribute The group
reviewed several examples of other tri-fold brochures that other communities have
developed. Bob Kardasz mentioned that he felt it would be important to include
some graphics and condense the amount of text in the brochure. Bob Barnett stated
that will be important to stress the City’s mandated permit requirements in the
brochure. Peter Sveum especially likely the graphic included in St. Cloud’s brochure
and how it focuses on why there is a greater emphasis on stormwater. Tim Carter
liked the Waukee, Iowa brochure that indicated the phased stormwater utility rates
over time and that we should consider doing something similar.


7. Next Meeting/Tentative Meeting Dates and Schedule/Agenda Items The next
and final TAC meeting will be on Wednesday, June 9th at 3:00 p.m. This meeting will
center around reviewing the draft Feasibility Study Report, which will be distributed
to each of the TAC members by June 2nd. It was noted that the Feasibility Study will
ultimately be presented to the City Council at the June 22nd meeting.


8. Adjournment The meeting was adjourned at 4:45 p.m.







S:\MAD\1000--1099\1040\051\Wrd\Report-SW Utility\Appendices\Storm Water Technical Advisory Committee Minutes 061610.docx 


 
Ad Hoc Stormwater Utility Technical Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes 
Wednesday, June 16, 2010 - 3:00 p.m.  
Hall of Fame Room, City Hall, 381 E. Main St., Stoughton, WI. 
 
Members Present: Mayor Donna Olson, Director of Planning & Development Rodney 
Scheel, Tim Carter, Robert Barnett, Utilities Director Robert Kardasz, Peter Sveum, 
Dennis Barkenhagen, Finance Director/Treasurer Laurie Sullivan, Carl Chenoweth 
Absent and Excused: Street Superintendent Karl Manthe, Bob Wahlin 
Absent:  None 
Staff: 
Press: None 
Guests: Mark Shubak, Strand Associates, Inc., Steve Sletten 
 
1. Call to Order The meeting was called to order at 3:00 p.m. 
 
2. Meeting Minutes of May 26, 2010 Motion by Carter, seconded by Barnett to 


approve the minutes. Motion carried unanimously.  
 


3. Review the Stormwater Utility Timeline Flowchart 
Shubak showed an exhibit that indicated the stormwater utility implementation 
timeline flowchart that was presented at the Committee of the Whole Meeting on 
May 19th. The goal for today’s last meeting is to cover review comments of the draft 
Feasibility Study report, summarize the TAC’s recommendations to the Council and 
to gain endorsement of the Feasibility Study report. It was noted that the final results 
of the Feasibility Study will be presented at the July 13th Council meeting. 
 


4. Discuss Review Comments of Draft Feasibility Study Report 
Shubak indicated that Bob Wahlin has expressed concerns regarding the credit 
policy as currently presented in the draft Feasibility Study report. While the policy 
does not have overall credit caps, there are still caps for each type of stormwater 
measure. He would like to see this changed. Also, Wahlin had indicated that some 
type of adjustment policy seems necessary. To address these comments, the credit 
policy has been revised to indicate maximum credits for water quantity and water 
quality measures of 50%, respectively, resulting in a cumulative maximum of 100%. 
Furthermore, the adjustment policy has been modified to include a potential 50% 
adjustment for properties directly discharging from City lands into the township, but 
only if stormwater runoff does not ultimately re-enter the City limits either via a city 
owned drainage system or the Yahara River. An example of how the updated credit 
policy could be specifically applied to Stoughton Trailers was presented. This 
example indicated that based on available data, Stoughton Trailers may be eligible 
for an adjustment reduction as high as 266.5 ERUs and a credit reduction of 164.1 
ERUs for their existing wet basin. More detailed data would need to be provided as 
part of a credit application to support these ERU reductions. Additional review 
comments of the draft Feasibility Study report were discussed and noted. These 
revisions will be reflected in the final Feasibility Study Report that will be submitted 
to the City Council. 
 


5. Discussion of TAC Recommendations 
Scheel noted that if a phased approach to the utility budget is used, that certain 
stormwater components (such as administration) should not be dropped out. This 
would not be a true representation of actual stormwater costs. Scheel instead 







S:\MAD\1000--1099\1040\051\Wrd\Report-SW Utility\Appendices\Storm Water Technical Advisory Committee Minutes 061610.docx 


suggested that phasing should be done using a percentage to be applied over the 
first few years. Kardasz provided his input to the two questions posed to each of the 
TAC members, the questions being 1) “In your opinion, is creation of a stormwater 
utility the most equitable approach to funding the City’s Stormwater Program?. 
Provide discussion that supports your opinion” & 2) “In your opinion, do you 
recommend that the City proceed with implementation and adoption of a stormwater 
utility?   Provide discussion that supports your opinion.” Kardasz stated that his 
answers to each question was yes and yes, respectively, mentioning that a 
stormwater utility was the best way and only way to fund stormwater costs in the 
City. Chenoweth stated that he felt a stormwater utility was the most equitable 
approach, but politically it will be a challenge if tax rates don’t drop and remain 
unchanged. Sullivan stated that although tax rates would likely not go down, they 
may level out over time because of reductions in capital borrowing that establish tax 
levy limits. Sveum discussed the challenges with the City budget, noting that the 
stormwater costs that get moved out of the tax roll will be occupied with other 
needed City expenditures. Sveum feels that administration costs should be shared 
equally by all property owners and that costs to be shifted into the utility should only 
consist of new capital infrastructure projects and O & M costs. Barkenhagen stated 
that the school district generally supports implementation of a stormwater utility, 
however, they do not support including administration costs in the utility budget. 
Additionally, the district would prefer monthly billing instead of annual billing. This 
would allow more funds to be available for investment. The district did not view the 
education credit as being a big bonus, stating that the cost to teach the required 
curriculum may outweigh the credit savings. Carter stated that one of the keys to 
successfully passing the utility is to mention to that this is being done as a response 
to unfunded mandates from federal and state agencies. Sveum stated that he is 
definitely in favor of phasing in the budget by percentages applied over the first few 
years. Carter stated that debt from previous projects shouldn’t enter into the 
discussion for the utility budget.  
 
Motion by Chenoweth to not include administrative costs in the utility budget, 
seconded by Sveum. TAC members voted 2 yes, 7 no. Motion did not carry.  
 
Motion by Carter to include the adjustment policy as presented (50% percent 
maximum reduction in ERUs for O&M and Capital/Debt Service components for 
properties directly discharging runoff outside of City without re-entering the City). 
Motion was seconded by Kardasz and carried unanimously by the TAC. 
 
Motion by Sveum to include all 2011 budget items indicated in the feasibility study 
report in the stormwater utility budget, seconded by Carter and carried unanimously 
by the TAC. 
 
Motion by Sveum to support a phased in budget approach by percentage over the 
first three years of the utility, seconded by Carter and carried unanimously by the 
TAC. This budget approach was clarified to include 33% of the 2011 budget, 66% of 
2012 budget, and 100% of the 2013 budget. This equates to annual fees per ERU of 
$21.12, $45.79, and $70.24, respectively for 2011, 2012, and 2013. 


 
Motion by Barnett to recommend having the flexibility to offer monthly billing 
frequency for larger rate payers, seconded by Olson, and carried unanimously by 
the TAC. 
 







S:\MAD\1000--1099\1040\051\Wrd\Report-SW Utility\Appendices\Storm Water Technical Advisory Committee Minutes 061610.docx 


Motion by Carter to recommend to the City Council the approval of the Feasibility 
Study Report (with revisions discussed by the TAC today), seconded by Sveum and 
carried unanimously by the TAC. 
 


6. Adjournment Scheel thanked the participants of the committee for their efforts.  The 
meeting was adjourned at 5:00 p.m. 



























City of Stoughton
Stormwater UtilityStormwater Utility







Developed Land Is Primary Urban 
Source of Stormwater Runoff


Rooftops


Undeveloped 
Land
Grass Field
Lawns


Developed Land
Rooftops
Parking Lots
Sidewalks
Compacted Gravel
Etc.


Parking Lots


Storm sewer







� Public Education and Outreach
� Public Involvement/Participation
� Illicit Discharge Detection Program
� Construction Site Erosion Control
� Post-Construction Stormwater Management


Current City Stormwater Permit 
Requirements


Street Sweeping


Leaf & Brush Collection


Storm Sewer Cleaning


� Post-Construction Stormwater Management
� Pollution Prevention Program


� Good-Housekeeping Practices for City Operations
� Stormwater Quality Management


� March 10, 2008 – 20% Reduction of TSS
� March 10, 2013 – 40% Reduction of TSS


� Storm Sewer System Map
� Annual Report







Tax-Based System Places Large 
Burden On Residential Sector


Non Residential


22.4%


Tax Exempt


0.0%


Other


0.0%
Personal Property


1.6%


Non Residential


22.4%


Tax Exempt


0.0%


Other


0.0%
Personal Property


1.6%


Proportional Share of Current Stormwater 
System Funding


Single Family Residential


70.2%


Multifamily Residential


5.8%


Single Family Residential


70.2%


Multifamily Residential


5.8%







Impervious Area Serves as “Meter” 
For Utility Fee Estimation


0 0 0 00 0 2 5


5/8
Hersey


Gals


Water Utility - Meter Reading Stormwater Utility - Impervious Area







Stormwater Fees Would Be Based On 
“Equivalent Runoff Units” (ERU’s)


ERU


Represents the average fee for 
services necessary to manage 
stormwater for the average single 
family residential customer


Impervious Area = 1 ERU = 3,104 sq. ft.


Average of 206 Selected 


Parcels Measured


“Average” Single Family Residential Parcel







Nonresidential Fees May Be Based 
on Measured Impervious Areas


Impervious Area = 
34,649 sq. ft.


1 ERU = 3,104 sq. ft.


ERU’s =


= 11.2 ERU’s


First Federal Savings Bank


34,649 sq. ft.
3,104 sq. ft.







Fee Would Redistribute Funding To 
Non-residential Properties


70.2%


60%


70%


80%


City of Stoughton


Stormwater Component Contribution Per Landuse


Flat Rate Analysis


70.2%


60%


70%


80%


City of Stoughton


Stormwater Component Contribution Per Landuse


Flat Rate Analysis


5.8%


22.3%


0.0% 0.0%
1.6%


43.7%


5.7%


40.8%


9.9%


0.0% 0.0%
0%


10%


20%


30%


40%


50%


Single Family Residential 
and Duplex


Multifamily Residential Non Residential Tax Exempt Other Personal Property


Real Estate Class


Tax-Based


Fee-Based


5.8%


22.3%


0.0% 0.0%
1.6%


43.7%


5.7%


40.8%


9.9%


0.0% 0.0%
0%


10%


20%


30%


40%


50%


Single Family Residential 
and Duplex


Multifamily Residential Non Residential Tax Exempt Other Personal Property


Real Estate Class


Tax-Based


Fee-Based







City of Stoughton


Storm Water Utility


 Landuse Summary


Residential
Parcel Area 


(Sq Ft)
Impervious 
Area (Sq Ft) ERU'sTotal Measured


Number of Properties


Duplex 1,172,294.60 256,162.50 82.5165 0


Multifamily 6,167,565.98 2,618,691.48 843.4147 143


Single Family Residential 39,717,208.48 10,895,445.00 3,509.03,509 206


Vacant Residential 3,607,173.71 0.00 0.0333 0


50,664,242.77Total Area 13,770,298.98 4,434.9


Other
Parcel Area 


(Sq Ft)
Impervious 
Area (Sq Ft) ERU'sTotal Measured


Number of Properties


Agriculture 20,641,210.59 0.00 0.026 0


Open Space 4,830,221.21 13,775.04 4.419 3


25,471,431.80Total Area 13,775.04 4.4


Non Residential
Parcel Area 


(Sq Ft)
Impervious 
Area (Sq Ft) ERU'sTotal Measured


Number of Properties


Cemetary 439,411.98 30,300.21 9.83 3


Church 1,859,495.26 645,631.97 207.923 21


City Owned Exempt 12,985,761.33 1,145,781.83 369.0122 55


Commercial 5,358,229.54 3,473,515.33 1,118.7267 253


Federal Owned Exempt 20,703.42 18,544.96 6.01 1


Hospital 387,358.44 180,915.51 58.317 15


Industry 16,830,537.38 7,665,546.31 2,468.8111 101


Other Exempt 138,173.39 48,754.24 15.74 4


School 5,227,373.00 1,660,512.49 534.89 9


43,247,043.74Total Area 14,869,502.84 4,788.9


119,382,718.31Stoughton Totals 28,653,576.87 9,228.24,756 814


Notes: Average Residential Impervious Area = 3,105 sf


           Assumes minimum 1 ERU per non-residential parcel







__
__
__
__
__
__
__
__
__
__


✦ Fertilizers & 
Pesticides 


✦ Bacteria & 
Viruses from Pet 
Waste   


✦ Nutrients from 
leaves & grass 
clippings left on 
streets, sidewalks 
& driveways 


✦ Toxic chemicals - 
oil, lead & zinc 
from streets, 
parking lots, and 
leaking vehicles 


✦ Soil from 
construction sites 
& farm fields 


These pollutants are all flowing into our local water 
via our stormwater system.  When the storm sewer 
flows into these waterways, these pollutants kill fish, 
increase weed and algae growth and threaten our 
drinking water. 


The City of Stoughton has launched a storm water 
utility designed to protect our water quality, pub-
lic health, and public property from threats of wa-
ter pollution.  The funds raised through the utility 
will pay for increased maintenance and construc-
tion of storm sewer infrastructure including 
ditches, catch basins, retention areas, and storm 
sewers.  You will see increased street sweeping to 
prevent grass, leaves and trash from building up 
along curbs and in catch basins.  All streams, lakes 
and detention basins will be inspected and 
cleaned to prevent water contamination.  


D O  Y O U  K N O W  W H A T ’ S  I N  O U R  W A T E R ?D O  Y O U  K N O W  W H A T ’ S  I N  O U R  W A T E R ?D O  Y O U  K N O W  W H A T ’ S  I N  O U R  W A T E R ?    


D O  
Y O U R  
P A R T !  


 
 Limit use of 


fertilizers on 
lawns 


 Pick up Pet 
Waste (as 
required by 
City 
Ordinance) 


 Sweep 
sidewalks, 
driveways & 
patios to keep 
refuse out of 
storm sewers 


 Keep vehicles 
in good 
condition to 
reduce leaks, 
spills, and rust 


 Preserve and 
plant trees to 
reduce erosion 


 Direct 
downspouts 
toward lawns, 
gardens  or 
flowerbeds 


S T O U G H T O NS T O U G H T O NS T O U G H T O N  W A N T S  T O  W O R K   W A N T S  T O  W O R K   W A N T S  T O  W O R K  
W I T H  Y O U  T O  K E E P  I T  W I T H  Y O U  T O  K E E P  I T  W I T H  Y O U  T O  K E E P  I T  O U T ! !O U T ! !O U T ! !  


 


Stoughton Stormwater  Management 
March 30,  2005 


C I T Y ’ S  
P A R T  


 
 Street 


sweeping 


 Litter pick-up 


 Park mowing 


 Detention 
basin 
maintenance 


 Storm sewer 
cleaning 


 Planning for 
growth 


 Erosion 
control 
enforcement 


 Stormwater 
management 


 Public 
education 







Stormwater Utility Frequently Asked Questions


City of Stoughton


Stormwater Utility


Frequently Asked Questions


1. What is stormwater management?


Stormwater management is effectively managing the quantity and quality of stormwater runoff within and


leaving the City. Stormwater is surface flow (runoff) that occurs from rain or snow melt events. Runoff


within the City flows over land or streets to a municipal collection system consisting of storm sewer pipes,


ditches, culverts, swales, and detention facilities, ultimately discharging to the Yahara River. The City


performs a wide variety of services to carry out stormwater management activities as follows:


a. Maintenance


 Cleaning, repairing, and replacing storm sewer manholes, inlets, and pipes.


 Constructing new storm sewer projects.


 Mowing ditches and greenways.


 Cleaning brush or debris from drainageways where allowed.


b. Water Quality Practices


 Street sweeping.


 Leaf collection.


 Deicing and Snow Removal Operations


 Inspecting and enforcing construction site erosion control standards.


 Maintaining stormwater detention basins.


c. Planning and Engineering


 Engineering studies to determine the size and type of structures that must be used to


improve the drainage system and reduce risk of flooding.


 Reviewing and approving land development stormwater management practices.


 Water quality studies to determine the areas where pollution reduction practices must be


utilized along with other state requirements to meet Wisconsin Department of Natural


Resources (WDNR) permit goals.


2. Why Implement a Stormwater Utility?


A Stormwater Utility provides a fair and equitable way of collecting revenue for stormwater management


system improvements under which property owners are charged a user fee based on the amount of stormwater


“produced” on their property. All property owners pay their fair share of stormwater management costs,


similar to a water or electric utility. Currently, stormwater costs are paid for through the property tax roll,


placing a majority of the burden of paying for stormwater management on the residential sector. A


Stormwater Utility would reallocate the cost of stormwater management to the properties that drive the service


costs, such as commercial, industrial, and other properties with large impervious surfaces. The Utility would


also charge tax exempt properties, which currently do not contribute to stormwater management but are


typically associated with generating significant runoff such as government property, schools, and churches.







Stormwater Utility Frequently Asked Questions


3. Why not continue to include stormwater management costs as part of the General
Tax Fund?


Currently, the costs of expansion, operation, and maintenance of the City’s stormwater management system


are paid for by property taxes through the General Fund. Increasing pressures on the general fund caused by


rising municipal costs and reduced revenues from the State of Wisconsin have made the General Fund a less


reliable source for stormwater management funding. In 2006, the City of Stoughton was issued a Wisconsin


Pollution Discharge Elimination Permit (WPDES) for stormwater discharges to waters of the State of


Wisconsin that requires the City to implement stormwater regulations as administered by the WDNR. The


Stormwater Utility would charge a fee as a means of addressing stormwater management funding needs


without placing an additional burden on property taxes. Unlike property tax funding, user charges under a


Stormwater Utility are established in proportion to the relative amount of stormwater runoff “generated” by an


individual property. Without the Utility, other City services funded by property taxes would likely need to be


reduced.


4. When would Stormwater Utility billing begin?


Should the City Council decide to adopt a Stormwater Utility, billing could commence in


January 2012.


5. Who would have the authority to approve the Stormwater Utility budget?


The Common Council would serve as the Stormwater Utility board. All policy and budget decisions


would be reviewed and approved by the elected officials of the Common Council.


6. Have other cities created stormwater user fees?


As of 2011, more than 79 utilities have been established in Wisconsin communities to fund their stormwater


management programs. User fees for stormwater services range from $15.00 to over $100.00 annually for


the base equivalent runoff unit (ERU) charge. Communities in Dane County that have adopted stormwater


utilities include DeForest, Fitchburg, Madison, McFarland, Monona, Sun Prairie, and Verona.


7. How would my Stormwater Utility charge be determined?


Stormwater fees are based on the amount of impervious surface on each property. Therefore, properties with


a greater amount of impervious area generate a greater amount of stormwater runoff resulting in a higher


impact on the stormwater drainage system. Impervious surfaces include roofs, private sidewalks, private


streets, driveways, patios, and parking lots. The impervious area for all nonresidential parcels (commercial,


institutional, etc.) and multifamily parcels has been measured and a sample of the single-family residential


parcels has been measured from aerial photos and supplemented using site plans.


The Stormwater Utility charge would likely be based on an ERU. An ERU is defined as the average


impervious area of a single-family parcel. A sample of the single-family residential parcels was measured


from an aerial photo and the average impervious area of a single-family home in Stoughton was determined


to be 3,105 square feet. Thus, 1 ERU would equal 3,105 square feet for the City’s Stormwater Utility


rate structure. The annual charge per ERU has not yet been determined and is currently being


evaluated. However, typically the annual charge per ERU or annual charge for a single-family


residential property varies from $60 to $100, depending on the stormwater utility revenue needs for the







Stoughton.


8. What does a Stormwater Utility fee pay for?


The stormwater user fee includes administrative costs, operation and maintenance costs including street
sweeping, pond maintenance, ditch mowing, etc., and capital costs for construction of new stormwater
management facilities required to address water quality and quantity requirements.


9. How is a nonresidential property charged for stormwater?


The nonresidential classification includes properties such as commercial, intuitional, and


manufacturing. Nonresidential also includes tax-exempt properties, mobile home parks, and


multifamily dwellings with three or more units.


An ERU is considered to be the average impervious area present on a single-family residential parcel based


on measurement of a random sampling of residential parcels within the service area. ERUs are assigned to


nonresidential parcels based on dividing the actual measured impervious area by the average impervious


area for a typical single-family residential parcel. For example, in the City of Stoughton one ERU is based


on an average residential impervious area of 3,105 square feet, therefore a nonresidential parcel with 31,050


square feet of measured impervious area would be assigned 10 ERUs (31,050 square feet divided by 3,105


square feet = 10 ERUs). In this way, a nonresidential parcel having ten times the amount of impervious area


of a typical single-family residential parcel will pay ten times the average residential charge for stormwater


management.


10. Would I be able to reduce my fee by controlling runoff from my property?


Single-family homes and duplexes typically are not eligible for a fee reduction. This is because there are


benefits to all property owners that are paid for by the utility, such as street sweeping, leaf collection, and


general system maintenance. However, the City is considering offering single-family and duplex parcels a


one-time rebate for implementing measures such as rain barrels or rain gardens. A potential system of credits


for non-residential rate-payers is being evaluated to reduce the fee in certain circumstances, such as


properties with detention basins.


11. Would the credit policy reduce the fee of all the fee components?


No. Credits typically are applied only to a percentage of the capital and debt service (8c above) and


operation and maintenance (8b above) components of a Stormwater Utility fee. Properties qualifying


for a credit typically are still responsible for the base component (8a above) unless the applicant can


demonstrate the property is regulated by a separate municipal Stormwater Discharge Permit (WPDES).


12. What if my property never floods, will I still have to pay a stormwater fee?


All developed property in Stoughton would pay a Stormwater Utility fee regardless if a drainage


concern exists on that specific property or not. Even if your property has never flooded, the stormwater


that flows off your property must be managed so that it does not contribute to flooding in areas


downstream.







13. Who can I contact for additional information?


Contact Director of Planning and Development, Rodney Scheel, for more information. He can be


reached at (608) 873-6619, or by e-mail: rjscheel@ci.stoughton.wi.us







WI Stormwater User Charge System Information
Representative Wisconsin Communities


April 8, 2011


Y/ N


Max 


Amount


1 Allouez (Village)         15,443 2006           3,663 www.villageofallouez.com
2 Appleton (City)         70,293 1995           2,368  $     125.00 Y 77% www.appleton.org
3 Baraboo (City)         10,771 2005           2,379  $       46.87 www.cityofbaraboo.com
4 Barron (City)           3,250 2005         10,850  $       24.00 Y 75% www.barronwi.us


5 Beaver Dam (City)         14,983 2008           2,637  $       48.61 Y 33% www.cityofbeaverdam.com


6 Bellevue (Village)         14,386 2002           3,221  $       48.00 Y 100% www.bellevue-wi.com
7 Beloit (City)         35,803 2006           3,347  $       36.00 beloit.govoffice3.com/
8 Brown Deer (Village)         11,895 2004           3,257  $       91.80 N www.browndeerwi.org
9 Butler (Village)           1,885 1999           3,032  $       66.00 www.butlerwi.gov/


10 Chetek (City)           2,180 2005  $       27.00 Y www.chetek.net
11 Chippewa Falls (City)         13,374 2005  $       36.00 www.ci.chippewa-falls.wi.us
12 Cudahy (City)         18,430 2001           2,700  $       60.00  Y  $2/ ERU www.ci.cudahy.wi.us
13 De Forest (Village)           7,400 2005           2,900  $       60.00 www.vi.deforest.wi.us/
14 Delafield (City)           7,820 2004           1,000  $       29.00 www.cityofdelafield.com/
15 De Pere (City)         20,560 2003  $       47.00 www.de-pere.org/
16 Eau Claire (City)         62,576 1997           3,000  $       68.00  Y 100% www.ci.eau-claire.wi.us
17 Elm Grove (Village)           6,250 2004           6,235  $       65.50 www.elmgrovewi.org
18 Fitchburg (City) - Urban         20,000 2002           3,700  $       70.40 Y 50% www.city.fitchburg.wi.us
19 Fitchburg (City) - Rural           4,000 2002           3,700  $       24.20 Y 50% www.city.fitchburg.wi.us
20 Fox Point (Village)           6,816 2009           2,988  $     126.72 http://www.vil.fox-point.wi.us/
21 Fort Atkinson (City) 2009           3,096  $       37.98 http://www.fortatkinsonwi.net/
22 Garner's Creek (watershed) 1998           3,623  $       96.00 Y 85% http://www.garnerscreekutility.org/
23 Glendale (City)         13,400 1996           3,200  $       42.00 N ‡ www.glendale-wi.org
24 Grand Chute (Town)         20,200 1997           3,283  $       48.00 Y 85% www.grandchute.net
25 Grantsburg (Village)           1,397 2004  $       18.00 Y 75% www.grantsburgwi.com
26 Green Bay (City)       102,350 2004           3,000  $       63.76 Y 67% www.ci.green-bay.wi.us
27 Greendale (Village)         14,410 2004           3,941  $       78.00 Y 50% www.greendale.org
28 Greenfield (City)         35,476 2009           3,630  $       49.80 http://www.ci.greenfield.wi.us/
29 Greenville  (Town)           8,008 1999           4,510  $       60.00 Y 85% www.townofgreenville.com
30 Hales Corners (Village)           7,665 2008           3,952  $         9.00 http://www.halescorners.org/
31 Harrison (Town of)           5,800 1998  $       96.00 www.townofharrison.org
32 Hobart (Village of)           5,834 2007           4,000  $       72.00 Y 50% www.hobart-wi.org/
33 Holmen (Village of)           7,176 2007           3,550  $       44.00 Y 50% www.homenwi.com
34 Howard (Village)         15,774 2005           3,301  $       44.00 www.villageofhoward.com
35 Janesville (City)         61,604 2003           3,200  $       36.44 Y 65% www.ci.janesville.wi.us
36 Kenosha (City)         96,845 2007           2,477  $       60.00 Y www.kenosha.org
37 Lake Delton (Village)           2,975 1993           1,685  $       18.00 Y 100% www.lakedelton.org
38 Lancaster (City)           4,033 2008           2,400  $       24.00 Y www.lancasterwisconsin.com
39 Lisbon (Town)           9,359 2007           6,642  $       40.00 Y 50% www.townoflisbonwi.com
40 Little Chute (Village)         10,830 1998           2,752  $       96.00 N www.littlechutewi.org
41 Madison (City)       220,332 2001  Ind'l Msmt  $       55.00 Y 50% www.cityofmadison.com
42 McFarland (Village)           6,416 2007               3,456  $       46.85 www.mcfarland.wi.us
43 Menominee (City of)         15,318 2008               3,000  $       32.00 Y 20% www.menomonie-wi.gov/
44 Milton (City of)           5,667 2009  $       55.13 http://www.ci.milton.wi.us/
45 Milwaukee (City)       597,000 2006           1,610  $       82.20 Y 60% www.mpw.net
46 Monona (City)           8,000 2004  NA *  $       60.00 Y 65% www.monona.wi.us
47 Monroe (City)         10,600 2006           2,728  $       60.00 www.cityofmonroe.org
48 Neenah (City)         24,600 2003           3,138  $       80.00 www.ci.neenah.wi.us
49 New Berlin (City)         38,719 2001           4,000  $       60.00 N www.newberlin.org
50 New Richmond (City)           7,726 2004         12,632  $       28.68 Y 75% www.ci.new-richmond.wi.us
51 N. Fond du Lac (Village)           4,557 2007           3,123  $       56.00 Y www.nfdl.org
52 Oak Creek (City)         28,456 2003           3,300  $       27.50 http://www.oakcreekwi.org/
53 Onalaska (City)         16,690 2009           3,888  $       50.95 Y 40% www.cityofonalaska.com
54 Onalaska (Town)           5,600 2005           3,709  $       24.00 www.co.la-crosse.wi.us/townofonalaska
55 Oshkosh (City)         65,000 2003           2,817  $       62.97 Y 40% www.ci.oshkosh.wi.us
56 Pewaukee (City)         11,783 3010           5,339  $     120.00 http://www.pleasantprairieonline.com/
57 Pleasant Prairie (Village)         18,000 2006  $       15.00 www.pleasantprairieonline.com/
58 Poynette (Village)           2,563 2006           3,550  $       50.00 www.poynette-wi.gov/
59 Racine (City)         81,855 2004           2,844  $       72.30 Y 40% www.cityofracine.org
60 Raymond (Town)           3,516 2008 $0.0036/ sf impervious area N www.raymondtownof.com
61 Reedsburg (City of)           8,594 2008           3,024  $       46.00 Y 50% www.reedsburgwi.gov


Recent 


Population


Name of Community or 


Stormwater District


Wisconsin stormwater user charge information is subject to change! Contact individual 


communities to confirm accuracy - please forward corrections and updates!


Comments/ Web site addresses
Credit Policy?Annual 


$/ERU or 1 


fam homeERU Size (sf)


Created/  


Started in:



http://www.cityofbeaverdam.com/

http://www.butlerwi.gov/

http://www.vi.deforest.wi.us/

http://www.cityofdelafield.com/

http://www.de-pere.org/

http://www.vil.fox-point.wi.us/

http://www.fortatkinsonwi.net/

http://www.garnerscreekutility.org/

http://www.greendale.org/

http://www.ci.greenfield.wi.us/

http://www.halescorners.org/

http://www.hobart-wi.org/

http://www.homenwi.com/

http://www.lancasterwisconsin.com/

http://www.townoflisbonwi.com/

http://www.cityofmadison.com/

http://www.menomonie-wi.gov/

http://www.oakcreekwi.org/

http://www.cityofonalaska.com/

http://www.co.la-crosse.wi.us/townofonalaska

http://www.pleasantprairieonline.com/

http://www.pleasantprairieonline.com/

http://www.poynette-wi.gov/

http://www.raymondtownof.com/

http://www.reedsburgwi.gov/

http://wisconsin.apwa.net/

http://www.fwwa.org/





WI Stormwater User Charge System Information
Representative Wisconsin Communities


April 8, 2011


Y/ N


Max 


Amount


1 Allouez (Village)         15,443 2006           3,663 www.villageofallouez.com
2 Appleton (City)         70,293 1995           2,368  $     125.00 Y 77% www.appleton.org
3 Baraboo (City)         10,771 2005           2,379  $       46.87 www.cityofbaraboo.com
4 Barron (City)           3,250 2005         10,850  $       24.00 Y 75% www.barronwi.us


5 Beaver Dam (City)         14,983 2008           2,637  $       48.61 Y 33% www.cityofbeaverdam.com


6 Bellevue (Village)         14,386 2002           3,221  $       48.00 Y 100% www.bellevue-wi.com
7 Beloit (City)         35,803 2006           3,347  $       36.00 beloit.govoffice3.com/
8 Brown Deer (Village)         11,895 2004           3,257  $       91.80 N www.browndeerwi.org
9 Butler (Village)           1,885 1999           3,032  $       66.00 www.butlerwi.gov/


10 Chetek (City)           2,180 2005  $       27.00 Y www.chetek.net
11 Chippewa Falls (City)         13,374 2005  $       36.00 www.ci.chippewa-falls.wi.us
12 Cudahy (City)         18,430 2001           2,700  $       60.00  Y  $2/ ERU www.ci.cudahy.wi.us
13 De Forest (Village)           7,400 2005           2,900  $       60.00 www.vi.deforest.wi.us/
14 Delafield (City)           7,820 2004           1,000  $       29.00 www.cityofdelafield.com/
15 De Pere (City)         20,560 2003  $       47.00 www.de-pere.org/
16 Eau Claire (City)         62,576 1997           3,000  $       68.00  Y 100% www.ci.eau-claire.wi.us
17 Elm Grove (Village)           6,250 2004           6,235  $       65.50 www.elmgrovewi.org
18 Fitchburg (City) - Urban         20,000 2002           3,700  $       70.40 Y 50% www.city.fitchburg.wi.us
19 Fitchburg (City) - Rural           4,000 2002           3,700  $       24.20 Y 50% www.city.fitchburg.wi.us
20 Fox Point (Village)           6,816 2009           2,988  $     126.72 http://www.vil.fox-point.wi.us/
21 Fort Atkinson (City) 2009           3,096  $       37.98 http://www.fortatkinsonwi.net/
22 Garner's Creek (watershed) 1998           3,623  $       96.00 Y 85% http://www.garnerscreekutility.org/
23 Glendale (City)         13,400 1996           3,200  $       42.00 N ‡ www.glendale-wi.org
24 Grand Chute (Town)         20,200 1997           3,283  $       48.00 Y 85% www.grandchute.net
25 Grantsburg (Village)           1,397 2004  $       18.00 Y 75% www.grantsburgwi.com
26 Green Bay (City)       102,350 2004           3,000  $       63.76 Y 67% www.ci.green-bay.wi.us
27 Greendale (Village)         14,410 2004           3,941  $       78.00 Y 50% www.greendale.org
28 Greenfield (City)         35,476 2009           3,630  $       49.80 http://www.ci.greenfield.wi.us/
29 Greenville  (Town)           8,008 1999           4,510  $       60.00 Y 85% www.townofgreenville.com
30 Hales Corners (Village)           7,665 2008           3,952  $         9.00 http://www.halescorners.org/
31 Harrison (Town of)           5,800 1998  $       96.00 www.townofharrison.org
32 Hobart (Village of)           5,834 2007           4,000  $       72.00 Y 50% www.hobart-wi.org/
33 Holmen (Village of)           7,176 2007           3,550  $       44.00 Y 50% www.homenwi.com
34 Howard (Village)         15,774 2005           3,301  $       44.00 www.villageofhoward.com
35 Janesville (City)         61,604 2003           3,200  $       36.44 Y 65% www.ci.janesville.wi.us
36 Kenosha (City)         96,845 2007           2,477  $       60.00 Y www.kenosha.org
37 Lake Delton (Village)           2,975 1993           1,685  $       18.00 Y 100% www.lakedelton.org
38 Lancaster (City)           4,033 2008           2,400  $       24.00 Y www.lancasterwisconsin.com
39 Lisbon (Town)           9,359 2007           6,642  $       40.00 Y 50% www.townoflisbonwi.com
40 Little Chute (Village)         10,830 1998           2,752  $       96.00 N www.littlechutewi.org
41 Madison (City)       220,332 2001  Ind'l Msmt  $       55.00 Y 50% www.cityofmadison.com
42 McFarland (Village)           6,416 2007               3,456  $       46.85 www.mcfarland.wi.us
43 Menominee (City of)         15,318 2008               3,000  $       32.00 Y 20% www.menomonie-wi.gov/
44 Milton (City of)           5,667 2009  $       55.13 http://www.ci.milton.wi.us/
45 Milwaukee (City)       597,000 2006           1,610  $       82.20 Y 60% www.mpw.net
46 Monona (City)           8,000 2004  NA *  $       60.00 Y 65% www.monona.wi.us
47 Monroe (City)         10,600 2006           2,728  $       60.00 www.cityofmonroe.org
48 Neenah (City)         24,600 2003           3,138  $       80.00 www.ci.neenah.wi.us
49 New Berlin (City)         38,719 2001           4,000  $       60.00 N www.newberlin.org
50 New Richmond (City)           7,726 2004         12,632  $       28.68 Y 75% www.ci.new-richmond.wi.us
51 N. Fond du Lac (Village)           4,557 2007           3,123  $       56.00 Y www.nfdl.org
52 Oak Creek (City)         28,456 2003           3,300  $       27.50 http://www.oakcreekwi.org/
53 Onalaska (City)         16,690 2009           3,888  $       50.95 Y 40% www.cityofonalaska.com
54 Onalaska (Town)           5,600 2005           3,709  $       24.00 www.co.la-crosse.wi.us/townofonalaska
55 Oshkosh (City)         65,000 2003           2,817  $       62.97 Y 40% www.ci.oshkosh.wi.us
56 Pewaukee (City)         11,783 3010           5,339  $     120.00 http://www.pleasantprairieonline.com/
57 Pleasant Prairie (Village)         18,000 2006  $       15.00 www.pleasantprairieonline.com/
58 Poynette (Village)           2,563 2006           3,550  $       50.00 www.poynette-wi.gov/
59 Racine (City)         81,855 2004           2,844  $       72.30 Y 40% www.cityofracine.org
60 Raymond (Town)           3,516 2008 $0.0036/ sf impervious area N www.raymondtownof.com
61 Reedsburg (City of)           8,594 2008           3,024  $       46.00 Y 50% www.reedsburgwi.gov


Recent 


Population


Name of Community or 


Stormwater District


Wisconsin stormwater user charge information is subject to change! Contact individual 


communities to confirm accuracy - please forward corrections and updates!


Comments/ Web site addresses
Credit Policy?Annual 


$/ERU or 1 


fam homeERU Size (sf)


Created/  


Started in:



http://www.cityofbeaverdam.com/

http://www.butlerwi.gov/

http://www.vi.deforest.wi.us/

http://www.cityofdelafield.com/

http://www.de-pere.org/

http://www.vil.fox-point.wi.us/

http://www.fortatkinsonwi.net/

http://www.garnerscreekutility.org/

http://www.greendale.org/

http://www.ci.greenfield.wi.us/

http://www.halescorners.org/

http://www.hobart-wi.org/

http://www.homenwi.com/

http://www.lancasterwisconsin.com/

http://www.townoflisbonwi.com/

http://www.cityofmadison.com/

http://www.menomonie-wi.gov/

http://www.oakcreekwi.org/

http://www.cityofonalaska.com/

http://www.co.la-crosse.wi.us/townofonalaska

http://www.pleasantprairieonline.com/

http://www.pleasantprairieonline.com/

http://www.poynette-wi.gov/

http://www.raymondtownof.com/

http://www.reedsburgwi.gov/

http://wisconsin.apwa.net/

http://www.fwwa.org/





WI Stormwater User Charge System Information
Representative Wisconsin Communities


April 8, 2011


Y/ N


Max 


Amount


Recent 


Population


Name of Community or 


Stormwater District


Wisconsin stormwater user charge information is subject to change! Contact individual 


communities to confirm accuracy - please forward corrections and updates!


Comments/ Web site addresses
Credit Policy?Annual 


$/ERU or 1 


fam homeERU Size (sf)


Created/  


Started in:
62 River Falls (City)         13,019 1998  NA *  $       37.68  Y 100% www.rfcity.org
63 Salem (Town)           9,871 2009               6,352  $       60.00  Y 50% www.townofsalem.net
64 Sheboygan (City)         50,800 2001           2,215  $       36.00  Y www.ci.sheboygan.wi.us
65 Shorewood Hills (Village)           1,732 2007           2,941 www.shorewood-hills.org
66 Slinger (Village)           3,901 2007           4,300  $       40.00  Y www.slinger-wi-usa.org/
67 St. Francis (Village)           9,373 2001           2,500  $       48.00 www.ci.stfrancis.wi.gov/
68 Sun Prairie (City)         24,464 2003           3,468  $       72.00 Y 65% www.cityofsunprairie.com/
69 Superior (City)         27,370 2007           1,907  $       70.80 Y TBD www.ci.superior.wi.us/
70 Sussex (Village)           9,687 2005  $       60.00 www.village.sussex.wi.us/
71 Vernon (Town)           7,455 2008           6,904  $       32.00 Y 50% www.rownofvernon.org/
72 Verona (City)           7,052 2009           2,842  $       53.06 http://www.ci.verona.wi.us/
73 Washburn (City)           2,300 2005  $       48.00 www.cityofwashburn.org/
74 Watertown (City)         23,163 2005           2,900  $       76.00 www.cityofwatertown.org/
75 Waupun (City)         10,720 2005           3,204  $       36.00 www.cityofwaupun.org/
76 Wauwatosa (City)         45,602 1999           2,174  $       55.44 Y 100% www.wauwatosa.net/
77 West Allis (City)         61,250 1997           1,827  $       63.12 Y 56% www.ci.west-allis.wi.us/
78 West Milwaukee (Village)           4,142 2003           1,956  $       24.00 Y 75% www.westmilwaukee.org/


79 Weston (Village)         12,736 2004           3,338  $       47.78 Y 68% www.westonwisconsin.org/


Send updates to jmmazanec@gmail.com; matrix developed with supporting information from stormwater professionals state-wide.



http://wisconsin.apwa.net/

http://www.fwwa.org/

http://www.townofsalem.net/

http://www.ci.sheboygan.wi.us/

http://www.slinger-wi-usa.org/

http://www.ci.stfrancis.wi.gov/

http://www.cityofsunprairie.com/

http://www.ci.superior.wi.us/

http://www.village.sussex.wi.us/

http://www.rownofvernon.org/

http://www.ci.verona.wi.us/

http://www.cityofwashburn.org/

http://www.cityofwatertown.org/

http://www.cityofwaupun.org/

http://www.wauwatosa.net/

http://www.ci.west-allis.wi.us/

http://www.westmilwaukee.org/

http://www.westonwisconsin.org/

http://wisconsin.apwa.net/

http://www.fwwa.org/





Questions?





		063010 Final Stormwater Utility Feasibility Study.pdf

		Appendix A.pdf

		Binder2

		APWA Files

		SUMatrixAPWA(5)

		Chart 1 - Community Size Distribution

		Chart 2 - ERU Rate Distribution

		Chart 3 - ERU Rate Pop 10000-20000

		APWA WI Square Feet Per ERU Distribution Handout



		Cover

		Report



		ES

		Member

		Affiliation



		Fig 3.01-2

		Minutes All

		1_Storm Water Technical Advisory Committee Minutes 031010

		2_3_3-24-10 & 4-7-10

		4 - Storm Water Technical Advisory Committee Minutes 050510

		5_Storm Water Technical Advisory Committee Minutes 052610



		S1

		Member

		Affiliation



		S2

		S3

		S4

		Table 1.05-3

		Table CIP Payments



		Table 1.05-4

		TP,TOC&Dividers

		Report for

		City of Stoughton, Wisconsin

		Stormwater Utility Feasibility Study







		Cover



		Appendix B.pdf

		Minutes All

		1_Storm Water Technical Advisory Committee Minutes 031010

		2_3_3-24-10 & 4-7-10

		4 - Storm Water Technical Advisory Committee Minutes 050510

		5_Storm Water Technical Advisory Committee Minutes 052610



		Storm Water Technical Advisory Committee Minutes 061610

		All Responses





		b- Stormwater Utility Presentation Materials.pdf






RESOLUTION NO. R-110-2012
CITY OF STOUGHTON


A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE A CREDIT POLICY FOR A STORMWATER UTILITY IN THE
CITY OF STOUGHTON, WI


WHEREAS, the Committee of the Whole met on August 8, 2012 to discuss a Stormwater Utility; and


WHEREAS, a Stormwater Utility Credit Policy was directed to be brought before the Common
Council; and


WHEREAS, the Common Council met on August 28, 2012 and discussed the Stormwater Utility Credit
Policy; now therefore


BE IT RESOLVED, by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the Credit Policy for the
Stormwater Utility, attached as Exhibit A, is approved.


The foregoing resolution was adopted by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton at a
meeting held on _______________, 2012.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote







COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE


Wednesday, August 08, 2012, 7:00PM


EMS Training Room


Council President Eric Hohol called the meeting to order at 7:00PM. Eleven alders were present


(Kneebone absent)


Mayor Donna Olson provided an outline of the information to be presented and stated the reasoning for


her support of implementing a stormwater utility at this time.


Overview of Stormwater Management process and information presented by Planning Director Rodney


Scheel. Scheel recommended approval to the committee.


Streets Superintendent Karl Manthe and Sun Prairie Public Works Director Larry Herman presented the


history and successes of the Sun Prairie Stormwater Utility. Herman and his staff answered questions by


the committee.


Finance Director Laurie Sullivan presented the fiscal impact of Stormwater Utility implementation for


the City of Stoughton and recommended approval to the committee. Sullivan answered questions by


the committee.


Scheel provided examples of stormwater utility fees for businesses and non-profits for the committee.


Scheel opined that the fee estimates were manageable and that the utility has been discussed for 5-7


years in the community. Scheel responded with information on public hearings and education. Olson


commented on the public education process beginning in 2005 and escalating with the technical


advisory committee that was comprised of many relevant community members.


Scheel stated that the substantive provisions of the ordinance and information have been prepared.


Scheel also informed that the utility would fall under his supervision under the council. Scheel stated he


did not see a need for an additional staff person to be added for utility administration.


Alder Lawrence moved to recommend implementation of the stormwater utility to council. Second by


Swadley.


Alder Christianson discussed his concerns with the stormwater utility.


Alder Engelberger moved to amend the main motion to remove the credits provision of the ordinance.


Engelberger stated his observation that higher cost utilities have credit systems, whereas lower cost


utilities are without credit systems. The motion to amend did not receive a second.


Suess questioned the public education process. Scheel informed that a public hearing would take place


at the second reading of the ordinance.


Motion carried 11-0.


Lawrence moved to adjourn. Jenson seconded. Meeting adjourned at 8:46PM.







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin Stormwater Utility Credit Policy


Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc. 1
s:\rjs\Stormwater\Utility\Stormwater Utility Implementation Data\Credit Policy\Stormwater Utility Credit Policy 8-22-2012.docx


1.0 INTRODUCTION


On _____,____ the Stoughton City Council adopted an ordinance creating a Stormwater Utility. In


establishing the stormwater utility, the City recognized that certain properties may have less


impact on stormwater utility costs than others in a similar rate class, either because of structural or


non-structural stormwater management practices property owners have implemented on-site. As a


result, the City has developed a Stormwater Credit System to provide owners of such properties


with the opportunity to apply for stormwater utility credits. This document summarizes policies and


procedures for determining eligibility for stormwater utility credits.


2.0 OVERVIEW OF STORMWATER UTILITY


The City of Stoughton currently owns and maintains an extensive network of streets, storm


sewers, drainage structures such as inlets and manholes, greenways, and detention basins. Much


of the existing drainage system is aging and in need of repair. In addition, increasing emphasis by


the United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) and Wisconsin Department of


Natural Resources (WDNR) on impacts of stormwater runoff-borne pollutants on waters of the


state has increased, and will likely continue to increase, local administrative and construction


costs.


To provide a means of funding needed maintenance and improvements to the City’s stormwater


management system, the City has created a stormwater utility. The fee structure for the


stormwater utility is based on the amount of “impervious area” on a land parcel. Impervious areas


are areas where the amount of seepage into the ground is restricted because of the presence of


hard surfaces such as rooftops, parking lots, or driveways. Because seepage is limited, a higher


proportion of rainfall or snowmelt drains from the land parcel to the City’s drainage system than


would on from a parcel having a vegetative cover. As a result, the cost of constructing and


maintaining the City’s drainage system is typically higher downstream from areas with a greater


amount of impervious areas.


Under the City’s stormwater utility, a property owner having a greater amount of impervious area


will typically pay a proportionally higher fee than a property owner with a lower amount of


impervious area because the impact of his land use on the stormwater system is greater. For


example, a commercial establishment having eight times the amount of impervious area of a


typical residential property would pay a user fee eight times higher than that of a residential


property owner.


Responsibilities of the stormwater utility include the following:


1. Develop and administer programs and practices to reduce sediment, heavy metals, pesticides,


nutrients, bacteria, and oxygen-demanding organic waste from pollutant “source areas” that


have been recognized as a cause of water quality degradation in the City’s rivers, lakes, ponds,


and other water resources. These programs and practices are necessary for compliance with







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin Stormwater Utility Credit Policy


Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc. 2
s:\rjs\Stormwater\Utility\Stormwater Utility Implementation Data\Credit Policy\Stormwater Utility Credit Policy 8-22-2012.docx


mandated EPA and DNR nonpoint source pollution control rules and local stormwater


management and erosion control ordinances.


2. Fund and administer stormwater management operation and maintenance activities. Activities


include cleaning and routine repair of ditches, detention basins, greenways, storm sewers, catch


basins, manholes, streambanks and associated facilities, street sweeping, leaf collection, and


construction of stormwater treatment, detention, and conveyance facilities serving a public


purpose.


3. Respond to customer billing and service inquiries.


3.0 STORMWATER UTILITY RATE STRUCTURE


Stormwater service charges are based on Equivalent Runoff Units (ERU). One ERU equals the


average impervious area on a typical residential property. Single-family residential parcels are assigned


one ERU. In Stoughton, one ERU is equivalent to approximately 3,105 square feet of impervious area.


The fee for nonresidential parcels is based on the number of ERUs. The number of ERUs is estimated


by dividing the total estimated impervious area on the parcel by the typical residential impervious area.


Appropriate credits will be provided to nonresidential parcels that do not fully utilize City stormwater


management facilities.


Stoughton’s Stormwater Utility rate structure includes the following customer rate classes:


1. Residential–single family unit - 1.0 ERU


2. Residential–duplex: 0.5 ERU multiplied by each dwelling unit.


3. Residential–multifamily: (including apartments greater than or equal to 3 Units,


Condominiums, and Mobile Homes). The charge per unit shall be calculated by dividing


the number of ERUs calculated for the entire property by the number of units existing on


the property


4. Nonresidential–one ERU times a factor obtained by dividing the total impervious area of


the property by the square footage equivalent for one ERU. Such impervious area shall


be determined based upon the best information reasonably available. The result shall be


rounded to the nearest one-tenth (0.1). The minimum charges for any nonresidential


parcel shall be equal to the rate for one (1.0) ERU, unless it contains no impervious


surface.


5. Undeveloped–no stormwater charge shall be assigned to undeveloped land.


The stormwater user fee for each rate class includes three distinct components:


a. Base Component: The base component includes the Stormwater Utility’s


estimated annual administrative and management costs, water quality costs, and


other miscellaneous costs. Costs associated with the new WDNR requirements


are included in the base component.







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin Stormwater Utility Credit Policy


Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc. 3
s:\rjs\Stormwater\Utility\Stormwater Utility Implementation Data\Credit Policy\Stormwater Utility Credit Policy 8-22-2012.docx


b. Operation and Maintenance Component: The O&M component includes the


utility’s estimated annual operation and maintenance costs for the city’s


stormwater management system, including storm sewer and detention basin


maintenance, street sweeping, and so on.


c. Capital and Debt Service Component: This includes capital costs and debt


service payments for the City’s stormwater management system.


The rate for each ERU is determined by dividing the total revenue that must be generated for the


stormwater system by the total number of ERUs within the utility district.


4.0 CORRECTIONS, ADJUSTMENTS, CREDITS, AND EXEMPTIONS


The City recognizes that certain properties may have less impact on stormwater utility costs than


others in a similar rate class, primarily because of structural and non-structural stormwater


management practices property owners have implemented on-site. Modifications to stormwater


utility fees will be considered through corrections or credits, as described in this section.


A. Corrections


A customer may apply for a correction if the customer believes the impervious area calculation used for


the ERU designation on the subject property is incorrect. To be eligible for a Correction, the customer


must provide the Stormwater Utility with site-specific information specified in Section 5.0.


B. Adjustments


An adjustment is defined as a modification to a customer’s stormwater utility fee to reflect site specific


runoff characteristics that are substantially different from those attributed to the base billing unit. An


adjustment may be applicable if a customer in the nonresidential or multifamily residential classes


believes a portion of the subject property has significant surface area that is not being served by City


owned infrastructure. This means that all or a portion of the customer’s property does not directly or


indirectly discharge to any natural or manmade stormwater conveyance, storage, or treatment facility


owned or maintained in any way by the Stormwater Utility. To be eligible for an adjustment, discharge


from the property must not be in violation of any environmental code or federal, state, or local surface


water drainage requirements.


Adjustments shall be applied only to the capital and debt service and operation and maintenance


components of the stormwater utility fee and a maximum adjustment of 50 percent shall be applied.


Properties qualifying for an adjustment are still responsible for the base component. An adjustment can


be applied if the applicant demonstrates the property is regulated by a separate municipal Stormwater


Discharge Permit (WPDES). An adjustment need only be applied for once, but can be reviewed if the


property is redeveloped or re-graded.







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin Stormwater Utility Credit Policy


Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc. 4
s:\rjs\Stormwater\Utility\Stormwater Utility Implementation Data\Credit Policy\Stormwater Utility Credit Policy 8-22-2012.docx


C. Credits


1. Definition


A credit is defined as a percentage reduction applied to the operation and maintenance and


capital and debt service components of a customer’s stormwater utility fee based on existence


of an on-site stormwater management practice or facility that reduces the rate or volume of


stormwater or sediment discharge to facilities owned or maintained by the Stormwater Utility. A


credit may be applicable if a customer in the nonresidential or multifamily residential classes has


constructed a detention basin, infiltration basin, or similar facility that reduces impacts of


stormwater runoff from the customer’s property to the City’s stormwater management system.


To be eligible for credit, all practices must comply with the design, operation, and maintenance


requirements of all the applicable ordinances and codes of the City of Stoughton, State or


Federal Permitting, and this Manual. Application procedures and requirements for these credits


are outlined in Section 5.


2. Fee Credit Criteria


a. Peak Flow Reduction Credit: This credit is based on the reduction of post-


development peak flow for the specified rain event (see below). An applicant


must demonstrate that runoff from the land parcel is released at a lower rate than


without storm water management. To determine the amount of credit, the


“post-site development” peak flow with no management will be compared to the


“post-site development” peak flow with management. The percentage change will


then be multiplied by the number of ERUs “served” by the stormwater


management facility and divided by two (2). All calculations shall use the 10-year,


24-hour, SCS Type II distribution rainstorm of 3.9 inches and SCS curve number


hydrology.


For example, the owner of a 30-acre nonresidential property having an


impervious area of 7.128 acres (100 ERUs) applies for a credit based on the


presence of a detention basin that reduces the 10-year peak flow rate from the


site from 20 cfs to 16 cfs (20.0 percent peak flow reduction). This peak flow


reduction is then divided by two, yielding a peak flow reduction percentage of


10.0 percent.


(20 cfs - 16 cfs) = 4.0 cfs →(4.0 cfs ÷ 20.0 cfs) × 100% = 20.0% 


20.0% ÷ 2 = 10.0%


The detention basin serves an on-site impervious area of 3.564 acres (50 ERUs)


of the total 7.128 acres of impervious area (100 ERUs) present on the site. The


owner would then be eligible for a credit of 5.0 ERUs to the operation and


maintenance and capital and debt service components of the stormwater utility







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin Stormwater Utility Credit Policy


Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc. 5
s:\rjs\Stormwater\Utility\Stormwater Utility Implementation Data\Credit Policy\Stormwater Utility Credit Policy 8-22-2012.docx


fee, based on multiplying 10.0 percent times the number of ERUs “served” by the


facility (50 ERUs times 10.0 percent). The property owner would still be


responsible for the full number of ERUs for the base component.


(3.564 acres x 43,560 square feet) ÷ (3,105 square feet/ERU) = 50.0 ERUs


50.0 ERUs × 10.0% = 5.0 ERUs


b. Stormwater Quality Credit: This credit may be granted for parcels that provide a


quantifiable stormwater quality benefit through implementation of Best


Management Practices for treatment of stormwater runoff to capture nonpoint


source pollutants. The following credits will be considered:


(1) Provision of a permanent pool designed in conformance with Wisconsin


Department of Natural Resources Conservation Practice Standard 1001


to capture sediment and other pollutants. This practice will be eligible for


up to a 40 percent credit applied to the number of ERUs “served” by the


facility.


(2) Infiltration Basins, Infiltration Strips, rain gardens or bioretention systems


will be eligible for up to a 30 percent credit applied to the number of ERUs


“served” by the facility. To be eligible for the maximum credit, the


applicant must demonstrate that the facility is sized and designed in


accordance with Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources


Conservation Practice Standards.


(3) Manufactured devices designed to remove sediment from stormwater


runoff (e.g. “Stormceptor,” “Vortechs,” “Downstream Defender,” etc.) will


be eligible for up to a 25 percent credit applied to the number of ERUs


“served” by the facility. The maximum number of ERUs subject to credit


will be capped with consideration of the maximum capacity of each unit,


per manufacturer’s specifications. For example, if the device specified is


designed to serve a maximum area of 1 acre (43,560 square feet) of


impervious area, the maximum ERU credit allowable is 3.5 ERUs


(43,560 square feet divided by 3,105 square feet per ERU times


25 percent).


(1.0 acre x 43,560 square feet) ÷ (3,105 square feet/ERU) = 14.0 ERUs


14.0 ERUs × 25.0% = 3.5 ERUs







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin Stormwater Utility Credit Policy


Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc. 6
s:\rjs\Stormwater\Utility\Stormwater Utility Implementation Data\Credit Policy\Stormwater Utility Credit Policy 8-22-2012.docx


(4) Provision of measures to trap oil and grease using oil/water separators,


replaceable inlet inserts, or other approved practices will be eligible for up


to a 15 percent credit applied to the number of ERUs “served” by the


practice.


3. Maximum Credit


The maximum aggregate credit to the operation/maintenance and capital/debt service


components of the Storm Water Service Charge of any individual property is 50 percent of its


gross calculated ERUs after adjustments, regardless of how many individual credits for which


the property qualifies. Developments must conform to all applicable ordinances and standards


of the City of Stoughton to be credit eligible.


4. Application of Credits


The total credit applied to a site will be the sum of individual credits applied for. For example, an


applicant may be eligible for both a peak flow reduction credit and a water quality credit for a


wet detention basin that provides both peak flow reduction and water quality benefits to the City.


Likewise, if different portions of a site are served by different stormwater facilities, the total


amount of credit is additive up to the maximum credit specified below. The following example


summarizes the possible use of additive credits.


A 30-acre nonresidential property having a total impervious area of 7.128 acres (100 ERUs) is


located near the crest of a hill within the City Limits. The westerly 1.782 acres of impervious


area (25 ERUs) drains to a detention basin without a wet pool located on the west side of the


property that reduces peak flow for the 10-year storm by 37.5 percent, and the easterly 3.564


acres of impervious area (50 ERUs) drains to a detention basin on the east side of the property


having a permanent wet pool designed in accordance with Wisconsin Department of Natural


Resources technical standards that reduces peak flow for the 10-year storm by 20 percent.


Dividing the peak flow reduction ratios for the west and east detention basin yields final peak


reduction ratios of 18.8 and 10.0 percent, respectively. The ERU credits for the west and east


basin is 4.7 and 5.0 ERUs, respectively.


West Basin


(1.782 acres x 43,560 square feet) ÷ (3,105 square feet/ERU) = 25.0 ERUs


25.0 ERUs × 18.8% = 4.7 ERUs


East Basin


(3.564 acres x 43,560 square feet) ÷ (3,105 square feet/ERU) = 50.0 ERUs


50.0 ERUs × 10.0% = 5.0 ERUs







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin Stormwater Utility Credit Policy


Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc. 7
s:\rjs\Stormwater\Utility\Stormwater Utility Implementation Data\Credit Policy\Stormwater Utility Credit Policy 8-22-2012.docx


0.782 acres of impervious area (12.5 ERUs) drains from the site directly to a storm sewer


owned and maintained by the stormwater utility without being treated by a stormwater measure


and the remaining 1.0 acres of the site directly drains to a Town owned drainage ditch outside


the jurisdiction of the stormwater utility. The following adjustments and credits would apply:


a. The site would be eligible for a 50 percent adjustment of (-7.0 ERU’s) because 1.0 acres


of impervious area does not drain to a stormwater facility owned or maintained by the


stormwater utility.


(1.0 acre x 43,560 square feet) ÷ (3,105 square feet/ERU) = 14.0 ERUs


14.0 ERUs × 50.0% = 7.0 ERUs


b. The site would be eligible for a peak flow reduction credit of 9.7 ERUs (4.7 ERUs to the


west pond plus 5.0 ERUs to the east pond).


c. The site would be eligible for a water quality credit of 20.0 ERUs based on the presence


of a wet pool serving 50 ERUs (40 percent Credit).


(3.564 acres x 43,560 square feet) ÷ (3,105 square feet/ERU) = 50.0 ERUs


50.0 ERUs × 40.0% = 20.0 ERUs


Based on these individual adjustments and credits, the operation/maintenance and capital/debt


service components of the stormwater utility fee would be reduced by a total of 36.7 ERUs. Of


this reduction, 7.0 ERUs is considered an adjustment, and 29.7 ERUs is considered a credit.


Since the number of credited ERUs (29.7) after adjustments is less than 50 percent of the gross


number of ERUs on the site after adjustments (46.5), the entire credit applies.


A sample worksheet depicting this calculation is included as Attachment 1.


D. Exemptions


Properties that are exempt from property taxes are not exempt from the stormwater utility fee. Public


right-of-way and railroad right-of-way is considered part of the City’s stormwater conveyance system


and is therefore exempt. No other exemptions from stormwater utility fees will be considered.


E. Right of Access


Prior to receiving a credit or exemption, the Director or designee shall be allowed access to the


property to determine the amount of credit or exemption to be granted. No credit shall be considered for


any “natural” features, including but not limited to, wetlands, streams and creeks, floodplains, or water


impoundment of any kind in existence prior to the passage of the stormwater utility ordinance.







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin Stormwater Utility Credit Policy


Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc. 8
s:\rjs\Stormwater\Utility\Stormwater Utility Implementation Data\Credit Policy\Stormwater Utility Credit Policy 8-22-2012.docx


5.0 APPLICATION PROCEDURES AND REQUIREMENTS


The Stormwater Utility will accept applications from property owners requesting consideration for


corrections, adjustments and credits. Applications may be obtained from the Administrator. A


correction, adjustment or credit application will not be considered complete and will not be processed


unless accompanied by the application fee and all appropriate forms and information as required in this


manual. It is the intent of the Stormwater Utility to process applications within thirty (30) calendar days


of submittal of the complete and correct application package. Billing adjustments required to implement


credits shall be applied retroactively to the date the customer submitted a complete application.


Adjustments shall be made by crediting the customer’s storm water service charge until any


overpayment has been fully repaid. A pending application for credit shall not constitute a valid reason


for non-payment of the current Storm Water Utility Fees. In the case of new development, Storm Water


Utility Fees and the associated credits detailed herein do not apply until construction is complete and


verified by the Stormwater Utility, or upon granting of conditional occupancy, whichever is earlier.


Upon receipt of the application, reviewers will check application forms for completeness and accuracy.


If the application is found to be complete and accurate, a letter will be sent to the applicant notifying


approval of the credit. If deficiencies are found during the review, a deficiency letter will be sent to the


applicant’s contact person. Upon receipt of additional information from applicant, the review will resume


and be completed within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of the additional information. If an


application is denied, a letter explaining the reasons for the denial will be provided to the applicant. The


applicant has the right to appeal this decision, in accordance with the procedures outlined in the City of


Stoughton Stormwater Utility Ordinance.


Submittal requirements for Correction, Adjustment and Credit Applications are described below.


A. Correction Applications


The completed Stormwater Utility Correction application must include a $100.00 application fee and


plat of survey certified by a Wisconsin-Registered Land Surveyor, or as-built construction site plan


certified by a Wisconsin Professional Engineer or Professional Hydrologist, indicating the following:


a) Property location.


b) Layout of impervious surface areas on the property.


c) A calculation of impervious area (in square feet) for each delineated drainage area on


the property.


The $100 application will be refunded to the property owner if the correction is found to be warranted.


B. Adjustment Applications


The completed Stormwater Utility Fee Adjustment application must include a $200.00 application fee


and plat of survey certified by a Wisconsin-Registered Land Surveyor, or as-built construction site plan


certified by a Wisconsin Professional Engineer or Professional Hydrologist, indicating the following:







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin Stormwater Utility Credit Policy


Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc. 9
s:\rjs\Stormwater\Utility\Stormwater Utility Implementation Data\Credit Policy\Stormwater Utility Credit Policy 8-22-2012.docx


1. Property location.


2. Drainage basin divides on the property.


3. Layout of impervious surface areas on the property.


4. Layout of the drainage system on the property, including location and elevations of natural and


man-made features.


5. Sufficient topographic data or elevations to verify general drainage patterns across the property.


6. A calculation of impervious area (in square feet) for each delineated drainage area on the


property.


The $200 application will be refunded to the property owner if the adjustment is found to be warranted.


C. Credit Applications


The completed Peak Flow Control and Water Quality Credit application must include a $200.00


application fee and the following information:


1. Maintenance information: Any agreements or contracts for inspection and/or


maintenance are required to be disclosed as part of the application. Indicate the


schedule for major maintenance that will be performed and how many times per year


basic maintenance (such as erosion control and/or mowing) activities are performed. In


order to maintain the credit, the property owners shall provide the city with inspection


reports by January 1st of every subsequent year. If a property owner fails to file required


inspection reports or if a city inspection finds the system not meeting the conditions set


forth, the City will send a letter informing the property owner of the required action to


avoid revocation of the credits. If the property owner fails to take the required action, the


credits will be revoked until the situation is corrected. No retroactive credits will be given


during the lapse period. Credits will be restored on the effective date of the submittal of


the property owner’s acceptable response.


2. Technical information (certified by a Wisconsin Professional Engineer):


a. Site plan(s) at a scale of 1”=100’ or larger (i.e. 1”=50’ or 1”=20’ etc.) appropriate


to display the following information clearly:


(1) Locations, dimensions, and characteristics of all drainage patterns and


storm water management facilities.


(2) Location of all impervious surfaces including, but not limited to: structures,


parking, and driveways.


(3) Soils.


(4) Site topography.


(5) Details of detention facility outlet structure(s).


(6) Diagram of watershed routing to the detention facility(s).







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin Stormwater Utility Credit Policy


Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc. 10
s:\rjs\Stormwater\Utility\Stormwater Utility Implementation Data\Credit Policy\Stormwater Utility Credit Policy 8-22-2012.docx


(7) As built construction drawings verifying the storm water management


structural information.


b. Summary of runoff peak flow calculations for the 10-year, 24-hour rain event, by


watershed, including the following:


(1) Existing flow rates.


(2) Postdevelopment flow rates without management.


(3) Postdevelopment flow rates with management.


c. Calculations (and factors used for calculations) performed to determine existing,


postdeveloped "managed", and postdeveloped "unmanaged" peak flow control


including, but not limited to the following:


(1) Time of concentration(s).


(2) Curve number(s).


(3) Watershed areas.


(4) Watershed routing.


(5) Engineered designs for all structural flow control management practices.


(6) Stage-storage-discharge tables or curves for the detention facility(ies).


(7) Tailwater impacts, if any.


3. Statement of Certification: The owner shall sign a statement certifying that information is correct


and acknowledging that the credit determination will be based on information provided. A later


determination that the application information was inaccurate may result in loss of credit. NOTE:


Property owners are encouraged to apply for flow control credits on new developments as part


of the city’s normal development plan review procedures. The credits, as well as the Storm


Water Service Charges, do not go into effect until the construction is complete or upon granting


of conditional occupancy. Credits will not be in effect until as-built data have been submitted for


new storm water management facilities.







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin Stormwater Utility Credit Policy


Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc. 11
s:\rjs\Stormwater\Utility\Stormwater Utility Implementation Data\Credit Policy\Stormwater Utility Credit Policy 8-22-2012.docx


Attachment 1–Sample Calculation Worksheet


City of Stoughton


Stormwater Utility ERU Credit Calculation


Owner Name: Example Site


Owner Address: Stoughton, WI


Parcel Number:


Parcel Area 30 Ac


Impervious Area 7.128 Ac


ERU's 100.0


Adjustment Calculation


Adustment Calculation


a. Description:


Area draining to Town owned ditch


b. Impervious Area Draining From MS4 1.0 Ac


c. ERU's for area outside MS4 14.0 ERU's


d. 50% of ERUs for area outside MS4 7.0 ERU's


ERU breakout after adjustment


Gross ERU's 100.0


Adjusted ERU's (drain outside the basin) 7.0


Remaining ERU's 93.0


Credit Calculation


A. Peak Flow Reduction Credit


1 Pond 1


a. Description:


Dry Pond on West Side


b. Impervious Area Draining to Pond 1.782 Ac


c. ERU's to Pond 25.0 ERU's


d. 10-Yr, 24-Hr Peak Flow (No Management) 40 cfs


e. 10-Yr, 24-Hr Peak Flow (With Management) 25 cfs


f. 50% of Peak Flow Reduction Ratio 0.188


2 Pond 2


a. Description:


Wet Pond on East Side


b. Impervious Area Draining to Pond 3.564 Ac


c. ERU's to Pond 50.0 ERU's


d. 10-Yr, 24-Hr Peak Flow (No Management) 20 cfs


e. 10-Yr, 24-Hr Peak Flow (With Management) 16 cfs


f. 50% of Peak Flow Reduction Ratio 0.100







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin Stormwater Utility Credit Policy


Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc. 12
s:\rjs\Stormwater\Utility\Stormwater Utility Implementation Data\Credit Policy\Stormwater Utility Credit Policy 8-22-2012.docx


B. Water Quality Credit


Device


Impervious Area


Served (Ac)


ERU's


Served


Allowable


Credit Ratio


Credited


ERU's


Wet Basin 3.564 50.0 0.40 20.0


Infiltration Basin 0.0 0.30 0.0


Infiltration Strip 0.0 0.30 0.0


Rain Garden 0.0 0.30 0.0


Other Bioretention 0.0 0.30 0.0


Manufactured Device 0.0 0.25 0.0


Oil/Grease Trapping 0.0 0.15 0.0


Total 20.0


Overall Credit and Adjustment Calculation


Impervious Area


Served (Ac)


ERU's


Served


Calculated


Credit Ratio


Gross


Credited


ERU's


A. Peak Flow Credit


1 Pond 1 1.782 25.0 18.8% 4.7


2 Pond 2 3.564 50.0 10.0% 5.0


3 Total Peak Flow Credit 9.7


B. Water Quality Credit 20.0


C. Gross Credited ERU's 29.7


D. Max. Allowable ERU Credits (After Adjustments) 93.0 50% 46.5


E. Total Credits 29.7


F. Total Adjustments 7.0


G. Total ERU Reduction 36.7


H. Total ERUs After Reduction 63.3








CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL


DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


Date: August 14, 2012


To: Nick Probst
City Clerk


From: Rodney J. Scheel
Director of Planning & Development


Subject: Items for the August 28, 2012 Common Council Meeting.


Council Agenda:


New Business


1. Consider proposed ordinance amendments to Table 78-610 (4)(b) of the City of
Stoughton Zoning Ordinance to make corrections to the bufferyard requirements.
On August 13, 2012 the Planning Commission held a public hearing and reviewed this
proposed ordinance amendment to the zoning ordinance related to bufferyard requirements.
The Planning Commission recommends the Common Council approve the ordinance
amendment as presented. The ordinance and planning commission minutes are provided.
Staff recommends approval.


2. Consider proposed ordinance amendment to section 78-702 (9) of the City of
Stoughton Zoning Ordinance to make corrections to the Access Standards and
Appendix E, Bulk Regulations.
On August 13, 2012 the Planning Commission held a public hearing and reviewed this
proposed ordinance amendment to the zoning ordinance related to access standards. The
Planning Commission recommends the Common Council approve the ordinance
amendment as presented. The ordinance and planning commission minutes are provided.
Staff recommends approval.


3. Consider proposed ordinance amendments to sections 78-210, 78-015 and 78-408 of
the City of Stoughton Zoning Ordinance to meet State of Wisconsin requirements for
non-conforming use and structure regulations.
On August 13, 2012 the Planning Commission held a public hearing and reviewed this
proposed ordinance amendment to the zoning ordinance related to non-conforming use &
structure regulations. The Planning Commission recommends the Common Council
approve the ordinance amendment as presented. The ordinance and planning commission
minutes are provided. Staff recommends approval.



mstacey

Highlight







Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
8/13/12
Page 2 of 3


S:\Clerks Office\minutes\Planning Commission\Regular Meetings 2012\Planning Minutes 8-13-12.doc


Motion by Christianson to approve the request to relocate the dust collector and
fan at 440 Business Park Circle contingent on the staff review letter dated June 19,
2012, 2nd by Hohol. Motion carried 6 – 0.


6. The Capital Area Regional Planning Commission (CARPC) requests the
opportunity to present information pertaining to a potential Future Urban
Development Area (FUDA) Study with participation from the City and
surrounding towns. Discussion will also address next steps required to
initiate the process.
Scheel gave a brief overview and introduced Dan McAuliffe and Kamran Mesbah of
CARPC who gave a presentation related to FUDA.


A discussion took place regarding the involvement in the FUDA process. The
Commissioners are in favor of the City moving forward with a memorandum of
understanding (MOU).


CARPC staff will provide the MOU for City staff to review and bring back to the
Commission. We will be thinking about key individuals as voting members of a
steering committee.


Olstad was excused at 7:12 pm


7. Consider proposed ordinance amendments to Table 78-610 (4)(b) of the City
of Stoughton Zoning Ordinance to make corrections to the bufferyard
requirements.
Scheel explained the proposed amendment.


Mayor Olson opened the public hearing


No one registered to speak.


Mayor Olson closed the public hearing.


Motion by Hohol to recommend Council approve the zoning ordinance amendment
as presented, 2nd by Krcma. Motion carried 5 – 0.


8. Consider proposed ordinance amendment to section 78-702 (9) of the City of
Stoughton Zoning Ordinance to make corrections to the Access Standards
and Appendix E, Bulk Regulations.
Scheel explained the proposed amendment.


Mayor Olson opened the public hearing


No one registered to speak.


Mayor Olson closed the public hearing.



mstacey

Highlight







S:\mps\Ordinances\Chapter 78\O-14 Bufferyard 12.doc


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589


ORDINANCE OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION


Amending Zoning Code Table 78-610 (4)(b) of the Stoughton Municipal Code


Committee Action:


Fiscal Impact: None


File Number: O- 14 -2012 Date
Introduced:


August 28, 2012 First Reading


September 11, 2012 Second Reading


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows:


1. Table 78-610(4)(b) Detailed Bufferyard Requirements


Opacity # Landscaping Points/100 feet Width Required Structure


0.05 00 10'+ Minimum 44' picket fence*


00 10'+ Minimum 4' wood rail fence*


40 10' —


36 15' —


33 20' —


31 25' —







29 30’ —


0.10 00 10'+ Minimum 44" picket fence*


38 10'+ Minimum 4' wood rail fence*


91 10' —


80 15' 0 -


73 20' —


68 25' —


65 30’ —


62 35'+ —


00 35'+ Minimum 4' berm







S:\mps\Ordinances\Chapter 78\O-14 Bufferyard 12.doc


0.20 00 10'+ Minimum 6' solid fence*


84 10'+ Minimum 44" picket fence*


133 15'+ Minimum 4' wood rail fence*


198 15' —


173 20' —


158 25' —


149 30’ —


140 35' —


10 35'+ Minimum 4' berm


135 40'+ —







00 40'+ Minimum 5' berm


0.30 00 10'+ Minimum 6' solid fence*


198 15'+ Minimum 44" picket fence*


320 20' —


240 20'+ Minimum 4' wood rail fence*


276 25' —


252 30’ —


235 35' —


104 35'+ Minimum 4' berm


223 40' —







S:\mps\Ordinances\Chapter 78\O-14 Bufferyard 12.doc


44 40'+ Minimum 5' berm


215 45' —


209 50'+ —


00 50'+ Minimum 6' berm


0.40 53 10'+ Minimum 6' solid fence*


330 20'+ Minimum 44" picket fence*


440 25' —


362 25'+ Minimum 4' wood rail fence*


385 30’ —


349 35' —







208 35'+ Minimum 4' berm


327 40' —


148 40'+ Minimum 5' berm


310 45' —


299 50'+ —


56 50'+ Minimum 6' berm


0.50 135 15'+ Minimum 6' solid fence*


564 30' —


405 30'+ Minimum 44" picket fence*


492 30'+ Minimum 4' wood rail fence*







S:\mps\Ordinances\Chapter 78\O-14 Bufferyard 12.doc


499 35' —


319 35'+ Minimum 4' berm


454 40' —


261 40'+ Minimum 5' berm


422 45' —


405 50' —


160 50'+ Minimum 6' berm


388 55' —


374 60'+ —


0.60 221 20'+ Minimum 6' solid fence*







433 35'+ Minimum 4' berm


541 35'+ Minimum 44" picket fence*


630 35'+ Minimum 4' wood rail fence*


626 40' —


379 40'+ Minimum 5' berm


570 45' —


525 50' —


270 50'+ Minimum 6' berm


500 55' —


480 60'+ —







S:\mps\Ordinances\Chapter 78\O-14 Bufferyard 12.doc


Opacity # Landscaping Points/100 feet Width Required Structure


0.80 415 30'+ Minimum 6' solid fence*


655 40'+ Minimum 4' berm


627 45'+ Minimum 5' berm


873 45'+ Minimum 44" picket fence*


910 50' —


505 50'+ Minimum 6' berm


809 50'+ Minimum 4' wood rail fence*


804 55' —


744 60' —







710 65’ —


677 70'+ —


1.00 636 40'+ Minimum 8' solid fence Minimum 6 foot solid fence*


732 50'+ Minimum 8' solid fence Minimum 6 foot berm


751 50'+ Minimum 8' solid fence Minimum 5 foot berm


867 55'+ Minimum 8' solid fence Minimum 4 foot berm


1091 60'+ Minimum 8' solid fence Minimum 44 inch picket fence*


1136 60'+ Minimum 8' solid fence Minimum 4 foot wood rail fence


1083 65’ Minimum 8' solid fence N/A


994 70’ Minimum 8' solid fence N/A







S:\mps\Ordinances\Chapter 78\O-14 Bufferyard 12.doc


934 75' Minimum 8' solid fence N/A


892 80'+ Minimum 8' solid fence N/A


*Fences contributing to landscaping requirements are not permitted along street frontages for nonresidential uses. Where used in


combination with plant materials to meet bufferyard requirements, a minimum of 50% of all plant materials shall be located on the


exterior side (the side away from the center of the subject property) of the fence. A building wall which does not contain doors (except


those used for emergency exit) may be used to satisfy the required fence portions of the bufferyard requirements.


NOTE: Opacity standards provided courtesy of Lane Kendig, Inc.


2. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its date of publication.


Dates


Council Adopted:


Mayor Approved:
Donna Olson, Mayor


Published:


Attest:
Nick Probst, City Clerk








CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL


DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


Date: August 14, 2012


To: Nick Probst
City Clerk


From: Rodney J. Scheel
Director of Planning & Development


Subject: Items for the August 28, 2012 Common Council Meeting.


Council Agenda:


New Business


1. Consider proposed ordinance amendments to Table 78-610 (4)(b) of the City of
Stoughton Zoning Ordinance to make corrections to the bufferyard requirements.
On August 13, 2012 the Planning Commission held a public hearing and reviewed this
proposed ordinance amendment to the zoning ordinance related to bufferyard requirements.
The Planning Commission recommends the Common Council approve the ordinance
amendment as presented. The ordinance and planning commission minutes are provided.
Staff recommends approval.


2. Consider proposed ordinance amendment to section 78-702 (9) of the City of
Stoughton Zoning Ordinance to make corrections to the Access Standards and
Appendix E, Bulk Regulations.
On August 13, 2012 the Planning Commission held a public hearing and reviewed this
proposed ordinance amendment to the zoning ordinance related to access standards. The
Planning Commission recommends the Common Council approve the ordinance
amendment as presented. The ordinance and planning commission minutes are provided.
Staff recommends approval.


3. Consider proposed ordinance amendments to sections 78-210, 78-015 and 78-408 of
the City of Stoughton Zoning Ordinance to meet State of Wisconsin requirements for
non-conforming use and structure regulations.
On August 13, 2012 the Planning Commission held a public hearing and reviewed this
proposed ordinance amendment to the zoning ordinance related to non-conforming use &
structure regulations. The Planning Commission recommends the Common Council
approve the ordinance amendment as presented. The ordinance and planning commission
minutes are provided. Staff recommends approval.



mstacey

Highlight







Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
8/13/12
Page 2 of 3


S:\Clerks Office\minutes\Planning Commission\Regular Meetings 2012\Planning Minutes 8-13-12.doc


Motion by Christianson to approve the request to relocate the dust collector and
fan at 440 Business Park Circle contingent on the staff review letter dated June 19,
2012, 2nd by Hohol. Motion carried 6 – 0.


6. The Capital Area Regional Planning Commission (CARPC) requests the
opportunity to present information pertaining to a potential Future Urban
Development Area (FUDA) Study with participation from the City and
surrounding towns. Discussion will also address next steps required to
initiate the process.
Scheel gave a brief overview and introduced Dan McAuliffe and Kamran Mesbah of
CARPC who gave a presentation related to FUDA.


A discussion took place regarding the involvement in the FUDA process. The
Commissioners are in favor of the City moving forward with a memorandum of
understanding (MOU).


CARPC staff will provide the MOU for City staff to review and bring back to the
Commission. We will be thinking about key individuals as voting members of a
steering committee.


Olstad was excused at 7:12 pm


7. Consider proposed ordinance amendments to Table 78-610 (4)(b) of the City
of Stoughton Zoning Ordinance to make corrections to the bufferyard
requirements.
Scheel explained the proposed amendment.


Mayor Olson opened the public hearing


No one registered to speak.


Mayor Olson closed the public hearing.


Motion by Hohol to recommend Council approve the zoning ordinance amendment
as presented, 2nd by Krcma. Motion carried 5 – 0.


8. Consider proposed ordinance amendment to section 78-702 (9) of the City of
Stoughton Zoning Ordinance to make corrections to the Access Standards
and Appendix E, Bulk Regulations.
Scheel explained the proposed amendment.


Mayor Olson opened the public hearing


No one registered to speak.


Mayor Olson closed the public hearing.



mstacey

Highlight







Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
8/13/12
Page 3 of 3


S:\Clerks Office\minutes\Planning Commission\Regular Meetings 2012\Planning Minutes 8-13-12.doc


Motion by Hohol to recommend Council approve the zoning ordinance amendment
as presented, 2nd by Krcma.


Christianson asked if a variance is still an option. Scheel stated a variance is
always an option.


Motion carried 5 – 0.


9. Consider proposed ordinance amendments to sections 78-210, 78-015 and 78-
408 of the City of Stoughton Zoning Ordinance to meet State of Wisconsin
requirements for non-conforming use and structure regulations.
Scheel explained the proposed amendment.


Mayor Olson opened the public hearing


No one registered to speak.


Mayor Olson closed the public hearing.


Motion by Christianson to recommend Council approve the zoning ordinance
amendment as presented, 2nd by Krcma.


Hohol questioned where this section is covered in the code. Scheel stated it is in
state statutes.


Motion carried 5 – 0.


10. Future agenda items. FUDA; Kettle West; and Settler’s Point.


11. Adjournment. Motion by Christianson to adjourn at 7:21 pm, 2nd by Hohol.
Motion carried 5 – 0.


Respectfully Submitted,
Michael Stacey



mstacey

Highlight







S:\mps\Ordinances\Chapter 78\O-15 Zoning driveway setbacks 12.doc


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589


ORDINANCE OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION


Amending Zoning Code Sections 78-702(9), and Appendix E of the Stoughton Municipal Code


Committee Action:


Fiscal Impact: None


File Number: O- 15 -2012 Date
Introduced:


August 28, 2012 First Reading


September 11, 2012 Second Reading


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows:


1. Sec. 78-702 Access standards


(9) Distance from an access drive to a property line. See bulk regulations in Appendix E for specific zoning
district requirements. The distance from an access drive to the property line of an adjacent property shall not be
less than five feet, as measured at the right-of-way line.







Appendix E


City of Stoughton Bulk Regulations (Requirements per Articles I and II)


Summary of City of Stoughton Residential Bulk Standards


Zoning District Min Lot
Area
(square
feet)


Min Lot
Width
(ft)


Minimum Setbacks (ft) Min Dwelling
Unit
Separation
(ft)


Max Building Height
(ft)


Front or
Street
Side Lot
Line to
House


Front or
Street Side
Lot Line to
Attached
Garage


Side to House
or attached
garage2


Rear lot line
to House or
attached
garage2


Side/Rear to
Accessory
building


Pavement to
side or
rear/street


Least
Side


Sum
of
Sides


Dwelling
Unit


Accessory
Building


Rural Holding 35 Acres 100 25 30 10 20 30 3/33 5/10 20 35 45


Exurban Res 40,000 100 25 30 10 20 30 4/411 5/10 20 35 20







S:\mps\Ordinances\Chapter 78\O-15 Zoning driveway setbacks 12.doc


Single-family
Res-3


12,000 80 25 25 10 20 30 4/411 105/10 20 30 20


Single-family
Res-4


8,600 66 25 25 10 20 30 4/411 1/10 20 30 20


Single-family
Res-5


7,200 60 25 25 6 14 25 4/411 1/10 12 30 20


Single-family
Res-6


6,6009 40 204 20 6 14 20 4/411 1/10 10 35 20


Two-family
Res-6


5,000 per
du


80 or
40 for
twin
home


2010 2012 106 206 30 4/411 1/10 20 30 20







Multi-family
Res-10


4,356 per
du


905 25 30 156 306 40 4/411 5/10 306 35 15


Multi-family
Res-24


1,815 per
du


905 25 25 206 406 50 4/411 5/10 406 40 20


Neighborhood
Office7


See
footnote
#7


— — — — — — — — — — —


Planned Office Residential uses not permitted in this district except as upper story residential units


Neighborhood
Business7


See
footnote
#7


— — — — — — — — — — —


Planned Residential uses not permitted in this district except as upper story residential units







S:\mps\Ordinances\Chapter 78\O-15 Zoning driveway setbacks 12.doc


Business


Central
Business8


See
footnote
#8


— — — — — — — — See
footnote #6


— —


Planned Unit
Development
PD


All standards set as part of planned unit development


2Additional setbacks may be required along zoning district boundaries. See Section 78-610


3Accessory buildings shall be 3 feet from the property line; 5 feet from an alley.


412 feet to porch







5See district text for requirements for specific uses


60 feet along common wall


7For single-family homes see the SR-5 District. For two-family homes see the TR-6 District


8For institutional residential development, see the MR-10 and MR-24 Districts


94,000 square feet for Traditional Neighborhood developments served by alleys


1010 feet for open-walled front porches


114 feet from property line; 4 feet from an alley.







S:\mps\Ordinances\Chapter 78\O-15 Zoning driveway setbacks 12.doc


1215 feet for open-walled front porches


2. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its date of publication.


Dates


Council Adopted:


Mayor Approved:
Donna Olson, Mayor


Published:


Attest:
Nick Probst, City Clerk








CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL


DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


Date: August 14, 2012


To: Nick Probst
City Clerk


From: Rodney J. Scheel
Director of Planning & Development


Subject: Items for the August 28, 2012 Common Council Meeting.


Council Agenda:


New Business


1. Consider proposed ordinance amendments to Table 78-610 (4)(b) of the City of
Stoughton Zoning Ordinance to make corrections to the bufferyard requirements.
On August 13, 2012 the Planning Commission held a public hearing and reviewed this
proposed ordinance amendment to the zoning ordinance related to bufferyard requirements.
The Planning Commission recommends the Common Council approve the ordinance
amendment as presented. The ordinance and planning commission minutes are provided.
Staff recommends approval.


2. Consider proposed ordinance amendment to section 78-702 (9) of the City of
Stoughton Zoning Ordinance to make corrections to the Access Standards and
Appendix E, Bulk Regulations.
On August 13, 2012 the Planning Commission held a public hearing and reviewed this
proposed ordinance amendment to the zoning ordinance related to access standards. The
Planning Commission recommends the Common Council approve the ordinance
amendment as presented. The ordinance and planning commission minutes are provided.
Staff recommends approval.


3. Consider proposed ordinance amendments to sections 78-210, 78-015 and 78-408 of
the City of Stoughton Zoning Ordinance to meet State of Wisconsin requirements for
non-conforming use and structure regulations.
On August 13, 2012 the Planning Commission held a public hearing and reviewed this
proposed ordinance amendment to the zoning ordinance related to non-conforming use &
structure regulations. The Planning Commission recommends the Common Council
approve the ordinance amendment as presented. The ordinance and planning commission
minutes are provided. Staff recommends approval.



mstacey

Highlight







Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
8/13/12
Page 3 of 3


S:\Clerks Office\minutes\Planning Commission\Regular Meetings 2012\Planning Minutes 8-13-12.doc


Motion by Hohol to recommend Council approve the zoning ordinance amendment
as presented, 2nd by Krcma.


Christianson asked if a variance is still an option. Scheel stated a variance is
always an option.


Motion carried 5 – 0.


9. Consider proposed ordinance amendments to sections 78-210, 78-015 and 78-
408 of the City of Stoughton Zoning Ordinance to meet State of Wisconsin
requirements for non-conforming use and structure regulations.
Scheel explained the proposed amendment.


Mayor Olson opened the public hearing


No one registered to speak.


Mayor Olson closed the public hearing.


Motion by Christianson to recommend Council approve the zoning ordinance
amendment as presented, 2nd by Krcma.


Hohol questioned where this section is covered in the code. Scheel stated it is in
state statutes.


Motion carried 5 – 0.


10. Future agenda items. FUDA; Kettle West; and Settler’s Point.


11. Adjournment. Motion by Christianson to adjourn at 7:21 pm, 2nd by Hohol.
Motion carried 5 – 0.


Respectfully Submitted,
Michael Stacey



mstacey

Highlight







S:\mps\Ordinances\Chapter 78\O-16 Zoning Nonconforming use & structure 12.doc


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589


ORDINANCE OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION


Amending Zoning Code Sections 78-210, 78-015 and 78-408 of the Stoughton Municipal Code


Committee Action:


Fiscal Impact: None


File Number: O- 16 -2012 Date
Introduced:


August 28, 2012 First Reading


September 11, 2012 Second Reading


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows:


1. Sec. 78-210 Nonconforming use regulations.


(1) Definition:
A nonconforming use is an active and actual use of land or structures, or both; legally established prior to the
effective date of this Chapter or subsequent applicable amendment thereto which has continued the same use
to the present, and which would not be permitted under the current terms of this Chapter.


(2) Continuance of a Nonconforming Use:
Any nonconforming use lawfully existing upon the effective date of this Chapter or any amendment to it may
be continued at the size and in a manner of operation existing upon such date, except as specified in this
Section. Any prior legal use made nonconforming by this Chapter or by an amendment to it may be granted
legal conforming status by the issuance of a conditional use permit, subject to the standards and procedures
prescribed by Section 78-905. Any prior legal use made nonconforming by a modification to the Official
Zoning Map after the effective date of this Chapter may be granted legal conforming use status by changing
the zoning district of the affected property to an appropriate district through a zoning map amendment. Such
requested zoning amendment shall be subject to the standards and procedures prescribed by Section 78-903.


(3) Modification of a Nonconforming Use:
(a) Except as permitted in this Section, a nonconforming use (i) shall not be expanded, enlarged, or extended,


or reconstructed, unless the use is changed to a use permitted in the district in which the use is located, or
(ii) and shall not be changed to another nonconforming use.


(b) A nonconforming nonresidential use not served by public sanitary sewer and/or public water may be
permitted to expand without being served by public sanitary sewer and/or public water if either or both
facilities are not available within 1,000 feet of the subject property, and a conditional use permit is
granted for such expansion.


(4) Discontinuance of a Nonconforming Use:
When any nonconforming use of any structure or land is discontinued for a period of 12 consecutive months,
or is changed into a conforming use, any future use of said structure or land shall be in complete conformity
with the provisions of this Chapter.


(5) Maintenance and repair of a Nonconforming Use:
The ordinary maintenance and repair of a nonconforming use (structure or land) is permitted, including
necessary repairs and incidental alterations which do not exacerbate the adverse impacts of the
nonconforming use in relation to the purpose of this Chapter. Except as otherwise provided in this Section,
whenever a nonconforming use is damaged to the extent of more than 50% of its current equalized assessed
value, it shall not be restored except in conformity with the regulations of the district in which it is located.
Notwithstanding the previous sentence, the structural repairs or alterations in a structure either itself
nonconforming or containing a nonconforming use shall not during its lifetime exceed 50% of the present
equalized assessed value of said structure unless permanently changed to a conforming use.







(6)(5)Nonconforming Lots and Structures:
See Sections 78-307, 78-408 and 78-409.


Section 78-015: Definitions
Blanket variance: A variance which is automatically granted by a provision of this Chapter in order to reduce the
creation of legal nonconforming developments (see Section 78-310 and or legal nonconforming residential
structures (see Section 78-408 (10) (9) ).


Section 78-408: Nonconforming Structure Regulations
(1) Any structure lawfully existing upon the effective date of this Chapter may be continued at the size and in a


manner of operation existing upon such date, except as provided in this Section.


(2) Any lawful nonconforming structures existing at the time of the adoption or amendment of the ordinance
from which this chapter is derived may be continued, although its size or location does not conform with the
lot width, lot area, yard, height, parking and loading, and access provisions of this chapter. Any lawful
nonconforming structures may be allowed to be extended, enlarged, reconstructed, moved or structurally
altered, provided that said extension, enlargement, reconstruction, movement or alteration complies with the
setback zoning and building requirements of the specific zoning district, except for the existing
nonconformance. However, the nonconforming feature of a lawful nonconforming structure shall not be
allowed to become more nonconforming by being extended, enlarged, reconstructed, moved or structurally
altered except as permitted under subsection 78-408(4) or when required to do so by law, or order, or to
comply with the provisions of this chapter, or with the approval of the zoning board of appeals.


(3) A damaged or destroyed nonconforming structure may be restored to the size, location, and use that it had
immediately before the damage or destruction occurred, without any limits on the costs of the repair,
reconstruction, or improvement if all of the following apply:


(a) The nonconforming structure was damaged or destroyed on or after the effective date of this ordinance.


(b) The damage or destruction was caused by violent wind, vandalism, fire, flood, ice, snow, mold, or
infestation.


(4) Unsafe Structures


Nothing in this Chapter shall preclude the Building Inspector or any other City official from initiating
remedial or enforcement actions when a lawful nonconforming structure is declared unsafe or presents a
danger the public health, safety, or welfare.


(5) Future Modification


When any lawful nonconforming structure in any district is modified so as to be in conformance with the
provisions of this Chapter, any future modification of said structure shall be in conformance with the
provisions of this Chapter.


(6) Substantial Improvement


Whenever a lawful nonconforming structure has been damaged by fire, flood, wind, explosion, earthquake,
war, riot, unlawful act, or Act of God, it may be reconstructed and used as before if it be reconstructed within
one year after such calamity, unless the cost of restoration equals or exceeds 50% of the present equalized
value of the structure before the damage occurred.. In such cases, the reconstruction shall be limited to uses
permitted by the provisions of this Chapter (unless the ability to re-establish a nonconforming use is
specifically granted by the Common Council).


(7) (6) Ordinary Maintenance


Ordinary maintenance repairs, including repairs reasonably necessary to prevent the deterioration of a
structure, and remodeling of a nonconforming structure are permitted, as well as necessary nonstructural
repairs and alterations which do not extend, enlarge, or intensify the nonconforming structure. Ordinary
maintenance repairs and remodeling include internal and external painting, decorating, paneling, the addition
of acoustical ceilings, the installation of heating, electricity, plumbing (including fixtures) or insulation, and
the replacement of doors, windows, and other non-structural components.







S:\mps\Ordinances\Chapter 78\O-16 Zoning Nonconforming use & structure 12.doc


(8) (7) Alterations


Subject to Section 78-408(4), structural alterations may be made to a building containing lawful
nonconforming residential units, provided such alterations do not increase the number of dwelling units or the
bulk of the building. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a conforming garage may be added if none previously
existed. However, after the effective date of this Chapter, such buildings shall not be enlarged, expanded or
extended without bringing the enlargement, expansion or extension into compliance with the provisions of the
this Chapter unless a variance is granted by the Zoning Board of Appeals under Section 78-910 and except as
permitted under Section 78-408(4).


(9) (8) Timing of Building Permit


Any structure for which a building permit has been lawfully granted prior to the effective date of this Chapter
or an amendment to it which will become nonconforming under the provisions of this Chapter or that
amendment thereto, may be completed in accordance with the approved plans, provided construction is
started within 365 calendar days after issuance of the permit for single- and two-family construction and
within 365 calendar days after issuance of a permit for all other development, and construction is completed
within 730 calendar days (2 years) after issuance of the permit. the start of construction. If all such conditions
are met, the structure shall thereafter be a legal nonconforming structure.


(10) (9) Blanket Variance


Blanket Conforming Status for any and all requirements of this Article is hereby automatically granted to all
principle structures in their configuration existing or as finally approved as of the effective date of this
Chapter. However, after the effective date of this Chapter, such structures may not be enlarged, expanded or
extended without bringing the enlargement, expansion or extension into compliance with the provisions of the
Article this Chapter unless a variance is granted by the Zoning Board of Appeals under Section 78-910.


Rationale: The "blanket conforming status" specified in Subsection (10) (9) is intended to eliminate the
continued classification and/or creation of certain principle structures as non-conforming subject to the
requirements of this Chapter. This provision addresses two different situations. First: prior to the provision of
full-time inspection services, a number of structures were approved in the City that did not meet setback
requirements. Second: this Chapter requires greater side yard setback requirements for certain lot sizes than
did previous regulations for similar sized lots. Subsection (10) (9) therefore ensures that owners of such
structures approved prior to the adoption of this Chapter do not encounter difficulty in transferring ownership
because the structures would otherwise be considered nonconforming.


2. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its date of publication.


Dates


Council Adopted:


Mayor Approved:
Donna Olson, Mayor


Published:


Attest:
Nick Probst, City Clerk





